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1 OPENING PRAYER

“Almighty God, we humbly ask you to bless this Council, direct and prosper its
deliberations towards the true welfare of your people of the Shire of Loddon.”

2 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

“The Loddon Shire Council acknowledges the Traditional Custodians of the land on which
we are gathered and pays its respects to their Elders both past and present.”

3 APOLOGIES
4 DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST
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5 PREVIOUS MINUTES

5.1 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

File Number: 02/01/001

Author: Lynne Habner, Manager Executive and Commercial Services
Authoriser: Phil Pinyon, Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: Nil

RECOMMENDATION

That Council confirm:
1.  The minutes of the Council Briefing of 24 July 2018
2. The minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting of 24 July 2018

REPORT

Seeking approval of the unconfirmed minutes of the previous meetings.
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6 REVIEW OF ACTION SHEET

6.1 REVIEW OF ACTIONS

File Number: 02/01/002

Author: Lynne Habner, Manager Executive and Commercial Services
Authoriser: Phil Pinyon, Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: 1. Action sheet

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive and note the action sheet.

REPORT
Refer attachment.
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Finalised Division: Date From:
Committee: Council Date To:
Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: Thursday, 16 August 2018 11:07:10
AM

Outstanding actions from previous meetings

ACTION NUMBER COUNCIL MEETING REF DIRECTORATE OFFICER

9 28/5/12 9.2 Operations Manager Technical Services
ACTION

That Council:

1. Develop a process for the identification and prioritisation of minor community infrastructure projects which will allow for a structured approach in providing in-principle
or financial support for external funding applications.
COMMENTS

12/11/14: Action item has been amended following completion of the BRIC gymnasium development project utilising “Putting Local's First” funding. Elements of this action
have been simplified to exclude those relating to the BRIC project and focusing now on the remaining action element being the development of operational guidelines for
receiving, prioritising and applying for external funding in respect to minor community infrastructure projects.

11/6/2015: Manager Infrastructure has commenced development of a draft project identification template and scoping document along with associated prioritisation criteria
and explanatory notes.

11/09/2015: Progress on development of assessment and prioritisation criteria for minor community Infrastructure projects has been delayed due to competing operational
priorities. Delivery of this action item shall be raised with the Manager of Infrastructure as a matter of urgency.

11/02/2016: Matter has been raised with the responsible officer however no further progress has been made on development of the required process and guideline.

12/05/2016: Development of minor community infrastructure project assessment and prioritisation guidelines has been incorporated into the 2016/17 performance objectives
of the new Manager Technical Services.

10/6/2016: No progress to date - will be considered with review of building assets

11/08/2016: Review of methodology for identification and prioritisation of community infrastructure projects has commenced. Consideration is currently being given to
frameworks which have been adopted by other LGA's (i.e. City of Greater Bendigo Capital Investment Assessment Framework).

20/02/2017: Progress on developing community infrastructure project prioritisation guideline has been delayed due to competing priorities and resource constraints. Project
is being handed over to the recently appointed Project/Contract Officer for further progression.

19/04/2017: The Manager Technical Services and Project/Contract Officer are working together to progress the establishment of an Assessment Framework based upon the
2017/18 projects.

13/07/2017: No further action has been taken due to staff resource constraints.
02/08/2017: No further action. Benchmarking with other neighbouring Councils will be undertaken subject to successful recruitment of Assets and Buildings Coordinator.
11/09/2017: New Assets and Building Co-ordinator has commenced and will prioritise as matter of urgency.

17/10/2017: Process for evaluation and prioritising of minor community projects is being developed and a draft is planned to be reported early in 2018.

InfoCouncil Page 1 of 9
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Finalised Division: Date From:
Committee: Council Date To:
Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: Thursday, 16 August 2018 11:07:10
AM

14/11/2017: Work has commenced and is continuing in developing this process.
06/12/2017: Manager Technical Services is developing project identification and prioritisation process.

10/01/2018: No further progress has been made since the last update due to competing priorities. Officers are currently working towards the development of Annual
Infrastructure Program and the action will resume upon completion of Annual Infrastructure Program.

09/02/2018: Project identification and assessment flowchart is being developed and will be progressed as a priority following the development of the 2018 — 2019 Annual
Infrastructure Program.

19/03/2018: Due to a recent staff departure, this action will be delayed.

03/05/2018: Recruitment of the Assets and Buildings Coordinator is in progress and the action will be progressed as a priority following the adoption of 2018-2019 Annual
Infrastructure Program.

04/06/2018: Assets and Buildings Coordinator recruitment process is now complete and expected to start on 10 July 2018. This action will be addressed as a priority.

09/07/2018: Assets and Buildings Coordinator recruitment process is now complete and with the officer commencing on 10 July 2018. This action will be addressed as a
priority.

03/08/2018: A workshop session has been scheduled for 13 August 2018 to engage Loddon Leaders and MEG in the process. The session will lay the foundation towards the
development of the procedure.

ACTION NUMBER COUNCIL MEETING REF DIRECTORATE OFFICER

66 25/2114 7.4 Operations Manager Technical Services
ACTION

That Council look at the future needs of buildings under Council control but ‘not currently covered by the Building Asset Management Plan and report to Council.
COMMENTS

8/4/14: All buildings identified within the shire are currently covered in the BAMP. Council have requested that the BAMP be reviewed in relation to the buildings that receive
no financial support. A review of the BAMP is scheduled to be undertaken later this calendar year. At this time a review of all provisions will be undertaken with a subsequent
report provided for Council consideration.

11/11/14: Review of the BAMP has been rescheduled to later this financial year due to commitments of staff in preparing the Road Asset Management and Stormwater Asset
management Plans as a matter of priority. Preliminary discussions and consideration on service levels for various building categories has commenced however e.g. public
toilets.

11/6/15: Review of the BAMP has been rescheduled following completion of the annual asset valuation data. Itis expected that commencement of the BAMP review will
occur following the completion of the Stormwater Asset Management Plan in September 2015.

11/09/15: Manager Policy & Strategy is finalising both the Urban Drainage Asset Management and Road Asset Management Plans. Following completion of these strategies
focus shall be placed upon the revision of the Building Asset management Plan. Due to delays in progress with the development of the UDAMP and RAMP, work on the
BAMP is now scheduled to commence in November 2015.

InfoCouncil Page 2 of 9
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Finalised Division: Date From:
Committee: Council Date To:
Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: Thursday, 16 August 2018 11:07:10
AM

11/02/16: Draft RAMP and UDAMP have been prepared. Final review of draft documents is occurring in preparation for discussion with Council in March. Enquiries are
being made with appropriately qualified consultants to gather necessary building asset data in preparation of commencement on the BAMP review later this year.

10/6/2016: Consultants are currently being interviewed regarding building asset system and data capture. Consultant should be engaged July/August with data capture due
by end of 2016.

5/7/2016: Consultants from Assetic has been engaged to perform condition assessment of all the Council owned/managed buildings. Additionally, Assetic system has been
purchased as a new corporate asset management system for building assets with future inclusion of roads and drainage assets.

11/08/2016: Register of buildings for inspection has been finalised and consultants will be commencing on site inspections and data capture by the end of August. Itis
expected that the data capture process could take up to 60 days after which time processing and analysis will commence to inform investment scenario modelling within the
revised BAMP

31/08/2016: Building audits have now commenced. A total of 178 Council buildings have been identified for audit. In addition to data capture on structure details,
inspections will also identify immediate works required where building element conditions are below service level intervention standards. These works will then form the basis
of future building capital works programs and inform preparation of the future investment demand for the LTFP and BAMP.

4/10/16: Building audits are approximately 80% complete. It is anticipated that full audit details and population of the Asset Management System which has been procured,
will be complete by the end of October 2016. Data modelling within the Asset Management package will then be used to inform development of the new draft Asset
Management Plan.

10/11/16: Audit of Council buildings has been completed. Condition profiles for building stock are now being compiled to inform preparation of draft BAMP. It is anticipated
that presentation of initial audit results to Council will occur in either December or January.

20/2117: Post audit processing of building data has been slightly delayed due to resource constraints. Officers are in the process of finalising to produce renewal gap
modelling prior to presentation of audit findings to Council. Outputs from audit process are also being utilised in the preparation of a building component of the 2017-2017
Annual Infrastructure Program.

20/03/2017: Preliminary modelling of long term investment requirements across the portfolio of Council buildings has now been completed. Summary report for Council is
being prepared to convey initial findings however detailed analysis and adjustment is still required to take into consideration the current policies contained within the BAMP as
well as preparation of various scenarios if service levels are changed. Scenario models will be presented to Council as part of developing the revised BAMP.

19/04/2017: First Draft of BAMP is expected in the first quarter of 2017/18.

13/07/2017: Due to delay in successful recruitment to the vacant position of Assets and Buildings Coordinator, it is very likely that the first draft of BAMP will be delayed.
02/08/2017: No further action.

11/09/2017: New Assets and Building Co-ordinator has commenced and will prioritise as matter of urgency.

17/10/2017: A draft of the Building Asset Management Plan is planned to be presented to Council December meeting.

14/11/2017: With the successful recruitment of Assets and Buildings Coordinator, revision of Council's Building Asset Management Plan is underway as per the
recommendation of review undertaken in 2016/17. Financial information on Council owned buildings has been finalised and officers are currently working on the level of
service for building assets. Once finalised, the data will be uploaded into the Asset Management system to identify Council’'s annual liability and renewal need and as such the
draft BAMP will then be presented to Loddon Leaders and MEG for endorsement before presenting to Council for public comments.

InfoCouncil Page 3 of 9
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Finalised Division: Date From:
Committee: Council Date To:
Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: Thursday, 16 August 2018 11:07:10
AM

06/12/2017: Draft preparation in progress.
10/01/2018: Preparation of draft BAMP is in progress.

09/02/2018: Council's Assets and Buildings Coordinator is currently working on the draft Building Asset Management Plan and Manager Technical Services and Director
Operations will subsequently review the plan and then forward it to Loddon Leaders, MEG and with the intention of presenting it to Council at the May 2018 Forum .

19/03/2018: Due to a recent staff departure, this action will be delayed.
03/05/2018: Recruitment of the Assets and Buildings Coordinator is in progress and the action will be progressed as a priority.
04/06/2018: An update on progress of BAMP is being presented at the June 2018 Council forum.

09/07/2018: An update on the progress of BAMP was presented at the June 2018 Council forum. With the finalisation of recruitment of Assets and Buildings Coordinator, this
action will be progressed as a priority.

03/08/2018: Newly recruited Assets and Buildings Coordinator has already started working on the draft BAMP and has engaged with the consultant to explore a number of
different financial modelling. The project has been tasked to the Assets and Buildings Coordinator as a top priority.

Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject
Council 22/05/2018 Gladman, Wendy Decision Reports LEASE AGREEMENT - STATE EMERGENCY SERVICE
Gladman, Wendy

RESOLUTION 2018/53

Moved: Cr Colleen Condliffe
Seconded: Cr Gavan Holt

That Council:

1. enter into a long term lease agreement of 40 years with the Wedderburn VICSES unit for Lot 2 Nardoo Court, Wedderburn, at a rental cost per annum of
$1.00 plus GST.

2. align the entering of this agreement with the removal of the subsidy provided to the Wedderburn SES Unit (currently $2,500) from the 2018/19 budget and
beyond

3. pass on all related costs stipulated in the lease agreement to the Wedderburn SES Unit

4. authorise the Chief Executive Officer to sign and affix the common seal of Loddon Shire Council on the lease agreement.

CARRIED

5/06/2018 8:08:00 AM - Wendy Gladman

InfoCouncil Page 4 of 9
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Finalised Division: Date From:
Committee: Council Date To:
Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: Thursday, 16 August 2018 11:07:10
AM

This action has not yet been finalised, still awaiting contact with SES to initiate timing of lease agreement.

3/07/2018 11:11:18 PM - Wendy Gladman

Some internal work to detail the terms and conditions outlined in the lease is being undertaken. It is then expected that initial meeting with SES to discuss these terms and
conditions and how they will be implemented will be held prior to end of July.

14/068/2018 12:13:26 PM - Wendy Gladman

Other commitments have meant that the meeting with the SES has not yet occurred. An initial meeting with the SES will be held prior to end August 2018

Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject
Council 22/05/2018 Dhakal, Indivar New ltem KORONG VALE GUTTER AND FOOTPATH
Phillips, Steven

RESOLUTION 2018/64

Moved: Cr Neil Beattie
Seconded: Cr Colleen Condliffe

Noting that the Korong Vale gutter infrastructure on the east side of Allen Street adjacent to Borella Park is the responsibility of VicRoads, and considering the
protracted time in having the required work undertaken by VicRoads, that staff assess the kerb repairs/rehabilitation and provide a cost for rectification via a
report to Council with a view to Council undertaking this work.

CARRIED

6/06/2018 10:31:12 PM - Indivar Dhakal

Council Officers are undertaking a preliminary investigation to identify key details of the proposed works. Once complete, Officers will report to Council potentially during July
2018 Council meeting. A meeting has been scheduled with VicRoads on 2 July 2018 and this matter will also be raised in that forum.

5/07/2018 1:48:32 PM - Indivar Dhakal

Council officers are investigating and a forum paper will be presented at the September 2018 Council forum. The issue was flagged with VicRoads during VicRoads' municipal
visit.

3/08/2018 8:35:30 AM - Indivar Dhakal

Council officers have undertaken a preliminary assessment and cost estimate for the project with a number of different options. A forum paper is being prepared to be
presented at September 2018 Council Forum.

Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject
Council 24/07/2018 Gladman, Wendy Decision Reports North Central Goldfields Regional Library Agreement 2019 - 2023
Gladman, Wendy

RESOLUTION 2018/99
Moved: Cr Colleen Condliffe

InfoCouncil Page 5 of 9
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Finalised Division: Date From:
Committee: Council Date To:
Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: Thursday, 16 August 2018 11:07:10
AM

Seconded: Cr Gavan Holt

That noting the amendments to clauses 9.1 and 9.2 of the Library Agreement and clause 4 of the Service and Funding Agreement, Council resolve to
advertise its intention to approve the Regional Library Agreement for the North Central Goldfields Regional Library Corporation 2019 — 2023 in accordance
with Section 223 of the Local Government Act 1989.

CARRIED

14/08/2018 12:14:41 PM - Wendy Gladman
It is expected that the library agreement will be placed on public display by end of August

Actions completed since last meeting
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject

. Stephenson,
Council 27/03/2018 Carolyn

Phillips, Steven

Decision Reports Serpentine Industrial Estate - Rezoning

RESOLUTION 2018/9

Moved: Cr Geoff Curnow
Seconded: Cr Colleen Condliffe

That Council

1. Request authorisation from the Minister for Planning to prepare an amendment to the Loddon Planning Scheme to rezone Lots 1, 2, 3, PS 608853
(Treloar St, Serpentine) to Industrial 3 Zone;

2. Should authorisation be provided, prepare the amendment and place the amendment on exhibition.

CARRIED

10/04/2018 12:24:00 PM - Carolyn Stephenson

Draft submission submitted to DELWP for consideration
7/05/2018 11:56:00 AM - Carolyn Stephenson

Draft documents being amended following DELWP feedback
14/05/2018 2:16:00 PM - Carolyn Stephenson

Amendment submitted to Minister for authorisation to exhibit
4/06/2018 11:15.00 AM - Carolyn Stephenson

InfoCouncil Page 6 of 9
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Finalised Division: Date From:
Committee: Council Date To:
Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: Thursday, 16 August 2018 11:07:10
AM

Still waiting on Minister / DELWP for advice re authorisation

9/07/2018 2:08:05 PM - Christine Coombes

The Amendment documents for C40 —Serpentine Industrial Estate have been uploaded onto the New DELWP Amendment Tracking System (ATS) with request for consent
for exhibition. It is proposed that the exhibition will commence mid-July.

13/068/2018 11:18:49 AM - Carolyn Stephenson

Amendment C40 is currently on exhibition. Exhibition closes on 27 August 2018.

16/08/2018 10:18:20 AM - Carolyn Stephenson

Action completed by: Coombes, Christine
Action complete.

Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject
Council 24/07/2018 Stobaus, Allan Decision Reports Loddon Shire Community Grants Scheme 2018 -2019
Gladman, Wendy

RESOLUTION 2018/95

Moved: Cr Neil Beattie
Seconded: Cr Gavan Holt

That Council:
1. allocate $138,476 in grants under the 2018/19 Loddon Shire Council Community Grants Scheme as outlined in the attachment provided with this
report, with an additional allocation of $440 for the About Boort Newsletter and $3,000 for the Wedderburn Golf Club for their practice nets project.
2. hold the surplus funds in reserve for suitable community projects that arise throughout the year
3. carry over any surplus funds remaining at the end of the 2018/19 financial year to supplement the 2019/20 Community Grants scheme.

CARRIED
15/068/2018 1:38:47 PM - Allan Stobaus
Applicants advised
15/08/2018 1:39:42 PM - Allan Stobaus
Action completed by: Stobaus, Allan
complete
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject
Council 24/07/2018 Caserta, Deanne Decision Reports Surrender of Land Policy v2
Morrison, Sharon
RESOLUTION 2018/96
Moved: Cr Geoff Curnow
InfoCouncil Page 7 of 9
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Finalised Division: Date From:

Committee: Council Date To:

Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: Thursday, 16 August 2018 11:07:10

AM
Seconded: Cr Neil Beattie
That Council adopts the Surrender of Land Policy v2
CARRIED
13/08/2018 11:25:26 AM - Deanne Caserta
Action completed by: Caserta, Deanne
Finalised and sent to executive for publishing to the website
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject
Council 24/07/2018 Caserta, Deanne Decision Reports Provision for Doubtful Debts and Writing Off Bad Debts Policy v3
Morrison, Sharon
RESOLUTION 2018/97
Moved: Cr Colleen Condliffe
Seconded: Cr Neil Beattie
That Council adopts the Provision for Doubtful Debts and Writing Off Bad Debts Policy v3
CARRIED
13/08/2018 11:25:31 AM - Deanne Caserta
Action completed by: Caserta, Deanne
Finalised and sent to executive for publishing to the website
Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject
Council 24/07/2018 Dhakal, Indivar Decision Reports Annual Infrastructure Program 2018 - 2019
Phillips, Steven

RESOLUTION 2018/98
Moved:  Cr Geoff Curnow
Seconded: Cr Neil Beattie
That Council resolve to adopt the Annual Infrastructure Program 2018 — 2019.
InfoCouncil Page 8 of 9
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Finalised Division: Date From:
Committee: Council Date To:
Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: Thursday, 16 August 2018 11:07:10
AM

CARRIED

3/08/2018 8:35:14 AM - Indivar Dhakal

Action completed by: Dhakal, Indivar
The program has been forwarded to Finance to set up ledger numbers and a meeting is scheduled for 6 August between Technical Services and Works to
finalise action plan.

Meeting Officer/Director Section Subject
Council 24/07/2018 Pinyon, Phil Decision Reports MURRAY DARLING ASSOCIATION - COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP
Pinyon, Phil

RESOLUTION 2018/100

Moved: Cr Neil Beattie
Seconded: Cr Geoff Curnow

That Council continue its membership of the Murray Darling Association for a further year.

CARRIED
9/08/2018 11:01:02 AM - Phil Pinyon
Action completed by: Habner, Lynne
Completed. Letter sent to MDA renewing membership for 2018/19 on 10 August 2018.
InfoCouncil Page 9 of 9
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7 MAYORAL REPORT

71 MAYORAL REPORT

File Number: 02/01/001

Author: Lynne Habner, Manager Executive and Commercial Services
Authoriser: Phil Pinyon, Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: Nil

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive and note the Mayoral Report

REPORT
The Mayor will present a report at the meeting.
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8 COUNCILLORS’ REPORT

8.1 COUNCILLORS' REPORTS

File Number: 02/01/001

Author: Lynne Habner, Manager Executive and Commercial Services
Authoriser: Phil Pinyon, Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: Nil

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive and note the Councillors’ reports

REPORT
Each Councillor will present a report at the meeting.
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9 DECISION REPORTS

9.1 2017/18 FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE STATEMENTS IN PRINCIPLE REPORT

File Number: 06/01/001

Author: Deanne Caserta, Manager Financial Services
Authoriser: Sharon Morrison, Director Corporate Services
Attachments: 1. Performance Statement Year Ending 30 June 2018

2. Financial Statement Year Ending 30 June 2018

RECOMMENDATION
That Council;

1.  Adopts the Financial Statements and Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June
2018 as presented “in principle”.

2.  Authorise the Chief Executive Officer to make any amendments to the Financial Statement
and Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2018 that may be requested by the
Victorian Auditor-General.

3.  Authorise the Mayor Cr Cheryl McKinnon, one other Councillor and the Chief Executive
Officer to certify the audited Financial Statements and Performance Statement for the year
ended 30 June 2018.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There is no conflict of interest for any Council staff member involved in the preparation of this
report, or involved in the subject matter of the report.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION
Nil.

BACKGROUND

Council’s external auditors, Crowe Horwath, acting on behalf of the Victorian Auditor-General,
visited Council’s Wedderburn office during 16 to 20 July 2018 to finalise the audit of Council’s
Financial Statements and Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2018.

A requirement of the Local Government Act (s132 (2)) is that Council cannot formally submit the
Financial Statements or Performance Statement to the Minister without having passed a motion
giving in principle support to those statements.

It is also a requirement of the Local Government Act (s132(5)) that Council must ensure that the
Financial Statements and Performance Statement, in their final form after any changes
recommended or agreed by the auditor have been made, are certified in accordance with the
regulations by two Councillors and any other prescribed person authorised by Council for this
purpose.

ISSUES/DISCUSSION

The annual Financial Statements are presented in accordance with all relevant Australian
Accounting Standards and consist of a Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance Sheet,
Statement of Changes in Equity, and Statement of Cash Flows, along with detailed notes
expanding on each of these.

The Performance Statement is in line with the Regulations. It includes:
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e 10 mandatory service performance indicators (two Home and Community Care indicators
were discontinued after the 2015/16 reporting period and four others are optional —
Economic Development, Immunisation, Sports Grounds and Street Sweeping),

o 12 financial sustainability indicators and

e 6 sustainable capacity indicators, which are financial and non-financial indicators of the
sustainability of Council.

A standard format for the Performance Statement is provided by Local Government Victoria.

COST/BENEFITS

The benefit to Council and the community is accurate financial and non-financial information which
shows the Council’s results for the financial year, and provides insight into Council’s sustainability.

RISK ANALYSIS

Preparation and auditing of Financial Statements and the Performance Statement are legislated
functions of Council. Council must provide these documents along with the Report of Operations to
the Minister for Local Government by 30 September 2018.

By having a structured project plan for delivery of the statements to the Victorian Auditor-General’'s
representative, the risk of not meeting the legislative timeline is diminished.

CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

The Audit Committee has been provided with an overview of the Financial Statements and
Performance Statement at the Audit Committee Meeting held on 9 August 2018.
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LODDON
SHIRE COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE STATEMENT
YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2018

’
.
LODDON

SHIRE
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Loddon Shire Council is located in central Victoria, about 175 kilometres north-west of Melbourne. It is
bounded by the Gannawarra Shire in the north, Shire of Campaspe and City of Greater Bendigo in the east,
Mount Alexander Shire and Central Goldfields Shire in the south, and Northern Grampians Shire and
Buloke Shire in the west.

Loddon Shire Council is a predominantly rural area, with many small towns and communities. The largest
towns are Boort, Bridgewater on Loddon, Inglewood, Pyramid Hill, and Wedderburn.

The Shire encompasses a total land area of about 6,700 square kilometres. Land is used mainly for
agriculture and horticulture, particularly grain, sheep, wool, beef cattle, dairy, pigs and poultry. In recent
years, there has also been an increase in viticulture, olives, and fodder crops.

The primary source of employment in the Shire is agriculture, forestry and fishing with 37% of employed

residents working in those fields, while 10% work in health care and social assistance, 7% in retail trade,
and 5% in public administration and safety.

Page 2
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Indicator / measure Results
2015 2016 2017 2018

Indicator: Population
Measure: Expenses per head of municipal population $3,597 $3,657 $3,763 $4,502
Computation: Total expenses / Municipal population

Material variations: Gradual increases to expenditure over three year period with population remaining steady.
Year four higher increase due to increase in expenses and decrease in population.

Indicator: Population
Measure: Infrastructure per head of municipal population $37.810 $40,202 $39,764 $43,768
Computation: Value of infrastructure / Municipal population

Material variations: Gradual increases to infrastructure value over full four year period with population remaining
steady.

Indicator: Population
Measure: Population density per length of road 1.56 1.54 1.60 1.59
Computation: Municipal population / Kilometres of local roads

Material variations: No material variations.

Indicator: Own-source revenue

Measure: Own source revenue per head of municipal
population

Computation: Own-source revenue / Municipal population

$1,808 $1.815 $1,796 $1,868

Material variations: No material variations.

Indicator: Recurrent grants
Measure: Recurrent grants per head of municipal population $2,209 $1,462 $2,180 $1,836
Computation: Recurrent grants / Municipal population

Material variations: Recurrent grants have decreased by $2.7M. This is mainly due to the timing of payments from
the Victoria Grants Commission.

Indicator: Disadvantage
Measure: Relative socio-economic disadvantage

Computation: Index of relative socio-economic disadvantage ! ! ! 2
by decile

Material variations: 2018 has seen an indicator move from one to two.

Definitions:

"adjusted underlying revenue” means total income other than:

(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and

(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and

(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred in paragraphs (a) and (b)

“infrastructure” means non-current property, plant and equipment excluding land

"local road” means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the
Road Management Act 2004

"population” means the resident population estimated by council

"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of
council (including government grants)

"relative socio-economic disadvantage”, in relation to a municipality, means the relative socio-economic
disadvantage, expressed as a decile for the relevant financial year, of the area in which the municipality is located
according to the Index of Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage (Catalogue Number 2033.0.55.001) of SEIFA

"SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by the Australian Bureau of
Statistics on its Internet website.

"unrestricted cash"” means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.
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Service / indicator / measure Results

2015 2016 2017 2018

Aquatic facilities

Indicator: Utilisation

Measure: Utilisation of aquatic facilities

Computation: Number of visits to aquatic facilities / Municipal
population

Material variations: Visitation numbers have decreased by 1,400 in 2018.

Animal management

Indicator: Health and safety

Measure: Animal management prosecutions
Computation: Number of successful animal management
prosecutions

Material variations: Council has had no animal prosecutions in 2017 - 2018.

[Food Safety
Indicator: Health and safety
Measure: Critical and major non-compliance notifications

Computation: Number of critical non-compliance notifications
and major non-compliance notifications about a food premises 0% 83% 100% 100%
followed up / Number of critical non-compliance notifications
and major non-compliance notifications about food premises
x100

Material variations: No compliance issues in 2015, all issues in 2017 and 2018 have been followed up.

Governance

Indicator: Satisfaction

Measure: Satisfaction with Council decisions
Computation: Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with 58 56 55 48
how council has performed in making decisions in the interest
of the community

Material variations: This trend is consistent with worldwide decline in satisfaction with government.

[Home & Community Care (HACC)

Indicator: Participation

Measure: Participation in HACC service

Computation: [Number of people that received a HACC service
/ Municipal target population for HACC services] x100

58% 56% N/A N/A

Material variations: Indicator no longer required.

[Home & Community Care (HACC)

Indicator: Participation

Measure: Participation in HACC service by CALD people
Computation: [Number of CALD people who receive a HACC 28% 30% N/A N/A
service / Municipal target population in relation to CALD people
for HACC services] x100

Material variations: Indicator no longer required.

Libraries

Indicator: Participation

Measure: Active library members

Computation: [Number of active library members / Municipal
population] x100

14% 8% 8% 7%

Material variations: A change in service delivery model in recent years has resulted in data not accurately
reflecting active membership.
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Service [ indicator /| measure Results
2015 2016 2017 2018

Maternal & Child Health (MCH)
Indicator: Participation

Measure: Participation in MCH service
Computation: [Number of children who attend the MCH service 66% 73% 70% 65%
at least once (in the year) / Number of children enrolled in the
MCH service] x100

Material variations: Numbers attending and enrolled fluctuate over the four years, as the child gets older the visits
are less frequent.

Maternal & Child Health (MCH)

Indicator: Participation

Measure: Participation in the MCH service by Aboriginal
children

Computation: [Number of Aboriginal children who attend the
MCH service at least once (in the year) / Number of Aboriginal
children enrolled in the MCH service] x100

|Material variations: Five out of the six children enrolled participated in the MCH service in 2018.
Roads

Indicator: Satisfaction

Measure: Satisfaction with sealed local roads
Computation: Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with 55 55 50 50
how council has performed on the condition of sealed local
roads

Material variations: No material variation.

Statutory planning

Indicator: Decision making

Measure: Council planning decisions upheld at VCAT
Cqmputat:’or}' [Nun:lb.er gf VCAT decisions th‘at did ngt Sfel 0% 0% 100% 0%
aside council’'s decision in relation to a planning application /
Number of VCAT decisions in relation to planning applications]
x100

Material variations: No VCAT decision throughout 2018.
Indicator: Waste diversion

Measure: Kerbside collection waste diverted from landfill
Computation: [Weight of recyclables and green organics 23% 20% 23% 22%
collected from kerbside bins / Weight of garbage, recyclables
and green organics collected from kerbside bins] x100
Material variations: No material variation.

60% 25% 56% 83%
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Definitions:
"Aboriginal child" means a child who is an Aboriginal person

"Aboriginal person” has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006
"active library member” means a member of a library who has borrowed a book from the library
"annual report" means an annual report prepared by a council under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act

"CALD" means culturally and linguistically diverse and refers to persons born outside Australian in a country whose
national language in not English

"class 1 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared
as class 1 food premises under section 19C of that Act

"class 2 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1964, that have been declared
as class 2 food premises under section 19C of that Act

"Community Care Common Standards" means the Community Care Common Standards for the delivery of HACC
services, published from time to time by the Commonwealth

"critical non-compliance outcome notification” means a notification received by council under section 19N(3) or (4)
of the Food Act 1984 , or advice given to council by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that poses
an immediate serious threat to public health

"food premises" has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1984

"HACC program” means the Home and Community Care program established under the Agreement entered into
for the purpose of the Home and Community Care Act 1985 of the Commonwealth

"HACC service" means home help, personal care or community respite provided under the HACC program

"local road” means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the
Road Management Act 2004

"major non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by a council under section 19N(3) or (4)
of the Food Act 1984 , or advice given to council by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that does
not pose an immediate serious threat to public health but may do so if no remedial action is taken

"MCH" means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support the health and development
of children within the municipality from birth until school age

"population"” means the resident population estimated by council

"target population" has the same meaning as in the Agreement entered into for the purposes of the Home and
Community Care Act 1985 of the Commonwealth

"WorkSafe reportable aquatic facility safety incident” means an incident relating to a council aquatic facility that is
required to be notified to the Victorian WorkCover Authority under Part 5 of the Occupational Health and Safety
Act 2004.
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Dimension / indicator /
measure

Results

Forecasts

2015

2016 2017

2018

2019

2020

2021 2022

|Efficiency

Indicator: Revenue level
Measure: Average
residential rate per
residential property
assessment
Computation: Residential
rate revenue / Number of
residential property
ments

$698.23

$941.22] $992.71

$1,011.60

$1,004.56

$1,021.76

$1,046.17

$1,071.25

Material variations: Residential rates

charges.

are forecast to increas

e by 2.0% each year. 2015 results

did not include waste

Efficiency

Indicator: Expenditure
level

Measure: Expenses per
property assessment
Computation: Total
expenses [ Number of
property assessments

$3,409.82

$3,441.69| $3,670.24

$4,339.15

$3,876.41

$3,749.26

$3,865.88

$3,930.80

Material variations: Property numbers remain constant with

scope of works required fo

r that financial year.

expenditure levels the main varian

ce depending on the

Efficiency
Indicator: Workforce
turnover

Measure: Resignations
and terminations
compared to average staff

Computation: [Number of
permanent staff
resignations and
terminations / Average
number of permanent
staff for the financial year]
x100

8.18

12.75 18.12

12.29

9.74

10.14

10.14 10.14

Material variations: A restructure to realign directorates in early 2016 and continuation into 2017 has resulted in an
increase in staff turnover. This is slowl!

y returning to a steady

turnover rate.

[Liquidity

Indicator: Working
capital

Measure: Current assets
compared to current
liabilities

Computation: [Current
assets / Current liabilities]
x100

587.88%

641.06%| 790.25%

742.25%

440.01%

416.35%

371.07%| 372.06%

Material variations: Major variations can occur in this indicator due to the amount of cash and cash equivalents

available for that projected year. The other components are fairly constant.
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Dimension / indicator /
measure

Results

Forecasts

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021 2022

[Liquidity

Indicator: Unrestricted
cash

Measure: Unrestricted
cash compared to current
liabilities

Computation:
[Unrestricted cash /
Current liabilities] x100

53.70%

281.60%

-3.85%

91.92%

310.95%

284.27%

235.61%| 231.92%

Material variations: Council has a large amount of cash available on hand due to the delay in progression of some
capital works projects. Council also received a 50% upfront payment for the 2018/19 VGC allocation during 2017/18.
Future year projections include all costs to ensure there is no renewal gap, realistically this is not achievable and the
values are adjusted and balanced through the budget process.

Obligations
Indicator: Asset renewal

Measure: Asset renewal
compared to depreciation

year, depreciation increases slightly per year.

) 42.47%| 24.12%| 33.93%| 3598%| 38.81%| 25.12%| 24.89%| 25.23%
Computation: [Asset
renewal expenses / Asset
depreciation] x100
Material variations: Variations can occur within this indicator depending on the capital works program delivered each

Obligations

Indicator: Loans and
borrowings

Measure: Loans and
borrowings compared to
rates

Computation: [Interest
bearing loans and
borrowings / Rate
revenue] x100

1.43%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00% 0.00%

Material variations: Coun

cil made the last payment of outstanding loans during earl

ly 2016.

Obligations

Indicator: Loans and
borrowings

Measure: Loans and
borrowings repayments
compared to rates
Computation: [Interest
and principal repayments
on interest bearing loans
and borrowings / Rate
revenue] x100

1.57%

1.39%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00% 0.00%

Material variations: Council made the last payment of outstanding loans during early 2016.
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Dimension / indicator / Results Forecasts
measure 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Obligations
Indicator: Indebtedness
Measure: Non-current
liabilities compared to
Oown source revenue 16.94%| 17.58%| 12.52%| 11.76%| 15.90%| 17.48%| 19.13%| 20.78%

Material variations: Coun
constant.

cil's non-current liabilities increase

each year with own so

urce revenue remaining fairly

Operating position
Indicator: Adjusted
underlying result
Measure: Adjusted
underlying surplus (or
deficit)

Computation: [Adjusted
underlying surplus
(deficit)/ Adjusted
underlying revenue] x100

10.82%

-37.73%

9.83%

-4.51%

-20.07%

-6.87%

-11.01%

-11.45%

Material variations: In 2016, Council
expected to have underlying deficit positions.

had an und

erlying deficit compared to a surplus in 2017. The trend forward is

Stability

Indicator: Rates
concentration
Measure: Rates
compared to adjusted
underlying revenue
Computation: [Rate
revenue / Adjusted
underlying revenue] x100

30.88%

50.58%

32.05%

32.31%

42.76%

40.02%

41.28%| 41.73%

Material variations: Coun

he operating grants.

cil has continued to apply the 2.25% cap to rates and cha
main variation between years for this indicator is t

rges for the

forecast years. The

Stability

Indicator: Rates effort
Measure: Rates
compared to property
values

) 0.57% 0.56% 0.58% 0.50% 0.52% 0.52% 0.52% 0.52%
revenue / Capital
improved value of
rateable properties in the
municipality ] x100
Material variations: No material variations.
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Definitions:

"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than:

(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and

(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and

(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b)

"adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)" means adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure

"asset renewal expenditure” means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset that
returns the service capability of the asset to its original capability

“current assets” has the same meaning as in the AAS

"current liabilities” has the same meaning as in the AAS

“non-current assets” means all assets other than current assets
"non-current liabilities" means all liabilities other than current liabilities

“non-recurrent grant” means a grant obtained on the condition that it be expended in a specified manner and is
not expected to be received again during the period covered by a council's Strategic Resource Plan

"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of
council (including government grants

"population” means the resident population estimated by council
‘rate revenue” means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges
"recurrent grant "means a grant other than a non-recurrent grant

"residential rates" means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges
levied on residential properties

"restricted cash" means cash and cash equivalents, within the meaning of the AAS, that are not available for use
other than for a purpose for which it is restricted, and includes cash to be used to fund capital works expenditure
from the previous financial year

"unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.
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Basis of preparation

Council is required to prepare and include a Performance Statement within its Annual Report. The
Performance Statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainability capacity, service performance
and financial performance indicators and measures together with a description of the municipal district and
an explanation of material variations in the results. This statement has been prepared to meet the
requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014.

Where applicable the results in the Performance Statement have been prepared on accounting bases
consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other results are based on information
drawn from Council information systems or from third parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Statistics).

The Performance Statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the prescribed financial
performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by Council's Strategic Resource Plan. The Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variations in
the results contained in the Performance Statement. Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to
each indicator and measure and explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality
thresholds unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature.

The forecast figures included in the Performance Statement are those adopted by Council in its Strategic
Resource Plan on 26 June 2018 and which forms part of the Council Plan. The Strategic Resource Plan
includes estimates based on key assumptions about the future that were relevant at the time of adoption
and aimed at achieving sustainability over the long term. Detailed information on the actual financial results
is contained in the General Purpose Financial Statements. The Strategic Resource Plan can be obtained by
contacting Council.
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In my opinion the accompanying Performance Statement has been prepared in accordance with the
Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

£ T L3 =T o P Date: / /
SHARON ROSEMARIE MORRISON BA (POLITICS), LLB (HONS), GDLP, DIP BUS, CERT IV HR,
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER

In our opinion, the accompanying Performance Statement of the Loddon Shire Council for the year
ended 30 June 2017 presents fairly the results of Council's performance in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Plannina and Reportina) Requlations 2014.

The Performance Statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and results in
relation to service performance, financial performance and sustainability capacity.

As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in
the Performance Statement to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Council and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 to certify this Performance Statement in its final form.

ST [ L= o PO PROPP Date: / /
CHERYL ANNETTE MCKINNON, MAYOR

£ T T =T PSS Date: / /
GAVAN LINDSAY HOLT, COUNCILLOR

£ T [y =T o PPN Date: / /
PHILIP LEONARD PINYON, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Certification of financial statements
Victorian Auditor - General's Office Report
Financial Statements

Comprehensive Income Statement
Balance Sheet

Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Capital Works

Overview

Notes to the financial statements

Note 1

Note 2

Note 3

Note 4

Note 5

Note 6

Note 7

Note 8

Performance against budget
1.1 Income and expenditure
1.2 Capital works
Funding for the delivery of our services
2.1 Rates and charges
2.2 Statutory fees and fines
2.3 User fees
2.4 Funding from other levels of government
2.5 Contributions
2.6 Reimbursements and subsidies
2.7 Interest received

2.8 Net gain / (loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

2.9 Otherincome
The cost of delivering services
3.1 Employee costs
3.2 Materials, services and contracts
3.3 Depreciation
3.4 Bad debts expense
3.5 Other expenses
Our financial position
4.1 Financial assets
4.2 Non-financial assets
4.3 Payables
4.4 Provisions
4.5 Financing arrangements
4.6 Commitments
4.7 Operating lease commitments
Assets we manage
5.1 Non current assets classified as held for sale
5.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
5.3 Investments in associates, joint arrangements and subsidiaries
People and relationships
6.1 Council and key management remuneration
6.2 Related party disclosure
Managing uncertainties
7.1 Contingent assets and liabilities
7.2 Change in accounting standards
7.3 Financial instruments
7.4 Fair value measurement
7.5 Events occurring after balance date
Other matters
8.1 Reserves
8.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus / (deficit)
8.3 Superannuation
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In my opinion the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1989, the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014, Australian
Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

£ [ L= R Date: / /
SHARON ROSEMARIE MORRISON BA (POLITICS), LLB (HONS), GDLP, DIP BUS, CERT IV HR,
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial transactions of the
Loddon Shire Council for the year ended 30 June 2018 and the financial position of the Council as at that

date.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in the
financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting )
Regulations 2014 to certify the financial statements in their final form.

£ [ L= R Date: / /
CHERYL ANNETTE MCKINNON, MAYOR

Signed: ... Date: / /
GAVAN LINDSAY HOLT, COUNCILLOR

Signed: ..o e e Date: / /
PHILIP LEONARD PINYON, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Note 2018 2017
$ $

Income
Rates and charges 2.1 10,445,501 10,102,693
Statutory fees and fines 2.2 403,422 304,599
User fees 23 1,588,792 1,708,805
Grants - operating 24 14,846,183 15,307,948
Grants - capital 2.4 4,057,747 3,691,765
Contributions - monetary 2.5 41,775 220,134
Reimbursements and subsidies 26 1,072,221 977,236
Interest earnings 2.8 508,561 474173
Share of net profits of associates and joint ventures 53 2,264 -
Other income 29 3,879 166
Total income 32,970,345 32,787,519
Expenses
Employee costs 3.1 10,851,796 10,003,078
Materials and services 3.2 13,311,521 9,304,997
Depreciation and amortisation 3.3 9,233,178 8,689,491
Bad debts expense 3.4 21,086 34,322
Other expenses 3.5 302,948 287,622
Net loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 27 68,428 30,412
Share of net profits of associates and joint ventures 53 - 76,086
Total expenses 33,788,957 28,426,008
Surplus / (deficit) for year (818,612) 4,361,511
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 8.1a 30,218,843 8,492,798
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
accounted for by the equity method 5.3 (4,829) (12,093)
Total comprehensive result 29,395,402 12,842,216

The above Comprehensive Income Statement should be read with the accompanying notes.
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Note 2018 2017
$ $

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4.1 3,662,195 9,672,238
Trade and other receivables 4.1 944 197 1,232,111
Financial assets 4.1 21,196,479 13,776,284
Inventories 4.2 43,490 53,966
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 5.1 690,322 865,424
Total current assets 26,536,683 25,600,023
Non-current assets
Financial assets 4.1 100 100
Trade and other receivables 4.1 3,372 79,921
Investments in associates and joint ventures 4.2 271,380 273,945
Intangible assets 4.2 1,979,130 1,668,430
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 5.2 338,108,295 309,596,011
Total non-current assets 340,362,277 311,618,407
Total assets 366,898,960 337,218,430
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 4.3 801,793 642,364
Trust funds and deposits 4.3 375,762 404,438
Provisions 4.4 2,397,604 2,192,670
Total current liabilities 3,575,159 3,239,472
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 4.4 1,648,387 1,698,946
Total non-current liabilities 1,648,387 1,698,946
Total liabilities 5,223,546 4,938,418
Net assets 361,675,414 332,280,012
Equity
Accumulated surplus 95,354,472 95,532,658
Reserves 8.1b 266,320,942 236,747,354
Total equity 361,675,414 332,280,012

The above Balance Sheet should be read with the accompanying notes.
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2018
Accumulated Revaluation
Total surplus reserve Other reserves
Note 2018 2018 2018 2018
$ $ $ $
5:;":“"3 at beginning of the financial 332,280,012 | 95,532,658 | 217,168,524 | 19,578,830
Surplus/(deficit) for the year (818,612) (818,612) - -
Het asset revaluation 30,218,843 ) 30,218,843 )
increment/(decrement)
Transfer to reserves 8.1b - (13,151,230) - 13,151,230
Transfer from reserves 8.1b - 13,796,485 - (13,796,485)
Share of other comprehensive (4,829) (4,829) ) )
income
Balance at end of financial year 361,675,414 95,354,472 247,387,367 18,933,575
2017
Accumulated Revaluation
Total surplus reserve Other reserves
Note 2017 2017 2017 2017
$ $ $ $

?::‘:""e atbeginning of the financial 310,437,796 | 95,737,887 | 208,675726 | 15,024,183
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 4,361,511 4,361,511 - -
Het asset revaluation 8,492,798 ) 8.492.798 )
increment/(decrement)
Transfer to reserves 8.1b - (14,271,936) - 14,271,936
Transfer from reserves 8.1b - 9,717,289 - (9,717,289)
share of other comprehensive (12,093) (12,093) _ _
income
Balance at end of financial year 332,280,012 95,532,658 217,168,524 19,578,830

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read with the accompanying notes.
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2018 2017
Inflows/ Inflows/
Note (outflows) (outflows)
$ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges 10,490,783 10,027,110
Statutory fees and fines 418,579 417,981
User fees 1,648,775 1,869,048
Grants - operating 12,844,409 14,224,500
Grants - capital 4,268,402 3,781,805
Contributions 41,775 -
Reimbursements and subsidies 1,045,938 1,049,999
Interest received 455,620 515,595
Net GST refund (payable) 1,683,479 1,319,883
Trust funds and deposits taken (28,676) 127,344
Payments to employees (10,654,704) (9,965,656)
Payments to suppliers (15,188,232) (11,395,648)
Trust funds and deposits repaid - -
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 7,026,148 11,971,961
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 5.2 (8,381,624) (7,783,594)
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 650,979 107,726
Payment for intangible assets - -
Payment for investments (5,387,159) (10,654,153)
Loans and advances to community organisations 6,000 6,000
Repayment of loans and advances from community organisations 75,613 73,587
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (13,036,191) (18,250,434)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of interest bearing loans and borrowings - -
Borrowing costs - -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities - -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (6,010,043) (6,278,473)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 9,672,238 15,950,711
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5 3,662,195 9,672,238

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read with the accompanying notes.
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Note 2018 2017
$ $

Land and buildings
Land 31,460 -
Buildings - specialised 635,862 1,420,958
Work in progress 142,309 234,552
Total buildings 809,631 1,655,510
Plant and fittings
Plant, machinery and equipment 889,602 328,992
Office furniture and equipment 172,479 142,651
Total plant and equipment 5.2 1,062,081 471,643
Infrastructure
Roads 3,823,677 4,584,294
Bridges 51,980 301,950
Footpaths and cycleways 1,853,257 343,551
Kerb and channel - -
Drainage 218,929 224,043
Street furniture - 3,530
Work in progress 562,068 199,076
Total infrastructure 5.2 6,509,911 5,656,444
Intangible assets
Water rights 4.2 - -
Total intangible assets - -
Total capital works expenditure 8,381,623 7,783,597
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 984,860 560,533
Asset renewal expenditure 3,321,999 2,948,103
Asset expansion expenditure 2,090,846 505,897
Asset upgrade expenditure 1,983,918 3,769,064
Total capital works expenditure 8,381,623 7,783,597

The above statement of capital works should be read with the accompanying notes.
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Introduction

The Loddon Shire Council was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on 19 January 1995 and is a body
corporate. The Council's main office is located at 41 High Street, Wedderburn.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consist of a Comprehensive Income
Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works
and Notes accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose financial report complies with Australian
Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local
Government Act 1989, and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting

The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, whereby assets
liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of
when cash is received or paid.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated judgements are based on
professional judgement derived from historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future
periods that are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of
AAS's that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to:

- the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 5.2)

- the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 5.2)

- the determination of employee provisions (refer to Note 4.5)

- the determination of landfill provisions (refer to Note 4.5)

- other areas requiring judgements.

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where

appropriate, comparative figures have been amended to accord with current presentation, and disclosure has been
made of any material changes to comparatives.
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The performance against budget notes compare Council's financial plan, expressed through its annual
budget, with actual performance. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014
requires explanation of any material variances. Management has adopted a materiality threshold of 20
percent and $50,000 where further explanation is warranted. Explanations have not been provided for
variations below the materiality threshold unless the variance is considered to be material because of its
nature.

The budget figures detailed below are those adopted by Council on 27 June 2017. The Budget was based on
assumptions that were relevant at the time of adoption of the Budget. Council sets guidelines and parameters
for revenue and expense targets in this budget in order to meet Council’s planning and financial performance
targets for both the short and long-term. The budget did not reflect any changes to equity resulting from

asset revaluations, as their impacts were not considered predictable.

These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local

Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 .

1.1 Income and expenditure

Budget Actual Variance
2018 2018 2018
$ $ $ Ref
Income
Rates and charges 10,406,865 | 10,445,501 (38,636)
Statutory fees and fines 248,670 403,422 (154,752)| 1
User fees 1,432,607 1,588,792 (156,185)
Grants - operating 5,830,781 | 14,846,183 | (9,015,402)| 2
Grants - capital 3,296,530 4,057,747 (761,217)| 3
Contributions - monetary 15,000 41,775 (26,775)
Reimbursements and subsidies 1,015,967 1,072,221 (56,254)
Interest earnings 378,000 508,561 (130,561)| 4
Share of net profits/(losses) of associates and joint
ventures - - -
Other income - 3,879 (3,879)
Total income 22,624,420 | 32,968,081 | (10,343,661)
Expenses
Employee costs 10,809,393 | 10,851,796 (42,403)
Materials and services 8,606,761 | 13,311,521 (4,704,760)| 5
Depreciation and amortisation 8,976,575 9,233,178 (256,603)
Borrowing costs - - -
Bad and doubtful debts - 21,086 (21,086)
Other expenses 304,738 302,948 1,790
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant
and equipment - 68,428 (68,428)| 6
Total expenses 28,697,467 | 33,788,957 (5,091,490)
Surplus/(deficit) for the year (6,073,047) (820,876)| (5,252,171)
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1.1 Income and expenditure (continued)

(i) Explanation of material variations

1 The increase in statutory fees and fines relates mainly to additional income received for planning services of
$93K, with an increase in activity and the schedule of fees set. There was also an increase in animal control
services of $24K.

2 Operating grant income is higher than expected mainly due to the receipt of flood recovery income of $4.32M
more than what was in the original budget along with a 50% upfront payment from the Victoria Grants
Commission of $4.44M, similar to 2016/17.

3 Capital grant income is higher than expected due to an increase in Roads to Recovery income of $1.7M
which is offset by higher capital expenditure in this area.

4 During the financial year, Council had higher than expected cash on hand and therefore was able to earn
more interest from investments.

5 The main variation in materials and services is the flood restoration works which are underway and had a
total of $4.17M more expenditure than expected for the year. This is offset by an increase in flood recovery

income.

6 Council does not budget for a net gain or loss on disposals of assets. Therefore there is a cost variance of
$68K.
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1.2 Capital works

Budget Actual Variance
2018 2018 2018

$ $ $ Ref
Property
Land - 28,500 (28,500)
Land improvements 45,000 7,460 37,540
Total land 45,000 35,960 9,040
Buildings 71,500 125,122 (53,622)
Building improvements 988,500 161,894 826,606
Total buildings 1,060,000 287,016 772,984 7
Total property 1,105,000 322,976 782,024
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 884,100 889,602 (5,502)
Office furniture and equipment 317,363 172,479 144,884
Total plant and equipment 1,201,463 1,062,081 139,382
Infrastructure
Roads 3,516,452 4,197,454 (681,002)
Bridges 251,000 42,060 208,940 8
Footpaths and cycleways 293,755 617,465 (323,710)| 9
Drainage 1,558,000 417,017 1,140,983 | 10
Recreation, leisure and community facilities 1,084,000 351,124 732,876 | 11
Parks, open space and streetscapes 354,500 1,371,446 (1,016,946)| 12
Total infrastructure 7,057,707 6,996,566 61,141
Total capital works expenditure 9,364,170 8,381,623 982,547
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 849,100 984,860 (135,760)
Asset renewal expenditure 4,674,047 3,321,999 1,352,048
Asset expansion expenditure 1,494,500 2,090,846 (596,346)
Asset upgrade expenditure 2,346,523 1,983,918 362,605
Total capital works expenditure 9,364,170 8,381,623 982,547

Page 14

Item 9.1- Attachment 2 Page 48



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 28 AUGUST 2018

10

11

12

1.2 Capital works (continued)
(i) Explanation of material variations

The budget set for 2017/18 included an allocation of $500K for the strategic fund but remained unspent at 30
June 2018.

Projects that did not commence during 2017/18 and therefore remain unspent at 30 June include Janevale
Bridge of $152K and Kingower Brenanah Rd of $33K.

There were projects carried forward from the 2016/17 financial year that were completed during 2017/18 and
these include Chapel Street Serpentine of $83K along with Kelly Street, Victoria Street and Barber Street in
Pyramid Hill with a combined actual of $513K.

The main variance includes two projects for flood mitigation works, the first at Boort for $500K which is yet to
commence and the second at Pyramid Hill of $750K which has been deferred until funding is received in

future years.

The budget included spending for caravan park improvements of $750K which has been deferred until
funding is received and swimming pool solar power of $314K with only $191K spent to date.

The main variance is due to a carry forward project of $1.2M for the Wedderburn Streetscape project which
was not in the original budget.
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2.1 Rates and charges

Council uses Capital Improved Value (C.I.V.) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal district.
The C.L.V. of a property includes the value of the land and all improvements on the land.

The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2017/18 was $1,734,759,500. The valuation base used in

2016/17 was $1,728,095,200.

2018 2017
$ $
General rates 2,540,550 2,466,974
Rural production rates 5,420,427 5,308,885
Municipal charges 1,162,043 1,132,787
Kerbside recycling charges 338,141 303,546
Garbage charges 944,319 852,509
Interest on rates and charges 40,021 37,992
Total rates and garbage charges 10,445,501 10,102,693

The date of the latest general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1 January 2016,
and the valuation was first applied in the rating year commencing 1 July 2016.

Annual rates and charges are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual rates notices. Supplementary

rates are recognised when a valuation and reassessment is completed and a supplementary rates notice issued.

2.2 Statutory fees and fines

2018 2017
$ $

Statutory fees and fines

Animal control 68,823 61,214
Building services fees 112,960 91,073
Election fines 2,616 3,042
Fire hazards 4,283 6,334
Health Act fees 51,324 42,383
Land information certificates 12,470 9,939
Local laws 7,748 6,054
Town planning fees 143,198 84,560
Total statutory fees and fines 403,422 304,599

Statutory fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has been
provided, the payment is received, or when the penalty has been applied, whichever occurs first.
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2.3 User fees

2018 2017
$ $

User fees

Aged services fees 438,687 619,786
Caravan park fees 407,550 514,993
Emergency management 28,320 12,309
Gravel pit fees 87,329 93,477
Pre-schools 76,856 74,079
Private works charges 222,420 50,137
Road opening permits 23,310 18,260
Sale of tools and equipment 273 1,162
Staff training / educational fees 38,549 9,107
Standpipes and truck washes 63,980 31,773
Tip and recycling fees 58,613 111,443
Tourism 28,816 70,445
Other 12,380 15,301
Rent received

Elderly persons units 62,089 52,959
Commercial properties 39,620 33,429
Council residences - 155
Total statutory fees, fines and user fees 1,588,792 1,708,805

User fees are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided or Council has otherwise earmned the
income.

2.4 Funding from other levels of government

2018 2017
$ $
Grants were received in respect of the following:
Summary of grants
Commonwealth funded grants 16,322,839 15,804,261
State funded grants 2,581,091 3,195,452
Total grants received 18,903,930 18,999,713
2018 2017
$ $
(a) Operating grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government:
Victoria Grants Commission - general purpose grant 4,909,068 6,859,499
Victoria Grants Commission - local roads 3,589,883 5,222,295
Non recurrent - Commonwealth Government:
Flood restoration 4,364,993 1,073,791
Total operating Commonwealth Government grants 12,863,944 13,155,585
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2.4 Funding from other levels of government (continued)

2018 2017
$ $

Recurrent - State Government:
Aged services 872,443 885,875
Pre-schools 634,298 481,379
Families and children 143,790 136,690
Fire Services Property Levy 41,615 40,421
Youth development 59,500 99,837
Community safety 5776 11,526
Tips and recycling 7,018 6,393
Environment 50,000 75,000
Planning services 5,455 -
Non recurrent - State Government:
Culture 14,000 -
Tips and recycling 6,000 -
Planning services - 28,250
Water infrastructure 1,744 17,111
Community safety 20,000 23,145
Preschools 9,918 104,018
Recreation facilities 108,182 200,550
Other 2,500 42,168
Total operating State Government grants 1,982,239 2,152,363
Total operating grants 14,846,183 15,307,948
(b) Capital grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government:
Roads to Recovery 3,458,895 2,648,676
Total capital Commonwealth Government grants 3,458,895 2,648,676
Recurrent - State Government:
Nil - -
Non recurrent - State Government:
Recreation facilities 78,638 294,897
Community halls - 340,000
Road infrastructure 276,666 150,000
Tips and recycling - 140,000
Streetscapes 50,000 12,000
Water infrastructure 193,548 106,192
Total capital State Government grants 598,852 1,043,089
Total capital grants 4,057,747 3,691,765
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2.4 Funding from other levels of government (continued)

(c) Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner

2018 2017
$ $

Balance at start of year 7,683,212 5,225,729
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date 1,184,619 3,331,437
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (1,136,094) (873,954)
Balance at year end 7,731,737 7,683,212

Grant income is recognised when Council obtains control of the contribution. Control is normally obtained upon

receipt (or acquittal) or upon earlier notification that a grant has been secured.

2.5 Contributions

Contributions - operating - monetary

Confributions - operating - monetary - adjustment 2016/17 funds not received
Contributions - capital - monetary

Contributions - non-monetary

Total contributions

2018 2017
$ $
8,591 180,134
(15,000) -
48,184 40,000
41,775 220,134

Monetary and non monetary contributions are recognised as revenue when Council obtains control over the

contributed asset.

2.6 Reimbursements and subsidies

Main roads maintenance and construction
Insurance claims

Workcover

Fuel rebate

Community and recreational facilities
Emergency management

Heritage projects

Contracted staff

Other

Total reimbursements and subsidies

2018 2017
$ $

552,761 638,749
86,997 5,276
142,966 108,273
133,139 132,895
- 16,676
79,015 6,357
- 27,390
73,343 36,620
4,000 5,000
1,072,221 977,236

Reimbursements and subsidies are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided or Council has

otherwise earned the income.

2.7 Net gain / (loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

2018 2017
$ $
Proceeds from sale 650,979 107,726
Written down value of assets disposed (719,407) (138,138)
Total net gain / (loss) on disposal ot property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment (68,428) (30,412)

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has passed to the buyer.
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2.8 Interest received

2018 2017
$ $
Interest on investments 468,540 436,181
Rates interest 40,021 37,992
Total interest received 508,561 474173
2.9 Other income
2018 2017
$ $
Reversal of impairment of assets 3,879 166
Total other income 3,879 166
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3.1 (a) Employee costs
2018 2017
$ $
Salaries and wages 8,845,450 8,055,547
Annual leave and long service leave 874,919 887,007
Superannuation 922,396 855,063
Fringe benefits 90,291 115,720
Workcover 118,740 89,741
Total employee costs 10,851,796 10,003,078
(b) Superannuation
Council made contributions to the following funds:
2018 2017
$ $
Defined benefit fund
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 77,829 87,757
Total defined benefit fund 77,829 87,757
Employer contributions payable at reporting date.
2018 2017
$ $
Accumulation funds
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 533,619 459,216
Employer contributions - other funds 310,948 308,090
Total accumulated funds 844,567 767,306
Employer contributions payable at reporting date.
Refer to Note 8.3 for further information relating to Council's superannuation obligations.
3.2 Materials and services
2018 2017
$ $
Plant operating costs 1,308,448 736,879
Utility costs 514,937 505,528
Corporate governance 349,464 607,695
Local road materials 317,867 247,194
Flood recovery works 4,167,930 1,006,150
Building maintenance 363,122 260,899
Aged care services 155,240 249,596
Training and subscriptions 258,956 206,223
Computer costs and computer programs 415,179 375,241
Office expenses 92,960 104,981
North Central Goldfields Regional Library Corporation 201,238 193,801
Community plan projects 57,002 49,442
Recreation projects 487,919 280,688
Insurances 455,108 405,223
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3.2 Materials and services (continued)
2018 2017
$ $
Pool maintenance and strategy 399,236 313,677
Loddon Discovery Tours 22,178 41,696
Main roads materials 45,078 46,438
Parks and gardens maintenance 62,304 45,884
Tips maintenance 330,160 98,274
Families and children 99,029 153,800
Caravan park operations 313,162 249,402
Economic development and tourism initiatives 70,135 163,503
Private works materials 50,924 33,360
Public facilities 184,106 206,465
Community grant projects 238,297 223,760
Community safety 55,655 105,795
Workshops and depots 132,547 130,594
Youth and transport services 61,526 66,551
Valuations 237,183 75,304
Regulatory services 114,150 199,226
Environment 181,346 114,034
Other materials, services and contracts 78,622 79,660
Gravel pit operations 363,642 2,429
Community facilities 149,474 1,038,090
Garbage collection 659,803 651,929
Water management projects 181,302 -
Cleaning 23,618 35,586
Other road projects 112,674 -
Total materials and services 13,311,521 9,304,997
3.3 Depreciation and amortisation
2018 2017
$ $
Roads 6,110,045 5,575,427
Buildings 1,348,607 1,369,892
Plant and equipment 805,452 881,073
Bridges 370,022 332,859
Urban drains 198,844 182,931
Furniture and equipment 103,772 80,024
Footpaths 149,040 129,100
Kerb and channel 94,119 85,753
Landfills 25,644 25,657
Street furniture 26,171 24,691
Quarries 1,462 2,084
Total depreciation 9,233,178 8,689,491

Refer to Note 4.2 (c) and 5.2 for a more details breakdown of depreciation and amortisation charges and accounting

policy.
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3.4 Bad and doubtful debts
2018 2017
$ $
Rates debtors - 31,171
Sundry debtors 21,086 3,151
Total bad debts expense 21,086 34,322
Movement in provisions for doubtful debts
2018 2017
$ $
Balance at beginning of the year 110,620 78,010
New provisions recognised during the year 21,086 34,322
Amounts already provided for and written off as uncollectible (18,250) (1,712)
Amounts provided for but recovered during the year (507) -
Balance at end of year 112,949 110,620

Provision for doubtful debt is recognised when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred.

Bad debts are written off when identified.

3.5 Other expenses

Councillors' emoluments

Internal audit remuneration

External audit remuneration - VAGO - Audit of the financial statements,
performance statement and grant acquittals

Impairment of interest free loans

Total other expenses

2018 2017
$ $
225,716 206,385
36,519 39,458
39,055 37,900
1,658 3,879
302,948 287,622
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4.1 Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

2018 2017
$ $
Cash on hand 4,750 4,650
Cash at bank (CEQO's advance account) 4,000 4,000
Cash at bank (general account) 2,455,902 2,663,588
Cash at bank (trust account) 197,543 194,837
Cash and cash equivalents 2,662,195 2,867,075
(b) Other financial assets
2018 2017
$ $
Term deposits (current) 1,000,000 6,805,163
Term deposits (non-current) - -
Total other financial assets 1,000,000 6,805,163
Total financial assets 3,662,195 9,672,238

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to a number of internal and external restrictions that limit amounts
available for discretionary or future use. These include:

2018 2017
$ $
Restricted funds
Trust funds (Note 4.3) 375,762 404,438
Total restricted funds 375,762 404,438
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 3,286,433 9,267,800

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to a number of internal and external restrictions that limit amounts
available for discretionary or future use. These include:

Intended allocations

Although not externally restricted the intended allocations above have been allocated for specific future purposes by

Council.
2018 2017
$ $
Unspent grants (refer to Note 8.1) 7,731,737 7,683,212
Long service leave (refer to Note 4.4) 1,793,538 1,709,316
Total restricted and intended allocation funds 9,525,275 9,392,528

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid investments with original
maturities of 90 days or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Other financial assets are valued at fair value, at balance date. Term deposits are measured at original cost. Any
unrealised gains and losses on holdings at balance date are recognised as either revenue or expense.
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4.1 Financial assets (continued)

(c) Trade and other receivables

2018 2017

$ $
Current
Statutory receivables
Rates debtors 307,246 352,528
LESS provision for doubtful debts (87,287) (105,537)

219,959 246,991
Non statutory receivables
Sundry debtors 290,426 610,802
Other debtors 100,319 101,663
LESS provision for doubtful debts (25,663) (5,084)
Net receivable GST 278,386 194,126
Loans and advances to community organisations 80,770 83,613

724,238 985,120
Total current 944,197 1,232,111
Non-current
Non statutory receivables
Loans and advances to community organisations 3,372 79,921
Total non-current 3,372 79,921
Total trade and other receivables 947,569 1,312,032

Short term receivables are carried at invoice amount. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is
objective evidence that an impairment has occurred. Long term receivables are carried at amortised cost using
effective interest rate method.

(i) Ageing of receivables

The ageing of the Council's trade and other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) that are not impaired was:

2018 2017
$ $
Current (not yet due) 104,699 165,269
Past due by up to 30 days 119,918 319,774
Past due between 31 and 180 days 9,875 125,759
Past due between 181 and 365 days 55,934 -
Total trade and other receivables 290,426 610,802
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4.1 Financial assets (continued)

(c) Trade and other receivables (continued)

(ii) Ageing of individually impaired receivables

At balance date, other debtors representing financial assets with a nominal value of $25,663 (2017: $5,084) were
impaired. The amount of the provision raised against these debtors was $25,663 (2017: $5,084). They individually
have been impaired as a result of their doubtful collection. Many of the long outstanding past due amounts have

been lodged with Council's debt collectors or are on payment arrangements.

The ageing of receivables that have been individually determined as impaired at reporting date was:

2018 2017
$ $
Current (not yet due) - -
Past due by up to 30 days - -
Past due between 31 and 180 days - 360
Past due between 181 and 365 days 25,663 4,720
Past due by more than 1 year - -
Total trade and other receivables 25,663 5,084
4.2 Non-financial assets
(a) Inventories
2018 2017
$ $
Inventories held for distribution 43,490 53,966
Inventories held for sale - -
Total inventories 43,490 53,966

Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted when applicable for any loss of service potential. All
other inventories, including land held for sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Where
inventories are acquired for no cost or nominal consideration, they are measured at current replacement cost at the

date of acquisition.

(b) Other assets

2018 2017
$ $

Current

Accrued income 3,185,122 1,131,879
Prepayments 220,045 240,252
Term deposits (original maturity of 90 days or greater) 17,791,312 12,404,153
Total current 21,196,479 13,776,284
Non-current

Maps shares 100 100
Total non-current 100 100
Total other assets 21,196,579 13,776,384
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4.2 Non-financial assets (continued)
(c) Intangible assets
2018 2017
$ $
Non-current
Water rights 1,979,130 1,668,430
Total intangible assets 1,979,130 1,668,430
Reconciliation of movements in intangible assets for the reporting period
2018 2017
$ $
Water rights
Gross carrying amount at beginning of period 1,668,430 1,654,362
Additional water rights obtained during the period - -
Water rights disposed of during the period - -
Revaluation increment (decrement) 310,700 14,068
Gross carrying amount at end of period 1,979,130 1,668,430

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised as an expense on a systematic basis over the asset's useful life.
Amortisation is generally calculated on a straight line basis, at a rate that allocates the asset value, less any
estimated residual value over its estimated useful life. Estimates of the remaining useful lives and amortisation

method are reviewed at least annually, and adjustments are made where appropriate.

Water rights are revalued at 30 June 2018 to the published water trade market rate applying at that date.

(d) Investments in associates and joint ventures

Equity in North Central Goldfields Regional Library Corporation
Total investment in associates and joint ventures

2018 2017
$ $
271,380 273,045
271,380 273,945
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4.3 Payables
(a) Trade and other payables
2018 2017
$ $
Trade creditors 365,246 325,882
Accrued wages & salaries 175,161 143,565
Accrued expenses 261,386 172,917
Total trade and other payables 801,793 642,364
(b) Trust funds and deposits
2018 2017
$ $

Contract retentions 79,608 109,142
Fire services property levy 54,434 55,486
Building sureties 42,340 43,340
Unclaimed monies 361 157
Other refundable deposits: -

St Andrews church repair fund 1,476 1,476

Wedderburn pre school investment 197,543 194,837
Total trust funds and deposits 375,762 404,438

Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust funds until they
are returned, transferred in accordance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeited,
resulting in Council gaining control of the funds, are to be recognised as revenue at the time of forfeit.

Purpose and nature of items

Contract retentions

Council has a contractual right to retain certain amounts until a contractor has met certain requirements or a related
warrant or defect period has elapsed. Subject to the satisfactory completion of contractual obligations, or the elapsing
of time, these amounts will be paid to the relevant contractor in line with Council's contractual obligations.

Fire Services Property Levy

Council is the collection agent for fire services levy on behalf of the State Government. Council remits amounts
received on a quarterly basis. Amounts disclosed here will be remitted to the State Government in line with that
process.

Building sureties

Under the provisions of the Building Act 1993, Council may issue a Building Permit subject to a condition that the
applicant must deposit with the Council a bond, for an amount determined in accordance with the regulations, to
secure the complete and satisfactory carrying out of the work authorised by the Building Permit.

St Andrews church repair fund
These funds were held by a Section 86 committee which was disbanded in 2012. The funds were returned to Council
to use for repairs to the building.

Wedderburn pre-school investment

Council is holding funds on behalf of the Wedderburn Pre-school. These funds are invested by Council according to
the instructions of the pre-school.
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4.4 Provisions
2018

Annual leave | Long service RDOs Landfill Gravel pit Total

leave rehabilitation | rehabilitation

Balance at beginning of the
financial year 786,072 1,709,316 109,284 1,232,349 54,595 3,891,616
Additional provisions 777,064 172,219 578,101 - 5,028 1,532,412
Amounts used (707,084) (167,835) (566,807) (16,149) - (1,457,875)
Variation in the discounted
amount arising because of
time and the effect of any ) 79,838 . ) . 79.838
change in the discount rate
Balance at the end of the
financial year 856,052 1,793,538 120,578 1,216,200 59,623 4,045,991
2017

Annual leave | Long service RDOs Landfill Gravel pit Total

leave rehabilitation | rehabilitation
Balance at beginning of the
financial year 732,554 1,731,723 112,295 1,825,773 49,088 4,451,433
Additional provisions 741,021 237,264 559,274 - 5,507 1,543,066
Amounts used (687,503) (199,504) (562,285) (593,424) - (2,042,716)
Variation in the discounted
amount arising because of
time and the effect of any ) (60,167) ) ) ) (60.167)
change in the discount rate
'Balance at the end of the
financial year 786,072 1,709,316 109,284 1,232,349 54,595 3,891,616
(a) Employee benefits
2018 2017
$ $

Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
Annual leave 684,842 628,858
Long service leave 184,727 170,932
RDOs 120,578 109,284
Total 990,147 909,074
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months
Annual leave 171,210 157,214
Long service leave 1,236,247 1,126,382
Total 1,407,457 1,283,596
Total current employee provisions 2,397,604 2,192,670
Non-current
Long service leave 372,564 412,002
Total non-current employee provisions 372,564 412,002
Total employee benefits 2,770,168 2,604,672

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at

reporting date.
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4.4 Provisions (continued)
(a) Employee benefits (continued)

Wages and salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulated sick leave
expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee
benefits in respect of employee services up to the reporting date, classified as current liabilities and measured at
their nominal values.

Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the
provision for employee benefits as current liabilities, measured at present value of the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Long service leave

Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. LSL is measured at present
value. Unconditional LSL is disclosed as a current liability. Conditional LSL that has been accrued, where an
employee is yet to reach a qualifying term of employment, is disclosed as a non-current liability.

Key assumptions:

Weighted average increase in employee costs 3.38% 5.69%
Weighted average discount rates 3.26% 2.99%
Weighted average settlement period 21 months 21 months

(b) Landfill restoration

2018 2017
$ $
Current - -
Non-current 1,216,200 1,232,349
Total landfill restoration 1,216,200 1,232,349

Council is obligated to restore landfill sites to a particular standard. The forecast life of the sites are based on current
estimates of remaining capacity and the forecast rate of infill. The provision for landfill restoration has been
calculated based on the present value of the expected costs of works to be undertaken. The expected cost of works
have been estimated based on the current understanding of work required to reinstate the site to a suitable standard
and budgeted costs for that work. Accordingly, the estimation of a provision required is dependent on the accuracy of
the forecast timing of the work, work required and related costs.

Key assumptions:

Weighted average increase in costs 2.40% 2.32%

Weighted average discount rates 1.96% 1.93%

Weighted average settlement period 18 years 19 years
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4.4 Provisions (continued)

(c) Gravel pit rehabilitation

2018 2017
$ $
Current - -
Non-current 59,623 54,595
Total 59,623 54,595

Council is obligated to restore gravel pit sites to a particular standard. The forecast life of the site is based on current
estimates of remaining capacity and the forecast rate of infill. The provision for gravel pit restoration has been
calculated based on the present value of the expected cost of works to be undertaken. The expected cost of works
has been estimated based on current understanding of work required to reinstate the site to a suitable standard and
budgeted costs for that work. Accordingly, the estimation of the provision required is dependent on the accuracy of
the forecast timing of the work, work required and related costs.

Key assumptions:

Weighted average increase in costs 2.40% 2.32%
Weighted average discount rates 1.96% 1.93%
Weighted average settlement period 18 years 18 years

4.5 Financing arrangements

2018 2017
$ $
Bank overdraft 500,000 500,000
Credit card facilities 100,000 100,000
Total facilities 600,000 600,000
Used facilities - -
Unused facilities | 600,000 [ 600,000 |
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4.6 Commitments

Council has entered into the following commitments. Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet.
Commitments are disclosed at their nominal value and presented inclusive of the GST payable.

2018

Later than 1 [ Later than 2

year and not| years and

Not later | later than 2 not later Later than
than 1 year years than 5 years 5 years Total
$ $ $ $ $

Operating
Flood repairs and other roadworks 1,120,359 - - - -
Environment services 745,588 745,588 621,323 - 2,112,499
Insurance services 356,664 - - - 356,664
Caravan park operations 152,117 - - - 152,117
Library corporation 201,226 201,226 - - 402,452
Swimming pool services 174,826 - - - 174,826
Cleaning services 159,446 159,446 - - 318,892
Internal audit 27,950 - - - 27,950
Other minor orders committed 83,062 - - 83,062
Operating commitments for expenditure 3,021,238 1,106,260 621,323 - 3,628,462
Capital
Information technology items and telephone 82,829 - - - 82,829
Vehicle purchases 101,043 - - - 101,043
Planning and building system modules 18,000 - - - 18,000
Donaldson Park design works 35,000 - - - 35,000
Capital commitments for expenditure 236,872 - - - 236,872
Total commitments for expenditure 3,258,110 | 1,106,260 621,323 - 3,865,334
2017

Later than 1 [ Later than 2

year and not| years and

Not later | later than 2 not later Later than
than 1 year years than 5 years 5 years Total
$ $ $ $ $
Operating
Environment services 745,588 745,588 1,366,911 - 2,858,087
Insurance services 468,980 - - - 468,980
Caravan park operations 139,710 40,000 - - 179,710
Library corporation 201,226 201,226 201,226 - 603,678
Valuation services 159,656 - - - 159,656
Swimming pool services 174,826 174,826 - - 349,652
HACC recall of funds 109,000 - - - 109,000
Cleaning services 159,446 159,446 159,446 - 478,338
Internal audit 27,950 27,950 - - 55,900
Operating commitments for expenditure 2,186,382 1,349,036 1,727,583 - 5,263,001
Capital
Wedderburn depot 180,536 - - - 180,536
Soldiers Memorial Park sculpture 102,745 - - - 102,745
Wedderburn streetscape 1,718,441 - - - 1,718,441
Serpentine pavilion 52,578 - - - 52,578
Total commitments for expenditure 4,253,682 1,349,036 1,727,583 - 7,330,301
Capital commitments for expenditure 10,602,614 2,726,022 3,455,166 - 16,783,802
Total commitments for expenditure 10,711,614 2,726,022 3,455,166 - 16,892,802
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4.7 Operating lease commitments

At reporting date, Council had the following obligations under non-cancellable operating leases for the lease of
equipment, land and buildings for use within Council's activities (these obligations are not recognised as liabilities or

assets).
2018 2017
$ $
Income from leases
Not later than 1 year 97,901 33,035
Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 98,453 97,461
Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years 298,213 295,272
Total leases 494,567 425,768
2018 2017
$ $
Expenditure for leases
Not later than 1 year 8,338 5,218
Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 5,218 5,218
Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years 15,654 15,654
Total leases 29,210 26,090
5.1 Non current assets classified as held for sale
2018 2017
$ $
Non current
Land at valuation 715,360 896,812
LESS selling costs (25,038) (31,388)
Total non current assets held for sale 690,322 865,424

Non-current assets classified as held for sale (including disposal groups) is measured at the lower of its carrying
amount and fair value less costs to disposal, and are not subject to depreciation. Non-current assets, disposal
groups and related liabilities and assets are treated as current and classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the sale is highly probable and the asset's sale (or disposal group sale) is expected to be completed within
12 months from the date of classification.
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5.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Summary of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

At fair value 30 Revaluation / At fair value
June 2017 Acquisitions transfers Depreciation | Disposals |30 June 2018
$ $ $ $ $ $

Land 10,042,426 31,460 670,325 - (423,285) 10,320,926

Buildings 48,001,163 635,862 (1,123,551) (1,348,607) - 46,164,867

Plant and 6.357,848 | 1,062,081 - (909.224)  (296,122)| 6,214,583
equipment

Infrastructure 244,262 848 5,947,843 31,878,928 (6,975,347) - 275,114,272

Work in progress 1,797,152 704,377 (1,517,560) - - 983,969

Total 310,461,437 8,381,623 29,908,142 (9,233,178) (719,407) | 338,798,617

Summary of work in progress

Opening WIP Additions Transfers Write-off Closing WIP

$ $ $ $ $
Buildings 549,555 142,309 (269,963) - 421,901
Infrastructure 1,247,597 562,068 (1,247,597) - 562,068
Total 1,797,152 704,377 (1,517,560) - 983,969

Asset recognition thresholds and depreciation periods

Depreciation Threshold

period limit
Years $
Property
land - 1,000
leasehold improvements 10-30 1,000
Buildings
buildings 50-100 1,000
building and leasehold improvements 10-30 1,000
Plant and equipment
plant, machinery, minor plant and equipment 5-30 1,000
motor vehicles 9-10 1,000
fixtures fittings and furniture 10-100 1,000
computers and telecommunications 3 1,000
Infrastructure
road seals 13-26 1,000
road pavements - sealed 80 1,000
road pavements - unsealed 30 1,000
road formation and earthworks - 1,000
road kerb, channel and minor culverts 60 1,000
bridges deck and substructure 80-100 1,000
footpaths and cycle ways 15-50 1,000
drainage 50 - 80 1,000
recreational, leisure and community facilities 50 -80 1,000
waste management assets 20 1,000
parks, open space and streetscapes 15-50 1,000
off street car parks 80 1,000
aerodromes 30-80 1,000
Intangible assets - water rights - 1,000
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5.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (Continued)

(a) Property

Buildings - Work in Total land
Land ialised rogress |and buildings
Land and Buildings specia prog 9
At fair value 1 July 2017 10,042,426 83,578,216 549,555 94,170,197
Acc depreciation at 1 July 2017 - (35,577,053) - (35,577,053)
10,042,426 48,001,163 549,555 58,593,144
Movements in fair value
Acquisition of assets at fair value 31,460 635,862 142,309 809,631
Contributed assets - - - -
Revaluation increments /
(decrements) 670,325 (1,838,805) - (1,168,480)
Fair value of assets disposed (423,285) - - (423,285)
Impairment losses recognised in
operating result - - - -
Transfers between asset classes - 147,599 (269,963) (122,364)
278,500 |- 1,055,344 (127,654) (904,498)
Movements in acc depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation - (1,348,607) - (1,348,607)
Revaluation (increments) /
decrements - 567,655 - 567,655
Acc depreciation of disposals . - - .
Impairment losses recognised in
operating result - - - -
- (780,952) - (780,952)
At fair value 30 June 2018 10,320,926 82,522,872 421,901 93,265,699
Accumulated depreciation at 30
June 2018 - (36,358,005) - (36,358,005)
Total 10,320,926 46,164,867 421,901 56,907,694
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5.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (Continued)

(b) Plant and equipment

Plant machinery

Fixtures fittings

Total plant and

Plant and equipment and equipment and furniture equipment
At fair value 1 July 2017 12,588,168 1,224,107 13,812,274
Acc depreciation at 1 July 2017 (6,542,602) (911,824) (7,454,426)
6,045,566 312,283 6,357,848
Movements in fair value
Acquisition of assets at fair value 889,602 172,479 1,062,081
Contributed assets - - -
Revaluation increments / (decrements) - - -
Fair value of assets disposed (630,058) - (630,058)
Impairment losses recognised in operating result - - -
Transfers between asset classes - - -
259,544 172,479 432,023
Movements in acc depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation (805,452) (103,772) (909,224)
Acc depreciation of disposals 333,936 - 333,936
Impairment losses recognised in operating result - - -
(471,516) (103,772) (575,288)
At fair value 30 June 2018 12,847,712 1,396,586 14,244,297
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2018 (7,014,118) (1,015,596) (8,029,714)
Total 5,833,594 380,990 6,214,583
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5.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (Continued)

(c) Infrastructure

Roads Bridges Footpaths and Kerb and Drainage
Infrastructure cycleways channel
At fair value 1 July 2017 317,958,236 32,947,254 6,063,442 5,138,998 14,565,038
Acc depreciation at 1 July 2017 (105,345,535) (16,884,639) (1,987,317) (2,021,880) (7,207,639)
212,612,701 16,062,615 4,076,125 3,117,118 7,357,399
Movements in fair value
Acquisition of assets at fair value 3,823,677 51,980 1,853,257 - 218,929
Revaluation increments /
(decrements) 28,221,819 3,558,316 127,796 501,427 1,198,811
Fair value of assets disposed - - - - -
Impairment losses recognised in
operating result - - - - -
Transfers between asset classes 110,647 - 1,258,375 - 939
32,156,143 3,610,296 3,239,428 501,427 1,418,679
Movements in acc depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation (6,110,045) (370,022) (149,040) (94,119) (198,844)
Revaluation
(increments)/decrements (1,723,511) (1,198,597) 199,881 (20,801) (428,575)
Acc depreciation of disposals - - - - -
Impairment losses recognised in
operating result - - - - -
(7,833,556) (1,568,619) 50,841 (114,920) (627,419)
At fair value 30 June 2018 350,114,379 36,557,550 9,302,870 5,640,425 15,983,717
Accumulated depreciation at 30
June 2018 (113,179,091) (18,453,258) (1,936,476) (2,136,800) (7,835,058))
236,935,288 18,104,292 7,366,394 3,503,625 8,148,659
. . Work In Total
Infrastructure (continued) Quarries Street Furniture Landfills Progress Infrastructure
At fair value 1 July 2017 58,507 731,564 1,994,306 1,247,597 380,704,942
Acc depreciation at 1 July 2017 (22,956) (162,393) (1,562,138) - (135,194,497)
35,551 569,171 432,168 1,247,597 245,510,445
Movements in fair value
Acquisition of assets at fair value - - - 562,068 6,509,911
Revaluation increments /
(decrements) - 63,779 - - 33,671,948
Fair value of assets disposed - - - - -
Impairment losses recognised in
operating result - - - - -
Transfers between asset classes - - - (1,247 ,597) 122,364
- 63,779 - (685,529) 40,304,223
Movements in acc depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation (1,462) (26,171) (25,644) - (6,975,347)
Revaluation
(increments)/decrements - 8,622 - - (3,162,981)
Acc depreciation of disposals - - - - -
Impairment losses recognised in
operating result - - - - -
(1,462) (17,549) (25,644) - (10,138,328)
At fair value 30 June 2018 58,507 795,343 1,994,306 562,068 421,009,165
Accumulated depreciation at 30
June 2018 (24,418) (179,942) (1,587,782) - (145,332,825)
34,089 615,401 406,524 562,068 275,676,340
Page 37

Item 9.1- Attachment 2

Page 71



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 28 AUGUST 2018

Acquisition

The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided as
consideration at the date of acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to the acquisition. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing
costs incurred during construction, and an appropriate share of directly attributable variable and fixed overheads.

In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits have applied when recognising assets within an applicable
asset class and unless otherwise stated are consistent with the prior year.

Land under roads
Council recognises land under roads it controls at fair value.
Depreciation and amortisation

Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and other assets having limited useful lives are
systematically depreciated over their useful lives to the Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the
service potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of remaining useful lives and methods are reviewed annually.
Depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually.

Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components
are assigned distinct useful lives and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is determined for each
component.

Road earthworks are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as not having a limited useful life. Straight
line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.

Depreciation periods used are listed below and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated.
Finance leases

Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset are transferred to
Council are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised, recording an asset and a liability at the
lower of the fair value of the asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed
residual value. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the interest expense.
Leased assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives to the Council where it is
likely that the Council will obtain ownership of the asset or over the term of the lease, whichever is the shorter.
Council currently has no leased assets.

Repairs and maintenance

Where the repair relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation
threshold, the cost is capitalised and depreciated. The carrying value of the replaced asset is expensed.

Leasehold improvements

Leasehold improvements are recognised at cost and are amortised over the unexpired period of the lease or the
estimated useful life of the improvement, whichever is the shorter. At balance date Council has no leasehold
improvements.
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Valuation of land and buildings

The valuation of land and buildings was undertaken by LG Valuation Services a qualified independent valuation firm.
The valuation of land and buildings is at fair value, being market value based on highest and best use permitted by
relevant land planning provisions. Where land use is restricted through existing planning provisions the valuation is
reduced to reflect this limitation. This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment has no
impact on the comprehensive income statement.

Specialised land is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobe (undeveloped and / or unserviced)
characteristics, access rights and private interests of other parties and entitlements of infrastructure assets and
services. This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the
Comprehensive Income Statement.

Any significant movements in the unobservable inputs for land and land under roads will have a significant impact
on the fair value of these assets.

The date of the current valuation is detailed in the following table. A full revaluation of these was be conducted in the
current year, this valuation was based on land values and market sales, a full revaluation of these assets will be
conducted in 2019/20.

Details of the Council's land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2018 are as

follows:
Date of

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 valuation
Land - 1,980,392 8,340,534 30/6/2018
Specialised land - - - 30/6/2018
Buildings - - - 30/6/2018
Specialised buildings - 7,402,053 75,120,819 30/6/2018
TOTAL - 9,382,445 83,461,353

Valuation of infrastructure

A valuation of Council’s, infrastructure assets was performed by Indivar Dhakal, Manager Technical Services of the
Loddon Shire Council, as at 30 June 2018.

There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2018.
For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered the highest and best use.
The date of the current valuation is detailed in the following table. An indexed based revaluation was conducted in

the current year, this valuation was based on current unit rates and sample analysis of condition ratings. Full
revaluation of all assets are coordinated on a cyclic timeframe.
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Valuation of infrastructure (continued)

Details of the Council's infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2018 are as

follows:
Date of

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 valuation
Unsealed roads formation - 14,774,958 30/6/2018
Unsealed roads pavement - 57,977,852 30/6/2018
Road seal - 17,070,327 30/6/2018
Sealed roads pavement - 236,126,386 30/6/2018
Sealed road formation - 9,476,493 30/6/2018
Footpaths - 7,026,801 30/6/2018
Culverts - 14,688,362 30/6/2018
Bridges - 36,557,550 30/6/2018
Kerb and channel - 5,640,425 30/6/2018
Urban drains - 14,976,218 30/6/2018
Street furniture - 637,337 30/6/2018
Landfills - 1,994,306 30/6/2018
Quarries - 58,507 30/6/2018
TOTAL - - 417,005,522

Description of significant unobservable inputs into level 3 valuations

Specialised land and land under roads is valued using a market based direct comparison technique. Significant
unobservable inputs include the extent and impact of restriction of use and the market cost of land per square
metre. The extent and impact of restrictions on use varies and results in a reduction to surrounding land values
between 5% and 95%. The market value of land varies significantly depending on the location of the land and the
current market conditions. Currently land values range between $1 and $120 per square metre.

Specialised buildings are valued using a depreciated replacement cost technique. Significant unobservable
inputs include the current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of buildings. Current replacement cost is
calculated on a square metre basis and ranges from $1 to $420 per square metre. The remaining useful lives of
buildings are determined on the basis of the current condition of buildings and vary from 33 years to 100 years.
Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing
through to the valuation. Useful lives of buildings are sensitive to changes in expectations or requirements that could
either shorten or extend the useful lives of buildings.

Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacement cost. Significant unobservable inputs
include the current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructure. The remaining useful lives of
infrastructure assets are determined on the basis of the current condition of the asset and vary from 2 years to 100
years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing
through to the valuation. Useful lives of infrastructure are sensitive to changes in use, expectations or requirements
that could either shorten or extend the useful lives of infrastructure assets.

Reconciliation of specialised land

Land under roads - -
Parks and reserves - -

TOTAL - —
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5.3 Investments in associates, joint arrangements and subsidies
Investments in associates
North Central Goldfields Regional Library Corporation

The Council is a member of the North Central Goldfields Regional Library Corporation. At 30 June 2018 Council's
equity was $271,380. At 30 June 2017 Council's equity in the corporation was $273,945.

The Council has a 5.12% share of the net assets, and this is calculated on the same ratio as the Shire contributes to
the operating costs of the service. At 30 June 2017 the Shire’s share of the net assets was 5.21%. Any adjustments
required due to the reduction in the share of net assets from 2017 to 2018 is reflected as Variation Account - Change
in Equity in the following schedules.

The value of the Council's equity is reflected in Note 4.2 (d) - Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures. The
income or expense for the year is reflected in the Comprehensive Income Statement.

2018 2017
$ $

Council's share of accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Council's share of accumulated surplus/(deficit) at start of year 81,066 170,325
Share of reported surplus/(deficit) for year 2,264 (76,086)
Variation account - change in equity (1,002) (13,173)
Council's share of accumulated surplus/(deficit) at end of year 82,328 81,066
Council's share of reserves
Council's share of reserves at start of year 192,880 191,800
Variation account - change in equity (3,827) 1,080
Council's share of reserves at end of year 189,053 192,880
Movement in carrying value of share in library
Carrying value of investment at start of year 273,945 362,125
Share of accumulated surplus/(deficit) for the year 2,264 (76,086)
Variation account - change in equity (4,829) (12,093)
Carrying value of share in library investment at end of year 271,380 273,945
Council's share of expenditure commitments
Operating commitments 12,630 15,064
Capital commitments 14,804 4,736

27,434 19,800
Adjustment to the carrying value of North Central Goldfields Regional Library

2018 2017
$ $

Adjustment to the carrying value of North Central Goldfields Regional Library
Corporation (2,565) (88,180)
Total adjustment to the carrying value of North Central Goldfields
Regional Library Corporation (2,565) (88,180)

Associates are all entities over which Council has significant influence but not control or joint control. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor has, rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement.
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5.3 Investments in associates, joint arrangements and subsidies (continued)

For joint operations, Council recognises the right to its share of jointly held assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
of joint operations. Council has no joint arrangements at reporting date.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under this method, the interests are initially
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise Council's share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other comprehensive income in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income respectively.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of Council incorporate all entities controlled by Council as at 30 June 2018,
and their income and expenses for that part of the reporting period in which control existed.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which Council has control. Council control an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to Council. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Where dissimilar accounting policies are adopted by entities and their effect is considered material, adjustments are
made to ensure consistent policies are adopted in these financial statements.

Council has no consolidated entities.
Committees of management
All entities controlled by Council that have material revenues, expenses, assets or liabilities, such as committees of

management, have been included in this financial report. Any transactions between these entities and Council have
been eliminated in full.
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6.1 Council and key management remuneration

(a) Related parties

Loddon Shire Council is the parent entity. There are no further interests in subsidiaries and associates.
(b) Key management personnel

Details of persons holding the position of Councillor or other members of key management personnel at any time
during the year were:

Councillors: 2018 2017
Cr Cheryl McKinnon (Councillor from July 17 to December 17) (Mayor from

December 17 to June 18) 1 1
Cr Neil Beattie (Mayor from July 17 to December 17) 1 1
Cr Geoff Curnow (Councillor from July 17 to June 18) 1 1
Cr Gavan Holt (Councillor from July 17 to June 18) 1 1
Cr Colleen Condliffe (Councillor from July 17 to June 18) 1 1
Total number of Councillors 5 5
Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel:
Mr Phil Pinyon (CEO from July 17 to June 18) 1 1
Mrs Wendy Gladman (Director Community and Wellbeing July 17 to June 18) 1 1
Mrs Sharon Morrison (Director Corporate Services July 17 to June 18) 1 1
Mr Steven Phillips (Acting Director Operations July 17 to August 17) (Director 1 -
Mr Peter Cownley (Acting Director Operations August 17 to October 17) 1 B
Mrs Lynne Habner (Manager Executive and Commercial Services July 17 to
June 18) 1
Mr lan McLauchlan (Director Operations July 16 - April 17) - 1
Mrs Judith Holt (Director Corporate Services July 16 - July 16) - 1
Mrs Margaret Allan (Acting Chief Executive Officer July 16 - July 16) - 1
Total Key Management Personnel 6 7
(c) Remuneration of key management personnel
Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:

2018 2017

$ $

Short-term benefits 1,067,841 994,789
Long-term benefits - -
Termination benefits - -
TOTAL 1,067,841 994,789
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(c) Remuneration of key management personnel (continued)

The numbers of key management personnel whose total remuneration from Council and any related entities, fall
within the following bands:

Income range 2018 2017
number number
$10,000 - $19,999 0 2
$20,000 - $29,999 3 4
$30,000 - $39,999 1 0
$40,000 - $49,999 1 0
$60,000 - $69,999 1 1
$100,000 - $109,999 0 1
$110,000 - $119,999 1 0
$130,000 - $139,999 0 1
$150,000 - $159,999 1 1
$160,000 - $169,999 2 0
$180,000 - $189,999 0 1
$230,000 - $239,999 0 1
$240,000 - $249,999 1 0
11 12

All Councillors are ratepayers in the Loddon Shire Council and have completed appropriate Declaration of Interest
Forms.

6.2 Related party disclosure

(a) Transactions with related parties
No transactions other than remuneration payments or the reimbursement of approved expenses were entered into
by Council with responsible persons or related parties of such responsible persons during the reporting year (Nil in
2016/17).

(b) Outstanding balanced with related parties
There are no outstanding balances outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with
related parties (Nil in 2016/17).

(c) Loans to/from related parties
No loans have been made, guaranteed or secured by the Council to a responsible person of the Council during the
reporting year (Nil in 2016/17).

(d) Commitments to/from related parties

No commitments have been made, guaranteed or secured by Council to a responsible person of the Council during
the reporting year (Nil in 2016/17).
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7.1 Contingent assets and liabilities
(a) Contingent liabilities
Superannuation

Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make
additional contributions to the scheme, matters relating to this potential obligation are outlined below. As a result of
the volatility in financial markets, the likelihood of making such contributions in future periods exists.

At this point in time, it is not known if additional contributions will be required, their timing or potential amount.
7.2 Change in accounting standards

The following new AAS's have been issued that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2018 reporting period. Council
has assessed these pending standards and has identified the following potential impacts will flow from the application
of these standards in future reporting periods.

Financial Instruments - Disclosures (AASB 7) (applies 2018/19)

This Standard required entities to provide disclosures in their financial statements that enable users to evaluate: (a)
the significance of financial instruments for the entity's financial position and performance; and (b) the nature and
extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which the entity is exposed.

Financial Instruments (AASB9) (applies 2018/19)

The key changes include simplified requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets, a new
hedging accounting model and a revised impairment loss model to recognise impairment losses earlier, as opposed
to the current approach that recognised impairment only when incurred.

Revenue from contracts with customers (AASB 15) (applies 2019/20 for LG sector)

The standard shifts the focus from the transaction-level to a contract-based approach. Recognition is determined
based on what the customer expects to be entitled to (rights and obligations), while measurement encompasses
estimation by the entity of the amount expected to be entitled for performing under the contract. The full impact of
this standard is not known however it is most likely to impact where contracts extend over time, where there are
rights and obligations that may vary the timing or amount of the consideration, or where there are multiple
performance elements. This has the potential to impact on the recognition of certain grant income.

Amendments to Australia Accounting Standards - Deferral of AASB 15 Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 2016-7)
(applies 2019/20)

This Standard defers the mandatory effective date of AASB 15 for not-for-profit entities from 1 January 2018 to 1
January 2019.

Leases (AASB 16) (applies 2019/20)

The classification of leases as either finance leases or operating leases is eliminated for lessees. Leases will be
recognised in the Balance Sheet by capitalising the present value of the minimum lease payments and showing a
‘right-of-use’ asset, while future lease payments will be recognised as a financial liability. The nature of the expense
recognised in the profit or loss will change. Rather than being shown as rent, or as leasing costs, it will be recognised
as depreciation on the ‘right-of-use’ asset, and an interest charge on the lease liability. The interest charge will be
calculated using the effective interest method, which will result in a gradual reduction of interest expense over the
lease term.

Income for Not-For-Profit Entities (AASB 1058) (applies 2019/20)

This standard replaces AASB 1004 Contributions and establishes revenue recognition principles for transactions
where the consideration to acquire an asset is significantly less than fair value to enable to not-for-profit entity to
further its objectives.
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7.3 Financial instruments
(a) Objectives and policies

The Council's principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, term deposits, receivables (excluding statutory
receivables), payables (excluding statutory payables) and bank borrowings. Details of the significant accounting
policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on
which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity
instrument is disclosed in the Notes of the financial statements. Risk management is carried out by senior
management under policies approved by the Council. These policies include identification and analysis of the risk
exposure to Council and appropriate procedures, controls and risk minimisation.

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of our financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The Council's exposures to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with only
insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure to foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument
will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Council's interest rate liability risk arises primarily from long
term loans and borrowings at fixed rates which exposes Council to fair value interest rate risk. Council repaid the
balance of its loan borrowings in 2015/16, thereby reducing the risk. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Council has
minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risk through its levels of cash and deposits that are at a floating rate.

Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 1989.
Council manages interest rate risk by adopting an investment policy that ensures:

- diversification of investment product and financial institutions

- monitoring of return on investment

- benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget.

There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for
managing interest rate risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the Council's year
end result.

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause
Council to make a financial loss. Council has exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included in our balance
sheet.

To help manage this risk:

- Council may require bank guarantees or security deposits for contracts where appropriate

- Council will only invest surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in
Council's investment policy.

Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and government
sectors. Credit risk associated with the Council's financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is secured by a

charge over the rateable property.

There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.
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7.3 Financial instruments (continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as when
we provide a guarantee for another party. Council has no such guarantees in place at 30 June 2018.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net
of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial
statements. Council does not hold any collateral.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of our operational liquidity requirements it will not have sufficient funds
to settle a transaction when required or will be forced to sell a financial asset at below value or may be unable to
settle or recover a financial asset.

To help reduce these risks Council:
- has historically minimised borrowings in the short to medium term
- reduced its reliance on borrowings with repayment of all borrowings occurring in 2015/16
- have readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place
- ensures that surplus funds are invested within various bands of liquid investments
- monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and
- set limits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan principal
repayments to rate revenue.

There has been no significant change in Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing
liquidity risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

With the exception of borrowings, all financial liabilities are expected to be settled within normal or agreed terms.
Details of the maturity profile for borrowings are disclosed at Note 4.4.

Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amount of financial instruments reflect their fair value.

(e) Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and
experience of the financial markets, Council believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the
next 12 months:

- A parallel shift of + 1.5% and -1.5% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 2.75%.

These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council's financial assets and liabilities, nor will
they have a material impact on the results of Council's operations.
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7.4 Fair value measurement

Fair value hierarchy

Council's financial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy. Council's financial
assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

Council measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian Accounting
Standards. AASB 13 Fair value measurement, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across
Australian Accounting Standards.

AASB 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly fransaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value under AASB 13 is an exit price
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within a fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

In addition, Council determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

Revaluation

Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment and
furniture and equipment, are measured at their fair value, being the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. At balance
date, the Council reviewed the carrying value of the individual classes of assets measured at fair value to ensure that
each asset materially approximated its fair value. Where the carrying value materially differed from the fair value at
balance date, the class of asset was revalued.

Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the valuation hierarchy will
only occur if an external change in the restrictions or limitations of use on an asset result in changes to the
permissible or practical highest and best use of the asset. In addition, Council undertakes a formal revaluation of
land, buildings, and infrastructure assets on a regular basis ranging from 1 to 5 years. The valuation is performed
either by experienced council officers or independent experts.

Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve
except to the extent that an increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been
recognised as an expense in which case the increment is recognised as revenue up to the amount of the expense.
Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except where prior increments are included in the asset
revaluation reserve for that class of asset in which case the decrement is taken to the reserve to the extent of the
remaining increments. Within the same class of assets, revaluation increments and decrements within the year are
offset.
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7.4 Fair value measurement (continued)
Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset,
being the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset's carrying value. Any
excess of the asset's carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the comprehensive income
statement, unless the asset is carried at the revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is recognised
directly against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss
does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same class of asset.

7.5 Events occurring after balance date

No matters have occurred after balance date that require disclosure in the financial report.
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8.1 Reserves

(a) Asset revaluation reserve

2018

Balance at Revaluation Net movement for| Balance at end of

beginning of increment / the reporting the reporting
reporting period (decrement) period period
$ $ $ $
Property
Land 7,937,337 670,326 670,326 8,607,663
Buildings 31,971,201 (1,271,150) (1,271,150) 30,700,051
39,908,538 (600,824) (600,824) 39,307,714

Infrastructure assets
Sealed roads 120,960,770 17,320,982 17,320,982 138,281,752
Unsealed roads 45,923,887 9,177,326 9,177,326 55,101,213
Footpaths 1,622,309 327,677 327,677 1,949,986
Street furniture 119,120 72,401 72,401 191,521
Kerbs 385,645 480,626 480,626 866,271
Bridges 7,000,103 2,359,719 2,359,719 9,359,822
Drains 516,769 770,236 770,236 1,287,005
Other infrastructure 176,528,603 30,508,967 30,508,967 207,037,570
Total tangible assets 216,437,141 29,908,143 29,908,143 246,345,284
Intangible assets
Water rights 731,384 310,700 310,700 1,042,084
Total 217,168,525 30,218,843 30,218,843 247,387,367
2017

Balance at Revaluation Net movement for| Balance at end of

beginning of increment / the reporting the reporting
reporting period (decrement) period period
$ $ $ $
Property
Land 8,034,742 (97,405) (97,405) 7,937,337
Buildings 31,971,201 - - 31,971,201
40,005,943 (97,405) (97,405) 39,908,538
Infrastructure assets
Sealed roads 115,781,124 5,179,646 5,179,646 120,960,770
Unsealed roads 42,436,348 3,487,539 3,487,539 45,923,887
Footpaths 2,010,522 (388,213) (388,213) 1,622,309
Street furniture 85,637 33,483 33,483 119,120
Kerbs 220,378 165,267 165,267 385,645
Bridges 7,040,571 (40,468) (40,468) 7,000,103
Drains 377,888 138,881 138,881 516,769
Other infrastructure 167,952,468 8,576,135 8,576,135 176,528,603
Total tangible assets 207,958,411 8,478,730 8,478,730 216,437,141
Intangible assets
Water rights 717,316 14,068 14,068 731,384
Total 208,675,727 8,492,798 8,492,798 217,168,524
Page 50

Item 9.1- Attachment 2 Page 84



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

28 AUGUST 2018

8.1 Reserves (continued)

(b) General reserves

2018
Balance at
beginning of | Transfer from | Transferto | Balance atend
reporting accumulated | accumulated of reporting
period surplus surplus period
$ $ $ $
Land and buildings reserve 280,354 358,350 (5,758) 632,946
Capital expenditure reserve 3,141,720 2,160,830 (3,141,720) 2,160,830
Caravan park development reserve 264,967 31,964 (36,994) 259,937
Community planning reserve 901,067 1,003,063 (901,067) 1,003,063
Economic development reserve 120,035 134,545 (18,925) 235,655
Fleet replacement reserve 676,845 150,000 (365,108) 461,737
Gravel and sand pit (GSP) restoration reserve 773,703 87,329 (372,313) 488,719
Heritage loan scheme reserve 100,000 - - 100,000
Information technology reserve 1,226,469 185,000 (278,071) 1,133,398
Little Lake Boort water reserve 20,303 14,222 - 34,525
Waste management reserve 283,147 34,370 - 317,617
Major projects reserve 99,796 80,000 - 179,796
Plant replacement reserve 1,769,860 850,000 (270,196) 2,349,664
Professional development reserve (2,118) 4,000 (3,318) (1,436)
Recreation facilities improvement reserve 100,000 - - 100,000
Skinners Flat water reserve 12,908 2,657 - 15,565
Swimming pool major projects reserve 50,000 50,000 - 100,000
Unfunded superannuation liability reserve 1,000,000 - (303,576) 696,424
Units reserve 77,129 17,836 - 94,965
Unsightly premises enforcement provision
reserve 100,000 - - 100,000
Unspent contributions reserve 987 - (987) -
Unspent grants reserve 7,683,212 7,731,737 (7,683,212) 7,731,737
Urban drainage reserve 704,551 250,000 (261,685) 692,866
Valuations reserve 190,895 5,327 (153,555) 42,667
War memorial reserve 3,000 - - 3,000
Total 19,578,830 13,151,230 (13,796,485) 18,933,575
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8.1 Reserves (continued)

(b) General reserves (continued)

2017

Balance at Transfer from Transfer to | Balance at end

beginning of | accumulated | accumulated | of reporting
reporting surplus surplus period
$ $ $ $
Land and buildings reserve 303,400 - (23,046) 280,354
Capital expenditure reserve 3,037,963 3,141,720 (3,037,963) 3,141,720
Caravan park development reserve 85,982 199,239 (20,254) 264,967
Community planning reserve 476,514 901,067 (476,514) 901,067
Economic development reserve 163,180 2,203 (45,348) 120,035
Fleet replacement reserve 427,424 304,740 (55,319) 676,845
Gravel and sand pit (GSP) restoration reserve 719,738 69,029 (15,064) 773,703
Heritage loan scheme reserve 72,610 27,390 - 100,000
Information technology reserve 977,623 485,000 (236,154) 1,226,469
Little Lake Boort water reserve 17,815 2,488 - 20,303
Waste management reserve 263,527 33,620 (14,000) 283,147
Maijor projects reserve 95,752 55,000 (50,956) 99,796
Plant replacement reserve 1,075,344 850,000 (155,484) 1,769,860
Professional development reserve 19,919 4,000 (26,037) (2,118)
Rates reserve 229,206 - (229,206) -
Recreation facilities improvement reserve 100,000 - - 100,000
Skinners Flat water reserve 12,908 - - 12,908
Swimming pool major projects reserve - 50,000 - 50,000
Unfunded superannuation liability reserve 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Units reserve 64,994 12,135 - 77,129
Unsightly premises enforcement provision
reserve - 100,000 - 100,000
Unspent contributions reserve - 987 - 987
Unspent grants reserve 5,225,729 7,683,212 (5,225,729) 7,683,212
Urban drainage reserve 528,588 254,650 (78,687) 704,551
Valuations reserve 122,967 95,456 (27,528) 190,895
War memorial reserve 3,000 - - 3,000
Total 15,024,183 14,271,936 (9,717,289) 19,578,830
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8.1 Reserves (continued)
(b) General reserves (continued)

Purpose of general reserves

Land and buildings reserve
The land and buildings reserve is used to fund the purchase and improvement of land and buildings. Proceeds
received from the sale of Council owned land and buildings are transferred to the reserve.

Capital expenditure reserve

The capital expenditure reserve is used to set aside funds that have been budgeted for capital works projects in one
financial year but will not be expended by the end of that year. Council transfers to the reserve annually the
unexpended budget amounts for capital works and other projects that will be undertaken in the following financial
year.

Caravan park development reserve

The caravan park development reserve is used to set aside surpluses made from the operations of Council's
caravan parks to assist with financing major works carried out at those caravan parks. The annual surplus made on
the operations of Council's caravan parks is transferred to the reserve annually, and the funds required to finance
major works undertaken at Council's caravan parks are transferred from the reserve.

Community planning reserve

The community planning reserve is used to set aside unspent funds for community planning projects. Council
transfers to the reserve annually cumulative unspent funds for each ward's community planning projects. Council
transfers from the reserve the amount placed into the reserve at the end of the previous financial year.

Economic development reserve

The economic development reserve is used to assist with economic development initiatives that Council wishes to
financially support. Council transfers to the reserve annually an amount determined during the budget process as
sufficient to fund economic development initiatives, and proceeds from the sale of industrial land and transfers from
the reserve the cost of economic development initiatives during the financial year.

Fleet replacement reserve

The fleet replacement reserve is used to fund the replacement of office vehicles. Council transfers to the reserve
annually an amount determined during the budget process as sufficient to fund the fleet replacement program, and
transfers from the reserve the net cost of fleet purchases for the year.

Gravel and sand pit (GSP) restoration reserve

The gravel and sand pit (GSP) restoration reserve is used to fund land purchase, development and restoration of
gravel and sand pits used by Council for the extraction of road building materials. Council transfers from the
reserve the cost of purchasing new sites, development and restoration of gravel and sand pits, and transfers to the
reserve annual surplus on operations of gravel and sand pits.

Heritage loan scheme reserve

The heritage loan scheme reserve is used to provide loans to owners of properties located in significant heritage
precincts, heritage registered buildings or structures of local heritage significance, to enable repair and maintenance
of those buildings with the aims of quality appearance and public safety.

Information technology reserve

The information technology reserve is used to assist with the purchase of information technology assets. Council
transfers to the reserve annually an amount determined during the budget process as sufficient to fund information
technology assets, and transfers from the reserve the net cost of information technology assets.
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8.1 Reserves (continued)
(b) General reserves (continued)

Purpose of general reserves (continued)

Little Lake Boort water

The Little Lake Boort water reserve is used to secure the proceeds from sale of temporary water rights relating to
Little Lake Boort. Council transfers to the reserve the proceeds from the sale of temporary water rights and
unexpended amounts from annual expenditure budget and transfers from the reserve the amounts required to
purchase water rights or for any other expenditures relating to Little Lake Boort.

Waste management reserve

The waste management reserve is used to assist with the cost of strategic projects, compliance and long term

planning for Council's landfills and transfer stations. Council transfers to the reserve annually $10 per kerbside
collection levy (or a pro-rated amount for a pro-rated collection). Council transfers from the reserve the cost of
strategic projects, compliance and long term planning within Council landfills and transfer stations.

Major projects reserve

The major projects reserve is used to assist with the funding of major projects identified by Council. An annual
allocation determined during the budget process as sufficient to fund major projects is transferred to the reserve.
When a major project is identified and approved, an amount will be transferred from the reserve to assist with
funding the project.

Plant replacement reserve

The plant replacement reserve is used to fund plant purchases. Council transfers to the reserve annually an
amount determined during the budget process as sufficient to fund the plant replacement program. Council
transfers from the reserve the net cost of plant purchases for the year.

Professional development reserve

The professional development reserve is used to fund the professional development undertaken by executive
officers of Council. An annual allocation is provided to each executive officer in accordance with their contract of
employment, while the cost of the professional development undertaken during the year is transferred from the
reserve.

Rates reserve

The rates reserve has been established to offset the effect of unbundling of water rights from Council valuations
from 1 July 2007, and the subsequent effect that this will have on Council's ability to raise rates on the affected
properties in the 2008/09 and future rating periods. Movements are in accordance with Council's Rating Strategy.

Recreation facilities improvement reserve
The recreation facilities improvement reserve is an allocation of funds used to provide interest free loans to
community groups for improvements at Council reserves.

Skinners Flat water reserve

The Skinners Flat water reserve is used to fund major repairs and capital works at the Skinners Flat Water Supply.
The surplus on operations of the water supply is transferred to the reserve annually and the cost of major repairs
and capital works is transferred from the reserve.

Swimming pool major projects reserve

The Swimming Pool Major Projects Reserve is used to fund unplanned major repairs and capital works at the
various swimming pool sites across the Shire. Council transfers to the reserve annually an amount determined
during the budget process, to a maximum reserve level of $200K. Council transfers from the reserve the net cost of
unplanned major repairs and capital works.
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8.1 Reserves (continued)
(b) General reserves (continued)
Purpose of general reserves (continued)

Unfunded superannuation liability reserve

The unfunded superannuation liability reserve is used to assist with funding any call that may be made on Council
as a result of shortfall in the Local Authorities' Superannuation Defined Benefits Plan. Council transfers to the
reserve annually an amount determined during the budget process as sufficient to fund potential future calls by the
superannuation authority in relation to an unfunded superannuation liability. Council transfers from the reserve any
funds required to finance a call made upon Council by the superannuation authority.

Units reserve

The units reserve is used to fund the purchase or improvement of Council owned elderly persons’ units. The net
surplus generated from rental income is transferred to the reserve annually. Funds are transferred out of the
reserve to cover the cost of capital works undertaken at elderly persons' units.

Unsightly premises enforcement provision reserve
The Unsightly Premises Enforcement Provision Reserve is used to provide funds to assist with the enforcement and
rectification works on determined unsightly premises with costs recouped via legal or other action.

Unspent contributions reserve

The unspent contributions reserve is used to set aside contributions received for a specific purpose in one financial
year that will not be expended until a later financial year. Council transfers to the reserve contributions received
during the financial year that have not been expended, and transfers from the reserve the amount placed into the
reserve at the end of the previous financial year.

Unspent grants reserve

The unspent grants reserve is used to set aside grants received in one financial year that will not be expended until
a later financial year. Council transfers to the reserve grants received during the financial year that have not been
expended, and transfers from the reserve the amount placed into the reserve at the end of the previous financial
year.

Urban drainage reserve

The urban drainage reserve is used to fund urban drainage works in the towns within the Shire. Council transfers to
the reserve annually an amount determined during the budget process sufficient to fund the urban drainage
program, and transfers from the reserve the annual cost of urban drainage work.

Valuations reserve

The valuations reserve is used to fund the cost of Council’'s bi-annual valuations for rating purposes. Council
transfers to the reserve the net surplus of valuations in the years that Council is paid for the provision of its data to
state government authorities, and amounts determined during the budget process sufficient to fund the bi-annual
revaluation process. Council transfers from the reserve the net cost of the revaluation process.

War memorial restoration reserve

The war memorial restoration reserve is used to fund the cost of maintaining and renewing war memorials across
the Shire. Council transfers to the reserve annually an amount determined during the budget process as sufficient to
fund the war memorial program, and transfers the cost of works to war memorials from the reserve.
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8.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus/(deficit)

2018 2017
$ $

Surplus / (deficit) for the period (818,612) 4,361,511
Depreciation 9,233,178 8,689,491
(Profit) / loss on disposal of assets 68,428 30,412
Impairment of financial assets 1,658 3,879
Reversal of impairment of assets (3,879) (166)
Bad debts expense 21,086 34,322
Share of other comprehensive income of associates - 76,086
Change in assets and liabilities
(Increase) / decrease in receivables (net of advances) 364,463 16,859
(Increase) / decrease in accrued income (2,053,243) (887,003)
(Increase) / decrease in prepayments 20,207 150,077
(Increase) / decrease in other assets and liabilities 512,020 (122,503)
Increase / (decrease) in trust funds and deposits 28,676 127,344
(Increase) / decrease in inventories 10,476 11,848
Increase / (decrease) in payables (159,429) (48,559)
Increase / (decrease) in employee benefits (165,496) 28,100
Increase / (decrease) in other provisions (11,121) (587,917)
(Increase) / decrease in library equity 2,565 88,180
Net cash provided by / used by operating activities 7,050,977 971,
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8.3 Superannuation

Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local
Authorities Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and
defined benefit, each of which is funded differently. Obligations for contributions to the Fund are recognised as an
expense in the Comprehensive Income Statement when they are made or due.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumulation categories, Vision MySuper / Vision Super Saver, receives both employer and employee
contributions on a progressive basis. Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee
earnings (for the year ended 30 June 2017, this was 9.5% required under Superannuation Guarantee Legislation).

Defined Benefit

Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit
category. This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer sponsored plan.

There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets or costs between the participating employers,
as the defined benefit obligation is a floating obligation between the participating employers, and the only time that
the aggregate obligation is allocated to specific employers is when a call is made. As a result, the level of
participation of Loddon Shire Council in the Fund cannot be measured as a percentage compared with other
participating employers. Therefore the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between
employees for the purposes of AASB 119.

Funding arrangements
Council makes employer contributions to the defined benefit category of the fund at rates determined by the
Trustee on the advice of the Actuary.

At 30 June 2017, an interim actuarial investigation was held as the Fund provides lifetime pensions in the Defined
Benefit category. The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing
employer was 103.1%. To determine the VBI, the fund Actuary used the following long-term assumptions:

Net investment returns 6.5% pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price inflation (CPI) 2.5% pa

Vision Super is expected to report the VBI at 30 June 2018 by 31 December 2018. The VBl is used as the primary
funding indicator. When the VBI is above 100%, the interim actuarial investigation determines the Defined Benefit
category is in a satisfactory financial position and that no change is necessary to the Defined Benefits category's
funding arrangements from prior years.
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8.3 Superannuation (continued)
Employer contributions

Regular contributions

On the basis of the results of the 2017 interim actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund Actuary, Council
makes employer contributions to the Fund's Defined Benefit category at rates determined by the Fund's Trustee.
For the year ended 30 June 2018, this rate was 9.5% of members' salaries (9.5% in 2016/17). This rate will
increase in line with any increase to the Superannuation Guarantee (SG) contribution rate.

In addition, Council reimburses the Fund to cover excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of retrenchment
above the funded resignation or retirement benefit.

Funding calls

If the defined benefit category is in an unsatisfactory financial position at actuarial investigation or the defined
benefit category's VBI is below its shortfall limit at any time other than the date of the actuarial investigation, the
defined benefit category has a shortfall for the purposes of SPS 160 and the Fund is required to put a plan in place
so that the shortfall is fully funded within three years of the shortfall occurring. The Fund monitors its VBl on a
quarterly basis and the Fund has set its shortfall limit at 97%.

In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there is a shortfall based on the above requirement, the Fund's
participating employers (including Council) are required to make an employer contribution to cover the shortfall.

Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is apportioned between the participating employers based on
the pre - 1 July 1993 and post - 30 June 1993 service liabilities of the Fund's defined benefit category, together with
the employer's payroll at 30 June 1993 and at the date the shortfall has been calculated.

Due to the nature of the contractual obligations between the participating employers and the Fund, and that the
Fund includes lifetime pensioners and their reversionary beneficiaries, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound up.
If there is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be returned to the participating employers. In the event that a
participating employer is wound-up, the defined benefit obligations of that employer will be transferred to that
employer's successor.

2017 Interim actuarial investigation surplus amounts

The Fund's latest actuarial investigation as at 30 June 2017 identified the following in the defined benefit category of
which Loddon Shire Council is a contributing employer:

- A VBI surplus of $69.8 million; and

- A total service liability surplus of $193.5 million.

- A discounted accrued benefits surplus of $228.8 million

The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund's assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed
the vested benefits that the defined benefit members would have been entitled to if they had all exited on 30 June
2017.

The total service liability surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund's defined benefit category
plus expected future contributions exceeds the value of expected future benefits and expenses.

Council was notified of the 30 June 2017 VBI during August 2017.
2018 interim actuarial investigation

A full actuarial investigation is being conducted for the Fund's position as at 30 June 2018. It is anticipated that this
actuarial investigation will be completed in December 2018.
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9.2 AUGUST 2018 AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING OVERVIEW

File Number: 06/02/003

Author: Sharon Morrison, Director Corporate Services

Authoriser: Phil Pinyon, Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: 1. Confirmed Minutes of Audit Committee Meeting May 2018
2.  Draft Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2018
3. Follow Up of Agreed Actions from Prior Year Internal Audit Reports
4, Loddon Performance Framework for the year ended 30 June 2018
5. Extract of VAGO Annual Plan 2018-19

RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. receives and notes the confirmed minutes of the May 2018 Audit Committee meeting
2. receives and notes this report on the August 2018 Audit Committee Meeting

3. notes the Audit Committee’s review of the financial and performance statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018

receives and notes the draft Closing Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2018

endorses the performance improvement recommendations documented in the “Follow Up of
Agreed Actions from Prior Year Internal Audit Reports”

6. receives and notes the Loddon Performance Framework Results for the year ended 30 June
2018

7. notes the extract from the Victorian Auditor General’s Office Annual Plan 2018-19

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There is no conflict of interest for any Council staff member involved in the preparation of this
report, or involved in the subject matter of the report.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION

Council was provided with a summary of the May 2018 Audit Committee Meeting at the Ordinary
Meeting held on 29 May 2018.

BACKGROUND

The Audit Committee was created under Section 139 of the Local Government Act 1989, which
states that “Council must establish an audit committee”.

The committee is made up of four independent community members, and Cr Gavan Holt, as
Council’s representative. Council’s Chief Executive Officer and Director Corporate Services attend
the meetings in an advisory capacity.

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to assist Council in the effective conduct of its
responsibilities for:

the enhancement of the credibility and objectivity of internal and external financial reporting
effective management of financial and other risks and the protection of Council assets
compliance with laws and regulations as well as use of best practice guidelines

the effectiveness of the internal audit function
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o the provision of an effective means of communication between the external auditor, internal
audit, management and the Council

o facilitating the organisation’s ethical development

e maintaining a reliable system of internal controls.

In order to provide a structured approach and ensure that the Committee addresses each of its
responsibilities, an annual calendar of actions and an internal audit review program are established
each year, and these guide the activities of the Committee.

ISSUES/DISCUSSION

Mayor Cheryl McKinnon attended the August meeting as Councillor Holt was on leave.
The agenda for the August 2018 meeting included the following:

External audit closing report for year ended 30 June 2018

Mr Thompson, on behalf of the external auditor, provided the closing report for the financial year
ended 30 June 2018.

The Audit Committee noted that the external auditor intends to issue an unmodified audit opinion.

Financial and Performance Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

The Manager Financial Services presented the draft financial and performance statements for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

The Audit Committee noted that the unfunded superannuation liability reserve reduced from one
million dollars to $696,424 at the end of the reporting period. The Manager Financial Services
stated that this was due to a Council resolution to ‘borrow’ from the reserve for 3 years to partly
fund the Wedderburn Streetscape.

The Audit Committee recommended to Council the adoption of the Annual Report including the
Financial Statements and Performance Statements.

Audit report — Follow up of agreed actions from prior year internal audit reports

Mr Kundai Mtsambiwa provided an overview of the audit report, which found that there had been
good progress in actions taken by the Council to address the audit findings and recommendations
contained in the previous internal audit reports, with 51% completed, 33% partially completed and
16% outstanding/overdue.

Compliance Reports

A number of compliance reports were considered and noted including:

¢ the Risk Management Report for the period February to July 2018 — the Audit Committee
noted the report and presentation by the Manager Organisational Development

e the Fraud Report for the May to July quarter — the CEO provided a nil report
e areview of major lawsuits facing council since May 2018 — the CEO provided an update

e jtems raised by Council that may impact the Audit Committee — the Mayor noted the recent
receipt of Rates Notices by ratepayers

Information Reports

The Audit Committee also received the following information reports:
¢ Loddon Performance Framework Results for the period ending 30 June 2018

e Proposal by Local Government Victoria to change “Asset Renewal Compared to
Depreciation” Indicator to “VAGQO’s Renewal Gap Indicator”

¢ Financial Services Strategic Update

e Monthly Finance Report
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¢ VAGO Annual Plan 2018-19

¢ Recognition of Land Under Roads

The Audit Committee also confirmed that they had a meeting with the internal and external auditors
without officers present.

The date of next audit committee meeting is 8 November 2018.
The next review will be about Service Planning.

COST/BENEFITS
There are costs associated with the Audit Committee and internal audit function.

However, in most cases, actions resulting from audit reviews do not bear any new costs as they
are undertaken by current staff.

The benefits that the internal audit function provides Council are:
e business improvement relating to the audit review areas
e standard policy and procedure documents which are developed through the action list
e improvement in knowledge management that will assist with succession planning over time

e areduction in risk in areas relating to audit reviews.

RISK ANALYSIS

The internal audit program has been created and is annually updated on a risk basis, ensuring that
Council’s program addresses the areas of highest risk or greatest concern to Audit Committee
members and Council officers.

CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

Nil
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LODDON o 09 AUG20E
SHIRE (e |

‘ souncit D
Audit Committee Minutes ;Ml

9.15am, 10/05/2018, Kooyoora Meeting Room, Wedderburn Office

leference: 05/18

Present: Ken Belfrage - Chair
Alan Darbyshire — Community Member
Rod Poxon — Community Member
Rodney Baker - Community Member
Cr Gavan Holt — Council's Audit Committee Representative
Phil Pinyon — Chief Executive Officer
Sharon Morrison — Director Corporate Services
Martin Thompson — Crowe Horwarth (for item 5)
Kundai Mtsambiwa — HLB Mann Judd (for items 5 to 7)
Lynne Habner — Manager Executive and Commercial Services
Deanne Caserta — Manager Financial Services (for items 14, 15, 16)

Apologies:
1. Welcome and apologies
The Chair welcomed committee members.

The CEO announced Rod Poxon as the newly appointed member of the Audit Committee.
2. Declaration of interests

No committee members or staff declared any conflicts of interest.

3. Minutes of the previous meeting

Resolution:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 8 February 2018 be accepted.

Moved: Alan Darbyshire Seconded: Rod Poxon Carried

4. Actions arising from minutes

The outstanding actions listed at the end of the agenda are all completed.

5. External audit strategy for year ended 30 June 2018

Martin Thompson provided a presentation outlining the proposed approach to this year’s audit.
Key risks that will be assessed are considered standard across the sector, including revaluation of
non-physical assets and data capture for performance information. Martin explained other audit

responsibilities relating to internal controls, fraud, suspected corrupt conduct, and waste, probity
and financial prudence.

The committee noted changes that are underway to improve data analytics and strategies to
enable VAGO to provide an improved audit for councils.

Martin confirmed the timeframe for the audit, with a closing meeting scheduled for 20 July. The
Chair noted that the new format appears to be more streamlined and easier to read.

Signed / Ken Belfrage
. Page 1 of 4
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6. Audit report — whole of life cost

Kundai Mtsambiwa provided an overview of the audit report, which found that there are key
business practices in place including the project management framework, which referenced whole
of life costing in templates and key documents. Other policies and procedures are in place to
support good management. The report found that more detailed guidelines and forms were needed
to assist staff in identifying and estimating whole of life costs for projects. Sample documents were
provided with the audit report to assist management in addressing the identified risks.

The committee noted the information captured for whole of life costing would be incorporated into
project evaluation and decisions, long term financial planning and budgeting. Members discussed
the example of the streetscape project and the ongoing costs to Council associated with it, and
how those costs may multiply with future proposed projects.

7. Internal audit program for 2018/19

The committee considered the 2018/19 program of internal audits, which includes waste
management planning, HR management and payroll, service planning, and data interrogation. The
priority item was considered to be waste management planning, given several recent issues for
local government in this activity.

In relation to service planning, the committee discussed the value of this audit, and whether rates
testing may be a more valuable audit. The process for service delivery reviews was explained by
Sharon Morrison, and the committee noted that three pilot reviews are being assessed to
determine how future service delivery reviews will be conducted. Management considered that an
audit of service planning may help identify improvements to the process.

8. Review of internal audit plan and pfegram effectiveniess/internal audit
contract

Sharon Morrison advised that the current contract with HLB Mann Judd expires in June 2019, and
preparations are being made to seek tenders for a new internal audit provider. Feedback was
sought from the committee about what it would be seeking in a new contract.

Committee members discussed internal audits including:
o the new contract should commence with an overall review of risk for the organisation
« positive feedback was provided about the current providers
e itis valuable to test the market for new providers.

9. Outstanding actions report by risk level

Sharon Morrison advised that this reporting has been revised, and the committee received
progress reports on 58 outstanding actions from 141 recommendations. The committee provided
positive feedback on the new report format.

10. Performance:Survey response for 2017/18
The committee reviewed the results of the self-assessment, which showed a positive response.
11. Loddon'Performance Framework Report — July 2017 to December 2017

Sharon Morrison explained the reporting timeframe for some of the performance measures and
noted that some areas are not fully populated for half-yearly results due to officers finding little
value in the reporting requirement. The committee agreed to receive the report twice a year.

12.Draft Loddon Performance Framework version 3
The committee noted key changes to the framework, including requirements for frequency of
reporting and changes to specific indicators.

Sharon Morrison also reported that a recent workshop reviewing the Local Government
Performance Reporting Framework proposing changes to indicators including aquatic facilities,

Signed Ken Belfrage
Page 2 of 4
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libraries, maternal and child health, average rates, resignations and terminations, and asset
renewal. Changes are proposed to be effective for the 2019/20 budget.

13.Presentation by staff member — Paula Yorston, Manager Community Services

Paula Yorston described her role with Loddon Shire Council, which incorporates activities across
Aged and Disability Services and Early Years, including kindergartens. Paula reported that a
recent assessment of aged and disability services received 18 out of 18, and the team has
successfully implemented sector-wide changes to the aged care services, including introduction of
the My Aged Care Portal for residents to access services. The Early Years service delivers five
kindergartens across the Shire, and occasional care was implemented last year, which has been
successful at Dingee in particular. Council continues to manage Senior Citizens centres across the
Shire.

The Community Services team is strong in its knowledge of the local community, and is able to
engage well with the community. Challenges include the need to review strategies including the
Municipal Early Years Plan, and managing state government changes to Aged and Disability
services in the future. Paula noted the decline in Meals on Wheels volunteers over recent years is
also concerning.

The committee thanked Paula for her presentation.

14.Monthly Finance Report

The Committee received the report for the period ending 31 March 2018,

The committee noted that the cash surplus increased significantly due to the reduction in expected
capital expenditure for the remainder of the financial year. The committee noted that the process

for scoping projects in advance of making budget bids for capital projects will help to avoid non-
delivery of capital projects in future.

Sharon Morrison also reported that Council’s Investment Policy is being reviewed in response to
the closure of the NAB branch at Boort, and a revised draft will be submitted to Council at its May
meeting.

15. Draft/shell financijal reports.2017/18

Deanne Caserta explained the changes to the local government model financial report
required for the 2017/18 financial year, which will make it more streamlined and easier to
understand.

16.Overview of the 2018/19 budget

Deanne Caserta gave a presentation on the draft budget that has been advertised for public
comment from 11 May 2018. She noted that rate capping will continue at 2.25% and there will
be a 5% increase in waste management charges proposed.

Capital works is forecast at $14.05 million, and there are no current or planned borrowings in
the draft budget. The draft budget surplus is $130,787.

The committee noted the 4% cap placed by Council on salaries and wages costs and the
broader gap between that and the potentially lower increases in the upcoming enterprise
agreement. Cr Holt commented that this may not be sustainable into the future.

17.Fraud report — Charter 2.5(xv)
Phil Pinyon advised there is nothing to report.

Signed "o Ken Belfrage
Page 3 of 4
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18.Review of major lawsuits facing Council — Charter 2.5(xvii)

Phil Pinyon advised there are no major lawsuits to report. He noted some matters being dealt with
in VCAT regarding the Yemaya Festival and at the Magistrates Court relating to an unsightly

property.
19.Update on Review of Local Government Act

Sharon Morrison provided an update on Council's submission on the Local Government Bill
Exposure Draft.

20.Items raised by Council that may impact the Audit Committee
Cr Holt advised that there were no relevant issues raised.
21.General business

VAGO report on Local Government and Economic Development

Phil Pinyon advised that the Victorian Auditor General's Office conducted an independent audit
report on Local Government and Economic Development in 2017, of which Loddon Shire was one
of the councils that were involved. That report has been tabled and is now available to the public.
He also noted that Loddon Shire has been selected to be included in a future report relating to
Regional Development Victoria funding and its impact.

22.l1tems referred to Council
Items referred to Council:

Internal Audit report — Whole of Life Cost

Internal Audit Program

Outstanding Actions Report

Loddon Performance Framework Half Year Report
Loddon Performance Framework v3

e ® o @& @

23.Next meeting
Date of next meeting: 9 August 2018.

The next review will be about Waste Management Planning.

Ken Belfrage
Page 4 of 4
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VAGO

Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

Loddon Shire Council

Closing Report

For the financial year ended 30 June 2018
Presented to the Audit Committee on 9 August 2018
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Introduction

Purpose of the closing report

-»  Key document to summarise the results of our audit and communicate any significant audit findings to those charged with governance.

~» This document should be read in conjunction with our audit strategy presented on 10 May 2018.

Scope and purpose of the audit

> The Audit Act 1994 requires the Auditor-General to form an opinion on your entity's financial report and performance statement and provide a copy of the independent
auditor's report to you

The Auditor-General

The Auditor-General is:
~» anindependent officer of the Victorian Parliament
<> appointed under legislation to examine, on behalf of Parliament and taxpayers, the management of resources within the public sector

> not subject to the control or direction by either Parliament or the government.

The public

Executive government
The auditor-general
is an independent

Public sector services oficer of forhoment

VAGO

City of Melbourne—Closing Report 2017-18
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Audit completion status update

We have substantially completed our audit of the financial report and performance statement. We performed our audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 and the terms
of our engagement letter to provide reasonable assurance that the financial report and performance statement presents a true and fair view in accordance with the

Financial Management Act 1994,

Expected audit opinion

Based on our audit, we expect to conclude that the financial report presents a true and fair view. We also expect to canclude that the
performance statement is presented fairly.

We consequently expect to issue an unmodified audit opinions.

Outstanding audit matters

Our expected audit opinion is subject to us finalising our audit process. Key aspects still outstanding include:

~» final review of the financial report and performance statement
> receipt of signed management representation letter
-» performing our subsequent events review

Appendix A provides a detailed list of all outstanding audit matters.

VAGO
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Areas of audit focus

As advised in our audit strategy, our audit focused on those areas where we assessed there to be a higher risk of material misstatement to your financial report. We
designed and performed procedures to be able to conclude with reasonable assurance whether or not the identified risks resulted in a material misstatement. The outcome

of our procedures is summarised in this section.

# Risk of material misstatement

1 Streamlined financial report

From 1 July 2017, Local Government Victoria (LGV) are
significantly revising the form and content of Council
financial reports.

This will involve re-ordering and rationalisation of the
notes to the financial report, in line with recent world-
wide developments.

For the past two 2 years, the Annual Financial Statements
of the State of Victoria has been prepared on this basis,
and, from 2016-17, streamlining has been adopted in the
Health and Water sectors.

Our audit response

We :

shave reviewed the financial statements and disclosure
notes to ensure accounting treatments or reporting
disclosures are done in accord with Australian Accounting
Standards and comply with the Local Government Victoria
Model Financial Report.

Results of our key procedures

Based on the work done, information and explanations
obtained from management, no adverse observations
were noted.

2 Revaluation of non-current physical assets
Non-current physical assets represent a material
component of the total assets of the entity.
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires these assets to
be measured at fair value, which is based on significant
estimation uncertainty and uses management's
judgements and assumptions.
The major infrastructure assets, including roads, kerbs and
channels, bridges and drainage are fair valued using
replacement costs adjusted for their age and condition.
Land is valued using market value of the land taking into
account existing usage and zoning.

3 Performance statements
_ The Local Government Amendment (Performance

VAGO

We:

sreviewed the reasonableness of management valuations
and of assumptions used, and substantiated the
processed adjustments.

We:

_ *reviewed the systems in place to capture the financial

Results of procedures performed were satisfactory.

_ Results of procedures performed were satisfactory, an
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#

Risk of material misstatement

Reporting and Accountability) Act 2014 and associated
regulations set out the mandatory performance reporting
framework which Council must comply with. The
performance statement contains both financial and non-
financial information.

While councils should have mature processes in place to
provide assurance around financial performance
information, the environment for reporting non-financial
performance information about services and outcomes
has not historically been as robust.

Risk that inability to report these indicators will constitute
a departure from the performance statement
requirements in accordance with Part 6 of the Local
Government Act 1989,

Our audit response

and non-financial data if no systems are in place, we will
determine the adequacy of the records used for compiling
performance statement information and the soundness of
data compiled, and

schecked the calculations and assess the reasonableness
of explanations included in the report of significant
variations review the performance statement for
compliance with legislative requirement

Results of our key procedures

ungualified opinion is recommended on the performance
statement.

VAGO
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Audit findings—financial report

Materiality assessment

A misstatement is considered material if its omission or misstatement could, individually or collectively, influence the economic
decisions of users of the financial report. Users could be influenced by either the amount (quantity) or the nature of the matter
(quality).

Our final materiality levels have been reassessed and updated since we communicated our planning materiality levels to you in our
audit strategy document.

Final overall materiality for the financial report has been set at $ 659,362.

Adjusted audit differences

Our audit procedures did not identify any material audit differences

Unadjusted immaterial differences

Our audit procedures did not identify any unadjusted differences.

Control environment

In accordance with ASA 265 Communicating Deficiencies in Internal Control to Those Charged with Governance and Management, we
are required to communicate in writing, significant deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit to those charged with
governance on a timely basis.

We have considered the effectiveness of your internal control framework as part of our audit process. However our audit was not
designed to assess, nor do we provide an opinion on, the effectiveness of your internal control. If we have identified any significant
weaknesses in internal control during our audit, we communicate these to you via our management letters.

VAGO
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Audit findings—performance statement

Lo A misstatement is considered material if its omission or misstatement could, individually or collectively, influence the decisions of
Materiality assessment users of the performance statement. Users could be influenced by either the amount (quantity) or the nature of the matter (quality).
For performance statements, we set materiality for each individual indicator reported after considering qualitative and quantitative
factors influencing that particular indicator. The nature of performance statement means that an overall materiality level for the
statement cannot be communicated.

X . We identified no audit differences in the performance statement and brought them to the attention of management who
Adjusted differences subsequently adjusted them.

. . . . We identified no differences assessed to be immaterial in the performance statement. No adjustment for these has been made by the
Unadjusted immaterial differences management.

. We have considered the effectiveness of your internal control framework as part of our audit process. However our audit was not
Control environment designed to assess, nor do we provide an opinion on, the effectiveness of your internal control.
If we have identified any significant weaknesses in internal control during our audit, we communicate these to you via our
management letters.

VAGO
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Other audit findings

Fraud, irregularities or regulatory non-
compliance

We are not responsible for preventing or detecting fraud in the entity. However, we are required to consider the risk of material
misstatement in the financial report may be due to fraud when performing our risk assessments and in conducting our audit
procedures.

Our audit procedures did not identify any specific financial report areas of fraud risk or regulatory non-compliance.

Waste, probity & financial prudence

Accounting policies

When performing our audits we are required to have due regard for waste, probity and financial prudence matters.
Our audit procedures did not identify any material issues concerning waste, probity or lack of financial prudence.

We are not aware of any changes to material accounting policies or material transactions and/or events that occurred during the
financial year or of accounting policies being adopted that relate to areas where there is a lack of authoritative guidance in the
accounting standards.

Disagreements with management

No issues noted.

Difficulties encountered in performing the
audit

VAGO

No issues noted.
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Reports to Parliament

Local Government Victoria: Audit Snapshot

Loddon Shire Council will be included in the local government: Audit Snapshot report, scheduled for tabling in October 2018. This report will inform Parliament about the
strengths and weaknesses in the control environment at entities within the sector and make recommendations to improve these as appropriate. For 2017-18, we focused
on financial reporting preparation framework to provide insights into finance function and performance, throughout month end and year end close processes. Refer to
graph below for further details and appendix F for explanatory information.

Advanced

Mature

Intermediate
Developing

SECTION ONE: POLICIES AND  SECTION TWO:PEOPLEAND  SECTION THREE: DATA AND SECTION FOUR: INTERNAL
PROCESSES ORGANSATION TECHNOLOGY CONTROLS OVER ANANCIAL
REPORTING

B Current maturity level = Desired maturity level
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Key VAGO links and resources

VAGO's website

: : : : : VAGO's role

I Annual work plan

! = ! Strategic plan
Our reports
Audits in progress
Privacy policy
VAGO'’s accountability
VAGO City of Melbourne—Closing Report 2017-18
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Appendix A. Outstanding audit matters

The following items relating to the completion of our audit procedures are outstanding at the date of this report and need to be resolved before we issue
our auditor's report/s.

Item Action required Responsibility
Solicitors representation letter Letter required from Legal Counsel Management

Bank confirmation request Waiting on bank confirmations Management
Subsequent events update Provide details of significant transactions and events up to date of signing. Audit will assess for any Management and audit

impact on the financial report

Financial report / performance statement To be signed on adoption of the accounts by the Board Management
certification

Management representation letter To be signed on same date as the certification Management

After the issue of our auditor's report/s we are required to undertake the following procedures related to your annual report. Any issues identified from
these procedures will be reported to your accountable officer for appropriate remedial action.

Action required Responsibility
Annual report Provide contents of annual report. Audit will review its contents to confirm that the correct auditor's Management and audit
report is included.
[ Website publication of annual report Review your annual report as published on your website to ensure the inclusion of the correct audit Management and audit
report

VAG O City of Melbourne—Closing Report 2017-18
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Appendix B. Adjusted audit differences

Adjusted dollar differences

Financial report component(s) affected Amount adjusted $ Underlying cause of difference

Nil

Adjusted financial report disclosure and performance statement indicator differences

Nature of financial report disclosure / performance statement indicator Nature of adjustment Underlying cause of difference

affected

Only minor amendments to the financial report disclosures were suggested as
part of the audit process.
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Appendix C. Unadjusted audit differences

Unadjusted dollar differences

Financial report component(s) affected Amount adjusted $ Underlying cause of difference

Nil

Unadjusted financial report disclosure and performance statement indicator differences

Nature of financial report disclosure / performance statement indicator Nature of adjustment Underlying cause of difference

affected

Nil
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Appendix D. Final management letter

On issuance of our independent auditor's report, we will issue our final management letter containing any matters we identified in the final phase of our audit. We have
summarised our findings to date in the table below:

Finding Rating Recommendation Management comments
Ability to deliver capital works

As noted in the 2016-17 and 2017-18 financial statements there is a considerable variance Medium Council should review the ability to Pending

between the original budgeted capital works and that actually expended during the year. deliver projects outlined in the capital

This is quite a change from the prior year which saw Council expend more than budgeted budget, and where necessary make

on capital works. provision for adjustment.

There can be varying causes that can impact on the ability to deliver the capital works
budget, however it is critical that Council maintains oversight and amends the budget and
asset management policy as appropriate. As infrastructure assets mature the cost to
maintain often increases which may cause financial burden on the Council.

VAGO
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Appendix E. Draft management representation letter/s

As part of our audit evidence gathering, we plan to obtain formal management representations in respect of a number of matters related to the preparation and presentation of the financial
report and performance statement. We do not rely solely on these representations, except where they are the only evidence reasonably available. A draft version of this letter is provided as a
separate attachment / a link below.

Wi

Mgmt Rep Letter
Template - Loddon ¢
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Appendix F. Financial reporting preparation framework

This framework is designed to assess the financial reporting preparation maturity of different finance functions
within government entities. It forms the basis for the financial reporting preparation questionnaire as well as the
maturity descriptors within it. This framework is made up of four main components:

Internal controls
over financial
reporting

Policies and People and Data and
processes organisation technology

] i

Design processes to

Establish policies and Build an entity with the Design finance :
processes to support right resources and the systems and tools to ggﬂfaenrc?rseon:rzliﬁ
effective risk right skills in the right enable value adding the reliability %f g
management locations finance activities financial reporting
VAGO City of Melbourne—Closing Report 2017-18
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Victorian Auditor-General’s Office — Financial reporting preparation framework

Policies and

technology [| organisation || processes

vy

Developing

Month- and year-end reporting policies
and d are not

Reconciliations are not
Reporting is on a cash basis
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Appendix A — Basis and Use of Report

© HLB Mann Judd (VIC) Pty Ltd 2018

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
Disclaimer

Inherent limitation - the nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent
limitations of internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence.

Third party reliance

Other than our responsibility to Loddon Shire Council, neither HLB Mann Judd (VIC) Pty Ltd nor any member or employee of HLB Mann Judd
(VIC) Pty Ltd undertakes responsibility arising in any way from reliance placed by a third party, on this report. Any reliance placed is that party’s
sole responsibility.

Our report is for the sole use of Loddon Shire Council and is not to be used by any other person for any other purpose and may not be
distributed, duplicated, quoted, referred to, in whole or in part, without our prior written consent.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Background

Internal audit is a vital resource for an organisation in providing assurance
that key areas of the organisation are operating appropriately, in identifying
any weaknesses or deficiencies in operations, and in providing assistance to
the organisation in addressing these issues through the provision of value
added recommendations.

In order to maximise the effectiveness of the audit process, it is important
that the status of actions contained in management responses to internal
audit recommendations are monitored by management and the Audit
Committee. This will ensure that they are implemented appropriately and in a
timely manner.

This review was performed to determine the extent and adequacy of remedial
actions taken by Loddon Shire Council (the “Council”) in addressing the audit
findings and recommendations contained in previous internal audit reports
conducted as part of the 2016-17 Internal Audit Programs.

The status of each recommendation was assessed as ‘Completed’, ‘Partially
Completed’, 'In Progress’, ‘Outstanding’ or ‘Not Applicable’ as described
below:-

= Completed - All required actions agreed by Management in the
previous audit report have been implemented satisfactorily and no
exceptions were found during the status review;

» Partially Completed — Agreed implementation date is due. Required
actions agreed by Management in the previous audit report have been
partially implemented and / or with some exceptions found during the
status review;

= In Progress — Agreed implementation date is not due. Required actions
agreed by Management in the previous audit report have been partially
implemented and / or with some exceptions found during the status
review;

www.hlb.com.au

= Outstanding - Agreed implementation date is due. Required actions
agreed by Management in the previous audit report have been partially
or have not been implemented during the status review; and

= Not Applicable — Management have accepted the risk of not taking
action or implementing recommendations in the previous audit report.

The review has been agreed by the Council’'s Audit Committee and forms part
of the 2016-2017 Internal Audit Program.

Our review specifically focused on findings that have been rated as
extreme, high and medium.

Analysis of Implementation Status of Recommendations

Overall, we found that there has been good progress in actions taken by the
Council to address the audit findings and recommendations contained in the
previous internal audit reports. The chart below summarises the
implementation status as at April 2018:

Implementation Status of
Recommendations

W Not Applicable

= Completed

m Outstanding
In Progress

™ Partially Completed
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The following table summarises the number of findings/observations for the 5
audits and the percentage of completion as at April 2018:

Audit Areas

Review of
Purchases &
Issues from
Council Depot
Stores (incl.
purchases made
on credit cards)
(August 2016)

Review of
Accounts Payable
(October 2016)

Review of the
Management of
Privacy
Responsibilities
(February 2017)

Review of Salary
Oncost Rate,
Project Costing &
Budgeting Process
(March 2017)

Follow-Up of
Previous Internal
Audit Reports
(May 2017)

Total

www.hlb.com.au

11

45

23

Observations/Findings

15 =

67%

83%

27%

67%

38%

51%

In general, our status review confirmed that:

= The Council had addressed 23 (or 51%) of the 45 observations
highlighted in the previous internal audit reports reviewed as part of this
follow-up;

Partially In % . . . .
ﬂ = 7 (or 16%) remedial actions were outstanding at the completion of our

review;

= 15 (or 33%) remedial actions were partially completed and had passed
their due by date; and

= No remedial actions were found to be in progress or N/A at the time of
our follow-up review.

A more detailed assessment on the status of implementation for each
recommendation is provided in Table A — Outstanding / In Progress /
Partially Completed Action Items and Table B — Completed / Not
Applicable Action I'tems.
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OBJECTIVES AND PROCEDURES

Objectives

The objective of this review was to assess the progress made by the
Coundil in implementing the actions in response to recommendations
contained in the following audit reports from the 2016-17 Internal Audit
Programs:

For FY2016-17

= Review of Purchases & Issues from Council Depot Stores (incl. purchase
made on credit cards) (August 2016);

= Review of Accounts Payable (October 2016);
= Review of the Management of Privacy Responsibilities (February 2017);

= Review of Salary Oncost Rate, Project Costing & Budgeting Process
(March 2017);

Outstanding/Partially Completed Areas from May 2017 Follow-Up Review
Report. Areas to follow-up on from the review include the following:

= Review of Local Laws (September 2014);

= Review of Contract Management (December 2014);

= Review of Succession Planning & Workforce Development (October
2015); and

= Review of Building Management Services (March 2016).

www.hlb.com.au

Procedures

The procedures adopted in the course of this review included
the following:

Met with key Council personnel to discuss progression of
agreed recommendations;

Reviewed relevant documentation provided to
substantiate progress against actions;

Performed walkthroughs, where relevant

Assessed the adequacy of remedial actions
implemented;

Discussed issues with key personnel; and

Prepared draft and final report on status of
implementation and presented to the Audit Committee.
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TABLE A — OUTSTANDING / IN PROGRESS /
PARTIALLY COMPLETED ACTION ITEMS

Description of Recommendation

Finding

1. Evaluation panel members
were not required to
complete and sign-off
conflict of interest and
confidentiality declarations
prior to opening quotes
and/or tendering documents
submitted

We recommend Council management should:

1. Formalise the requirement for Disclosure
of Conflict of Interest and Confidentiality
Forms to be completed and signed off by
panel members before opening and
reviewing submissions. The requirement
should only pertain to major/significant
purchases made by Council (i.e. that
have gone through detailed RFQ and/or
RFT assessments).

A standard Disclosure of Conflict of
Interest and Confidentiality Form can be
developed for this process to ensure
consistency; and

2. Communicate and make available the
above procedures and form to all staff

Rating

Management
Response

Agreed.

A review of tender
evaluation report
templates can be

conducted to ascertain if
existing  provisions  for
declaration of conflicts is
adequate or whether a
separate probity form may
be required for tender
evaluation panels.

Declaration of a conflict of
interest will only be
required at the time of
assessing  tenders/quotes
and preparation of detailed

evaluation  report  for
approval.

MA:

1. Establish standard

Disclosure of Conflict
of Interest and
Confidentiality Form
and process.

2. Communication of
procedures and forms
to all staff,

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

Responsibility:
MA 1-2

Project Management
Coordinator

Timeframe:
1. May 2017 AC Meeting

2. August 2017 AC
Meeting

Status of Implementation

Status as at April 2018:
Partially Completed
Our review noted:

MA 1-2:

A formal Contract Management
manual was developed in April 2018.
However, the manual does not
incorporate a stand-alone Conflict of
Interest Declaration form to be
completed by panel members. We do
acknowledge though that the
requirement for declaration of conflict
of interest was documented in the
manual.

Management Response:
Management Agrees.

A stand-alone Conflict of Interest
Declaration form is being prepared for
inclusion in the draft Contract
Management manual which will be
communicated to all relevant staff
once finalised.

Revised Timeframe:
31 August 2018

www.hlb.com.au
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Description of

Finding

2. A supply panel engagement
model is currently not used
by Council for the
acquisition of recurring

Recommendation

We

recommend that the Council management

should:

3.

Consider the need to introduce a supply

Management
Response

Agreed.

3. A review of potential
services or goods for

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date
Responsibility:

MA 3-5

Manager Financial Services

Status of Implementation

Status as at April 2018:
Partially Completed
Our review noted:

equipment database is reviewed and
updated on a periodic basis to ensure it
remains relevant, accurate and complete

and plant owned and
operated by Council.

7. Review procedures for
procurement or
disposal of plant and
equipment  includes

goods or services organisation. This should be determined utilise pan;ﬂ Timeframe: MA 3-5:
via formal audit and analysis process with contractors; - .
respect to procurement transactions; 3. May 2017 AC meeting | The Council has e_ngaged a Supply
] ) ] ) 4, Develop contract |4 May 2017 AC meetin panel model on different occasions
4. Establish the panel via supplier selection, templates and | 4 9 | depending on services to be provided
appointment, management and processes for supplier [5. November 2017 AC (more ad-hoc). The Council also have
performance evaluation processes. Such panels; and meeting a list of compliant supplier database.
processes should be formally documented ) )
in policies and procedures; and subject to 5. Appoint  panel of However, a formal and detailed
regular review to ensure they remain suppliers where reiew of potential  services,
relevant, are meeting the needs of users, relevant. development of appropriate policies
and to address any emerging issues that and procedures, and appointment of
arise: and panel of suppliers has not been
5. Appoi el of suppliers for th completed
. Appoint a panel of suppliers for the .
delivery of goods or services in order to Management Response:
improve process efficiency. This finding has been superseded by
Finding No.4 below.
Refer to Finding No.4 below.
Revised Timeframe:
31 May 2019
3. A centralised, accurate We recommend Council management: Agreed. Responsibility: Status as at April 2018:
plant and equipment N . 1
" 6. Ensure the consolidation process of plant 6. Plant and equipment |MA 6-7.1 Partially Completed
database/register had ; -
not yet been fully rolled and equipment onto the cent_rahsqd plant data_base to be Manager, Operations Our review noted:
out and equipment database/register is finalised and ' ’
undertaken in a timely manner, to assist populated to ensure |Timeframe: MA 6:
Council in its service delivery; and the capture of all ) i
bkt relevantpt equipment 6. November 2016 AC That there is a new Assetic
7. Ensure the centralised plant and

Meeting

7. February 2017 AC
meeting

7.1 February 2017 AC
meeting

program/database in place for Plant
and Equipment that captures all the
relevant information for the Council.

MA 7-7.1:

However, a review of procedures for
disposal of equipment has not yet

www.hlb.com.au
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Description of

Finding

4, A supply panel engagement
model is currently not used
by Council for the
acquisition of recurring
goods or services

Recommendation

We recommend that the Council management
should:

8.

10.

Consider the need to introduce a supply
panel engagement model in the
organisation. This should be determined
via formal audit and analysis process with
respect to procurement transactions;

Establish the panel via supplier selection,
appointment, management and
performance evaluation processes. Such
processes should be formally documented
in policies and procedures; and subject to
regular review to ensure they remain
relevant, are meeting the needs of users,
and to address any emerging issues that
arise; and

Appoint a panel of suppliers for the
delivery of goods or services in order to
improve process efficiency.

Management
Response

7.1

updating of plant and
equipment database.

Review and identify
most  suitable IT
solution for managing
Plant and Fleet
registers  (including
development of
replacement

programs).

Agreed.

8.

10.

Conduct a review of
potential services or
goods for  which
Council may utilise

panel contractors.
Develop appropriate
policies,  procedures

and templates for the
management of supply
panels.

Appoint  panel  of
suppliers where
relevant.

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

Responsibility:
MA 8-10

Project Management
Coordinator

Timeframe:

8.
9.

10.

May 2017 AC meeting
May 2017 AC meeting

November 2017 AC
meeting

Status of Implementation

been undertaken. Further, no suitable
IT solution has been identified yet for
managing Plant and Fleet registers.

Management Response:
Management Agrees.

Council is in the process of procuring
a new corporate system. After
awarding the contract, Council will be
in a position to know whether the
new system provides for a centralised
plant and equipment database. If not,
Council will commence scoping
software to address the gap and
preparing a corresponding procedure.

Revised Timeframe:
30 November 2019

Status as at April 2018:
Partially Completed
Our review noted:

MA 8-10:

The Council has engaged a Supply
panel model on different occasions
depending on services to be provided
(more ad-hoc). The Council also have
a list of complaint supplier database.

However, a formal and detailed
review of  potential  services,
development of appropriate policies
and procedures, and appointment of
panel of suppliers has not been
completed.

Management Response:
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Description of

Finding

5. A Privacy Policy and
accompanying procedures
did not exist within the
Council which cover on
key privacy related areas.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Council management
should:

11. Ensure that the Privacy Policy is
developed in a timely manner as part of
the Council's privacy framework. The
document should align with the PDPA,
inclusive of the 10 IPPs within Schedule 1
of the PDPA. The document should also
incorporate  (but not limited to) the
following areas:

= Objectivefs,;

= Scope;

= Legislative and other document
references;

» Definitions;

» Responsible officers;

= Collection, use and disclosure,
safeguarding, archiving and disposal
of personal information;

u  Policy review; and

= Version control (i.e. position title of
author, approver, issue date, date of
last review, date of next review etc.).

12. Ensure accompanying privacy procedures

Rating

Management
Response

Agreed.

11. Develop Privacy
Policy.

12. Develop Privacy
Procedures.

13. Obtain approval for
Policy.

13.1 Obtain approval for
Procedures.

14.  Communicate policy
to staff and make
policy available.

15. Ensure policy is
included in policy
review  framework
for review every 2
years.

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

Responsibility:
MA 11-15

Director, Corporate
Services

Tim:
11. May 2017
12, August 2017
13. May 2017
13.1August 2017
14, May 2017
15. May 2017

Status of Implementation

Management Agrees.

Council has approved the
appointment of a Procurement Officer
in 2018/19 who will be tasked with
investigating supply panels for goods
and services.

Revised Timeframe:
31 May 2019

Status as at April 2018:

Partially Completed

Our review noted that:

MA 11-15:

The Privacy Policy and procedures
were in draft form. The draft
documents had been reviewed by the
Policy Review Group and were
scheduled to be put forward to the

Management Executive Group for
review and approval.

The above documents would be
subsequently communicated and
made available still staff upon
approvals being sought.

Management Response:
Management Agrees.

Privacy Policy was adopted by Council
22 May 2018 (post audit fieldwork
date) and has been communicated to
staff on 14 June 2018. It has a review

period of no later than 1 year after its
adoption.

Procedures are in draft form.
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Description of

Finding

Recommendation

13.

14.

15.

are developed to guide staff. The
procedures should incorporate (but not
limited to) the following areas:

» Identification of departments that
collect personal information, what
personal information they collect and
how they manage the personal
information;

» Situations where personal
information may be disclosed and
procedures to verify identity of
requestor before disclosure (ie. in
writing, over the phone etc.);

» The need for Council to perform a
formal re-evaluation of its need for
all personal information collected and
disclosed necessary for its functions
or activities; and

Obtain the appropriate approvals for the
Policy and accompanying procedures
once developed;

Ensure the Policy is made available and
free of charge to a person or body that
may request the document as per the IPP
requirements; and

Ensure the Policy is reviewed and
updated on a regular basis (i.e. every 2
years) to ensure it remains relevant and
reflects current practice.

Rating

Management
Response

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

Status of Implementation

Revised Timeframe:
28 February 2019

6. Procedures do not exist that
set out how to implement

privacy policies (e.q.
circulars, memos, notices
defining what the

department must do to
abide by the legislation)

See Key Finding No. 5 above.

See Key Finding No. 5
above.

See Key Finding No. 5
above.

See Key Finding No. 5 above.
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Description of

Finding

7.

Procedures do not exist that
set out how to implement

privacy policies (eg.
circulars, memos, notices
defining what the

department must do to
abide by the legislation).

Recommendation

See Key Finding No

. 5 above.

Management
Response

See Key Finding No. 5
above.

Person Responsible

and Planned
Completion Date

See Key Finding No. 5
above.

Status of Implementation

See Key Finding No. 5 above.

Policies do not exist relating
specifically to privacy issues.

See Key Finding No

. 5 above.

See Key Finding No. 5
above.

See Key Finding No. 5
above.

See Key Finding No. 5 above.

Procedures surrounding the
need to perform a period re-
evaluation process of all
personal information
collected need to be formally
documented.

See Key Finding No

. 5 above.

See Key Finding No. 5
above.

See Key Finding No. 5
above.

See Key Finding No. 5 above.

10.

Procedures surrounding the
periodic review of the
necessity for personal
information to continue to
be disclosed need to be
formally documented by
Council.

See Key Finding No

. 5 above.

See Key Finding No. 5
above,

See Key Finding No. 5
above,

See Key Finding No. 5 above.

11,

The need to ensure there
are procedures in place for
handling of personal
information including
collection, storage,
processing, use and
disclosure to third parties

See Key Finding No

. 5 above.

See Key Finding No. 5
above.

See Key Finding No. 5
above.

See Key Finding No. 5 above.

12.

Absence of documented
policy andlor procedures
specifically  directed at

certain data security aspects
of Council's operations.

We recommend that the Council management

should:

16 Ensure that key policies and in draft form

are finalised in
17 Incorporate

a timely manner;

data security related

procedures not already covered in

existing policies to provide guidance to

Agreed.

16. Finalisefreview the
following policies:

= Password and
Authentication
Policy  (updated

Responsibility:

MA 16-19

Manager Information

Timeframe:

16. November 2017

Status as at April 2018:
Partially Completed
Our review noted that:
MA 16:

The following policies have been
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Description of

Finding

Recommendation

18

19

staff that have access to the Council's
information systems. These areas may
include (but not limited to):

Procedures relating to security of
personal information stored in
manual/hardcopy files;

Procedures  surrounding  backup,
recovery and redundancy practices;

Procedures surrounding  collection,
processing, storage, wuse and
disclosure of personal information;

Procedures surrounding disposal of
information (i.e. steps to be
undertaken when destroying or
permanently de-identifying personal
information no longer required);

Obtain the appropriate approvals for the
respective policies and accompanying
procedures; and

Communicate and make available the
above documents to staff.

Rating

Management
Response

17.

24 Feb 2016);

Anti-virus
(updated 10 Feb
2016);

Cloud Computing
(draft);
Email (draft);

Internet use
(draft);

Portable
electronic  device
security  (draft);
and

Acceptable  use
(draft).

Develop the
following
procedures:

Procedures
relating to
security of
personal
information

stored in
manual/hardcopy
files;

Procedures
surrounding
backup, recovery
and redundancy
practices;

Procedures
surrounding
collection,
processing,
storage, use and
disclosure of

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

17. November 2017
18. November 2017
19. November 2017

Status of Implementation

finalised: Password and
Authentication  Policy;  Anti-virus
Policy and Portable Electronic Device
Security  Policy. The remaining
policies are yet to be finalised (Cloud
Computing; Email; Internet Use and
Acceptable use.

MA 17-19:

Management advised that no
procedures have been developed yet.
They will be developed once the
policies mentioned above have been
finalised.

Management Response:
Management Agrees.

Council has purchased process
mapping software which will be used
to document these
processes/procedures

Revised Timeframe:
31 May 2019
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Description of Recommendation Rating Management Person Responsible Status of Implementation
Response and Planned
Completion Date

Finding

personal
information;

= Procedures
surrounding
disposal of
information  (i.e.
steps to be
undertaken when
destroying or
permanently de-
identifying
personal
information no
longer required).

18. Obtain approval for
policies and
procedures referred
to in Action 7 and 8.

19. Communicate and
make available to
relevant staff the
policies and
procedures referred
to in Action 7 and 8.

13. Absence of data security See Finding No. 13 above. M See Finding No. 13 above. | See Finding No. 13 above. | See Finding No. 13 above.
policy which includes
security of personal
information stored in both
manual and computerised

systems.
14. There was a lack of effective | We recommend that Council management M Agreed. Responsibility: Status as at April 2018:
periodic review of user should: .
to k t 20. Review IT access |MA 20,21,23 Outstanding

gccess "0 key compuler 20 Conduct a formal review of the access
systems and applications - controls and make | manager Information Our review noted that:
within Council to actively contr‘qls for all the Cou_nmls systems necessary changes.

X " following the completion of the MA 22 MA 20-23:
monitor and verify the organisational restructuring to ensure 21. Develop a procedure
appropriateness of user that incompatible IT access is removed; for conducting user |Manager Organisation = A formal review of access
access granted to staff to ! access reviews on a | Development controls has not been done yet
perform or support business | 21 Implement a formal process that is including  documenting  the

www.hlb.com.au

Iltem 9.2- Attachment 3 Page 130



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 28 AUGUST 2018

Recommendation

Description of

Management Person Responsible Status of Implementation

Finding

Response

and Planned

Completion Date

activities or functions. documented in the procedures for period basis. Timeframe: requirements in a procedure;
Further, we noted that conducting user access reviews to
currently there were no systems and applications on a periodic 22.  Develop prpcedure 20. August 2017 = No formally documented
. - and checklist for procedure has been developed to
formal procedures in place basis; : 21. November 2017 e
to ensure that IT user _ internal transfers to conduct user access reviews; and
access controls of staff that 22 Implement a _c!'neckll;t for staff that have ensure user access | 22. August 2017 « The checkist for intemal
e changed position titles to ensure that to key systems and L.
have changed position titles 5 A 23. November 2017 transfers and provision to
. their user access to key systems and applications are ]
had been reviewed and de- licati ioned dinaly: ed conduct user access reviews
activated. applications are actioned accordingly; manage: periodically has not yet been
and appropriately.
developed.
23 Evidence surrounding the user access 23. Include a provision Management R nse:
review process should be kept. in  procedure for Hanagement Response:
conducti ng user Management Agrees.
access reviews on a
: ; Council has purchased process
period basis to - ) )
ensure evidence of mapping software which will be used
user access review is to document these
kept processes/procedures,
Revised Timeframe:
31 May 2019
15. The need to ensure there We recommend that Council management Agreed. Responsibility: Status as at April 2018:
are controls place over the | should: i
security of in information 24 Conduct a review of all existing IT vendor 24 DW?LOP I a |MA 2420 Outstanding
i i confidentiali i i .
handled by third parties. contracts and determine if they cover off agreement ty for Manager Information Our review noted that:
We noted some of IT third on confidentiality and security related existing IT vendors, Tim me: MA 24-26:
party contracts dated back matters appropriately; and -
to more than 10 years ago . 25.  Provide 24, August 2017 = The confidentiality agreement
and IT had not reviewed the 25 Ensurte that conﬂdentlall_ty agreements confidentiality 25. August 2017 template for existing IT vendors
terms of the contracts to are 5|gned-_off by respective IT vendors, agreement to  all ' h_as _not bgen d(_eveloped_ yet.
determine if they were still where required. existing IT vendors | 26. 1 August 2017 Signing against this _for existing
valid and if there were requesting signing. and new Vf“dOFS V:r']” btz a ﬁl
confidentiality agreements requirement once the templa
signed with ?r:e %endors 26. Ensure a has been developed.
g . confidentiality
agreement is Management Response:
provided to any new Manadement Aar
vendors for signing. anagement Agrees.
Confidentiality agreement or contract
condition will be developed and used
for all new vendors.
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Description of Recommendation Rating Management Person Responsible Status of Implementation
Findin Response and Planned
9 Completion Date
Revised Timeframe:
31 May 2019
16.Absence of documented | We recommend that the Council management M See Finding No. 5 above. See Finding No. 5 above. See Finding No. 5 above.
procedures with respect to | should:
genatmt_y of personal 26 Ensure formal processes with respect to
information being . .
maintained in accordance the collection and maintenance of
with the IPPs sensitive information are incorporated
) within  the Privacy Policy and
accompanying procedures in a timely
manner; and
27 Communicate and make available the
Privacy Policy and accompanying
procedures to staff.
17.Absence of documented | We recommend that Council management M Agreed. Responsibility: Status as at April 2018:
procedures in place with | should: .
respect o processes when ) 27. As a minimum | MA 27 Partially Completed
P pr 28 Ensure formal procedures in response to "
responding to  breaches . P pons ensure Privacy | pirector Corporate Our review noted that:
identified  and  resulting privacy breaches are developed in a procedures cover: Services
consequences  from  an timely manner. The procedures may Beach  contaiment MA 27:
i imi [ ] .
incident management ;gﬁﬁ:\%%gt;e(a?t not be limited to) the and preliminary Timeframe; w The Privacy Policy and
perspective. ’ assessment; 27. August 2017 procedures were in draft form.

= Breach containment and preliminary
assessment;

= Evaluation of the risks associated
with the breach;

= Notification processes over breaches;
and

» Prevention processes.

29 Communicate and make available the
above procedures to staff.

= Evaluation of the risks
associated with the
breach;

» Notification processes
over breaches; and

= Prevention processes

The draft documents had been
reviewed by the Policy Review
Group and were scheduled to be
put forward to the Management
Executive Group for review and

approval.

The above documents would be
subsequently communicated and
made available to staff upon
approvals being sought.

Management Response:
Management Agrees.

Procedures  are  stil
development,

Revised Timeframe:
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Description of

Finding

Recommendation

Management
Response

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

Status of Implementation

28 February 2019

18. The need to tighten privacy
policies, procedures and
controls to ensure
vulnerability over the misuse
of personal information is
minimised.

See Key Findings No. 5, 12, 13, 15, 16 & 17
above.

See Key Findings No. 5,
12, 13, 15, 16 & 17 above.

See Key Findings No. 5,
12, 13,15, 16 & 17
above.

See Key Findings No. 5, 12, 13, 15,
16 & 17 above.

19. Absence of documented
policies and procedures to
ensure that management
commitment to implement
policies and procedures to
safeguard personal
information.

See Key Finding No. 5 above.

See Key Finding No. 5
above.

See Key Finding No. 5
above.

See Key Finding No. 5 above.

20. Physical access security
control deficiencies noted
with respect to physical
hardcopy files (i.e. property
files, financial related files,
HR files).

We recommend that Council management
should:

30 Consider reviewing controls to ensure
that physical access to all the hardcopy
files containing personal information is
secured and limited to the responsible
staff only.

Partially Agrees.

28. Co-ordinate
management in
conducting reviews
of controls to ensure
physical access to all
hardcopy files
containing personal
information is
secured and limited
to the responsible
staff only by
developing an
annual self-
assessment checklist
and adding to
Advent Manager for
annual  completion
by departmental
heads.

Responsibility:
MA 28

Director Corporate
Services

Timeframe:
28. Novemnber 2017

Status as at April 2018:
Partially Completed
Our review noted that:
MA 28:

= All the hardcopy files containing
personal information are kept in
the office with access to the
respective departments restricted
via

to Council staff only
swipe/key access cards.

Efforts are being made to
convert documents to electronic
records where possible for extra
security which is a work-in-

progress at Council.

Management Response:
Management Agrees.

Tender documents for a new
Corporate System including document
management software is currently
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Description of

Finding

Recommendation

Rating

Management
Response

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

Status of Implementation

being finalised. A key requirement is
that the software is compliant with
electronic document management
standards.

Revised Timeframe:
30 November 2019

21, Privacy related performance
indicators did not exist
within the Council. Further,
the Council did not formally
report on any privacy related
matters and/or activities.

We recommend that the Council management
should:

31

32

Consider developing a formal process
where reporting to management, CEQO
and/or the Council on the organisation’s
privacy activities is undertaken on a
regular basis (e.g. review of the Council’s
Privacy Policy and Procedures, review of
systems used to record, capture and
collect information, etc.);

Consider implementing an annual self-
assessment checklist to be completed by
all the department heads within Council.
The checklist should incorporate (but not
be limited to) the following areas:

= Identification of personal information
collected and re-assessment of the
need for collection and use;

» Risks identified and controls put in
place regarding the privacy of
personal information; and

= Whether the department has
complied with the  Privacy
Framework and Information Privacy
Principles, with reference to this
checklist.

The self-assessments should be reported
to the Privacy Contact Officer. Any non-
compliance identified through this
processes should also be followed up by
the Privacy Contact Officer with the

Agreed.

29. 31. Add privacy
reporting to Loddon
Performance
Reporting
Framework to be
reported Six
monthly.

30. Develop a self-

31

assessment checklist
and add to Advent
Manager for annual
completion by
department heads.

Add the following
KPIs to the Loddon
Performance
Framework:

Number reported
concerns
regarding privacy
practices;
Number of
identified
breaches of
privacy;

Number of
identified losses
of personal data;

Percentage new

Responsibility:
MA 29-31

Director Corporate
Services

Timeframe:

29, May 2017
30. August 2017
31. May2017

Status as at April 2018:
Partially Completed
Our review noted that:
MA 29:

= Privacy reporting has been added
to the Loddon Performance
Reporting Framework.

MA 30:

» A self-assessment checklist is still
under consideration and work in
progress.

MA 31:

= KPI's have been added to the
Loddon Performance Reporting
Framework.

Management Response:
Management Agrees.

A self-assessment checklist has been
purchased and will be adapted to suit
Council’s requirements.

Revised Timeframe:
28 February 2019
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Description of Recommendation Rating Management Person Responsible Status of Implementation

Response and Planned

Finding Completion Date

respective departments, to ensure that it starters
is rectified. completing
33 Consider developing, adopting and privacy training
. - ! within 6 months
reporting against privacy related KPIs (as of
releva_nt to the _Cot_JnmI s sge),_to assist in commencement:
ensuring organisational objectives and and
targets are being met. Examples of KPIs
that Council may consider reporting = Percentage staff
against may include (but not limited to): with current

» Reported concerns regarding privacy refresher training.

practices;

= Number and/or percentage of
breaches of privacy;

»  Number and/or losses of personal
data;

»  Privacy training attended by staff
etc.

28. No formal review process We recommend that Council’s management Agreed. Responsibility: Status as at April 2018:
g',;gtectfsﬁﬂzugfef,‘aﬁhﬁy should: . 32. Finance Department | MA 32 Partially Completed
individual departments was 35. Develop and implement a process for to work with the . Our review noted that:
- Finance to review the project costing Operations Manager, Operations ur revi :
reasonable and justifiable. meth ,
odology, together with the relevant Department to | . MA 32:
departmental manager, to ensure that ensure that the | Timeframe: )
the costing is reasonable and justifiable formulated 32. February 2018 = The Finance Department
worksheets used to : continues to work in close
calculate each association with the Operations
project  has  an Department to ensure costing
appropriate  costing methodplq_gy is appropriate. This
methodology. responsmlhty has also _been
assigned to the Director
This is to be (Operations).
included into a i
private/external = However, the requement gbove
contactor works has not yet been included into a
policy and procedure private/external contractor works
that outlines the policy and procedure.
different
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Description of

Finding

29. Inadequate procedures to
guide staff on processes
required to implement the
Council’s Enforcement of
Local Laws Policy.

Recommendation

We recommend Council management:

36.

37.

Document and formalise procedure
documents on key processes, which
govern the administration and
enforcement of local laws and animal
management to address the
shortcomings highlighted under
Observatiorn; and

Review procedures on a regular basis to
ensure they remain relevant, meet the
needs of wusers, and address any
emerging issues that arise.

Rating

Management
Response

methodologies used
within each project
type.

33. A project plan for
development of the

suggested
procedures will be
developed and
provided to Audit
Committee,

34. This plan will be
monitored until all
actions are
complete.

Action 33:

Project plan for the

development of

procedures.

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

Responsibility:
Action 33

Tyson Sutton
Timeframe:

33. November 2014 AC
meeting

Status as at Feb 2017:
Qutstanding

Our review noted that:

There was no formalised
procedure on key
processes governing the
administration and

enforcement of local laws
and animal management.

We understand that due
to staff turnover, the
project for the
development of
procedures was  not
carried out. The Council
indicated that a review will
be conducted to ensure
that a formalised

Status of Implementation

Management Response:

Council is of the view that this process
is part of contract negotiations rather
than a project costing process and
therefore does not need a process.

Revised Timeframe:
Complete.

Status as at April 2018:
Outstanding

Our review noted:

Action 33:

The procedures to guide staff have
not yet been developed.

Management advised that the
Manager (Development and
Compliance) has a plan to review the
Council's existing Enforcement of
Local Laws Policy and Procedure and
combine it with Health, Building, and
local laws as a Community
Enforcement Policy and Procedure
that would cover the staff guidance.

Management Response:
Management Agrees.

Policies will be consolidated and
appropriate procedures developed.

Revised Timeframe:
30 November 2018
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Description of

Finding

Recommendation

Rating

Management
Response

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

procedure on key
processes governing the
administration and
enforcement of local laws
and animal management
is put in place.

Management
Response:

Staff  appointments to
replace agency staff is
being undertaken. Revised
timeframe is to provide for

adequate response and
action.

Responsible Officer:
Manager Development

and Compliance
Revised Timeframe:

Status of Implementation

31 August 2017
30, A risk | We recommend Council management: M 35. The risk | Responsibility: Status as at April 2018:

methodology/approach has ] methodology will be ] R -
not been emphasized and 38. E:VEIOF:,:C'”SK n?eﬁo;:llolr;gyf apfproach tf: incorporated into the Action 34-35 Outstanding
formalised in the Council’s app ', consistently fo- enforcemen enforcement policy. | Manager Development and ; .

activities J Our review noted:
local laws framework. ! 36 A rocedure  for Compliance .

39. Document processes for assessing and ) P Action 34-35:

prioritising cases within relevant policies

and procedures; and

40, Obtain adequate approvals

implementing policies and procedures

across the organisation.

assessing and
prioritising cases will
be developed.

37. The policy will be
approved by Council,
while procedures will
be approved by the
MEG.

Action 2:

Risk methodology
development.

Action 3:

Timeframe:
34. May 2015 AC Meeting
35. May 2015 AC Meeting

Status as at Feb 2017:
Outstanding

Our review noted that:
Action 34:

The risk methodology has
not been incorporated into
the enforcement policy.

A risk methodology and procedure for
assessing and prioritising cases has
not yet been developed. This will be
addressed as part of process in
addressing Key Finding No.29 above.

Management Response:
Management Agrees.

Risk methodology and procedure for
assessing and prioritising cases will be
developed as part of the response to
Key Finding No.29 above
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Description of

Finding

Recommendation

Rating Management

Response

Procedure development.

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

Action 35:

The procedure for
assessing and prioritising
cases has not been
developed.

Management
Response:

Staff appointments to
replace agency staff is
being undertaken. Revised
timeframe is to provide for
adequate response and
action.

Responsible Officer:

Manager Development
and Compliance

Revised Timeframe:
31 August 2017

Status of Implementation

Revised Timeframe:
30 November 2018

ensure compliance with

been established.

31. Anannual audit program to

permit conditions has not

We recommend Council management:

41.

42,

Establish an annual audit program to
ensure compliance with permit conditions
(in line with the Council’s policy).

Note: A risk methodology (consistent
with Audit Finding No. 4) should be
adopted in the development of such
program; and

Conduct the annual audit and provide
updates to key stakeholders accordingly
for proper oversight.

M 38. An annual audit
program for all local
laws related matters
will be developed.

39. Following adoption
of the program, the
annual audits  will
commence, and
compliance will be
reported to Council
at least annually.

Action 38:

Audit program developed.
Action 39:

Annual audits commenced.

Responsibility:
Action 36-37

Planning & Local Laws
Compliance Officer and
Local Laws & Fire
Prevention Officer

Timeframe:

36. February 2015 AC
meeting

37. November 2014 AC
meeting

38. November 2015 AC
meeting (after a full
year cycle for audit
program)

Outstanding
Our review noted:
MA 36-38:

An annual audit program has not yet
been developed.

Managemen nse:
Management Agrees.

An annual audit program for all local

laws related matters will be
developed.

Revised Timeframe:

31 May 2019

www.hlb.com.au

Item 9.2- Attachment 3

Page 138



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

28 AUGUST 2018

Description of Recommendation Rating

Finding

Management
Response

Action 40:

Report to Council on
annual audits.

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

Status as at Feb 2017:
Outstanding

Our review noted that:
Action 36:

An annual audit program
for all local laws related
matters had not been
established.

Action 37:

Annual audits have not
commenced.

Action 38:

Report to Council on
annual audit was not
done, as annual audits
have not commenced.

We  understand  that
Council had not been able
to fill the Local
Law/Planning &
Compliance Officer
position. For enforcement
issues, a contractor was
hired on ad-hoc basis. For
planning, a planning
contract consultant was
used.

Thus, it did not have the
resources to establish and
implement the annual
audit program.

Management
Response:

Staff  appointments  to
replace agency staff is
being undertaken. Revised

Status of Implementation
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Description of Recommendation Rating Management Person Responsible Status of Implementation
Findin Response and Planned
9 Completion Date
timeframe is to provide for
adequate response and
action.
Responsible Officer:
Manager Development
and Compliance
Revised Timeframe:
31 August 2017
32. The‘review and_ report of | We recommend Council M 40. DEPI are holding a nsibility: Status as at April 2018:
the implementation of the | management: foum —on  the |, . 3940 Outstanding
Domestic 43. Conduct a review and report exercise to Domestic Animal
Management Plan 2013- ) . ) - Management  Plan |Planning & Local Laws | Our review noted:
2016 was not conducted. assess the implementation of the Plan; (DAMP) Compliance Officer MA 39-40:
44, Undertake corrective actions to address implementation  on Timeframe: —_—
any performance gap noted; and 27h hOCtDIJE;f 201?' e The review and reporting of the
whicl sta wi i i
45. Provide assessment outcomes to key attend. 39. Eneebé,:;ﬁw 2015 AC andm:‘:‘"t”"c etAgéngﬁl I\:far:ﬁ.'ge:ent Plan
stakeholders for proper oversight. ] ) 9 oty periormed.
41 Any information on | 40, Immediate action Management Response:
this and an update , )
of actions from the | Status as at Feb 2017: | The Domestic Animal Management
DAMP  will  be | Qutstanding Plan was adopted in June 2018 and
reported to the ] send to Department of Economic
Council Meeting in | OUr review noted that: Development, Jobs, Transport and
December 2014, Action 39-40: Resources.
42. Comective  actions | The review and report of Revised Timeframe:
will be incorporated | the implementation of the | Completed (post audit fieldwork date)
into Council’s report. | Domestic Animal
Management Plan had not
43. Annual reports to
Council  will be | been completed.
incorpprated into Fhe We understand that the
Coundil Meeting | Council is  currently
cycle. conducting the review and
Action 41: undeljtaking actions for
- gaps identified.
Council Report on DAMP.
Management
Action 42: Response:
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Description of Recommendation Rating Management Person Responsible Status of Implementation

Response and Planned
Completion Date

Annual report in Council | Staff appointments to
meeting cycle. replace agency staff is
being undertaken. Revised
timeframe is to provide for
adequate response and
action.

Responsible Officer:

Manager Development
and Compliance

Revised Timeframe:
30 September 2017

Finding

33. The Council's contracts | We recommend Council management perform M 44,  Coundil will explore nsibility: Status as at April 2018:
register does not | housekeeping on the contracts register by the opportunity to . . ted
summarise all contracts | performing the following: purchase a formal Action 41 Partially Compl
g?gt:ﬁgati ognt[a’ nd bgo nt;i'r]:s 46. Centralise the assignment of a contract E.‘rgﬁ;gﬁ:gntmntrad Director, Operations QUF review noted that:
information  related  to number before a folder is created under software package for Action 42 Action 41-42:
: . the “Contract Management” directory on P
immature tendering or low the shared drive: 29 i the organisation to |Director, Corporate | A new Contract  management
value purchases. ! compliment the | services software/system is currently being
47. Request staff across the organisation to contract Timeframe: explored to assist with addressing the
provide the following information to the management observation.
responsible officer if they are currently framework which will | 41, November 2015 AC .
managing an active contract entered into be developed over Meeting In the meantime, a workaround had
by Council: the next year. ) been established with respect to
. 42. }mmedlate ) ensuring the manual contract register
a. Description of the contract and what 45. In the meantime, implementation induded key contract related
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Description of

Finding

48.

Recommendation

it is for;
b. Name of the contractor;

c. Date the contract was entered into
and the date the contract expires;

d. The value of the contract;

e. Who is responsible for managing the
contract;

f. Location of the actual original copy
of the full contract; and

Update the contracts register accordingly
and regularly.

Management
Response

the process for
allocating  contract
numbers  will be
reviewed, and staff
will be instructed to

require the
information included
in this

recommendation to
be placed in a soft
file in the relevant
contract’s directory.

Action 43:
Software package.
Action 44:

Improved process.

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

Status as at Feb 2017:
Outstanding

Our review noted that:
Action 41:

The electronic contract
management system
(eCMS) has not been
implemented.

The Project Management
Coordinator is currently
examining 2 eCMS that
are tailored to the local

government  contracting,
and are modular in
nature, 50 that

components can be
purchased as and when
needed, to be cost
effective.

Action 42:

In the meantime, the
existing contract register
is maintained in Excel
Spreadsheet by Corporate
Services.

We understand that a
centralised
identity/naming
convention will be
implemented  with  the
electronic contract
management system
(eCMS).

Management
Response:

Various electronic contract
management_systems are

Status of Implementation

information.

Management Response:
Management Agrees.

Council is in the process of procuring
a new corporate system. After
awarding the contract, Council will be
in a position to know whether the
new system provides for an electronic
contract management system. If not,
Council  will commence scoping
software to address the gap.

Revised Timeframe:
30 November 2019
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Description of

Finding

34. An evidence based
workforce strategy is not in
place to align the Council’s
workforce with those of its
needs and priorities in the
short, medium and long
term.

Recommendation

We recommend Council management:

49.

50.

51.

Assess the need to establish a workforce
strategy;

Appoint a responsible officer and required
management support;

Establish a workforce strategy, which
should address the shortcomings
highlighted under Observation. A guide to
workforce planning and management is
included in Appendix B, C and D for
information purposes;

(Note: It may not be feasible to develop
strategies and initiatives for all identified
gaps. The top three to six gaps may be
prioritised and, for each of these, develop
at least one strategy or initiative. The
impediments to these strategies and

www.hib.com.au

Rating

Management
Response

46. A Workforce
Strategy  will be
developed for
Council, as
recommended.

47. Development of the
strategy  will be
undertaken as a
project with
milestone dates set
to reflect the
Workforce Planning
and Management
Model at Appendix
C.

Action 45:
Stage 1 Context and

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

being reviewed and a new
system to be implemented

which  will have a
centralised naming
convention.
Responsible Officer:
Director Corporate
Services

Revised Timeframe:

31 December 2017

Responsibility:
Action 43-47

Manager Organisational
Development

Timeframe:

43. February 2016 AC
Meeting

44. May 2016 AC Meeting
45, May 2016 AC Meeting

46. August 2016 AC
Meeting

47. August 2016 AC
Meeting

Status of Implementation

Status as at April 2018:
Outstanding
Our review noted:

Action 43-47:

The Workforce Strategy has not yet
been developed. Management advised
that an appropriate toolkit is being
developed by the Council for the
Loddon Shire Council in conjunction
with 5 other Councils to assist in the
development of the Workforce
Strategy document.

Management Response:
Management Agrees.
A draft Workforce Strategy is almost
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Description of

Finding

Recommendation

initiatives should be identified, as well as
any additional benefits. Each strategy
should be aligned with Council’s
objectives and behaviours, and assessed
on the overall likelihood of their success
in addressing the gaps.)

. Obtain adequate approval before

implementing and executing of such
workforce strategy;

. Monitor the progress of action plans to

determine what activities have been
completed and those stil to be
implemented in terms of achieving
desired organisational goals; and

. Evaluate and adjust the workforce

strategy regularly to ensure information
remains current and is reviewed in light
of any developments that may affect
staffing issues in the organisation.

www.hlb.com.au

Management
Response

environment.
Action 46:

Stage 2 Current workforce
profile.

Action 47:

Stage 3 Future workforce
profile.

Action 48:

Stage 4 Gap analysis and
closing strategies.

Action 49:

Stage 5 Review and
evaluation.

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

Status as at Feb 2017:
Outstanding

Qur review noted that:
Action 43- 47:

There was no Workforce
Strategy developed for
Council as yet.

We understand that the
Council has expressed
interest in working with the
Local Government
Professionals (LGPro) on
this project, together with
4 other Councils. LGPro is
seeking funding for a
sector wide local
government approach to
workforce planning.

Management Response:

The Manager
Organisational
Development is on the
working group with LGPro
to develop a template
Workforce Strategy
document for local
Government, LGPro has
sought funding for this
project, it is envisaged
that the document should
be ready for distribution
for Council’s to use by the
end of 2017.

Revised Timeframe:
31 December 2017

Status of Implementation

complete.

Revised Timeframe:

30 November 2018

27
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Description of Recommendation Management

Response

Person Responsible
and Planned

Status of Implementation

Finding

Completion Date

34. A comprehensive, We recommend that council management 48. Council has been |Responsibility: Status as at April 2018:
centralised and accurate should: developing a | Action 48 .
register of public buildings | oL o all 3 separate centralised database | ~“'" Partially Completed
was not maintained. registers of public buildings to ensure all :fast)lg:?(;ng:arlsn at:g Manager information Our review noted:
public buildings for which the Council has . Y " Timeframe: ion 48:
. haght e it is now ready for | llMmelrame: Action 48:
direct or indirect responsibility for have use throuahout the
been identified and captured; or anisatiogn 48. August 2016 AC The Council has a centralised
9 : Meeting Building Asset Register that includes

56.

Consolidate these 3 registers into one
comprehensive, centralised and accurate
register of public buildings and distribute
accordingly across the Council to
relevant departments; and

49. It will be the “single
point of truth" for
land and building
assets until Council
purchases an asset

Status as at Feb 2017:
Outstanding

Qur review noted that:
Action 48:

the Valuations, Condition reports, and
Ratings.

However, the BAMP review process is
still work in progress.

57. Implement a system of periodic review management system Management Response:
and update of the public building register to better manage | The Council had
by a delegated staff member to ensure land and building | combined the registers Management Agrees.
ongoing completeness. assets. into one centralised list | The BAMP is being finalised. An
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50. The database will be
‘rolled out” to the
broader staff with
land and building

but had not completed the
review of the list of
buildings to ensure that it
is comprehensive and
accurate.

update on progress of the BAMP was
presented at the June Council Forum.

Revised Timeframe:

asset 30 November 2018
responsibilities. Management Response:
Action 50:

Roll out of database to
staff with land and
buildings responsibilities.

The land and buildings
database was replaced by
Assetic in late 2016. A
part of implementing
Assetic a condition report
and audit of buildings was
completed by the Assets
Engineer.

A review of the BAMP
outlining the issues with
the current BAMP and
changes revisions
required will be completed
by 30/6/2017, with a
revised BAMP provided by
Qctober 2017.
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Description of

Finding

Recommendation

35. There was an absence of
routine building condition
inspections undertaken.

We recommend that council management
should:

58. Ensure that routine building condition
inspections are completed as per the
requirements of the Building Asset
Management Plan;

59. Develop an appropriate building condition
inspection schedule which outlines all
required routine  building  condition
inspections for all buildings which the
Council has direct or indirect
responsibility; and

60. Review the building condition inspection
schedule on an ongoing basis to ensure
inspections occur as per the outlined
timeframes (no longer than a 2-year
cycle).

www.hlb.com.au

Rating

Management
Response

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

Responsible Officer:

Manager
Services

Technical

Revised Timeframe:
31 October 2017

Status of Implementation

51. Agreed.
Development of
scheduled building
inspection program
will be earmarked as
a priority for the new
Building
Maintenance Officer
on commencement
of employment.

52. Scheduling of these
inspections will also
be reflected in the
new building asset
management system

and reviewed
periodically in
accordance with the
building  hierarchy
and risk.

Action 51:

Initial  building condition

and maintenance audit.
Action 52:

Scheduling of periodic
follow up inspections in the
asset management system
after purchase of the
system.

Responsibility:
Action 49-50
Asset Engineer
Timeframe:

49. May 2017 AC
Meeting

50. August 2017 AC
Meeting

Status as at Feb 2017: In
Progress

Qur review noted that:
Action 49:

An initial inspection of the
building condition was
conducted from Sept to
Nov 2016.

The results are cumrently
being consolidated and
will be presented to the
Audit Committee.

Action 50:

There is currently no
scheduling of periodic
follow up inspections.

In the new Building Asset
Management Plan (2017-
2021) that is cumently
under development, it will
establish routine building

Status as at April 2018:

Partially Completed

Our review noted:

Action 49-50:

The BAMP is currently being reviewed
and worked upon. This process will
encompass the scheduling of periodic
follow up building inspections.
Management Response:
Management Agrees.

The BAMP is being finalised. An
update on progress of the BAMP was
presented at the June Council Forum.

Revised Timeframe:
30 November 2018
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Description of Recommendation Rating Management Person Responsible

Findin Response and Planned
9 Completion Date

condition inspections and
ensure review of building

condition inspection
schedule on an ongoing
basis to ensure

inspections occurs as per
the outlined timeframes.

Management Response:

A review of the BAMP
outlining the issues with
the current BAMP and
changes revisions
required will be completed
by 30/6/2017, with a
revised BAMP provided by
October 2017, The
building inspection regime
shall be encompassed in
this document.

Responsible Officer:

Manager Technical
Services

Revised Timeframe:
31 October 2017

Status of Implementation

36. The Building Asset We recommend that council management M 53. Do not agree with a | Responsibility:
Management Plan review should: wholesale review Action 51
cycle did not allow for and amendment on fon

61. Implement a bi-annual review process

385;?22?3;:%342:‘;3th which focuses on updating any legislative a two-year cycle. hsn:rr:fg:sr Technical
in a timely manner and/or regulatory changes in the Building 54. However, can agree :
: Asset Management Plan, in addition to to an interim two- | Timeframe:
the 4-year review cycle of the Building yearly review of any
Asset Management Plan as a whole. legislative changes | 51- February 2017 AC
that can be Meeting

recognised as an

appendix to the plan. Status as at Feb 2017:

Outstanding
55. Nole: any significant
changes to
legislation which | Action 51:
affects Council's

Qur review noted that:

Status as at April 2018:
Partially Completed
Our review noted:

Action 51:

The BAMP is currently being revised
to address the observation.

Management Response:
Management Agrees.
The BAMP is being finalised.

An update on progress of the BAMP
was presented at the June Council
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Description of

Finding

Recommendation

Management
Response

building policies or

plans would be
reported separately
to Council.

56. Council is in the
process of updating
the Building Asset
Management  Plan

and will make
allowance for this.
Building Asset

Management Plan update.

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

The Building Asset
Management Plan had not
been updated. We
understand that in the
updated Building Asset
Management Plan, it will
make allowance for an
interim 2-yearly review of
legislative changes.
Significant changes to
legislation which affects
Council's building policies
or plans would be
reported separately to
Council and updated by
the effective date of the
legislation.

Management Response:

Council currently revises
its asset management
plans in 4-year cycle.
However, a review can be
conducted in 2-year cycle
which will be
encompassed in the new
asset management policy.

Responsible Officer:

Manager Technical
Services

Revised Timeframe:

Status of Implementation

Forum.

Revised Timeframe:
30 November 2018

30 September 2017
37. Inadequate investment to We recommend that council management 57. Agreed. Council is | Responsibility: Status as at April 2018:
meet identified future should: investing an annual . )
liability and a lack of follow 62. Perform a comprehensive assessment as $400k which is in Action 52:53 Partially Completed
up actions relating to part of its budget preparations to line with the current Manager Technical Our review noted:
previous gap analysis X BAMP. Services
formulate an accurate required : 53
undertaken. ; : ; ' i Action 52-53:
investment figure based on: 58. It is recognised that | Timeframe:
N d existing buildi to b more accurate Financial models are being analysed
" me‘i':ua?n ZX'S 'n? dm d '?gfs rt())i he od or investment 52. February 2017 AC to identify the investment needs to
aintained, upgraaed, relurpished o modelling is required Meeting in_the

address the renewal gap
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Description of

Finding

Recommendation

63. Develop a priority listing of works that can
be undertaken with available funds, and
plans to manage any buildings in need of
works that cannot be undertaken due to

64.

have components replaced; and

in special maintenance or capital
works programs or scheduled for
disposal

insufficient funds; and

Perform an annual review to identify if
previous investment has been adequate

and to update work priorities.

Existing assets identified for inclusion

Rating

Management
Response

based upon pending
condition audits to
determine if  this

investment is
adequate.

59. Following
completion of
detailed building
audit a rolling
program of capital
renewal and

upgrade will also be
established. This
will form the basis of
prioritising any future
investment and the
required allocations
in the budget.

Action 20:

Preparation of detailed gap
analysis.

Action 21:

Development of annual
rolling program for
buildings.

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

53. February 2017 AC
Meeting

Status as at Feb 2017:

Outstanding

Qur review noted that:
Action 52:

The Council had not
completed the detailed
gap analysis.

We understand that the
Council had met with the
consultants and noted that
the expenditure required
is 2 to 3 times higher than
the annual $5400K
investment. The Council is
reviewing and coming up

with a new investment
model.

Action 53:

The annual rolling

program of capital renewal
and upgrade had not been
established.

The priorities of work and
budget allocation will be
included in the annual
rolling program for
buildings.

Management Response:

Council recently
undertook condition
inspections of all building
and is working towards
financial modelling based
on this audit. This shall
form a part of the Building

Status of Implementation

building asset class. BAMP will also
incorporate the Asset disposal policy
to address the rising renewal demand.

Council developed a rolling program
for building assets to form part of the
annual infrastructure program in
2017/18. It will be maintained until the
new BAMP is adopted with the
financial projection.

Management Response:
Management Agrees.
BAMP is being finalised.

An update on progress of the BAMP
was presented at the June Council
Forum.

Revised Timeframe:
30 November 2018
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Description of Recommendation Rating Management

Person Responsible Status of Implementation
Findin Response and Planned
9 Completion Date

Asset Management Plan.

Responsible Officer:

Manager Technical
Services

Revised Timeframe:
30 September 2017
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TABLE B — COMPLETED / NOT APPLICABLE
ACTION ITEMS

Description of Finding

1. Inadequate
segregation of
duties in the
current
procurement
processes.

Recommendation Rating

We recommend that the Council
management should:

1. Review the current procurement
processes and establish proper
segregation of duties to prevent
conflicting roles being carried out
by the same individual (i.e.
strengthening  current  manual
processes or introduction  of
electronic systems to address
shortfalls);

2. Formally document established
processes in relevant procurement
policies and procedures; and

3. Communicate and make available
the above policies and procedures
to all staff.

www.hlb.com.au

Management Response

Agreed.

1.

Investigate Electronic
Purchasing System to address
shortfalls.

Review relevant procurement
policies to ensure relevance.

All policies and procedures are
to be made readily available
to operations staff via
electronic and paper means.

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

MA 1

Director, Corporate
Services

MA 2

Director, Corporate
Services

MA 3
Manager, Financial Services

Timeframe:

1.

November 2016 AC
Meeting
November 2016 AC
Meeting

November 2016 AC
Meeting

Status of Implementation

Completed
Our review noted:
MA1:

That the current Finance
System (Attache) was
modified to enable purchase
orders to be raised and
approved electronically in April
2018. However the
functionality has not been
deployed yet.

MA 2-3

Relevant policies and
procurement procedure has
been updated which was
communicated and made
available to staff on the
Council’s Intranet.
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Description of Finding

Recommendation

Management Response

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

Status of Implementation

2. Instances where We recommend Council management: Agreed. Responsibility: Status as at April 2018:
g:ﬂ;e:arsg; :ﬁge 4. Should reinforce the requirements to Requirement to complete purchase |MA 4 Completed
approved to initiate staff to ensure that bIanket_purchase orders at time of ordering goods Manager Finance Our review noted:
purchasing orders are not to be raised and and services, unless where :
transactions, and approved unless they fall within the approved exemptions exist, shall | Timeframe: MA 4:
s exemption categories as per the be reinforced with staff through
the purchases did Procurement Procedure team meetings. 4. November 2016 AC | That Procurement procedure
not fall within ' ) ) Meeting was updated and explicitly
exemption 4. Reinforce requirements mentions that a Purchase
categories where around  blanket  purchase order must be prepared unless
this was permitted orders. the supply is for one of the
following (exemption
categories) - utilities,
subscriptions,  leases, and
standard monthly charges. The
updated document was
communicated to staff wvia
email and made available to
them via the Intranet. Further,
key internal requirements were
also reinforced to staff via
periodic team meetings.
3. Instances where We recommend Council management: Agreed. Responsibility: Status as at April 2018:
Evﬁgh?:iigiﬁtr:r 5. Reinrf10rce rdthe best practice ; t;;)r 5. ;{ernfc:lce correct pro;:edurﬁ MA 5-6 Completed
i purchase order processing, train all the or order processing throug . . .
Ezt?er‘;a:elcg\?é%efpggw relevant staff in these practices; and training. Manager Finance Our review noted that:
the supplier. 6. Ensure that purchase orders are raised 6. Requirement to complete po |Timeframe: MA 5-6:
and approved by the appropriate at time of ordering goods | 5. November 2016 AC Key purchasing and
financial delegate for all purchases wherever possible will be re- Meeting procurement requirements
prior to receipt of services/goods enforced with staff. were reinforced to staff
6. ugg{:ger 2016 AC verbally and via email. Further,

staff are offered training where
required for further
clarification.
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Description of Finding

Recommendation

Management Response

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

Status of Implementation

4. No register for We recommend Council management: Agreed. Responsibility: Status as at April 2018:
tracking of 7. Introduce a system (i.e. logbook or 7. Develop Asset Replacement |MA 7-8 Completed
movements of small iodi K take) for th di hedul . ith
equipment (e.q. periodic stoc take) for t. € recording .SC due to a§5|_st Wi Manager Operations QOur review noted that:
hand tools. shovels and tracking of small equipment items identification of missing plant ’
gears and ! ! movements, including small equipment and equipment. Timeframe: MA 7-8:
. fi | h . .
equipment) at used for personal use at home; and 8. Implementation of recurrent, | 7. May 2017 AC meeting | A separate register has been
depot, including 8. The developed process/system should programmed inventory check established for monitoring and
small equipment incorporate a checking mechanism to of registered minor plant and | 8 August 2017 AC tracking small/minor
used by staff for ensure that assets have been returned equipment. meeting equipment.
personal use at or are appropriately accounted for
horne. ppropriately The items captured on the
register are reviewed annually
as part of the procurement
plan. Further, the private use
of the Council's equipment is
no longer permitted.
5. Minimum stock We recommend Council management: Agreed. R nsibility: Status as at April 2018:
levels had not been
‘ 9. Formally analyse past stock data to 9. Analyse past stock data to |MA9-10 Completed
established to identify the types of stock items with identify high turnover stock
facilitate the on- hiah turnovel:e and  that Uire 9 ’ Manager Operations Our review noted that:
going 9 ¥ theouah mins reqt " 10. Develop minimum stock level |_.
replenishment of ol and v MM Sac triggers. Timeframe: 1A 9-10:
materials. ! 9. November 2016 AC The minimum stock levels
10. Establish minimum stock levels for meeting were identified and established
those stock items. The minimum stock as triggers in February 2017
levels should be reviewed on a regular 10. “°"e!“‘bef 2016 AC after analysing the historical
basis to ensure they remain relevant meeting inventory data.
6. Credit card We recommend Council management: Agreed. R nsibility: Status as at April 2018:
gz?ssgsﬁ :;?:ﬁaﬂgt 11. Formally  document credit card 11. Finance  department  to |MA11-12 Completed
dacumented processes to address the shortcomings develop documented M A 0 . ted that:
procedures. highlighted under the "Observation” procedure  for  utilisation, anager Finance ur review noted that:
' column; and reporting and approval of | Timeframe: MA 11-12:
12. Communicate the procedures to staff credit cards. 11. December 2016 A new Credit Card policy and
and ensure they are made available 12. Procedures and policy to be accompanying procedures

for staff to access

disseminated to all relevant
staff.

12. November 2016 AC
meeting

have been developed by the
Council and the documents
were communicated and made
available to staff in November

www.hlb.com.au

Item 9.2- Attachment 3

Page 153



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

28 AUGUST 2018

Description of Finding

7. Inadequate
segregation of
duties in the
current
procurement
processes

Recommendation

We recommend that the Council
management should:

13.

. Formally

Review the current procurement
processes and establish  proper
segregation of duties to prevent
conflicting roles being carried out by
the same individual (i.e. strengthening
current manual processes  or
introduction of electronic systems to
address shortfalls);

document established
processes in relevant procurement
policies and procedures; and

. Communicate and make available the

above policies and procedures to all
staff.

Management Response

Agreed.

13. Investigate Electronic
Purchasing System to address
shortfalls.

14, Review relevant procurement
policies to ensure relevance.

15. All policies and procedures are
to be made readily available
to operations staff via
electronic and paper means.

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

MA 13

Director, Corporate
Services

MA 14

Director, Corporate
Services

MA 15
Manager, Financial Services
Timeframe:

13. November 2016 AC
Meeting

14. November 2016 AC
Meeting

15. November 2016 AC
Meeting

Status of Implementation

2016 via email with the
documents also being made
available on the intranet.

Completed

Our review noted:

MA 13:

That the current Finance
System (Attache) was
modified to enable purchase
orders to be raised and
approved electronically in April
2018.

MA 14-15

Relevant policies and
procurement procedure has
been updated which was
communicated and made
available to staff on the
Council’s Intranet.

8. Instances where
purchase orders were
not raised in line with
Council's Purchase Order
filling and matching
Procedures

We recommend that the Council
management should:

16.

17.

Reinforce  required  practice  for
purchase orders as per Council's
Procurement policies and procedures,
and train all relevant staff in these
practices; and

Ensure that purchase orders are raised
and approved by the appropriate
financial delegate for all purchases
prior to receipt of services/goods.

Agreed.

16. Reinforce correct procedure
for order processing through
training.

17. Reinforce correct procedure
for approving orders prior to
delivery/receipt of goods

Responsibility:

MA 16-17

Manager, Financial Services

Timeframe:

16. November 2016 AC
Meeting

17. November 2016 AC
Meeting

Status as at April 2018:

Completed

Our review noted:

MA 16:

Key purchasing and
procurement requirements

were reinforced to staff
verbally and via email. Further,
staff are offered training where
required for further
clarification.
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Description of Finding

Recommendation

Management Response

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

Status of Implementation

MA17:

An email was also sent to the
staff reinforcing the correct
procedures  for  approving
orders prior to delivery/receipt
of goods.

9. Instances where the
compliant supplier check
was not performed
before placing purchase
orders

We recommend that the Council
management should:

18. Reinforce the protocol of checking the

19.

Compliant Supplier Database before a
purchase order is approved by relevant
delegate; and

Ensure that audit trails relating to the
Compliant Supplier Database are
created and maintained. Examples of
processes could include: printing of the
“Audit Form Suppliers” and attaching
with purchase order; or note the Public
Liability ID/Professional Indemnity ID
[/WorkCover ID/License ID and its
expiry date on the Purchase Order and
date of checking performed as
evidence.

Agreed.
18. Review the relevant
procedures relating to

19.

purchasing and compliant
supplier confirmation and that
all staff that have a purchasing
delegation have access to the
database.

Investigate a new finance
system that would automate a
supplier to be inactive when
they become non-compliant
and therefore would only
enable staff to use compliant
suppliers.

Responsibility:

MA 18

Manager, Financial Services
MA 19

Director, Corporate
Services

Timeframe:
18. December 2016
19. December 2017

Status as at April 2018:
Completed

Our review noted that:
MA 18:

The Procurement procedure
was reviewed and all staff with
purchasing delegation
authorities were advised of this
procedure which was also
placed on the Council intranet.

MA 19:

The finance system module
(Attache) has been updated to
pick up inactive suppliers.
Further, management also
instructed staff about
compliant suppliers and how to
identify and distinguish
between compliant and non-
compliant suppliers. This was
also included in the
Procurement procedure which
has been made available to all
staff,
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Description of Finding

10. Instances where credit
card statements were
not reviewed and
approved in a timely
manner.

Further, credit card
processes were not
guided by formally
documented procedures

Recommendation

We recommend that the Council
management should:

20.

21.

22.

Re-inforce to relevant staff the need to
review and approve credit card
statements in a timely manner;

Formally  document credit card
processes to address the shortcomings
highlighted under the "Observation”
column; and

Communicate the newly formalised
procedures to staff, and ensure they
are made easily accessible

Management Response

Agreed.

20.

21.

22,

Reinforce with relevant staff
the need to review and
approve credit card
statements in  a timely
manner,

Develop documented
procedure  for  utilisation,
reporting and approval of
credit cards.

Procedures and policy to be
disseminated to all relevant
staff.

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

Responsibility:
MA 20-22

Manager, Financial Services

Timeframe:
20. December 2016
21. December 2016

22. November 2016 AC
meeting

Status of Implementation

Status as at April 2018:
Completed

Our review noted:

MA 20-22:

That staff have been reminded
of the requirement to ensure
that credit card statements ae
reviewed and approved in a
timely manner.

A new Credit Card policy and
accompanying procedures
have been developed by the
Council and were
communicated and made
available to staff on the
intranet.
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Description of Finding

11. Maintenance of the
vendor masterfile can be
improved.

12. A Complaints Handling
Policy and accompanying
procedures did not exist
within the Council. Our
enquiries with
management noted that
there had not been any
complaints lodged
against the Council or its
staff relating to privacy
and personal
information.

Recommendation

We recommend Council management:

23.

24.

25.

Implement adequate processes and
undertake a review of the current
vendor masterfile to address the audit
findings and ensure that details
captured in the vendor masterfile are
valid, complete and up-to-date;

Ensure that the specific verification
requirements (e.g. ABN /ACN check)
and mandatory fields for creating new
vendors are documented in related
finance procedures as a means of
reducing potential duplicated entries
and capturing required vendor details;
and

Implement a process for ongoing
periodic review/data cleansing of the
vendor masterfile and ensure this
process be formally documented

We recommend that the Council
management should:

26.

Develop a formal Complaints Handling
Policy and accompanying procedures.
The documents should incorporate (but
not limited to) the following:

= Objectives;
= Scope;

= Guidelines on what constitutes a
complaint;

= Responsible Officers;

= Procedures over how complaints
can be made (i.e. online forms,

Management Response

Agreed.
Action 23:

Review of masterfile suppliers and
archive any old and inactive listings
that have no transactions attached.

Action 24:

Review relevant procedures and
communicate to relevant staff.

Action 25:

Review of masterfile suppliers and
delete any old and inactive listings
that have no transactions attached
and ensure that task is added as a
yearly action to Advent Manager to
occur when each new financial
year is created.

Agreed.

26. Develop Complaints Handling
Framework, including policy
and procedure.

27. Obtain approvals for
Framework including policy
and procedures.

28. Communicate Framework
including policy and procedure

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

Responsibility:
Action 23-25

Manager, Financial Services
Timeframe:

23. December 2016

24. December 2016

25. June 2017

Responsibility:

Manager Financial Services
Timeframe:

26. August 2017

27. August 2017

28. August 2017

Status of Implementation

Status as at April 2018:
Completed

Our review noted:

Action 23-25:

That an external consultant
(Brighter Business) had been
engaged and performed a
cleansing exercise of the
vendor masterfile to archive
old and inactive suppliers.

The relevant procedures had
been updated, communicated
to staff and uploaded onto the
Intranet.

The requirement to perform an
annual review of the vendor
masterful had been added to
Advent Manager to ensure
such a process occurs
periodically.

Status as at April 2018:
Completed

Our review noted that:
MA 26-28:

A new Complaints Handling
Framework was developed
and approved by the Council
in  November 2017. The
documents were made
available on the intranet and
communicated to staff.

www.hlb.com.au

Item 9.2- Attachment 3

Page 157



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 28 AUGUST 2018

Description of Finding Recommendation Rating Management Response Person Responsible Status of Implementation
and Planned

Completion Date

telephone, in person etc.);

= Information required to be
provided by person lodging the
complaint;

= Procedures for recording of
information with respect to
complaints (i.e. maintenance of
complaints register);

= The lead time for addressing
complaints;

= Complaints assessments
procedures;

»  Procedures and/or flowchart
surrounding when complaints
should be escalated to different
stakeholders (e.g. managers,
Protected Disclosure Coordinator
8 CEO etc.);

= Reporting to senior management,
other departments and/or Audit
Committee on a periodic basis;

25. Obtain the appropriate approvals for
the Complaints Handling Policy and
accompanying procedures; and

26. Communicate and make available the
above documents to staff.

13. Ensure complaint See Key Finding No. 12 above. M See Key Finding No. 12 above. See Key Finding No. 12 See Key Finding No. 12 above.
handling procedures above.
have been developed
and communicated to all
staff.

41
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Description of Finding

Recommendation

Management Response

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

Status of Implementation

14. New employees were not

formally inducted to
address the need to
maintain and protect

personal information and
the relevant privacy
requirements.  Further,
refresher privacy related
training for existing staff
had not been conducted
in the last 3 years.

We recommend that the Council
management should:

27.

28,

Incorporate privacy related training
within the induction process for new
employees. The training should include
(but not be limited to):

= Overview of PDPA requirements
and IPP obligations;

= Overview of Council's Privacy
Policy and accompanying
procedures; and

= Individual's responsibilities

relating to collection, processing,
storage, security, use, disclosure

and disposal of personal
information.
Provide refresher training and

awareness programs on a consistent
and periodic basis to staff on privacy
related matters through various
means, which may include (but not
limited to) posters, regular email
updates, updates through newsletters,
structured workshops, completion of
the free online privacy training module
provided by the Office of the
Commissioner surrounding the PDPA
etc. The training should also highlight
new changes to the relevant
Acts/legislations (if any).

Agreed.

29. Amend induction process to
ensure privacy training is
included.

30. Include privacy refresher
training in the corporate

learning calendar to enable
staff to complete a refresher

every three years.

31. Add

Manager regarding

reminder to Advent
annual

communications to staff on

privacy related matters

Responsibility:
MA 29-30

Manager Organisation
Development

MA 31

Director Corporate Services
Timeframe:

27. May 2017

28. May 2017

29. May 2017

Status as at April 2018:

Completed

Our review noted that:

MA 29-30:

The Council has purchased an
Eleaming  module  which

incorporates organisation-wide
induction and also covers off
on privacy training. In
November 2017, the online
induction was officially rolled
out.

Privacy refresher training has
also been incorporated in the
learning calendar and
reminder was set in Advent
Manager regarding
communications to  staff
members.
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Description of Finding

15.

Absence of organisation-
wide formal training and
awareness programs
delivered to staff with
respect to privacy
related matters in the
past 3 years.

Recommendation

See Key Finding No. 14 above.

Management Response

See Key Finding No. 14 above.

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

See Key Finding No. 14
above.

Status of Implementation

See Key Finding No. 14 above.

16.

Does the Privacy Contact
Officer develop the
agency's awareness of
the need for privacy of
personal information and
how is this co-ordinated
with the induction and
ongoing training?

See Key Finding No. 14 above.

See Key Finding No. 14 above.

See Key Finding No. 14
above.

See Key Finding No. 14 above.

17.

Ensure training is
provided for new staff to
ensure they understand
their duties and
responsibilities in terms
of the PDPA (e.g. on the
job training, seminars,
self-study)

See Key Finding No. 14 above.

See Key Finding No. 14 above.

See Key Finding No. 14
above.

See Key Finding No. 14 above.

18.

Ensure existing staff are
provided with regular
training to ensure they
remain up to date with
Privacy issues,
particularly for legislative
changes and guidelines
issued by the Privacy
Commissioner

See Key Finding No. 14 above.

See Key Finding No. 14 above.

See Key Finding No. 14
above.

See Key Finding No. 14 above.
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Description of Finding

Recommendation

Rating

Management Response

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

Status of Implementation

19. The requirement to sign-
off against a
confidentiality
agreement was not
extended across all
existing Council
departments and new
staff, to raise staff's
awareness and re-
enforce expectations.

20. The salary oncost rate
calculation was not
updated.

We recommend that the Council
management should:

29. Develop procedures to ensure that all
existing Council staff and new Council
staff are required to sign-off against a

confidentiality agreement. The
confidentiality = agreement  should
include (but not be limited to) the
following:

= Relevant  Act/legislation  that

Council staff needs to comply
with;

= Staff to maintain the privacy,

confidentiality and security of
personal information they come
into contact or have access to
and shall not divulge any such
confidential information to any
person or entity not expressly
authorised by the Council; and

Failure to comply may result in
disciplinary action or prosecution
by the law.

We recommend that Council’s management

should:

30. Review the

salary oncost rate

calculations to ensure that they are
updated and justifiable; and

31, Institute a process to review the
salary oncost calculations once every
2 to 3 years, or when there is a
significant change in the components,
to ensure that the percentage applied
is up-to-date and justifiable.

www.hlb.com.au

Partially Agree.

32. Revise existing procedure
regarding annual review of
Position Description  which
includes a privacy clause to
ensure privacy clause is up to
date and procedures for
signing is on an annual basis.

33. Develop a  confidentiality
agreement for new Council
staff to sign and ensure it is
included in new starter packs
as a requirement to be signed

Agreed.

34. Undertake a salary oncost rate
calculation review based on
the 2017/18 Adopted Budget
salaries and oncost charges.

35. Formulate a calculation spread
sheet to be used as part of the
yearly budget process to
ensure that the oncost rate is
correct for the next finandial
year and each year has a

Responsibility:
MA 32-33

Manager Organisation
Development

Timeframe:
32 May 2017
33 May 2017

Responsibility:
MA 34-35

Manager, Financial
Services

Timeframe:
34. 31 August 2017
35. 30 September 2017

Status as at April 2018:
Completed

Our review noted that:
MA 32-33:

All Position Descriptions ("PD")
have a Privacy statement. The
PD's are agreed and reviewed
every year during the
performance review process
and the employee signs to
indicate they agree.

Further, a  confidentiality
agreement is a standard
inclusion in  new starter
induction. A checklist is placed
in each staff file to check that
the confidentiality agreement
is signed prior to the
finalisation of paperwork for
new starters.

Status as at April 2018:
Completed

Our review noted that:

MA 34:

The council has undertaken an
Oncost rate calculation based
on the 2017/18 budget. The
percentage remains close to
54% since the splits have
altered significantly.
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Description of Finding

Recommendation

21. The budget development
and management
process was centralised
at Finance; and

The individual
departments within the
Council did not have
visibility of their financial
performances

We recommend that Council’s management
should:

32.

33.

Review the budget development and
management process to ensure that
individual departments take ownership
of their own budget where possible;
and

Reassign relevant costs/revenues by
department whenever possible so that
individual departments can have full
visibility of their costs as compared to
revenues and determine exactly if

there is a surplus/deficit on
projects/services and the
department’s overall financial
performance.

www.hlb.com.au

Rating

Management Response

consistent approach.

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

Status of Implementation

MA 35:

The calculation spreadsheet
was formulated to be used as
part of the yearly budget. The
Manager (Financial Services)
will review this procedure for
any necessary amendments no

later than 1 vyear after
adoption of this current
version,
Agreed. Responsibility: Status as at April 2018:
36. Engage an external consultant | MA 36-37 Completed
to undertake and develop an . X
action plan on the current | Manager, Financial CLR reniest noted that:
financial Services MA 36-37:

37.

reporting practice.
This to include the current
cost centre structures, system
accessibility, performance
expectations, department
knowledge and capacity along
with professional development
and/or training requirements.

Develop an implementation
plan around the results
gathered from the actions in
recommendation four.

Timeframe:
36. 31 December 2017
37. 28 February 2018

The council had engaged an
external consultant to perform
a review on the current
financial reporting practice. An
implementation  plan  was
developed as a result.
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Description of Finding

Recommendation

Management Response

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

Status of Implementation

22. Procedure documents,
which detail the
tendering and contract
management processes
on how to achieve
Council’s Procurement
Policy requirements,
have not been
established.

We recommend Council management:

34.

35

36.

37.

Establish procedure documents, which
detail the tendering and contract
management required to comply with

Council’s Procurement Policy
requirements;
Develop checklists, forms and

templates to guide the implementation
of procedures;

Obtain adequate approvals and
endorsements from relevant
stakeholders before implementation;
and

Review procedures on a regular basis
(i.e. annually or biennially) to ensure
they remain relevant, meet the needs
of users, and address any emerging
issues that arise.

www.hlb.com.au

Agreed.

38. A

39

40.

Contract ~ Management
Framework will be developed
and implemented for all
Council areas that manage
contracts. The framework will
take into account the nature
and size of different projects
to determine the complexity of
the required documentation
and reporting requirements.

The framework will
incorporate formal policies,
procedures and  relevant
checklists to govern the
management of contracts.

Publication, relevant training
and review of the framework
will follow Council's Strategic
Document, Policy and
Procedure Framework.

Responsibility:

MA 38-40

Director, Operations
Timeframe:

February 2016 AC Meeting

Status as at Feb 2017:
Qutstanding

QOur review noted that:

The Contract Management
Manual has not been
implemented.

We understand from the
Project Management
Coordinator ~ that  the
development  of  new
checklists, forms  and
workflows has commenced
and existing templates are
being reviewed, as project
contract management
process gaps are
identified.

Management
Response:

A brief has been prepared
to obtain external
assistance which is
required to progress the
establishment of a Project
Management Framework
which will incorporate a

Status as at April 2018:
Completed

Our review noted:

MA 38-40:

The Council developed a
Project Management
Framework in April 2018 that
includes policies and

procedures, and incorporates
contract management. The
Framework and key documents
were subsequently
communicated and made
available to staff.
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Description of Finding

Recommendation

Rating

Management Response

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

register, Contract
Management Framework,
Procurement Policy and
procedures.

R nsibl icer:
Director Operations
Revised Timeframe:
30 June 2017

Status of Implementation

23. Key activities (including
managing conflict of
interest during tender
assessment stage,
contract mobilisation,
KPIs and performance
management, contract
closure review, and
regular reporting of
contract information)
that reflect good
contract management
practices under the MAV
Procurement — Contract
Management Guidelines
are not currently
performed by Council.

We recommend Council management:

38. Consider introducing activities as
highlighted under Observation in its
procedure documents, which detail the
tendering and contract management
processes that are vyet to be
established.

Agreed.
41. The

proposed Contract
Management Framework (ref.
Action 1) to be developed by
Council will address the items
listed in this recommendation.

Responsibility:
Director, Operations
Timeframe:

41. February 2016 AC
Meeting

Status as at Feb 2017:
Outstanding

Our review noted that:

The Contract Management
Manual has not been
implemented.

We understand from the
Project Management
Coordinator that the key
activities that reflect good
contract management
practices under the MAV
Procurement - Contract
Management — Guidelines,
and the Victorian Local
Government Best Practice
Procurement  Guidelines

Status as at
Completed
MA41:

ril 2018:

See status of action against

No.21 above.
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Description of Finding

Recommendation

Rating

Management Response

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

Status of Implementation

will be incorporated into
the new Contract
Management Manual

Meanwhile, the hardcopy
Conflict of Interest
Declaration &
Confidentiality Agreement
is completed during tender
assessment stage.

Management
Response:

A brief has been prepared
to obtain external
assistance which is
required to progress the
establishment of a Project
Management  Framework
which will incorporate a
register, Contract
Management Framework,
Procurement Policy and
procedures.

Responsible Officer:
Director Operations
Revised Timeframe:
30 June 2017
24. In 2 of the 13 (or 15%) We recommend Council management: M Agreed. Responsibility: Status as at April 2018:
samples tested, tender ] . ) )
opening procedures by 2 39. Ragforce thg requnremept th;t the y 42, The proposed Contract | Director, Operations Completed
officers were not ltjen €r opening proclesg 'i Fe Same Maﬁagement Framework (ref. Timeframe: Our review noted:
performed. Y an opening panel of at leas Action 1) to be developed by
persons; and Council will address minimum | 42. February 2016 AC Action 42-43:
40. Ensure this requirement is reflected in requirements  for  opening Meeting The Council has developed a
revised procedures to be developed. tenders. 43, Immediate action Project Management

43.

In the meantime, staff will be
instructed on the minimum

Status as at Feb 2017:

Framework  that  includes
contact management and
tendering procedures identified
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Description of Finding Recommendation Rating Management Response Person Responsible Status of Implementation

and Planned
Completion Date

requirements for  opening | Outstanding in the observation.
tenders. Our review noted that: The Project Management
i . . Coordinator ~ oversees  the
Action 38: .
Action 42: tender opening procedure to
Framework to be developed. The Contract Management | ensure that a minimum of two
Action 39: Manual has not been staff members are present
implemented. during tender opening
Verbal advice. rOCesses.
We understand from the i
Project Management

Coordinator  that  the
procedure for opening and
registration of tenders will
be captured in the
Contract Management
Manual, and will vary
depending on if an eCMS
(including e-procurement
portal) is implemented,
andfor a physical tender
box remains.

However, we do
acknowledge that the
following actions had been
implemented.

Action 43:

In the interim, the Project
Management Coordinator
is available to oversee all
tender opening events to
ensure officers are guided
through  the  correct
process and probity
standards are maintained.

Management
Response:

There is no need to wait
for the Manual to be
implemented to reinforce
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Description of Finding

Recommendation

Rating

Management Response

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

Status of Implementation

the  tender opening
process requirements.

Project Management Co-
ordinator will develop a
tender submission
procedure and a tender
opening process in
accordance  with  Audit
Committee
recommendations
including minimum
requirement of two staff
including the  Project
Manager and an
independent Officer.

Responsible Officer:
Director Operations
Revised Timeframe:
30 June 2017

25. Noted arangeof 1to 4
panel members were
appointed for the
assessment of tender
responses.

We recommend Council management:

41.

42,

Develop guidelines which specifically
address the required membership of
assessment panels (e.g. number of
members, and competencies); and

Ensure these

appropriately
enforced.

requirements  are
communicated  and

Agreed.

44,

45.

The proposed Contract
Management Framework (ref.
Action 1/1) to be developed
by Council will address
minimum  requirements  for
evaluation panels.

In the meantime, staff will be
instructed on the minimum

Responsibility:
Director, Operations
Timeframe:

44. February 2016 AC
Meeting

45. Immediate action

Status as at April 2018:
Completed

Our review noted:

Action 44-45:

The Council has developed a
Project Management
Framework  that includes
contract management and
guidelines pertaining to the

www.hib.com.au
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Description of Finding Recommendation

Management Response

requirements  for
panels.

Action 40:
Framework to be developed.
Action 41:

Verbal advice to be given to staff

evaluation

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

Status as at Feb 2017:
Outstanding

Action 44: Partially
Completed

Our review noted that:
Action 45:

The Contract Management
Manual has not been
implemented.

We understand from the
Project Management
Coordinator  that  the
structure of the Contract
Management Manual will
include a tender evaluation
section, incorporating the
appointment of evaluation
panels, the responsibilities
of panel members, and all

associated compliance
controls.

However, we
acknowledged the

following actions had been
implemented:

In the interim, the Project
Management Coordinator
is available to provide
verbal advice to ensure
officers are guided through
the correct process and
probity standards are
maintained.

Management
Response:

Project Management Co-
ordinator will develop a

Status of Implementation

establishment of appropriate

evaluation
documents
were communicated and made
available to staff.

during
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Description of Finding

Recommendation

Management Response

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

Status of Implementation

tender submission
procedure and a tender
opening process in accord

Verbal advice to be given to staff.

with  Audit Committee
recommendations
including minimum
requirement of two staff
including the  Project
Manager and an
independent Officer.
R nsibl icer:
Director Operations
Revised Timeframe:
30 June 2017
26. In1of the 13 (or 8%) | We recommend Council management: 46. The  proposed  Contract | Responsibility: Status as at April 2018:
samples tested, the - . Management Framework (ref. | ,
purchase decision was 43, Prorhll;::ll: ::jhe‘Chatng?j of_ purchasmg . Action 1/1) to be developed Director, Operations Completed
not performed in me uring tendering process; an by Council will address the |Tim me: Our review noted:
accordance with the pre- | 44. Incorporate the above requirement in requirement to undertake the .
determined tender the procedure documents in order to whole  tendering  process 46. :‘IebrtL;:ry 2016 AC lon 46-47;
assessment criteria in ensure the integrity of Council’s regardless of price. eeting The Council has developed a
the RFT document procurement process in all instances. 47. Immediate action Project Management
because some tender 47. In the meantime, staff will be Framework  that  include
responses were below instructed on the minimum . | contract management
the set threshold of requirements assessing ﬁ?,ﬂ;.asc?nfe:’ I20I17. including guidelines regarding
$200,000. tenders. Y P the RFT  (Request for
Our review noted that: Tendering) process.
Action 42: A
Action 46: Staff members have been
Framework to be developed. instructed about the
The Contract Management
Action 43: Manual has not been procuremest process and key

implemented.

We understand from the
Project Management
Coordinator that a
simplified variation
approval form and
associated procedure  will

documents have been made
available on the intranet.

www.hlb.com.au
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Description of Finding Recommendation Rating Management Response

Person Responsible
and Planned
Completion Date

Status of Implementation

be incorporated in the
Contract Management
Manual. Effective
regulation of this process
will be available via the
implementation of an
eCMS (including reporting

f

requirements 0
responsible officers).

However, we
acknowledged the

following actions had been
implemented:

Action 47:

In the interim, the Project
Management Coordinator
is available to provide
verbal advice to ensure
officers are guided through
the correct process and
probity standards are
maintained.

Management
R nse:

Project Management Co-
ordinator will develop a
procurement  procedure
process in accordance with
Audit Committee
recommendations to
ensure probity standards
are maintained.

R nsible Officer:
Director Operations
Revised Timeframe:
30 June 2017

www.hib.com.au
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Description of Finding Recommendation Rating Management Response Person Responsible Status of Implementation
and Planned

Completion Date

27. We observed poor We recommend Council management: M 48. -I\I-:Ihe Pml:":ed C‘I’("t(ri? Responsibility: Status as at April 2018:
recordkeeping during our ; ) anagement Framework (ref. ]
detailed testing where 45, sgirrr]l;or:r:]i ntsr;seneedr J;; r;ffectl::e ;ﬂg Action 1/1) to be developed Action 48-49 Completed
ncil — will i i i :
documents (both practices with relevant staff members; b\{ ‘ Counc : addﬂ??& Director, Operations Our review noted:
electronic and hardcopy) minimum  requirements  in Action 50 Action 48-50:
were not stored and 46, Introduce a contract management relation to records |¢HON Aclion 99750
labelled prope_:rly, and checklist to guide good contract management for contracts. Manager Information The Council has developed a
some evidentiary administration across the organisation i Project Management
documents could not be and to ensure each step of the 49, Council intends to purchase a | Iimeframe: Framework that includes
located due to staff contract management process has new  electronic  content | 48, February 2016 AC contract management and
leaving the organisation. been completed and evidenced; and management system this year, Meeting addresses  the  minimum
I d it is believed that this will ) . requirements with respect to
47. Conduct a per\odlc self-assessment or an 3 49, Immediate action
peer review on a sample of contract also  help with  records records management.
files to assess the performance of management compliance. 50. November 2015 AC Further, the project managers
contract managers in relation to record Meeting check the relevant data which

50. In the meantime, staff will be

keeping. instructed on the minimum | Status as at Feb 2017: 'fi:'ggrrl]vﬁ;zgsgy the Director
requirements for  records | Partially Completed P o
management of contracts. Our review noted that: The Council utilises the
’ Infovision system which stores
Action 44: Action 48: all electronic information and
documentation, including
Framework to be developed. -hl-;g?w Ceﬁntrggts M?'Bet]ge?:gr: contract related documents.
Action 45: anu
implemented.
Verbal advice to be given to staff. We understand from the
Action 46: Project Management

Coordinator  that  the
updated record (electronic
and physical) management
process going forward
would be captured in the
Contract Management
Manual, and enforce the
recordkeeping  activities
prescribed in the current
Records Management
Policy. Procedural
checklists ~ will  enable
auditing for compliance.

Purchase and install ECMS.

Additionally, to encourage

www.hlb.com.au
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Description of Finding Recommendation Rating Management Response

Person Responsible
and Planned

Completion Date

Status of Implementation

a more compliant system,
it is suggested that
instances of non-
compliance by responsible
officers (relating to this
risk action, and others)
could be reported, and
reviewed as part of the
annual staff development
review process.

The eCMS has not been
implemented.

We understand from the
Project Management
Coordinator  that  once
implemented, the eCMS
will assist in regulating this
process.

However, we do
acknowledge that the
following actions had been
implemented:

In the interim, the Project
Management Coordinator
is available to provide
verbal advice to ensure
officers are guided through
the correct process and

probity standards are
maintained.

Management
Response:

A brief has been prepared
to obtain external
assistance which is
required to progress the

www.hlb.com.au
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Description of Finding Recommendation Rating Management Response

Person Responsible
and Planned

Status of Implementation

Completion Date

establishment of a Project
Management Framework
which will incorporate a
Contract Management
Framework, including
records required, checklist
and compliance  audit
procedures.

Responsible Officer:
Director Operations
Revised Timeframe:
30 June 2017

www.hlb.com.au
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APPENDIX A — BASIS AND USE OF REPORT

We are engaged by Loddon Shire Council ("the client”) to provide internal audit services and the scope of our activities is determined by management and
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the objectives and procedures agreed in the audit scope document and subject to the following limitations:

= Our procedures were designed to provide limited assurance which recognises that absolute assurance is rarely attainable, due to such factors as the use of
judgement in gathering and evaluating evidence and forming conclusions, and the use of selective testing, and because much of the evidence available for
review is persuasive rather than conclusive in nature.

= Because of the inherent limitations of any internal control structure, it is possible that errors or irregularities may occur and not be detected. Our
procedures were not designed to detect all weaknesses in control procedures as they were not performed continuously throughout a specified period and
any tests performed were on a sample basis.

= Any projection of the evaluation of the control procedures to future periods is subject to the risk that the systems may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree or compliance with them may deteriorate.

= The matters raised in this report are only those which come to our attention during the course of performing our procedures and are not necessarily a
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or improvements that might be made. We cannot, in practice, examine every activity and
procedure, nor can we be a substitute for management’s responsibility to maintain adequate controls over all levels of operations and their responsibility to
prevent and detect irregularities, including fraud. Accordingly, management should not rely on our report to identify all weaknesses that may exist in the
systems and procedures under examination, or potential instances of non-compliance that may exist.

= Recommendations for improvement should be assessed by management for their full commercial impact, before they are implemented.

= This report is not to be used by any other party for any purpose nor should any other party seek to rely on the opinions, advice or any information
contained within this report. In this regard, we recommend that parties seek their own independent advice. HLB Mann Judd disclaims all liability to any
party other than the client for which it was prepared in respect of or in consequence of anything done, or omitted to be done, by any party in reliance,
whether whole or partial, upon any information contained in this report. Any party, other than the client for which it was prepared, who chooses to rely in
any way on the contents of this report, does it so at their own risk.

The information in this report and in any related oral presentation made by HLB Mann Judd is confidential between HLB Mann Judd and the client for
which it was prepared and should not be disclosed, used or duplicated in whole or in part for any purpose except with the prior written consent of HLB
Mann Judd. An electronic copy or print of this document is an uncontrolled copy

57
www.hlb.com.au
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LODDON

SHIRE

Organisation Health Check

Loddon Shire Council

Applied Filters

Date Select: From 01 Jul 2017 To 30 Jun 2018

cammsstrategy

Print Date: 27-Jul-2018
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SCORECARD: Organisation Health Check
FROM 01-JUL-2017 TO 30-JUN-2018

Linked Items Unit Trend

Financials

Comments : N/A

LPF-F Actual cash surplus / {deficit) S *
Comments : Comment in calculated field
LPF-F Budgeted cash surplus / (deficit) S ©
Comments : Comment in calculated field

LPF-F Percentage (YTD Capital Grants Income) % 0
over (Total Revised Budget for Capital Grants
Income)

Target

207,248.00

207,248.00

0.00

Period Performance

Actual

3,551,131.00

1,785,089.00

0.00

Indicator

RED

RED

GREEN

Comments : Current Revised Budget $5,714,914 following announcement of Grants Commission 50% prepayment for 2018/19 by 30

June 2018.

LPF-F YTD Capital expenditure vs revised 5 *
budget

Comments : 56% complete, 100% year passed.

LPF-F Working capital ratio % ¥
Comments : Higher cash on hand with no borrowings.

LPF-F Rates debtors % ¥

Comments : Better collection rates than 2017

15,075,531.00

300.00

100.00

8,381,624.00

740.18

87.16

RED

GREEN

RED
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LPF-F Labour budget comparison % 0 1.04 0.97 |
GREEN

Comments : Within required threshold

Customer Service

Comments : N/A

LPF-CS Average 54941200 calls incoming per # * 70.00 70.05 [Ce0]
day GREEN

Comments : Slightly lower calls than the prior rolling 12 month average of 75 calls per day through reception and slightly lower than last
months average.

LPF-CS Percentage 5494 1200 incoming calls % » 80.00 97.29 (Cee]
answered versus on hold/call waiting GREEN

Comments : At 97.29% of calls answered, this is again an even better result, and replaces last months previous best since the
restructure. We have continued to ensure this is maintained well above the 90% mark on an ongoing basis through appropriate
resourcing at front counter.

LPF-CS Average duration (seconds) of # * 85.00 73.99 [T ee)
54941200 calls GREEN

Comments : Average Call duration was 74 seconds for the Month of June, better than our target of 85 secs and lower than last months
average. With lower calls duration, we also saw reduced abandonment rates and higher percentage call answer rates.

LPF-CS Average time (seconds) waiting for # » 25.00 14.00 [Cee]
answered calls GREEN

Comments : We saw average time waiting for answer reduce slightly from 15 seconds last month to 14 seconds this month as we were
fully resourced for most of the month at front reception and there have been reduced call volumes than in past months.

Internal Business Processes

Comments : N/A

LPF-I IT Backups % o 100.00 100.00 o
GREEN

Comments : All backups completed successfully for the month of June.
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LPF-1 1T Helpdesk Tickets Logged # » 40.00 39.00 [ ee]
GREEN

Comments : We saw less items raised again this month, but these items are adding up as the IT Officer continues to work on other
priorities..

LPF-1 IT Helpdesk Tickets Resolved # A 20.00 9.00 aoam

RED
Comments : Priority requests continue to be resolved quickly, but WIP continues to increase. Michael's focus has been on the roll out of
the new phone system meaning day to day BAU is suffering. The recruitment of the additional IT Officer will help a great deal with this
issue.

LPF-I Number of system outages during # IS 0.00 0.00 [T ee)
business hours GREEN

Comments : No outages during business hours in June 2018

LPF-I Legislative Obligations (Advent) # * 5.00 13.00 om
Outstanding at the end of month RED

Comments : 1 - Governance, Finance and Trade Practices - ViclLG
PART 4 - COUNCIL ADMINISTRATION

DIVISION 1 - THE MAYOR AND OTHER COUNCILLORS

Section 74 Councillor and Mayoral Allowances

PART 4 - COUNCIL ADMINISTRATION
DIVISION 2 PROCEDURE AND PROCEEDINGS
Council must maintain an Internet website

PART 9 - SPECIFIC POWERS, FUNCTIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
DIVISION 1 - GENERAL PROVISIONS
Procurement Policy

PART 9 - SPECIFIC POWERS, FUNCTIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
DIVISION 3 - BEST VALUE PRINCIPLES
Section 208D Quality and cost standards

2 - Animal and Pest Control - Victoria
PART 5A: DOMESTIC ANIMAL MANAGEMENT PLANS
Councils to prepare domestic animal management plans

PART 4: REGULATION OF DOMESTIC ANIMAL BUSINESSES AND RELATED MATTERS
DIVISION 3 - REFUSAL TO REGISTER OR SUSPENSION OR REVOCATION OF REGISTRATION
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Revocation or suspension of registration of animal shelter or pound by Minister

3 - Information and Privacy - Victoria
PART Il: PUBLICATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION
Publication of information concerning functions etc. of agencies

4 - Health and Human Services - Victoria
PART 7 - BIRTH NOTIFICATION
Section 43 Early notification of births

5 - Human Resources - Victoria
REPORTS
Annual report by public bodies that are not investigating entities

6 - Infrastructure and Essential Services - Victoria

ROAD MANAGEMENT PLANS

The making of a road management plan is voluntary

A road authority may develop and publish a road management plan in accordance with this Division.
ROAD MANAGEMENT PLANS

Availability of road management plan

PART 4 - RESPONSIBILITIES OF MUNICIPAL COUNCILS
Section 20 Municipal emergency management plan

PART 4 - RESPONSIBILITIES OF MUNICIPAL COUNCILS
Section 21A Audit of municipal emergency management plans

LPF-I Infovision Overdues # A 100.00 25.00 [T ee]
GREEN

Comments : The InfoVision overdues are again at the lowest rate they have been all year - a fantastic result. It appears there has been
significant focus in all areas on clearing the aged items.

LPF-I Customer Request (Merit) Overdues # ¥ 20.00 19.00 [Fee]
GREEN
Comments : overdue tasks are a managable number

LPF-I Strategic documents overdue % PR 0.00 31.69 oam
RED
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Comments : 141 policies and strategies filtered in register of 364 records; 49 overdue with filter applied to due date up to 31 May

LPF-1 Reported concerns regarding privacy ft =
Comments : None known
LPF- Number of privacy breaches # PN
Comments : None known
LPF-I Losses of personal privacy data #t =

Comments : None known

LPF-I Percentage of staff completing privacy % ¥
training

Comments : Work is continuing on promoting the need to complete privacy training.

LPF-I High-Very High Risks Outstanding # PN
Comments : All the High risks have been reassessed which only leave 1 high risk

LPF-I Number of high risk audit actions % <~
outstanding

Comments : 5 High risk actions outstanding

FNO2 30.2. No formal review process in place to ensure that the project costing prepared by individual departments was reasonable and

justifiable.

FN0O2-01 30.2.1 Develop and implement a process for Finance to review the project costing methodology, together with the relevant

departmental manager, to ensure that the costing is reasonable and justifiable.

30.2.2 Develop and implement process for finance to review the project costing methodology, together with the relevant

departmental manager, to ensure that the costing is reasonable and justifiable.

FN13 Review of Succession Planning and Workforce Development FN13-01 We recommend Council management:

1. Assess the need to establish a workforce strategy;
2. Appoint a responsible officer and required management support;

3. Establish a workforce strategy, which should address the shortcomings highlighted under Observation.

0.00

0.00

0.00

80.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

1.00

5.00

@
GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

RED

RED

RED
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4. Obtain adequate approval before implementing and executing of such workforce strategy;

5. Monitor the progress of action plans to determine what activities have been completed and those still to be implemented in terms of

achieving desired organisational goals; and

6. Evaluate and adjust the workforce strategy regularly to ensure information remains current and is reviewed in light of any

developments that may affect staffing issues in the organisation

FN14 Review of Building Management Services A comprehensive centralised and accurate register of public buildings was not

maintained.

FN15 Review of Building Management Services (March 2016): There was an absence of routine building condition inspections

undertaken.

Culture

Comments : N/A

LPF-C Number staff with excess leave balances #
{annual leave)

Comments : Target is zero.
LPF-C Number staff with excess leave balances #
(flexi leave)

Comments : Target is zero.

LPF-C Number staff with leave plans in place #

Comments : Actual should be equal to the number of staff with excess leave.

LPF-C Percentage of sick leave hours taken over %
the period compared to total hours worked

Comments : 929.16 hours taken, 20951.50 hours worked
within tolerance level of 5%

LPF-C Number of Workcover claims for the ft
period

Comments : No claims in June.

+»

4+

0.00

0.00

0.00

5.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN
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LPF-C Number of WorkCover claims claiming # A 0.00 0.00 mn
weekly payments GREEN

Comments : Target is zero.

LPF-C Workcover Statistical Claims Estimate $ PN 0.00 769,404.00 xrm
RED

Comments : THE SCE has dropped by $158,981 for the month. Target is a declining trend.

LPF-C Number of terminations for the month # * 0.00 2 [T o0
GREEN

Comments : Tolerance is 5% to 20% representing sector range.
2 staff falls within this range.

LPF-C Lost Time Injury (days) # & 0.00 0.00 [T ee]
GREEN

Comments : Target is zero.
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The entire contents of this document are subject to copyright with all rights reserved. All copyrightable text and graphics, the selection, arrangement and presentation of all information and the
overall design of the document are the sole and exclusive property of CAMMS. Copyright © 2017 CAMMS. All rights reserved
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Local Government

Delivering local
government
services

2018-19

Local government
assets: Asset
management

and compliance

2018-19

Annual Plan 2018-19

Obijective To determine whether councils effectively plan for and deliver
cost-efficient services that meet community needs.

Issues Under the Local Government Act 1989 councils prepare a council plan,
strategic resource plan and budget, which provide strategic context for their
service delivery.

Councils provide a wide range of statutory and other services including
environment, health, emergency management, community and family services,
infrastructure and planning. Decisions about which services to provide, how to
provide them and how to fund them are made in various ways, such as through
formal council decisions and service planning undertaken by council staff.

In 2015, the Victorian Government introduced the Fair Go Rates System (FGRS),
which establishes caps that limit councils’ ability to determine increases in rates
and municipal charges each year, constraining this source of revenue growth.
Under FGRS, councils need to ensure they continue to deliver services in a
financially sustainable way while still meeting community need. Our 2011 audit
report Business Planning for Major Capital Works and Recurrent Services in Local
Government found little evidence that most councils appropriately review their
services to inform their spending decisions.

This audit will examine the extent to which councils understand their
community’s service needs and know the full cost of delivering these services.
We will also assess how effectively councils review the services they offer and
the methods they use to ensure these services meet community needs in a
sustainable way.

We will also undertake a detailed analysis of corporate services, as the firstin a
series of audits that will examine service efficiency. As all councils have common
corporate services, this area is particularly well suited to comparative
benchmarking.

Proposed agencies Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning
(DELWP), Bayside City Council, Indigo Shire Council, Moira Shire Council, City of
Wodonga and Wyndham City Council.

Objective To determine whether local councils accurately document
infrastructure assets in their information systems and use this data in their asset
management and planning.

Issues At 30 June 2017, the 79 Victorian councils controlled $91.2 billion of
fixed assets including land, roads, buildings, drains, footpaths and bridges. Our
previous audits of councils’ asset management practices over the past 15 years
have identified persistent weaknesses in their asset management. Councils
require accurate asset information to comply with state and federal disaster
response programs—if their asset management programs are noncompliant,
they risk being unable to access funding.

Victorian Auditor-General’s Office
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Outcomes of
investing in
regional Victoria

2018-19

Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

In the event of a disaster, Natural Disaster Financial Assistance (NDFA) for local
councils provides assistance in the recovery process in accordance with
Commonwealth-State Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements
(NDRRA). The Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF) has a role in
administering NDFA.

This audit will help councils to identify possible areas for improvement and/or
better practice in the way they capture accurate information about their assets
and use this information to inform their asset planning and management.

Proposed agencies DTF, DELWF, Colac Otway Shire, Nillumbik Shire Council, City
of Boroondara, Hindmarsh Shire Council and Mildura Rural City Council.

Objective To determine whether investment in regional Victoria, administered
by Regional Development Victoria (RDV), has improved outcomes for regional
economic development.

Issues RDV is the Victorian Government’s lead agency in developing rural

and regional Victoria. Over the past decade, RDV has administered more than
$1 billion of funding through various funding programs including the Provincial
Victoria Growth Fund (PVGF), Regional Growth Fund (RGG) and the Regional
Jobs and Infrastructure Fund (RJIF).

Initiated in 2015, RIIF is the Victorian Government’s most recent overarching
regional development package. The fund aims to create jobs, improve
productivity and attract more people and businesses to regional areas. RDV
—a statutory agency within the Department of Economic Development, Jobs,
Transport and Resources (DEDJTR)—administers the $500 million fund and
distributes grants to regional and rural local councils, government agencies,
not-for-profits, community groups and businesses.

Prior to RIIF, the Victorian Government implemented other investment funds.
Our 2015 audit report Regional Growth Fund: Outcomes and Learnings found
that the government could not demonstrate that its previous regional
development fund was achieving its objectives or value for money. We made
recommendations about evaluation, application processes and governance to
help guide the implementation of RJIF. We made similar recommendations in
our 2012 audit report Management of the Provincial Victoria Growth Fund.

This audit will examine whether RDV has acted on these recommendations and
whether there are adequate governance and accountability mechanisms in
place to ensure appropriate use of RIIF. The audit will also assess the regional
outcomes achieved by the three different funds over the last 10 years.

Proposed agencies City of Greater Geelong, Surf Coast Shire, Warrnambool City
Council, Latrobe City Council, Loddon Shire Council and RDV within DEDJTR.

Annual Plan 2018-19
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Reporting on
local government
performance

2018-19

Delivering local
government
services:
Council libraries

2019-20

Annual Plan 2018-19

Objective To determine the relevance, appropriateness and fair representation
of key local government performance measures and the extent to which the
Local Government Performance Reporting Framework (LGPRF) drives council
performance and improvement.

Issues The Local Government Act 1989 makes councils accountable to their local
communities for the way they perform their functions, exercise their powers
and use their resources.

The LGPRF, managed by Local Government Victoria (LGV), intends to promote
consistent and transparent performance measurement. The LGPRF includes
83 measures that cover service performance, financial management and
sustainability, with council performance results presented on the Know Your
Council website.

This audit will review LGV, within DELWP, and councils’ progress in improving the
way they measure and report performance and use this information to drive
improvements.

Proposed agencies DELWP, Moonee Valley City Council, City of Casey, Horsham
Rural City Council, Baw Baw Shire Council and Borough of Queenscliffe.

Objective To determine whether local councils achieve value for money from
their library services.

Issues In satisfaction surveys, residents consistently rate public libraries as one
of best-performing areas of local government. However, the cost of delivering
library services and the type of service varies between council areas.

Public library services are located in all 79 Victorian local government areas—
41 councils operate their own library services, and 10 regional library
corporations manage services across a number of municipalities.

Since 2012, successive reviews have sought to identify ways to make Victoria’s
library services more efficient, with a particular focus on potential cost savings
through increased coordination between libraries, new technologies and the
expansion of shared services.

This audit will examine how councils have responded to these reviews and
assess whether councils” library services are achieving value for money.

Proposed agencies DELWP and a selection of local councils and library
corporations.

Victorian Auditor-General’s Office
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Supporting
communities
through developer
and infrastructure
contributions

2019-20

Delivering local
government
services: Waste
management
services

2020-21

Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

Objective To determine whether development and infrastructure contributions
provide required infrastructure to new and growing communities as intended.

Issues Between 2015 and 2031, Victoria's population is projected to grow by
1.8 million people to 7.7 million. Accommodating this population growth
requires significant planning and development. It also requires councils to
develop essential infrastructure to support the health, wellbeing, and social
and economic participation of these growing communities.

Development and infrastructure contributions have been an important part of
the Victorian planning system since the 1990s. In June 2015, the Planning and
Environment Amendment (Infrastructure Contribution) Act 2015 replaced the
existing system of development contributions, to remove the complexity and
difficulty in administering the current system.

The Victorian Government currently operates two contribution schemes—
development and infrastructure—that help to fund essential works and services
for new communities, such as roads, parks, local sports grounds and community
facilities. Land developers provide contributions in cash or in kind to councils to
help fund essential works and services for new communities including roads,
parks and sporting facilities. Developer contributions generally apply to new
developments, to support the infrastructure needs of future communities.
Infrastructure contributions are a new scheme, introduced in 2016 and
reviewed in 2018—they currently only apply to greenfield growth areas and
strategic developments within existing urban areas.

The current development contribution schemes only apply to certain areas in
Victoria, leaving many local government areas without formal programs to
obtain funds for necessary infrastructure as they develop and grow.

This audit will examine how effectively the development and infrastructure
contribution schemes support the creation of essential infrastructure to support
new and growing communities. The audit will also examine the role of current
programs of areas not covered by existing planning regimes.

Proposed agencies DELWP, State Revenue Office, Victorian Planning Authority,
Melton City Council, Cardinia Shire Council and Golden Plains Shire.

Objective To determine whether councils’ waste management services are
achieving value for money.

Issues In 2015-16, Victorian councils spent over $700 million on the delivery
of waste management services. These services include kerbside household,
recycling and green waste collections, hard rubbish collections, and the
operation of landfill and resource recovery centres. Local councils own and/or
operate 254 landfills and transfer stations—201 of which are located in rural
communities.

Annual Plan 2018-19
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Implementing
Plan Melbourne
2017-50

2020-21

Annual Plan 2018-19

In addition to local councils, there are seven region-based waste and resource
recovery groups established under the Environment Protection Act 1970, which
support councils’ waste management activities. The groups undertake a range
of duties, including planning for the provision of waste and resource recovery
infrastructure, and managing joint procurement and waste management
contracts.

With the introduction of the FGRS in 2016, there is increased attention on the
financial sustainability of councils and the efficiency of local government service
delivery. However, waste charges are not subject to rate capping and make a
considerable contribution to councils’ revenue. In 2015-16, councils’ recurrent
revenue for waste management was over $200 million, and 90 per cent of this
came from user fees.

China's trade restrictions which came into effect in January 2018 are also
starting to impact how local government manages waste.

This audit will examine whether local councils and waste and resource recovery
groups are ensuring that waste management services deliver value for money
for ratepayers.

Proposed agencies DELWP, Sustainability Victoria, Environment Protection
Authority (EPA) and a selection of local councils, and waste and resource
recovery groups.

Objective To determine whether actions to implement Plan Melbourne 2017-50
are sustained and coordinated at a statewide, regional and local level.

Issues Melbourne is the fastest growing city in Australia. The city's population
is projected to grow from 4.6 million to almost 8 million—with Victoria’s total
population set to top 10 million—by 2051. This growth, in combination with
a changing climate and increased globalisation and congestion, is testing the
resilience of Melbourne’s built and natural environment.

Plan Melbourne 2017-50 is the government’s overarching policy for
responding to this challenge. The plan is accompanied by a separate five-year
Implementation Plan. The Implementation Plan outlines the necessary actions
to realise Plan Melbourne 2017-50's outcomes and allocates these actions to
government departments and agencies. DELWP will oversee the
Implementation Plan.

Implementing Plan Melbourne 2017-50 will require coordinated action by
all levels of government, the private sector and the community. As the plan
does not sit with a central agency, it is not clear how DELWP will lead the
implementation of the plan across agency lines, including ensuring other
agencies accept responsibility and resource their allocated actions.

This audit will examine whether a sound and integrated governance framework
underpins the implementation of this major statewide plan.

Proposed agencies DELWP and a selection of local councils.

Victorian Auditor-General’s Office
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Local government
assets: Maintaining
local roads

2020-21

Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

Objective To determine whether local councils are achieving value for money in
maintaining local roads.

Issues Victoria's 79 councils are responsible for the care and management of
local roads under the Local Government Act 1989. Their specific obligations are
set out in the Road Management Act 2004.

Across the state, there are 130 501 kilometres of local roads and 5 970 bridges.
Local roads include both sealed and unsealed—unformed, formed or gravel—
roads, and they account for approximately 85 per cent of the state's total road
network. In 2016-17, councils have budgeted 25 per cent of their capital works
expenditure on roads and bridges.

The introduction of rate capping and the Commonwealth’s indexation freeze on
its financial assistance grants have created challenges for local government,
which may impact councils” ability to effectively manage local roads and meet
their asset renewal obligations. Small rural councils, in particular, are facing an
increasing risk that they may not be able to replace or build new assets as
required due to their smaller number of ratepayers and lengthy road network.

This audit will examine whether councils are identifying efficiencies, managing
costs appropriately and assessing how they can maintain their road networks in
a financially sustainable way.

Proposed agencies DELWF, VicRoads and a selection of local councils.

Annual Plan 2018-19
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9.3 REVIEW OF PROCUREMENT POLICY

File Number: 18/01/001

Author: Deanne Caserta, Manager Financial Services
Authoriser: Sharon Morrison, Director Corporate Services
Attachments: 1. Procurement Policy v8
RECOMMENDATION

That Council adopts the Procurement Policy v8.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There is no conflict of interest for any Council staff member involved in the preparation of this
report, or involved in the subject matter of the report.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION
Council adopted version 7 of the Procurement Policy at the August 2017 Council Meeting.

BACKGROUND

It is a requirement of Section 186A (7) of the Local Government Act 1989 that “at least once in
each financial year, a Council must review the current procurement policy and may, in accordance
with this section, amend the procurement policy”.

ISSUES/DISCUSSION

The current version of the policy was adopted on 22 August 2017, and is due for review 22 August
2018 according to our policy review date.

The Procurement Policy addresses the important aspects of procurement including:
consistency in procurement activities

complying with legal obligations

obtaining value for money

supporting local and environmental sustainability
managing procurement risks

incorporating continuous improvement processes.

Council staff have reviewed the policy and are proposing to make no changes at this stage.

However over the next 12 months, this policy is expected to receive significant attention to include
the recommended changes from the procurement service delivery review along with potential
changes from the review of the Local Government Act.

This project will be undertaken by an experienced procurement staff member who is expected to
be recruited within the next two months.

COST/BENEFITS

There are no direct costs associated with adoption of the policy.
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RISK ANALYSIS

As one of the policy statements is that Loddon Shire Council will manage procurement risks when
purchasing goods, services and works, application of the policy, along with supporting procedures
and other supporting documents, should help to minimise risks.

CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

The document has been subject to many discussions at Management Executive Group and once
the new procurement staff member has been recruited by Loddon, this policy will be reviewed in
full. Normally Council would be provided with the policy at a Council Forum prior to presentation for
adoption; however, as there are no changes the process has been streamlined to remove this step.
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Standard documentation for tendering and contract
management
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Staff and Contractor's Code of Conduct

Conflict of Interest — A Guide for Councillors
Conflict of Interest — A Guide for Council Staff
Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy

S186A of the Local Government Act 1989
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printed copy being the current version. Please consult the Loddon Shire website to
ensure that the version you are using is up to date.
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1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance on the procurement function of the Loddon Shire
Council to help achieve objectives detailed in the Council Plan.

2 SCOPE

This policy applies to all procurement and contracting activities of the Loddon Shire Council, and is
binding upon Councillors and staff, and contractors and consultants while engaged by the Loddon
Shire Council.

The policy has been prepared under Section 186A of the Local Government Act 1989 (Act), which
requires Council to prepare, approve, and comply with a Procurement Policy. For the purpose of
the Act, the Procurement Policy includes principles, processes and procedures that will apply to all
purchases of goods, services, and works by Council.

3 POLICY

When purchasing goods, services, and works Loddon Shire Council will:
Be consistent in procurement activities

Comply with legal obligations

Ensure ethical and fair behaviour

Obtain value for money

Support local sustainability

Support environmental sustainability

Manage procurement risks

Incorporate continuous improvement processes.

—

PNoOORGN

3.1 Be consistent in procurement practices
Council will provide internal control mechanisms that ensure consistency in procurement activities.

Internal control resources available include:
« a Level of Authority document that provides authorisation levels for officers to undertake a
range of procurement functions
« astandard document for tendering and contract management
* Procurement Workflows that guide officers through the entire procurement process, and set
requirements for obtaining quotations and tendering for goods, services, and works.

3.2 Comply with legal obligations

Council will comply with all legal obligations. Specific obligations in the Act include:

Section 186: Restriction on power to enter into contracts

Council will comply with Section 186 of the Act which outlines the requirements for competitive

tendering when purchasing goods, services, or works over the legislated value. An Order in
Council sets the thresholds periodically; the thresholds as set on 5 August 2008’ are:

« $150,000 for contracts for goods or services; and
« $200,000 for contracts for the carrying out of works

Page 2 of 5
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Section 208A: Best Value Principles to be followed
Council will comply with Section 208A of the Act which outlines Best Value Principles. They are:

(a) Quality and standards of services

(b) Services to be responsive to the needs of the community

(c) Services to be accessible to members of the community

(d) Continuous improvement in the provision of services

(e) Regular consultation with the community in relation to services
(f) Regular reporting on achievements relating to the principles.

3.3 Ensure ethical and fair behaviour

Council will undertake procurement activities ethically and transparently, and in a manner able to
withstand the closest possible scrutiny.

Resources and mechanisms available to support ethical behaviour and avoid conflicts of interest
include:

« Staff and Contractor's Code of Conduct
Conflict of Interest — A Guide for Councillors
Conflict of Interest — A Guide for Council Staff
Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy
Council’'s internal audit function, which will be used periodically to assess accountability and
transparency, check Council's internal controls and compliance with Council’s policies and
procedures, and make recommendations for improvement.

3.4 Obtain value for money
Council will undertake procurement activities on the basis of obtaining value for money.

Value for money includes minimising the cost of ownership over the life of goods, services, or
works, while considering quality, reliability, availability, and delivery considerations.

Council accepts that lowest price does not also constitute the best value for money.

Mechanism to support value for money include:

« Ministerial approval for councils to access to Whole of Victorian Government Contracts and
State Purchase Contracts®

« availability of joint tendering through purchasing groups such as MAV Procurement and
Procurement Australia and other councils in the region

« availability of shared services with councils and other providers in the region

* Procurement Workflows that guide officers through the entire procurement process, and set
requirements for obtaining quotations and tendering for goods, services, and works

3.5 Support local sustainability

Council is committed to supporting local sustainability, and will purchase goods and services from
local businesses where purchases can be justified on a value for money basis, and provide local
economic benefit. .

The application of local content will consider Best Value Principles of the Act and National
Competition Policy Principles.
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3.6 Support environmental sustainability

Council is committed to adopting an environmentally friendly procurement approach of supporting
the principles of sustainable procurement within the context of purchasing on a value for money
basis.

3.7 Manage procurement risk

Council will manage the many risks associated with the procurement of goods, services, and
works.

Mechanisms available include:
e Council's Supplier Management Database which assesses risks associated with supplier
groups and outlines the requirements for those groups
« Council's standard tendering documentation which requires information about tenderers’
occupational health and safety, insurance and indemnity, plant and equipment,
subcontracting and assignment intentions, and termination clauses.

3.8 Incorporate continuous improvement processes
Council is committed to continually improving procurement activities.

Mechanisms available include:
« Council representation on regional procurement networks
» access to the Local Government Procurement e-hub for resources and advice
e Council's Supplier Management Database:
« Which provides spend analyses on individual suppliers and supplier groups that can
be used to identify tendering opportunities
« Which holds all suppliers on Council's financial management system; analysis of
this information can be used to limit the number of suppliers and reduce
administration costs.

4 DEFINITIONS OF TERMS OR ABBREVIATIONS USED

Act Local Government Act 1989
Council Plan Council Plan 2010-2014
Value for money Value for money refers to selecting goods, services, and

works taking into account all factors, including:

« Cost factors: whole of life costing (cost of
acquiring, using, holding, maintaining, and
disposing of the goods, services, and works)

* Quality, fitness for purpose, service, and support
Contribution to achieving Council's objectives

5 HUMAN RIGHTS STATEMENT

It is considered that this policy does not impact negatively on any rights identified in the Charter of
Human Rights Act (Vic). Loddon Shire Council is committed to consultation and cooperation
between management and employees. The Council will formally involve elected employee Health
and Safety Representatives in any workplace change that may affect the health and safety of any
of its employees.
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6 REVIEW

The Director Corporate Services will review the policy for any necessary amendments no later than
1 year after adoption of this current version.

7 ATTACHMENTS
Nil
8 REFERENCES

' Local Government Procurement Best Practice Guideline, Department of Planning and
Community Development, August 2008
2 Letter to councils from Local Government Victoria, 8 September 2009
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9.4 FINANCE REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 JULY 2018

File Number: 08/06/001

Author: Deanne Caserta, Manager Financial Services
Authoriser: Sharon Morrison, Director Corporate Services
Attachments: 1. Finance Report for Period Ending 31 July 2018
RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. receives and notes the ‘Finance report for the period ending 31 July 2018’
2.  approves budget revisions included in the report for internal reporting purposes only.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There is no conflict of interest for any Council staff member involved in the preparation of this
report, or involved in the subject matter of the report.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION

Council is provided with Finance Reports on a monthly basis with the exception of when changes
to the Council meeting timetable result in the Council meeting occurring before the completion of
the end of month finance procedures.

BACKGROUND

The Finance Report for the period ended 31 July 2018 includes standard monthly information
about budget variations, cash, investments, interest, debtors and creditors, and provides a
comparison of year-to-date actual results to year-to-date budget (by dollars and percentage) and
total revised budget (by percentage).

The information is in the format provided in the adopted 2018/19 Budget, and includes operating
results, capital expenditure and funding sources.

The report this month does not provide explanation on budget timing variances as this timing work
has not been completed for 2018/19. This will occur during August 2018.

ISSUES/DISCUSSION

Budgeted Surplus - Council’s budgeted cash surplus has increased by $1.52M to $1.66M due to
an increase in the expected carry forward amount from 2017/18.

Income Statement (revenue) - Council’s year to date (YTD) operating revenue is at 496% of YTD
budget. Revenue brought to account for July was $11.02M. This includes rates of $10.51M.

Income Statement (expenditure) - Council’'s operating expenditure is at 114% of YTD budget.
Payments for this month totalled just over $2.9M.

Capital Works - The revised budget for capital works is $16.9M and is 2% complete in financial
terms for the current financial year.

Balance Sheet - Council has a cash total of $19.6M with $2.6M in general accounts. Debtors are
$11.69M which is an increase of $11.38M in the month primarily due to the raising of 2018/19
rates. Sundry debtors total $0.41M with invoices outstanding for 60 or more days relating to
community wellbeing debtors and local community groups totalling approximately $77K.
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COST/BENEFITS

The benefit to Council and the community is that accurate and regular financial reporting is being
disclosed, along with an accurate representation of property valuations being reflected in Council’s
rating system and the distribution of rate notices for the year 2018/19.

Provision of financial reports on at least a quarterly basis is a requirement of the Local Government
Act.

RISK ANALYSIS

The provision of regular and accurate finance reports to Council minimises the risk of Council not
delivering projects within the approved budget. Council’s risk exposure is also increased if the
rating system does not reflect the valuation changes associated with supplementary valuations as
Council will not be aware of the changes, which can alter the rate revenue in the current year and
in future rating years.

CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

There has been considerable consultation internally with respective managers in understanding
their budget responsibilities and keeping within budgetary constraints.

Consultation with ratepayers and authorities that act on behalf of ratepayers occurs when a change
to a property is required or occurs by virtue of a sale.

External engagement with the community was undertaken during the submission period of the
budget, and regular reporting provides a mechanism of monitoring the financial outcomes of
Council against that expectation.
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Figures in this report include the adopted 2018/19 Original Budget and the adjusted 2018/19
Revised Budget.

Initial budget revisions have been undertaken during the month to commence reversing
amounts out of various reserves and back into the current financial reporting year. Approved
2018/19 capital works projects have also had budgets allocated. Further works are required
to reverse further funds out of the remaining reserves.

From 16 to 20 July, Council's external auditors, Crowe Horwath, visited the Wedderburn
Office to undertake their audit process in order to finalise the 2017/18 financial statements.
At the time of preparing this report the statements were close but had not yet been signed
off. Council has received a draft management letter and management is working on a
response.

The budget figures within this report have not had any timing adjustment, currently the
expenditure and income is set as monthly. For this reason there will be no variance reporting
on the YTD budget versus actual. These timing adjustments will commence in August once
meetings with Responsible Officers are undertaken and variance reporting will be included in
the next finance report.

1.1 Budget revisions

There has been a large amount of budget variations undertaken during July. These are
mainly to bring carry over project amounts out of reserve and back into the financial system.

These revisions are summarised below:

July Finance

Item Original Budget Report Change $
Operating revenue $25,391,787 $26,657,315 $1,265,528
Operating expenditure ($30,115,830) ($31,613,646) ($1,497,816)
Transfers from reserves $7,401,594 $12,525,591 $5,123,997
Transfers to reserves ($2,151,749) ($2,351,749) ($200,000)
Other funding decisions $379,427 $579,427 $200,000
Capital expenditure (511,755,835) (516,903,449) (85,147,614)
Other non cash adjustments $9,200,989 $9,200,989 $0
Accumulated surplus carried forward $1,785,085 $3,561,131 $1,776,046
Closing surplus (deficit) as

reported in Appendix 2 $135,468 $1,655,609 $1,520,141

For the purpose of this report the variations will not be reported by expenditure/income item
but rather by the particular group of movements undertaken.

1.1.1  Accumulated surplus carried forward

The Original Budget expected a carried forward surplus of $1,785,085 to be included in the
opening balance for 2018/19 financial year.

The actual carried forward surplus was $3,561,131 which is an additional $1,776,046 and an
increase in available surplus for the 2018/19 financial year.
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1.1.2 Capital expenditure reserve

At the end of the 2017/18 financial year an actual amount of $3.5M was carried over via
Capital Expenditure Reserve. This amount has now been returned in full to the various
related projects.

1.1.3 Unspent grants reserve

At the end of the 2017/18 financial year an actual amount of $7.7M was carried over via the
Unspent Grants Reserve. This amount has now been returned in full to the various related
projects.

1.1.4 Community planning reserve

At the end of the 2017/18 financial year an actual amount of $503K was carried over via the
Community Planning Reserve. This amount has now been returned in full to the various
related projects.

1.1.5 Urban drainage reserve

At the end of the 2017/18 financial year uncompleted projects worth $350K were carried over
via the Urban Drainage Reserve. This amount has now been returned in full to the various
related projects.

1.2 Cash surplus / deficit year to date

The current cash surplus is $8.6M. This is mainly due to the raising of $10.5M in rates during
July.

Due to no adjustments in timing being undertaken, there will be no reporting on major
variances, but there will be reporting on the actual results.

2.1 Operating revenue
Total revenue brought to account for the month of July was $11M.
Revenue TYD is at 496% compared to YTD budget.

2.1.1 Interest income

Interest received and accrued on investments and rates for the month of July 2018 was
$43K.

The total investment interest received and accrued to date is $42K, and rates interest
amounted to $1K. Year to date represents 11% of the year revised budget amount of $375K
($347K for investments only).
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Progressive interest from investments for the years 2014/15 to 2018/19 are:
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The appendices of this report include a table that shows all investments for the financial year
to date for 2018/19. All investments are term deposits and are currently with National
Australia Bank, the Bendigo Bank, Bank of Melbourne and the ME Bank. Due to the short
term nature of the term deposits, those deposits which have not reached maturity are
included as cash in the Balance Sheet. Interest realised, and interest accrued on non-
matured deposits, are shown separately on the appendix.

2.2 Operating expenditure
Total operating expenditure for July was $2.9M.
Expenditure YTD is at 114% compared to YTD budget.

2.2.1 Payments
During the month the following payments were made:

Creditor payments - cheque $30,340.78
Creditor payments - electronic funds transfer $2,357,249.81
Payroll (2 pays) $593,191.70
TOTAL $2,980,782.29

2.3 Operating surplus
The operating surplus to date is $8.12M.
2.4 Capital expenditure
Total capital works expenditure for July was $318K.
The total revised budget for the 2018/19 capital works program is $16.9M.

The total capital works expenditure is 2% complete in financial terms.
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3 STANDARD BALANCE SHEET
3.1 Cash

At the end of the month, Council's overall cash total was $19.6M which includes a balance of
$2.6M in general accounts.

Month end balances for Council's cash, from July 2015 until the current month, are reflected
in the graph that follows:
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3.2 Receivables

3.21 Debtors
Monthly balances of the various categories of debtors for the financial year are:

Category of debtor July 2017 April 2018 May 2018 June 2018 July 2018
Rates $ 195,006 | $ 921,947 | $ 403472 | $ 258,208 | $ 10,534,777
Fire Services Property Levy $ 35213 [ % 135,395 [ § 68543 | % 49,038 |$ 1,153,547
Total Rates & Fire Services

Property Levy $ 230219 8§ 1057342 1% 4720151 8% 307,246 | $§ 11,688,324
Sundry debtors $ 596,102 | $ 405,602 | § 632,652 | $ 568,813 | $ 408,175
Community loans/advances $ 5800 | $ 5,800 | § 5800 |$ 5572 | $ 3,600
Long term loans/advances $ 160,000 | $ 80,000 | 80,000 | $ 78,570 | $ 80,000
Employee superannuation $ - $ 5500 | $ 2,660 | $ - $ 7.625
Magistrates court fines $ 101,663 | § 100,703 | $ 100,319 | $ 100,319 | § 100,319
LESS provision for doubtful debts | $ (110,620)| $ (92,370)| (92,370)| $ (112,950)| $ (112,950)
Total $ 983,165 | § 1,562,577 [$ 1,201,075 | $ 947,569 | $ 12,175,092
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3.2.2 Rates debtors
Outstanding rates and the Fire Services Property Levy at the end of selected months were:

July 2017 April 2018 May 2018 June 2018 July 2018

(1/8/2017) (3/05/2018) (4/06/2018) (4/07/2018) (3/08/2018)
2008/07 $ 600 | $ 261 (8 261 | § 265 | § 266
2007/08 $ 734 1% 410 | $ 410 | $ 417 [ 8 418
2008/09 $ 766 | $ 428 (3 428 | § 435 (8 437
200910 § 1976 | $ 1,687 | § 1683 | $ 1699 | § 1,700
201011 § 6,068 | $ 3,105 | § 3,008 | $ 3119 | § 3,123
2011112 H 10,045 | § 6,014 | § 5303 | $ 5335 |% 5,345
2012113 $ 11,808 | $ 7,061 % 6,253 | $ 6,242 [ $ 6,152
2013114 $ 14,880 | $ 8,010 | § 7017 | $ 6,997 [ $ 6,747
2013/14 Fire Services Property Levy $ 3465 | % 1,949 | § 1823 1% 1,763 | § 1,708
201415 § 31362 | % 19519 | § 18,129 | § 17,986 | § 18,098
2014/15 Fire Services Property Levy | § 5373 |% 3521 |% 3221 | % 3125 | § 3,026
201516 H 64,557 | § 30,884 | § 29,290 | $ 30,147 | § 29,815
2015/16 Fire Services Property Levy | § 9,136 | § 5123 | % 4840 | § 4839 |§ 4,738
201617 $ 69,750 | $ 73600 | § 70,589 | § 66,601 | $ 64,177
2016/17 Fire Sevices Property Levy § 26,375 | § 10,652 | § 10,023 | § 9,620 | § 9,198
201718 $ (26,674)| $ 222030 | % 261,012 B 118,965 | § 178,243
2017/18 Fire Sevices Property Levy $ - $ 20,468 | § 48,638 [$ 29601 | § 24,319
201819 $ - s - |8 - s - |8 -
2018/19 Fire Services Levy $ - - $ - - $ -
Sub-total: arrears $ 230,219 | $ 414,723 | § 472,015 | $ 307,246 | $ 357,510
Current year (outstanding but not due) | $ - 548,938 | § - - $ 10,220,257
Fire Services Property Levy § - 1% 93,681 |3 - 15 - |$ 1,110,557
Total outstanding $ 230,219 |$ 1,057,342 | § 472,015 | $ 307,246 | $§ 11,688,324
Summary
Rates in arrears ] 195006 | § 373,010 | § 403,472 | § 258,208 | § 314,520
FSPL in arrears 1] 3521318 41,713 | § 68,543 | § 49,038 | § 42,990
Total arrears $ 230,219 | § 414,723 | § 472,015 | § 307,246 | § 357,510

Rate notices were despatched on 20 July 2018, with the first instalment due on 30
September 2018.

323

Sundry debtors

Outstanding sundry debtors at the end of the month consist of:

Current

30 days

60 days

90 + days

Sub total routine debtors
Government departments
GST

Total

60 + days consists of:
Community Wellbeing debtors
Local community groups
Others

Total

$56,128 30%

$54,029

28%

$36,848 20%
$40.150 21%

$187,156 100%
$103,059

$117,961

$408,175

$58,898
$9,105
$8.996
$76,998

Total outstanding for sundry debtors as at 31 July 2018 is $0.4M.

The mainstream sundry debtors of $187K have been broken into the amount of time they
have been outstanding. At present $77K or 41% of that total has been outstanding for more
than 60 days. All debtors are contacted as a matter of routine.
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3.2.4 Supplementary valuations

All rateable and non-rateable supplementary valuations are included in this report.

No supplementary valuations were completed in July 2018, however a number of files have
been received which will be processed in August 2018.

The current balances at end of July 2018 were:

Opening Supplementary Closing
Valuation type balances changes balances
Site value $ 1,125,747,600 | $ - $ 1,125,747,600
Capital improved value | $  1,817,578,800 | $ - $ 1,817,578,800
NAV $ 93,538,448 | § - $ 93,538,448

The total rateable CIV at the end of July 2018 remains at $1.82B.

3.2.5 Water rights

As of 30 June 2018 Council owned Water Rights have a current valuation of $1,979,130.
The rights are revalued to market value at the end of each financial year; the latest valuation
was at 30 June 2018.

The majority of water was purchased to guarantee that there would be sufficient water to
maintain a tourism interest in the Boort Lake catchments, along with maintenance of the
grounds for two of the major caravan parks within the Shire.

Purchases have been progressive since June 2004 and Council now has rights to 797.30ML
(high reliability of 653.40ML and low reliability of 143.90 ML). Actual cash expenditure to
purchase the water rights was $943,963.

There have been no additional purchases in 2017/18 and no future purchases are budgeted
in 2018/19.

Storage operating costs for 2016/17 was $19,140, and YTD for 2017/18 is $16,471. Invoices
are expected to be received for 2018/19 storage operating costs during August 2018.
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APPENDIX 1: STANDARD INCOME STATEMENT

2018/19 2018/19

Original Revised

Budget Budget |YTD Budget| YTD Actual
Rates $10,723,126 | $10,723,126 $893,500 | $10,509,126
Revenue grants $5,800,114 | $5,784,159 $482,013 $293,387
Capital grants $5,491,143 | $6,860,262 $571,686 $0
Vic Roads $534,064 $534,084 $44,505 $41,079
User fees $1,734 539 | $1,734 539 $144 537 $112,079
Capital contributions $0 $2,364 $197 $0
Recurrent contributions $310,000 $310,000 $25,833 $0
Interest income $375,000 $375,000 $31,250 $42,637
* Reversal of impairment losses $0 $0 $0 $1,658
* Library equity 50 50 $0 $0
Reimbursements $333,801 $333,801 $27.817 $22,.918
Total revenue $25,391,787 | $26,657,315 | $2,221,428 | $11,022,884
Labour $10,604,210 | $10,604,210 $815,585 $584,537
Materials & services $7,956,609 | $9,286,935 §742,694 | §$1,052,814
Depreciation $9,200,989 | $9,200,989 $766,747 $766,749
Utilities $466,503 $466,503 $38,874 $33,073
Contract payments $1,581,347 | $1,748,837 $145,735 $447,288
Loan interest 50 50 50 $0
lAuditor costs $85,083 $85,083 $7,091 $0
Councillor costs $221,089 $221,089 $18,424 $17,022
Loss on sale of assets $0 $0 $0 $0
" Impairment losses 50 50 $0 $0
Bad debts expense $0 $0 $0 $0
Total expenditure $30,115,830 | $31,613,646 | $2,535,150 | $2,901,484
NET RESULT FOR THE PERIOD | ($4,724,043)] ($4,956,331)| ($313,722)| $8,121,400
The operating expenditure sh above is rep: ted in Council's key direction areas as foll

2018/19 2018/19

Original Revised

Budget Budget |YTD Budget| YTD Actual
Economic development & tourism $1,436,315 | $1,436,315 $115,659 $84,804
Leadership $1,946,465 | $1,984,250 $156,800 $422,902
Works & infrastructure $13,421,963 | $13,421,963 | $1,093651 | $1,142855
Good management $4,274,482 | $4,324,016 $347,480 $537,737
Environment $2,396,268 | $2,482,636 $205,020 $208,336
Community services & recreation $6,640,337 | $7,964 466 $616,540 $504,850
Loss on sale of assets $0 $0 $0 $0
Total operating expenditure $30,115,830 | $31,613,646 | $2,535,150 | $2,901,484
NET RESULT FOR THE PERIOD | ($4,724,043)| ($4,956,331)| ($313,722)| $8,121,400

* Income and expense items required by Australian Accounting Standards (AAS)
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APPENDIX 2: STANDARD CAPITAL WORKS STATEMENT

2017118 2017118
Original | Revised
Budget Budget |YTD Budget | YTD Actual

|Add |oan interest accrued S0 30 $0

Less loan repayments S0 $0 $0

Add transfer from reserves $7,401,594 | $12,525,591 | $1,043,795

Less transfer to reserves (52,151.749)| ($2,351,749)| ($195,979)

IAdd proceeds from sale of assels $379,427 $579.427 $48,285 $52,141
ITOTAL FUNDING DECISIONS $5,629,272 | $10,753,269 $896,101 $52,141
NET FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR CAPITAL $905,229 | $5,796,938 $582,379 | $8,173,541 | (§7,591,16
Furniture and office equipment 777,780 777,780 $64,815 $46,625
Land and buildings §3,779.670 | $5,061,791 $421,814 §27 956
Plant and equipment $1,427,213 | $1,427.213 $118,934 $161,464
Roadworks $2,735679 | $3,530,977 $292,170 $1,159
Urban and road drainage $350,000 $700,031 $58,336 $0
Recreation, leisure and community facilities $1,263,000 | $2,199,584 $183,153 $3,508
Parks, open space and streetscapes $250,000 | $1,581,580 $131,799 526,481
Footpaths $1,172.493 | $1,624.493 $135,373 850,810

ITOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE PAYMENTS | $11,755,835 | $16,903,449 | $1,406,394 $318,002

Less depreciation $9,200,989 | $9,200,989 §766,747 $766,749

{Ffd et Yo

IAdd reversal of impairment losses S0 $0 $0 ($1,658)

Less loss on sale of assets S0 $0 50

Less bad debts expense S0 30 $0 $0 |

ITOTAL NON CASH ADJUSTMENTS $9,200,989 | $9,200,989 $766,747 $765,091

lAccumnulated surplus brought forward ($1,785.085)| ($3.561.131)] (§296.760) $0 I 0
NET CASH (SURPLUS)/IDEFICIT (5135,468)| ($1,655,609)] _($239,492)| (36,620,630)
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APPENDIX 3: STANDARD BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Financial assets

Inventories

Non-current assets classified as held for sale
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and other receivables

Financial assets

Intangible assets

Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Trust funds and deposits

Provisions

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions

Interest bearing loans & borrowings
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus

Asset Revaluation Reserve
Other Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY
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APPENDIX 4: INVESTMENTS

LODDON SHIRE COUNCIL INVESTMENT SCHEDULE
Interest last Interest
Establishment Investmant | Interest | Investment yoar Intarest this Current recaived to Accrued
date Status Maturity date days rate amount (Bccrued) year Investments date Interest
[NAB 55-819-5005 (L5L) 16012018 Closad 16072018 13 264%|5  17EI3Z |8 20569 |5 1,984 5 1,964
NAB -33-755-3209 1B022018] Closad 1B07I2018] L 248%|% 2000000 |5 178025 2582 ] 2582
NAE 44-841-8766 26032018 Closed 240712018 120 262%|$ 2000000 |§ 137E2 (S 3445 3 3445
BGO 2658853 26:06:2018| Open 260712018 30| 220%|§ 1,000,000 | $ N H 1,567 5 1.567
H1:am Account BGO |t 3082018 Open  [NA 1.50%|$ 1,000,000 |§ H 1,000,000 | §
NAB 35-640-3396 12022018 Open 13082018 182] 250%) % 1000000 | § 0452 |S 3005 | S 1,000,000 (5 H 215
BGO 2588669 16042018 Open 140872018 75| 2B5%|$ 1,000,000 | $ 5445 |5 3267 |5 1,000,000 (5 § 2251
BGO 2623540 221052018 Open 21/08/2018| El 260%| % 2.000,000 | § 555 |5 T300 |S 2,000,000 (5 H 4416
NAB 64-792-7106 210052018 Open 18092018 120) 262%|$ 2000000 | § 5742 |5 11,465 | § 2,000,000 | 5 H 4,450
[Bank of Malbourne 21/06:2018| Open 200H2018| 9 270%( 5 2000000 [§ 13463 [§ 11,668 | % 2,000,000 | 3 5 4,566
EGO 2656858 2606/2018| Open 24/0H2018| a0 275%| 86 2000000 | § 149 |5 13413 |§ 2,000,000 | 5 H 48T
INAB Deal 10543763 26082018 Open 241102018 1200  zaow|$  zooooao |$ - H 18411 |% 2,000,000 | § 5 4756
EME - CNOX381T 260712018 Open 26'10v2018| az] 280%| %  2.000,000 | § -5 14115 | 2,000,000 | 5 H -
EGO (Lsl) 18072018 opan 18012019 134 278%| 5 1800000 | § H 252 1§ 1,500,000 H 4250
BGO 180712018 Open 18012018 184) 278%) § 200,002 [ 5 $ 200,032 (5 H
Iinterest on Kinder account 5 2803 [ § ] - |5 5
Interest on general bank accounts § - 15 45 3 485 -
Totals § 92403[5 1B0a3]s  1To00oaz]s 10,073 31,503
Interest earned 41,578
nterast transfarred toifrom externally funded projects -
et Interest on Investments 41,578
ational Australia Bank current investments. ] 5,000,000
H 2,000,000
5 2,000,000
L] 8,000,032
s 17,000,032
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APPENDIX 5: CAPITAL WORKS

sof

S0

S0

Original | Revised
|Account -] Bud¢ | Budg |
Eucy Museum Rd access - feasibility study $50,000 $50,000 54,167
(Caravan park improvements $1.083,000) $1,083,000 $80.250
Wedderburn Caravan Park entrance 515,000 15,000 1,250
[Caravan Park trees $15,000 15.000 1,250
|Purchase Caravan Parks s0 $778,322 564,860
Council properties fencing $5,000 $5,000 5417
[Council land and buildings sales and
purchases S0 50 50
Reseal program $603,725 $603,725 $50.118
Safety| $45,000 $45,000 $3,750
Local road construction program $1.350,000] $2.119.298 $175.056
Local road gravel resheat $380,000 $406,000 $33.561
Local road shoulder sheet program $315,000 $315,000 $25.96
Local bridges and culverts ram §950700( $1.402700 $116,892 $50.8
|Tawnsh|p sireel im provement program $221,793 $221,793 18,48
Urban drainage works program $350,000 $700,031 §$58,336 S0f
[Roads to Recovery - d $15.207 15207 $1.495 s0f
Salathiels Pit clean up 511,747 11,747 3979
Reseal Wedderbum depot 50 40,000 3,333 S0f
[Boundary i park and locality 515,000 15,000 1.250
Fleel replacement 5254 460 §254,460 $21,205 sof
[Plant replacement §1.152,753 $1,152.753 506,062 5161464 [
Minor plant and equipment - capital 320,000 $20.000 31,667 i
Building Asset Management Plan 50 $58.579 34,882
Building safety audit stage 1 S0 30 $0
BAMP allocated projects. $290,000 $310,493 $25873
BLD East Loddon Pre schoal S0 $14.750 $1.229
BLD Dingee Pre School office refurbishment S0 $1.217 5101
Server replacement $50.000 $50,000 54,167
Assetedge devices 514,280 $14.280 51,190
Photocopier / scanner $0 0

PC replacement $53,500

$53.50

Corporale IT Package

IT stra implementation

Flood mitigation warks Boort

PGC17 IW Town Hall landscape 349,980
PGC18 Boort Lake view BBQ $20,020 3
Swimming pool solar power S0 $122.841 §10.237
[PGC19 tree repl; it 530,000 30,000 2,456
Community planning strategic fund $500,000 $500,00 541,666
BCP17 Lake Boort outdoor fumiture 0 16.56 §1.
BCP Community plan capital $50,000 6287 35,24
WCP Community plan capital $50,000 $110,23: $9,186
KCP11 Bridgewater Streetscape 0 39,500 3,292
ICP13 Inglewood Eucy Museum annex 0 21,000 1,750
ICP15 Engine display Eucy Museum 0 20,000 1,667
||CP1 Sports power UG 0 54200 3350
[ICP17 Inglewood Eucy Museum annex 0 $20.000 1,667
ICP Community plan capital $50.000 $58.215 4,851
TeCP14 Pyramid Hill Caravan Park 50 $16.330 1,361
TeCP17 Pyramid Hill Hall power upgrade 50 $19.091 1,591
TeCP Community plan capital $50,000 $50,000 4 167
TaCP17 Laanecoorie boat ramp S0 $99.280 8,273
TaCP Community plan capital $50,000 581,066 $6,755
Wedderburn Community Centre 0 50 $0
LGIP Wedderburn streelscape 0 48,200 $29,017
LGIP Pyramid Hill streetscape 0 10,000 $9.167
|FRRR Bridgewater foreshore stage 2 0 43,744 528645
|Uﬁrade public toilets 50 $7,500 $62
mid Hill Community Centre §120,000 $120,000 510,00
Donaldson Park pawllion upgrad $2814,670] $3,311.232] _ $27593
Mewbridge public toilets septic replacement S0 $92,820 7,735
Livestock and domestic pound 350,000 $50.000 4 167
Ingl d Pool upgrade s0 $253,600 §21,141
@nid Hill Kelly St playground S0 $8.208 $684
Total capital ex $11,755,835) $16,003,449]  §1,406,394
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9.5 PROVISION OF REGIONAL ASBESTOS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AUDIT

SERVICES
File Number: 10/01/001
Author: Peter Sporn, Building Maintenance Officer
Authoriser: David Southcombe, Assets and Buildings Coordinator
Attachments: Nil
RECOMMENDATION
That Council

1. resolve to appoint City of Greater Bendigo as lead agent for Contract No CT000386 —
Regional Asbestos & Hazardous Materials Audit Services on behalf of Loddon Shire
Council

resolve to award the contract to Safety Systems Pty Ltd.

authorise the Chief Executive Officer to affix the common seal of the Council to related
contract documentation.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There is no conflict of interest for any Council staff member involved in the preparation of this
report, or involved in the subject matter of the report.

Tender Evaluation Panel Members have signed a Conflict of Interest Declaration and
Confidentiality Agreement.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION

There has been no discussion at Council in relation to this contract. However, joint procurement
and regional partnership has been discussed on humerous occasions.

BACKGROUND

Council approved a Business Case in 2017 for funding of $66,000 per annum for Asbestos Audits
and Removals over a 5 year period ($330,000 over 5 years).

Council agreed to participate collaboratively with a number of councils for the purpose of
advertising and receiving tender submissions for both Asbestos Audits and Asbestos Removals.
The City of Greater Bendigo acted as the lead council during the tender process.

The following Councils entered into the collaborative tender process:
e City of Greater Bendigo (Lead Council)
e Loddon Shire Council
e Ararat Rural City Council
e Buloke Shire Council
ISSUES/DISCUSSION

A Public Tender for Asbestos Audits was posted on 24 February 2018 via local newspapers and
Tenderlink.

A compulsory briefing session was held on 15 March 2018.
Eight tender responses were received, namely:

o JTA Health, Safety & Noise Specialists
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e ESP — Environmental & Safety Professionals
e Edge Group Pty Ltd
e Safety Systems Pty Ltd
e Australian Safety Services Pty Ltd
e BB Risk Solutions
e Bureau Veritas HSE
e Presna Pty Ltd
The tender evaluation panel consisted of the following representatives:
o City of Greater Bendigo — Linda McNeill, Tony Gellatly, Stephen Van Der Werf
e Ararat Rural City Council — Rebecca Rodger
¢ Loddon Shire Council — Peter Sporn
e Buloke Shire Council — Paul Fernee
e External Consultant — David Eltringham (DJE Consulting)

The tender evaluation panel deemed JTA Health, Safety & Noise Specialists’ submission as non-
conforming.

Each Panel Member individually assessed each compliant tender application and provided a score
in accordance with the Tender Document. The evaluation scoring was averaged out to provide a
single score, thus each Council shared 25% of the total score.

The final scoring for each tender is as follows:

Tender Score
Safety Systems Pty Ltd 8.20
Edge Group Pty Ltd 7.63
Presna Pty Ltd 7.52
BB Risk Solutions 6.75
ESP — Environmental & Safety Professionals 5.87
Australian Safety Services Pty Ltd 4.48
Bureau Veritas HSE 3.63

The evaluation panel interviewed the 3 highest scoring tenderers, namely:
e Safety Systems Pty Ltd
e Edge Group Pty Ltd
e Presna Pty Ltd

Although all three tenderers provided quality presentations, the evaluation panel recommend
Safety Systems Pty Ltd be appointed Contractor for City of Greater Bendigo Contract No:
CT000386 based on submission of the highest scored conforming tender and that they have
demonstrated sufficient capability and capacity to undertake the requirements of the contract.

Safety Systems Pty Ltd is based in Bendigo. They have conducted asbestos audits in the past for
three of the participating Councils, City of Greater Bendigo, Loddon Shire and Buloke Shire.

Tender pricing was based on a Percentage Differential (plus or minus) for each Council based on
City of Greater Bendigo being 100%.

Loddon Shire Council’s rate is quoted as the same as City of Greater Bendigo.

Safety Systems Pty Ltd overall score in the price comparison ranked No. 1.
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Safety Systems Pty Ltd has conducted 36 audits for Loddon Shire Council over the past 2 years.

Two urgent audits were required in 2017 (Inglewood Town Hall public toilets) and 2018 (Serpentine
Recreation reserve). Both were responded to immediately and relevant documentation was
supplied to Council within 24 hours.

They have a good understanding of Loddon Shire and our building portfolio and have established a
strong working relationship with Council officers.

Access to our Asbestos Register is currently provided by Safety Systems through an on-line portal
and this will be enhanced by introducing a QR Code system for further ease of access.

COST/BENEFITS

The tender prices were sought on a unit rate basis and Council has allocated a total of $66,000 for
the current financial year towards audit and removal of asbestos, the allocated annual budget will
be used to fund the contract. The contract is a 3 year contract with a possible 2 year extension.

The benefit of the contract is that Council will comply with its obligation to conduct an asbestos
audit and keep an up-to-date register for Council owned buildings. It will also inform Council of any
requirement to remove friable asbestos from the buildings, identified as a part of the audit.
Worksafe Victoria has raised concerns formally with Council in relation to absence of an asbestos
register in Council owned buildings. This contract will address the concerns raised by Worksafe

Victoria.
RISK ANALYSIS

Risk Identified

Likelihood of
Occurrence

Potential Impact

Mitigating Action

Safety Systems non-
ability to manage
audits for 4 Councils

Low

Audits may not be
completed within the
required time-frames

Generally audits are
not urgent.

Safety Systems
currently service 3 of
the 4 participating
Councils.

A package of buildings
will be given to Safety
Systems in Aug 2018
to be completed in this
financial year which
should provide
sufficient time for
completion.

Previous experience
with Safety Systems
has seen urgent
requests completed
within 24 hours.

Safety Systems not
developing a working
relationship with the 4
asbestos removalist
companies.

Low

Timing of air-
monitoring impacting
on the companies
completing asbestos
removal

Safety Systems have
a good working
relationship already
with 2 of the 4
companies. Previous
experience indicates
there will not be any
issues.
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CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

The following stakeholders were engaged throughout the tendering process:
¢ Individual Council Representatives. (The Panel)
e DJE Consulting

o Tenderers (during the compulsory briefing session and tendering presentations)
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9.6 MAV STATE COUNCIL MEETING

File Number: 02/04/003

Author: Lynne Habner, Manager Executive and Commercial Services
Authoriser: Phil Pinyon, Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: 1. MAYV Strategic Work Plan 2017-19

2. MAYV State Council Motion Template

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:
1.  Advise which Councillors wish to attend the MAV State Council meeting in October 2018

2. Advise any motions that it wishes to be raised at the MAV State Council.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There is no conflict of interest for any Council staff member involved in the preparation of this
report, or involved in the subject matter of the report.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION

Nil.

BACKGROUND

In May 2017 the Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV) State Council resolved on a changed
motion process that included detailing whether the subject matter of a motion is included in the
MAYV Strategic Work Plan. This requirement is incorporated in the motion template.

The intent of the changed process is to discourage the submission of motions that effectively
duplicate items in the Strategic Work Plan or that have already been adopted at a previous
meeting of State Council. Resolutions adopted at previous meetings can be accessed here on the
MAV website.

The MAV Strategic Work Plan 2017 - 19 (SWP) is attached.

ISSUES/DISCUSSION
Attendance

The next MAV State Council Meeting will be held on Friday 19 October 2018, 9.30am to 2:30pm at
the Auditorium, Sofitel Melbourne on Collins, 25 Collins Street.

If the MAV Representative or Substitute Representative is unable to attend, Council may resolve to
appoint another councillor to attend the meeting and vote by submitting a Notification of
Appointment Form to the MAV prior to the State Council meeting.

Councillors are requested to advise whether they wish to attend the State Council meeting.
Motions

MAV members may submit motions in writing for consideration by State Council.

The MAV Rules require that motions be of state-wide significance to local government.

As decisions of State Council constitute policy directions of the MAV and remain active until the
issue is resolved, motions should relate to either new, or variations to, existing policy directions.
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All motions are due to be submitted to the MAV by no later than 21 September 2018. Early
motions, received by 13 September, will be distributed to MAV representatives on 14 September
(i.e. five weeks before State Council).

Submitters may amend their motions via email no later than 28 September 2018.

The business papers for State Council will be emailed to MAV Representatives and CEOs on
Friday 5 October 2018.

COST/BENEFITS

No significant costs or benefits have been identified in association with the content of this report.

RISK ANALYSIS
There are no risks identified with the content of this report.

CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

No consultation has been undertaken in the preparation of this report.
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Implementing the
STRATEGIC WORK PLAN

2017-19
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atic status, autonomy and
it in Victoria through

| What we do Who doesit| How it is funded
POLICY & ADVOCACY
MAV advocacy represents and advances
the interests of councils; influences policy,
legislation and funding decisions; and builds
capability in councils across a range of policy
areast et MAV member
* Community Services subscriptions
* Emergency Management
* Environment
* Governance, Economics & Finance
* Planning & Building
* Public Health & Safety
» Transport & Infrastructure.
MEMBER SERVICES
MAV services help to improve the efficiency
and productivity of councils by providing
best practice policy advice, training for
council staff and councillors and cost-
.savnng collaborative opportunities in areas 13.4 staff Self-funded
including:
* Insurance (Liability Mutual, Commercial
Crime, LGE Health, MAV WorkCare)
* Procurement
* Local Government Funding Vehicle
| * Training & Events.
COMMUNICATIONS 4.7 staff MAV member
& MEDIA : subscriptions
GOVERNANCE ‘
& CORPORATE SERVICES MAV member
13.8 staff o .
Human resources, policy compliance, subscriptions
governance, and administrative support.
GRANT-FUNDED PROJECTS
MAV delivers specific projects and programs ;
to councils in areas including: Vlctortanand ‘
« Community Services 10 staff Australian
« Environment Government grants
* Planning & Building
| * Public Health & Safety
HOSTED ORGANISATIONS
* Public Libraries Victoria Network
5 part-time (TR s
« Council Alliance for a P staff Self-funded
Sustainable Built Environment (CASBE)
| * Association of Bayside Municipalities.
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STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19

OBJECTIVE 1: HELP COUNCILS ACHIEVE FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

PRIORITY TARGET METHOD MEASURE
Ongomg _Commonwealfh funFI ing secured Advocacy to Commonwealth Government Achieved?
for provision of 15 hours of kindergarten
State Government take over the funding Complete negotiations with State Achieved?
of SES, Surf Life Saving and Coastguard Government
Country roads and bridges funding is Advocacy to Commonwealth & State ;

Secure reinstated Governments, including Opposition iUt

'u:d!n?y School crossings funding model is reformed  Advocacy to the State Government Achieved?

cerrain
HACC model and funding post-2019 Advocacy and negotiation with .

. Achieved?
is agreed Commonwealth Government
FAGs indexation is reintroduced in 2017 Advocacy through ALGA Achieved?

Roadside weeds and pests funding secured  Advocacy to State Gowt, including Opposition  Achieved?

State Govt reporting costs on local Undertake comprehensive review of cost of

i 2
Reduce government is quantified State Government reporting to councils NG
red 1a.pe 20% reduction in State Govt reporting costs  Develop and implement advocacy campaign Achieved?
reporting VENERINE] informed by review data eveds
costs Rate-cap exemption process is streamlined  Advocacy to State Gowi, including Opposition  Achieved?
New funding options, palatable to councils ~ Review in partnership with ALGA and test with :
; e Achieved?
are identified members
S . WorkCover Self Insurance Scheme
Council savings achieved through . = . 2
Explore new aggregation Identify and facilitate aggregated procurement  Achieved?
funding opportunities
et cl Develop detailed understanding of impact of b
. ifti i Review cost shifting impacts on LG
savings cost shifting on LG and seek funding to g Imp Achieved?

ensure minimum level of community service Advocacy to State Gowt, including Opposition

opportunities provision in all communities

Achieve access 19 Lgndfill Levy revenue to Review the Waste Levy impacts on LG .
fund decommissioning and establishment of . . = Achieved?
landfill sites, and climate change mitigation Advocacy to State Gowt, including Opposition

OBJECTIVE 2: IMPROVE THE REPUTATION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT

PRIORITY TARGET METHOD MEASURE
Influence is increased with State and Initiate policy and legislative changes to g(nrgﬂger:eni
Commonwealth Governments Commonwealth and State Governments rm:ssPO L

Raise the Community understanding of the breadth Support initiatives that raise awareness of

profile and and value of council services has increased  councils’ role, services and performance Social media

& web
influence Communities better understand issues Monitor and communicate the impact of rate analytics
of local affecting financial sustainability of LG capping on council services
government Undertake perception of LG research and
More resources are available to help develop a MAV and member engagement Achieved?

councils meet community expectations strategy that includes a focus on improving
the reputation of the sector

Influence the YIS contemporary LG Act with increased
(KW T 2.1 0. Bl council autonomy and a contemporary MAY
MAYV Act Act that expands and clarifies the objects,

Make submissions and advocate to
government on the form, content and draft Achieved?
legislation of the Acts

reviews functions and powers of the MAV
Review and Mo e G el s Tl G s Undertake a comprehensive review of the
amend the {including State Council) is maximised governance structure of the MAY, including Achieved?
MAV Rules J the role of State Council & MAV committees
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OBJECTIVE 3: INCREASE SECTOR PRODUCTIVITY AND EFFICIENCY

PRIORITY

Improve
procurement
practices and

outcomes

Encourage
and facilitate
sharing of

services,
technology
and business
processes

Address local
government
capacity,
capability and
credibility
challenges

OBJECTIVE 4:

PRIORITY

Drive business
transformation

Address digital
access and
equity issues

Enable
innovation
parinerships

TARGET

Data analysis drives efficiencies, savings and
compliance as well as local and regional
economic development and collaboration
outcomes including shared services.

Implementation of a sector-led business
solution that enables more efficient and
effective collaboration, cooperation and
innovation through shared technology and
processes.

Councils leverage information, experiences,
business processes and innovation initiatives
of other councils, advisory groups, all levels
of government, the education sector and the
private sector.

TARGET

Facilitate opportunities to improve business
processes by providing data and training,
and by removing roadblocks.

Councils are collaborating to implement
more efficient and consistent business
process.

Data quality, standards, management and
analysis capability is increased.

Councils have access to affordable, reliable
ICT infrastructure.

Councils better understand the challenges
and opportunities of the digital era.

Local government knowledge, capability
and capacity is increased through effective
partnerships with government, business,
education and civic stakeholders.

METHOD

MEASURE

Ongoing delivery of the LEAP procurement
development program, including
participation from additional councils.

Showcase shared services opportunities.

Victorian Local Government Enablement
Platform proof-of-concept.

Development of production, governance
and resourcing model for LG Digital
Transformation Centre.

Encourage use of common data standards
and business processes.

Host forums, conferences, workshops and
training courses to improve knowledge
and skills development of councillors and
council officers.

Develop digital solutions for sharing of
information, skills and experience.

INCREASE INNOVATION AND COLLABORATION

METHOD

Procurement LEAP program.
Best practice guidelines.

Implement the recommendations of the
Local Government Digital Transformation
Task Force.

Facilitate collaboration on energy efficiency.
Encourage and support initiatives that help
councils make better use of data to inform

business decisions and influence funding
submissions.

Work with ALGA to influence ICT access
issues including high-quality, high-speed
broadband and mobile phone coverage.

Deliver and support initiatives that improve
digital maturity of councils.

Strengthen partnerships between councils
and with other levels of government.

Explore opportunities for PPPs.

Address legislative and regulatory barriers
to innovation initiatives.

Participation
in the LEAP
progrom
and tracking
of council
and regional
benefits.

Achieved?

Stakeholders
participating
in MAV
events and
programs.

Survey
outcomes.

MEASURE

Number of
improved
business
processes.

Achieved?

Number of
collaborative
data
initiatives.
Councils with
affordable
access to
critical ICT
infrastructure.

Digital
maturity
survey
outcomes.

Partnerships
established.
Barriers
removed.

MAV STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19
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PLANNING PROCESS

Addressing our objectives through consultation, strategic
planning, State Council and annual reports.

ANNUAL PLANNING PROCESS

CONSULTING WITH
OUR MEMBERS
ASSESS

The MAV's annual strategic B
work plan sets out the MAV's and available resources
work program for the year. The

issues and actions within it are

identified in consultation with CONSULT
our member councils. with our members to
determine current needs
Formal consultation MEASURE,
opportunities include CEO REPORT &
REVIEW

Forums and strategic planning

consultation sessions held .
to apphf resources to activities

il“l Bend|go, G|ppsland" of greatest value to members

Melbourne, Warracknabeal,

Benalla, Geelong and

PRIORITISE

Warrnambool. ACT

through advocacy, policy,
M'AV Siaﬂ: members CI|SO communications, projects and
have significant input into event initiatives

development of the plan. The
staff are informed by constant
interQCtion Wiih member as required to address arising issues
councils in their areas of identified through State Council
expertise, as well as by input
and advice from more than 20
expert committees established CONSULTATION s through MAV work area council

we) supporied bY the MAV networks and CEO forums.

h . : Eight strategic plonning sessions were AV identifi i
to inform major policy and ) i MAV work areas identified one key activity
Or PO conducted ot seven locations during for each objective, thus eliminating

project areas. February and March 2017. non-aligned activities from the plan.

*The Gippsland region consultation session Participonts were olso osked to consider

podheid miekioume: ond propose three or four priority activities
that would be of greatest value to members
over the next 24 months.

ADJUST

MAV consultation networks are vast and
varied. The MAY team consult with council
stoff on motters of policy ond process on
daily basis. The MAV also coordinates
This framework, which was introduced last ~ more than a hundred policy and project
year, again produced fewer ad hoc activity ~ committees, task forces, advisory

suggestions and better consensus on the committees and groups to ensure our

few activities that would be of grectest processes and policies are consultative and
benefit to members. representative of our members’ needs.
Supporting activities were identified At Boord and CEO level, our networks
through the consultation sessions, as well include elected and appointed members,

6 MAV STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19
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os well as representatives from aoll levels of
government, unions, industry, service
providers and fellow local government and
member associations.

The strength of MAV relationships is criticol
to providing the best outcomes for our
members. In order to be a strong voice for
local government, we must ensure that
short-term gains for the sector do not come
ot the expense of longer-term stokeholder
relations. The volue of this advocacy
foundation is difficult to quantify, but
fundamental to our success.

ENGAGEMENT SURVEY

Member feedback from our 2016
engagement survey was a key driver in
determining the priority issues in this plan.

PLAN FEEDBACK

The proposed Strategic Work Plon
2017-19 is distributed in draft form to all
councils via their nominated MAV
representative for further feedback.

Input from councils is colloted and
considered for inclusion in the plan
occording to olignment with the strategic
objectives, the number of councils
supporting the change, and the resources
ovailable to deliver it.

For each council submission, the MAY
provides a written ocknowledgment,
followed by an explanation of how their
submission was octioned.

STATE COUNCIL

The final droft of the Strategic Work Plan is
distributed to MAV council representatives
for the consideration of councils, two
weeks prior to State Council.

The droft plan is formally presented for the
endorsement by members at State Council.
If accepted, the droft is adopted os the
MAV work plan for the 2017-19 year.

Half-woy through the term of the plan,
State Council presents a further opportunity
for councils to submit suggested changes
to the plan. These requested changes may
be in response to an arising issue or a
change in operoting environment.

State Council resolutions are considered
for inclusion in the current work plan by the
MAV Board. Resolutions are assessed
ogainst the same criterio used for
developing the plan, as well as the impact
the requested change would have on the
delivery of the approved plan.

Note: During 2017, the MAV Rules will be
comprehensively reviewed. The review will
include examination of the role, purpose
and alignment of our strategic planning
process, State Council, Board Committees
and other MAV advisory committees.
Outcomes may offect the structure and
implementation of this plan.

MEASURING
PERFORMANCE

Each octivity included in the MAV Strategic
Work Plan 2017-19 includes a target
outcome for the year, an outline of
proposed process and nomination of
specific meosures to assess the
effectiveness of the outcome. (See box on
this page for further information)

REPORTING

The new strategic framework will result in
simpler, more meaningful reporting for our
members. The aim is to ensure thot all
MAV activities contribute to the delivery of
our strotegic objectives. Using the
measures identified for each activity, we
will assess and report on the outcomes in
our Annual Report fo members. We will
olso report on the factors influencing the
outcome.

The strengths or weaknesses of the
outcomes will inform the octivities of our
next strategic plan, demonstrating
continual assessment and review of how
the MAV provides maximum value for its
members.

REVIEW

Progressive outcomes will be presented to
our members at Stote Council.

Annual outcomes are reviewed by the MAV
Board, Executive and staff in preparation
for the development of the next strategic
work plan.

The review process seeks to:

* understond and oddress any
shortcomings in our planning and
implementation processes;

= identify opporfunities and develop
strotegies for improvement;

* review ond confirm the value of our
objectives;

* review the effectiveness of our success
measures; and

* build upon our successes.

ANNUAL
REPORTING

MAV STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19 | 7
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|

OLOGY & DIGITAL phoses of emergencies. In 2017-19 there
— will be a parficular focus on defining the
hnc 3ims o role of councils in emergency
D il management, building copability and
capacity through supporting collaborations
and supporting systems, and seeking to
resolve long-standing funding issues
including the notural disoster funding
arrangements, VicSES volunteer units and
fire plugs.

COMMUNITY SERVICES

The MAV negotictes with the
Stote and Commonwealth
governments to reform and
fund community services
provided by councils, and provide
leadership for councils in the promotion of
arts, culture ond diversity. We also engage
in activities to assist councils in supporting
vulnerable children (including Aboriginal
children and those in out-of-home care),
young people and fomilies.

The MAV works to develop strong and
respectful parinerships between all levels of
government to provide the best possible
services for our communities.

The pace of reform at national and state
level in key areas of Victorian local
government community service delivery - in
particular for aged & disability services and
early childhood & fomily services, is
continuing to occelerate. While reforms
such as the National Discbility Insurance
Scheme (NDIS) are generally positive for
some members of the community, in aged
care significant effort is being directed by
the MAV to ensuring that the quality and
level of service in Victoria is not reduced to
a national ‘lowest common denominator’.
In o constrained fiscol environment
councils are reviewing how best to
advocate and continue public sector
oversight on behalf of their citizens, and
maintain the high level of service in
Victoria of which councils are justifiably
proud. The Victorion Royal Commission
into Family Violence recommendations are
also predicted to be a major game
changer in potentially harnessing local
government in developing better
coordinated place based solutions to
complex community problems. The MAV
continues fo advocate for partnership
agreements and innovative solutions which
councils are well placed to lead — given
their universal service involvement and
extensive reach af the community ond
home based level, in conjunction with the
governments, key providers and the
community.
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The MAV is committed to providing
leadership in the creation of opportunities
for arts, culture and libraries and to further
the reclisafion of Creative State and its
uptoke across Victorio.

PLANNING & BUILDING

MAV's Planning and Building

tearn aims to influence the

government’s policy and reform

agenda, while building the
capacity of the sector through our annual
work plan.

The planning system is complex and often
contentious. Planning for and providing
basic and essential infrastructure is an
ongoing challenge for councils and heavily
influences how well an crea performs
economically and the health and wellbeing
of residents. Development contributions
are vital to providing appropriate
infrastructure ot the appropricte time in the
development cycle. The MAV and councils
will continue to need to be well positioned
in negotiating the implementation details
of the new standard levy system. The
SMART planning reforms will present both
opportunities and challenges this area will
be a key focus. Proactive sector-led
planning reform that positions councils to
do more with less will assist in promoting o
positive image of planning in local
government.

The building system is at the crossroads,
with an increasingly visible number of
major compliance issues. New legislation
is likely fo redress some of the system
failings identified and for Municipal
Building Surveyors role clarity in the
enforcement space is a priority. Building
surveyor shorfages continue to plague
some rural areas. Positioning the sector for
the next wave of reform will be critical
during the yeor chead.

PUBLIC HEALTH & SAFETY

The MAV advocates for more

adequate funding ond

resources to address criticol

public health and safety issues
including climate change impacts, food
safety regulation, immunisation services,
tobacco education and enforcement
activities, Aboriginal employment and
gender equality.

The MAV provides leadership in preventive
health, gambling reform, gender equity,
preventing violence against women and
positive ageing. We also represent local
government on the Victorion Food
Regulators Forum to strengthen and
improve health and safety services.

TRANSPORT &
INFRASTRUCTURE

MAV's Infrastructure team aims
to influence the Government's
policy and reform agenda,
while building capacity of the
sector through our annual work plan.

A disjointed and short term approach to
infrastructure planning ot a Federal and
State level has greatly impacted our
infrastructure network and our capacity to
plon for the renewal and provision of new
infrastructure into the future.

For Victoria to become more internationally
competitive, we need to achieve greater
productivity involving improved integration
between land use and transport. A
partnership between Infrastructure Victoria
and local government could provide us
with this opportunity.

Rate capping is likely to create serious
issues for local government in the future
and affect the overall quality of Victoria's
Infrastructure network. The conclusion of
the state Country Roads and Bridges
program and cuts to the federal Financial
Assistance Gronts (FAGs) progrom have
also ploced significant funding pressure on
local government.

MEMBER SERVICES

MAV's Member Services feam

incorporates MAY Procurement

and MAV Events. Both business

units are not-for-profit units of
the MAV focused on achieving better
outcomes for local government.

MAV Procurement established the Local
Government Funding Vehicle (LGFV) -
Australia’s first aggregated funding vehicle
for local government and provides LEAP -
a low-cost ongoing continuous
improvement procurement development
program for Victorian councils, and
procurement training and professional
development sessions for councils.

MAV Events aims fo increase the capability
ond effectiveness of the sector by delivering
events that provide professional
development opportunities, collaboration
between member councils and an
understanding of emerging services.

CORPORATE SERVICES

MAV’s Corporate Services team
provides administration, ICT,
human resources and corporate
policy services to ensure the
MAV operates efficiently and transparently.

COMMUNICATIONS

MAV's Communications and
Media team facilitates the
sharing of knowledge from all
MAV work areas to our
members and other stokeholders. They
strive to influence commentary as the voice
of local government; and improve
community understanding and
appreciation of the value of
local government.

INSURANCE

MAV Insurance schemes are

operated entirely for the benefit

of members. Their not-for-profit

structure means any excess
revenue is kept in the fund to help keep
premiums down, rather than used to pay
dividends to shareholders.

With over 20 years' experience
representing the sector in insurance
matters, MAV Insurance is able to provide
cover thot best meets the unique needs of
local government at the best possible cost.

MAV Insurance works with its members to
help reduce their risks by providing them
with a comprehensive and integrated risk
solution — risk management, claims
management, legal advice, underwriting,
policy advocacy and insurance coverage
advice - af no extra cost.

Its extensive suite of risk manaogement
services include torgeted oppraisals,
compliance reviews, tailored programs to
address factors causing claims for
individual members, regular best-practice
forums, seminars and conferences.

MAV STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19 | 9
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f the priority and
d to address our

ADVOCACY FOR COUNCIL
PROGRAMS & PRIORITIES

In addition to developing and delivering
advocacy and copacity building programs,
the MAV will encourage and support
campaigns and programs implemented by
councils — porticulorly when they have the
potential for replication by other councils.

IDENTIFY NEW
COLLABORATION &
FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES

We will seek to enhance our ovailable
resources by identifying new opportunities
to partner with other levels of government,
the private sector, civic society
organisations and the community to
provide tools, resources and community
outcomes that are of mutual benefit to all
stokeholders.

COORDINATE SECTOR
ACTIVITIES

We will place @ greater emphasis on
collecting and sharing council case studies
and plonned activities to enable more
promotion of council achievements and
better opportunities to leamn from the best
practice developments underway across
the sector.

MEASURE RESULTS

In addition to the information that can

be provided by better quontitative dota
management and analysis, we will also
investigate practical and affordable ways
to measure community sentiment across a
range of local government issues.

LEARN AND MAKE
CORRECTIONS

We commit o be open and transparent os
the strengths and weakness of our activities
are ossessed against agreed measures.

We will approach any disappointing results
as opportunities for improvement and build

upon our successes fo deliver moximum
volue to our members and the communities

they serve.
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OBIJECTIVE 1:

Priorities are highlighted in bold

HELP COUNCILS ACHIEVE
FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

ACTIVITY TARGET
COMMUNITY SERVICES
P1> Secure funding certainty.  Ongoing

1a> Advocate to sustain
operational and capitol

Commonwealth
funding secured
for provision of
15 hours of
kindergarten.

HACC model and
funding post-2019
is agreed.
Operational ond
capital funding levels

funding. from the State and
Commonweolth are
maintained or
increased.

PLANNING & BUILDING

1b> Influence planning and

building reform agenda.

Local government
voice is heard in
reform initiatives.

METHOD MEASURE
* Advocacy to Commonwealth Funding
Government for kindergarten funding.  achieved.
* Advocacy and negotiation with Agreements
Commonwealth Government for HACC  reached.

model and funding.

Provide options and support for councils if
post-2019 HACC funding is inadequate to
maintain current service levels.

delivered.

Total percentage

* Advocate for expansion of funding for the
Enhanced Maternal & Child Health (MCH})
service by the State, and for partnership
resourcing for the MCH Child Development
Information System (CDIS).

copital funding.

New investment

for additional
program areacs.

Identify, plon and support capital funding
priorities and opportunities for early
childhood facilities.

Advocate for sustoined funding youth services,
and for building community inclusion for
people with disabilities.

Support councils to review services to people
with disabilities as the National Disability
Insurance Scheme (NDIS) is rolled out.

Advocote for Commonwealth Home Support
progrom funding and service ogreements to
be maintained to local govermment.

Advocote for more funding for development
and maintenance of cultural assets.

Advocate to implement policies and influence
sociol norms around the integration of arts
ond culture especially with regard to council
strategic plonning ond delivery.

Build capacity within MAV and the sector so
that opportunities for advancement and
resourcing pressures are understood.

Work with councils to develop sector positions Number of

on: opportunities for

* Planning fees member input to
MAV.

¢ Infrastructure contributions
* Building legislation

* Maintaining quality open spoce in urban
and growth areos

* Balancing protection of heritage buildings
with pressure for intense development.

MAV STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19

Support inititives

increase/decrecse
in operational and

negotiated by MAV
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OBJECTIVE 1: HELP COUNCILS ACHIEVE FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

ACTIVITY TARGET
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
P1> Secure funding certainty.  State Government
take over the
funding of SES,
Surf Life Saving
and Coastguard.
1¢> Advocate for a more Influence Stote —
equitable and effective Commonwealth
allocation of resources. negotiations on
natural disoster
funding models.
ENVIRONMENT
P1> Secure funding certainty.  Secure funding for
roadside weeds
and pest
management.
P3> Explore new funding Achieve access to
streams and savings Landfill Levy
opportunities. revenue to fund
decommissioning
and establishment
of landfill sites, and
climate change
mitigation.
1d> Advocote locol government The sector’s position in
inferests in Stote environment-  esponse fo Stote
reloted reviews and reforms, oLl O'Td reform
including climate change initiotives is clearly
mitigation policy and actions. ~ orticuloted.
TECHNOLOGY & DIGITAL

1e> Explore new funding streams
and savings opportunities.

1> Improve ICT procurement
practices.
Develop and support shared
services.

12

Inefficiency reduced
through digital
transformation
initiatives.

Participation in
collaborative ICT
procurement is
increosed.

Shared services plans
and opportunities are
increcsed.

MAV STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19

METHOD

Complete negotiations with the State
Government.

Secure confirmation that responsibility for fire
plugs sits with water authorities, not councils

Review the Stote Fire Services Levy model to
ensure equitable distribution across the State

Use multiple advocacy approaches,
including Ministerial correspondence, media
stories, influencing State stakeholders
through positions on SCRC committees

and leveraging ALGA's networks ot the
Federol level.

Advocacy to State Government
regarding funding for roadside weeds
and pest management.

Review the Waste Levy impacts on local
government.

Advocacy to State Government
(including the Opposition) regarding
access to Landfill Levy revenue.

In consultation with the sector, develop and
advance our position in relation to the
various reviews and reforms underway via
written submissions, participation in
reference and advisory groups, meetings
with relevant departments and ministers.
Encourage the development of State Climote
Change Policy ond associated investment in
coastal adaptation, mitigation and coastol
infrastructure maintenance.

Support, promote and facilitate evidence-
based business transformation initiatives.

Identify ond develop high value ICT
procurement opportunities.

Encourage participation in collaborative ICT
procurement opportunities.

Develop, support and promote shared
service opportunities.

MEASURE

State Govt funds
SES, Surf Life
Saving and
Coastguard.

MAV inclusion on
State inter-
departmental
funding
committee(s).

Funding secured.

Impacts
assessed.

Access to levy
funds achieved.

Number of written
submissions, extent
of input from
members and
substantive
meetings with State.

Achieved? (Y/N)

Number of councils
participating in
collaborative ICT
contracts.

Number of shared
services
opportunities
delivered or
progressed.
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OBJECTIVE 1: HELP COUNCILS ACHIEVE FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

ACTIVITY

TARGET

METHOD

GOVERNANCE, ECONOMICS & FINANCE

P1> Secure funding certainty.

P2> Reduce red tape reporting
costs.

P3> Explore new funding
streams and savings
opportunities.

FAGs indexation is
reintroduced in
2017.

State Govt
reporting costs on
local govt is
quantified.

20% reduction in
State Govt
reporting costs by
mid-2018.

Rate cap
exemption process
is streamlined.

New funding
options, palatable
to councils are
identified.

PUBLIC HEALTH & SAFETY

Advocate for investment in
local government to prevent
and oddress public health and
safety issues.

1g>

Advocate for investment in

local government leadership to

prevent family violence and
violence against women and
children.

Continued support
from the State
Government for
funding for the
tobacco control
service agreements.

State Government
continue fo support
community sofety
initiatives.

State Government
recognises local
government as a key
setting for prevention
activity.

TRANSPORT & INFRASTRUCTURE

P1> Secure funding certainty.

P3> Explore new funding
streams and savings
opportunities.

Th> Support shared services
(including freight transport
planning); and advocate at
State and Federal levels to
address infrastructure renewal

funding gap issues.

Reinstatement of
funding for
country roads and
bridges.

School crossings
funding model is
reformed.

Double Roads to
Recovery funding.

Infrastructure renewal
funding gap issues
are progressed.

* Advocate through the ALGA to ensure
FAGs indexation is reintroduced in
2017

* Undertake comprehensive review of
cost of State Government reporting to
councils.

* Develop and implement advocacy
campaign informed by review data.

* Advocacy to the State Government

(including the Opposition) to streamline

the rate-cap exemption.

+ Review in partnership with ALGA and
test with members.

* Maintain constructive relationship with the
Tobacco Unit of the Department of Health
and Human Services.

* Administer the service agreements
accountably and efficiently.

* Participation in assessment processes for
funding initiatives.

* Advocate for funding of local government to
develop and deliver activities to prevent
family violence and violence against women
and children.

* Advocacy to Commonwealth and State
Governments (including Opposition).

* Advocacy to State Government to
reform school crossings funding.

Work with councils to develop sector positions
on:

¢ Transport Network Pricing
* Safety around schools review
* Freight plans and priorities

* Rail infrastructure priorities, including
support for Metro Rail and its integration
with existing public transport network.

* Road sofety initiotives and funding.

MAV STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19

MEASURE

Achieved? (Y/N)

Achieved? (Y/N)
Achieved? (Y/N)
Achieved? (Y/N)

Achieved? (Y/N)

Tobacco activity
service agreements
ore operating and
any issues raised by
DHHS or councils
are attended to.

Councils funded
through community
crime prevention
initiatives.

Councils funded
through preventing
fomily violence
initiatives.

Achieved? (Y/N)

Achieved? (Y/N)

Percentage of
councils
participating in
regional freight
plans and priorities.

Roads to Recovery
funding increases.
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OBJECTIVE 1: HELP COUNCILS ACHIEVE FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

ACTIVITY

PROCUREMENT

P3> Explore new funding
streams and savings
opportunities.

TARGET

Council savings
achieved through
aggregation.

METHOD

Identify and facilitate aggregated
procurement opportunities to generate
savings for councils.

Conduct sector-wide tenders including

(but not limited to):

- Fuel & Lubriconts

- Electricity

- Library Management System

- Librery Materiols

- Local Government Funding Vehicle

- Woste Management Services

- General Hardware

- Civil Construction and Road Maintenance.

Ensure event program content and exhibition
participants assist councils fo address
capacity, capability and credibility
challenges.

Work with facilitotors/sector experts to
ensure relevont content for training
workshops/sessions.

Improve the capacity and capability of
councillors and moyors to achieve financiol
sustainability for their councils.

Implement the WorkCover
Self-Insurance Scheme to generate
savings for councils.

Place o comprehensive reinsurance program
at optimum limits.

1i>  Drive council savings through  Continue to deliver
aggregoted procurement; and  high quality and
actively promote oggregated relevant controcts to
procurement opportunities. councils.
Increased council
awareness of
aggregated
procurement
opportunities.
EVENTS & TRAINING
1j> Ensure financial sustainability ~ Councils better
for councils is discussed in key  understand financial
MAV events and troining sustainability
progroms. chaollenges and
potential solutions.
Training and
professional
development pathway
opportunities are
available.
INSURANCE
P3> Explore new funding Council savings
streams and savings achieved through
opportunities. aggregation.
1k> Provide not-for-profit, high- Continue fo deliver
value, low cost insurance high quality and
schemes for members. relevant insurance
schemes for councils.
COMMUNICATIONS & MEDIA
11>  Facilitote and coordinate communications and media to support this objective.
Support advocacy adtivities with evidence-based reports, resources and campaigns.
CORPORATE SERVICES
Tm>
14 MAV STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19

MEASURE

Achieved? (Y/N)

Council utilisation
of contracts, cost
and process
savings (where
meosurcble).

Event survey
outcomes.
Porticipation in
MAV events ond
training initiatives.
Councillor
participation in
training ond
development
events.

Achieved? (Y/N)

Number of Liability
Mutual,
Commercial Crime
ond LGE Heolth
insuronce scheme
members.

Manage MAV human resources, policy complionce, hosted meetings and administration services to support this objective.
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Priorities are highlighted in bold

OBJECTIVE 2:

IMPROVE THE REPUTATION
OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT

ACTIVITY TARGET METHOD MEASURE
COMMUNITY SERVICES
P4> Raise the profile and Influence is * Initiate policy and legislative changes ~ Engagement &
influence of local increased with State ~ to Commonwealth and State response rates.
government. and Commonwealth Governments.
Governments.
2a> Increase profile of universal  Community and * Collect, share and promote council service Improved
services and community and  stakeholder owareness cose studies. kindergarten
stokgholder owareness of pf services has + Strengthen councils’ kindergarten central cenltrol enrolment
services provided by increosed. enrolment capacity fo support families polices and
councils. Local Government across the State. process?s promote
; o d equity ot access.
Con’nr?u? fo promote leods communityin + Colloborate with the State to feature local Sl ]
councils’ civic leadership pro_rno?lng / addressing government universal early childhood Educghon State
role. social issues. Sorvicos inth EdicationStata Plant qun lnclludes ‘LG
universal services.
¢ Work with the Stote to identify and value LG y
investment across arts and culture assets Numl_:erl of written
and octivities, and promote to community. SUl?m'SS'O"S' extent
3 y : of input from
* Promote advocacy campaign with councils s ans
in regord to gambling legislation reform 5
and community safely initiofives. Increase in number
A = of councils signed
* Promote age friendly communities concept

and increase profile of LG activities.

Promote promising practice local

up to Age Friendly
Declaration.

Web visits analysis.

government is undertaking to prevent
violence against women and to promote
gender equality via the MAY website.

* Support councils’ advocacy efforts to
increase the supply of social and more
affordable housing.

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

P4> Raise the profile and Influence is * Initiate policy and legislative changes

Engagement &

influence of local increased with State to Commonwealth and State response rates.
government. and Commonwealth Governments.
Governments,
2b> Work with councils and the ~ An agreed role * Work closely with LGV and provide inputto  An agreed role

stotement is
developed and
communicated
throughout the
emergency
manogement sector
and the community.

statement for local
government in

emergency .
management.

Stote on an ogreed role for
locol government aligning
with copability and copacity.

their local government copability and
capacity project.

Utilise seat on the projects working group to
influence the project and other
stokeholders.

* Work with councils fo disseminate State
emergency menagement information.

MAYV STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19 | 15
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OBJECTIVE 2: IMPROVE THE REPUTATION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT (CONTINUED)
ACTIVITY TARGET METHOD MEASURE
ENVIRONMENT
2¢> Increase owareness of Better community * Support council initiatives that promote Awareness of
environmental services understonding of local government environmental issues and  council services
provided by councils. environmental services services including manogement of roadside  survey outcomes.
provided by councils. weeds and pests, landfills, renewable Facilitation of
energy and energy efficiency initiatives, cotncil
merine and coostel management, callabatations an
biodiversity, climate change adaptation, e IS
water management, and waste and SSUEs.
resource recovery.
* Support investigation into colloborative
renewable energy initiotives.
GOVERNANCE, ECONOMIC & FINANCE
P4> Raise the profile and Influence is * Initiate policy and legislative changes Engagement &
influence of local increased with State ~ to Commonwealth and State response rates.
government. and Commonwealth Governments. Sodal media &
Governments. * Monitor and communicate the impact  web analytics.
Communities better of rate capping on council services.
understand issues
affecting financial
sustainability of LG
P5> Influence the LG Actand A more * Make submissions and advocate to Achieved? (Y/N)
MAYV Act reviews. contemporary LG government on the form, content and
Act with increased draft legislation of the Acts.
council autonomy
and a contemporary
MAV Act that
expands and
clarifies the objects,
functions and
powers of the MAV.
P6> Review and amend the  The performance * Undertake a comprehensive review of  Achieved? (Y/N)
MAV Rules. and potential of the the governance structure of the MAYV,
MAV (including including the role of State Council and
State Council) is MAV committees.
maximised.
2d> Continue to improve Better practice is * Further review policies and management Achieved? (Y/N)
standards of MAY achieved in MAV practices to ensure better practice is Numbisr of reviasie
governance and governance, achieved in board governance and of policies
organisational performance.  performance and orgonisational performance. Srdanckanond
(ANCgemBY- number of new

16 MAV STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19

policies developed.
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OBJECTIVE 2: IMPROVE THE REPUTATION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT (CONTINUED)

P4>

2e>

P4>

2f>

P4>

29>

2h>

ACTIVITY

TARGET

PUBLIC HEALTH & SAFETY

Raise the profile and
influence of local
government.

Increase community
awareness of local
government public health
and safety services.

Influence is
increased with State
and Commonwealth
Governments.

Communities are
aware of public health
and safety issues and
activities.

TRANSPORT & INFRASTRUCTURE

Raise the profile and
influence of local
government.

Strengthen advocacy role to
increase influence on
transport-related policies and
programs.

Influence is
increased with State
and Commonwealth
Governments.

Influence is increased.

TECHNOLOGY & DIGITAL

Raise the profile and
influence of local
government.

Develop ond support
collaborative technical
solutions for customer-facing
service delivery.

Facilitate community input to
deliver co-designed
solutions.

PROCUREMENT

Improve council
procurement processes and
supplier engagement
through procurement
training and professional
development.

Influence is
increased with State
and Commonwealth
Governments.

Customer satisfaction
rates are improved.

Delivery of
procurement and
contract management
training to councils.

METHOD

Initiate policy and legislative changes
to Commonwealth and State
Governments.

Advocating on councils” behalf about the
implementation of the new outdoor dining
smoking lows due to commence in 2017.

Advocate councils’ priorities identified in
municipal health and wellbeing plans to
other levels of government e.g. harm from
gambling.

Promote councils’ preventing violence
against women and gender equality
strategies.

Initiate policy and legislative changes
to Commonwealth and State
Governments.

Work to raise the profile of the MAV to
increase our influence on fransport-related
policies and programs.

Initiate policy and legislative changes
to Commonwealth and State
Governments.

Collect and share leaming and expertise
from leading councils and stakeholders.

Develop a whole of sector roadmap for
digital transformation.

Ongoing delivery of procurement and
contract management training, including the
rollout and engoing development of
elearning modules.

Development of a standard suite of tender
documents for councils will simplify the
engogement process for councils and
reduce costs.

MAV STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19

MEASURE

Engagement &
response rates.

Resources and
advice are
ovailoble to
councils.

Councils

evaluations
published.

Council plans and
strategies are
published on the
MAY website.

Engagement &
response rates.

Member survey
outcomes.

Engagement &
response rates.

Number of councils
engaged in digital
transformation
planning.

Available
resources.

Participation rates
and qualitative
assessment of
participants (i.e.
conduct surveys).
Assessment of
elearning uptake
ond outcomes.

Toke up of standard
documents.

17
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OBJECTIVE 2: IMPROVE THE REPUTATION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT (CONTINUED)

ACTIVITY TARGET
EVENTS & TRAINING
P4> Raise the profile and Community <

influence of local
government.

2i> Ensure prospective ond new
Councillors are aware of the
roles and responsibilities of

locol government.

INSURANCE

Help members to reduce
liability risks for employees
and communities.

2i>

understanding of
the breadth and
value of council
services has
increased.

Public perception of .
councillor capability
improves.

Reduce number of .
cloims per member
revenue.

Increase member
participation in risk
monagement fraining
programs.

COMMUNICATIONS & MEDIA

P4> Raise the profile and
influence of local
government.

2k> Develop and deliver
resources to help councils
manage community

expectations.

Influence is <
increased with State
and Commonwealth
Governments. .

Community
understanding of

the breadth and o
value of council
services has

increased.

More resources are
available to help
councils meet
community
expectations.

Communications U
resources and

initiatives are leveraged

by councils to help
manage community -
expectations.

18 MAV STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19

METHOD

Support initiatives that raise
awareness of councils’ role, services
and performance.

Conduct o range of training ond events to
increase the capability and capacity of
councillors and moyors, including o
Councillor Development Weekend,
councillor induction program, councillor
fundamentals and other training programs.

Deliver a comprehensive risk management
progrom.

Initiate policy and legislative changes
to Commonwealth and State
Governments.

Support initiatives that raise
awareness of councils’ role, services
and performance.

Undertake perception of LG research
and develop a member engagement
strategy that includes a focus on
improving the reputation of the sector.

Improve presence of Victorian councils
through social media, including National
Twitter Day compaign, and other digital
channels.

Work with media stokeholders to identify
positive local government story
opportunities,

Review and restructure the MAV website.

MCH Centenary celebration initiatives.

MEASURE

Social media &
web analytics.

Meosure
participation in
events and seek
qualitative
feedback from
participants via
surveys.

Number of claims
per member
revenue.

Member
participation in risk
management
training programs.

Engagement &
response rates.
Social media &
web analytics.
Number of
resources
available to
councils.

Social medic
analytics.

Member use of
resource materiols.
Member
satisfaction survey
outcomes.
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OBIJECTIVE 3:

Priorities are highlighted in bold

INCREASE PRODUCTIVITY
AND EFFICIENCY

ACTIVITY TARGET
COMMUNITY SERVICES
P9> Address local Councils leverage
government capacity, information,
capability and credibility experiences,
challenges. business processes
and innovation
initiatives of other
councils, advisory
groups, all levels of
government, the
education sector
and the private
sector.
3a> Build on intergovernmental  Local Government
partnerships to support supported to plon,
councils innovation and coordinate ond deliver
ongoing investment in services for older
community priorities. people, people with
Develop and support disobilities ond
program, process and families.
infrastructure improvements.  Improved coordination
between universal/
secondary and tertiary
services for vulnerable
families.
ENVIRONMENT
3b> Build council copacity and Councils accessing ond

collaboration through
information and best practice
sharing.

contributing to MAV
events and online
resources in order to
gother and share
information and
learnings.

METHOD

Host forums, conferences, workshops
and training courses to improve
knowledge and skills development of
councillors and council officers.

Develop digital solutions for sharing of
information, experience and innovation
initiatives.

Encourage use of common data
standards and business processes.

Facilitate Trilateral Community Care
Officials Group with Commonwealth &
State to support effective outcomes from
Aged and Disability reforms.

Lead the revision of the Materal & Child
Health (MCH) guidelines, ond develop
guidance on records keeping / risk
management.

Councils actively contribute to the design of
the child protection / family violence
prevention strategy & response, including
the design of Support and Sofety Hubs /
Networks.

Advocate for the MCH CDIS plotform’s
place os foundational to Family Violence
Royal Commission reforms on information
sharing.

Support the implementation of the Creative
State s outlined in the Mol with the MAV.

Publish monthly MAY Environment bulletin.

Restructure and improve content of MAV
website environment pages.

Convene forums for councils to share
information and showcase best practice.

GOVERNANCE, ECONOMICS & FINANCE

Support the standardisation
of policies and governance
frameworks, where
practicable.

Increased
standardisotion and
improved copacity ond
capability.

Work with LGV and the sector to develop
guidelines/templates for policies and
govemnance frameworks, where practicable.

Engage with all new councillors and mayors
and encourage them to parficipate in MAV
training and events to improve their
copability and copacity.

MAV STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19

MEASURE

Stakeholders
participating in
MAYV events and
programs.
Survey
outcomes.

Use of common
standards and
practices.

Improved collective
outcomes
negotiated in
comparison to
individual councils
dealing one by one
with governments.

LG input reflected
in the Victorion
Prevention Strotegy,
the design of Safety
Hubs, information
sharing reforms &
MCH review.

Creotive State
strategies and
activities promoted
with LG.

MAV Bulletin
subscription base.
Web page analysis.

Number of
delegates at forums
survey outcomes.

Number of
guidelines/template
developed.

Raote of
engagement with
councillors and
mayors.
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OBJECTIVE 3: INCREASE PRODUCTIVITY AND EFFICIENCY (CONTINUED)

ACTIVITY TARGET METHOD MEASURE
PLANNING & BUILDING
3d> Support councils to improve  Develop o business « Establish a task force(s) to inform the Development of
services. case for future development of future improvement business case.
improvement projects. programs. Council

participation levels.

PUBLIC HEALTH & SAFETY

3e> Improve health ond sofety Local government's * MAV participation on the Victorian Food MAV has aftended
service delivery processes. contribution to the food Regulotors Forum end maintain diclogue meetings and
safety regulatory system with councils over reform proposals. licised with councils
is recognised. on food safety
matters.

TECHNOLOGY & DIGITAL

P8> Encourage and facilitate Implementation of a * Deliver Victorian Local Government Achieved? (Y/N)
sharing of services, sector-led business Enablement Platform proof-of-concept. 5 -0 o 1a (Y/N)
technology and business solution that + Develop production, governance and Achieved? (Y/N
PrOces:03- enables more resourcing model for Local Government ' o oo (Y/N)

efficient and Digital Transformation Centre.
effective

collabordtion; * Showcase share services opportunities.

cooperation and
innovation through
shared technology
and processes.

P9> Address local Councils leverage * Develop digital solutions for sharing of  Stakeholders
government capacity, information, information, experience and innovation participating in
capability and credibility  experiences, initiatives. MAV events and
challenges. bUSi(‘GSS processes  « Host forums, conferences, workshops programs.

and innovation and training courses to improve Survey
initiatives of other knowledge and skills development of  outcomes.
councils, advisory councillors and council officers.

groups, all levels of Use of common

government, the * Encourage use of common data sland_urds and
education sector standards and business processes. practices.
and the private
sector.
3f> Stondardise, simplify ond ICT ond digital * Produce research and best practice Number of councils
share ICT systems and capability is improved. guidelines to increase ICT knowledge ond engaged in
processes. development of new skills. initiatives to

standardise systems

Develop and support
ond processes.

business solutions enabled by

digital. Number of councils
engaged in ICT
skills development
initiotives.
Councils
participating in
events and
programs.

Survey outcomes.
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OBJECTIVE 3: INCREASE PRODUCTIVITY AND EFFICIENCY (CONTINUED)

3g>

P7>

P8>

P9>

ACTIVITY

Support councils to improve
transport and infrastructure
services, including edvocacy
to support the development
of rail infrostructure and
services.

Advocate for sustainable
community transport services
in rural areas.

PROCUREMENT

Improve procurement
practices and outcomes.

Encourage and facilitate
sharing of services,
technology and business
processes.

Address local
government capacity,
capability and credibility
challenges.

TARGET

TRANSPORT & INFRASTRUCTURE

All councils reach STEP
“core” stotus.

Local and regional
community transport
services ottract State
funding investment.

Data analysis drives
efficiencies, savings
and compliance as
well as local and
regional economic
development and
collaboration
outcomes including
shared services.

Implementation of a
sector-led business
solution that
enables more
efficient and
effective
collaboration,
cooperation and
innovation through
shared technology
and processes.

Councils leverage
information,
experiences,
business processes
and innovation
initiatives of other
councils, advisory
groups, all levels of
government, the
education sector
and the private
sector.

METHOD

Work with councils to develop sector

positions on:

- Infrastructure Victorio 30 year strategy
- School Crossing Program reform

- Transport Network Pricing

- Parliomentary Enquiry into VicRoads’

Maonagement of Country Roads.

Promote STEP program to remaining

councils.

Advocate for the development of a
community transport policy and investment
program by the State, particulorly in rural

areaqs.

Continue to support and advocate for the

road/rail interchange upgrades.

Ongoing delivery of the LEAP
procurement development program,
including participation from additional

councils.

LEAP provides data to councils and regions
through online ‘Dashboards’ that can be
interrogated at individual council and
regional levels. The dota enables analysis
that assists in driving efficiencies, savings and
complionce as well as local and regional
economic development and collaboration
outcomes including shared services.

Deliver Victorian Local Government
Enablement Platform proof-of-concept.

Develop production, governance and
resourcing model for Local Government
Digital Transformation Centre.

Showcase share services opportunities.

Develop digital solutions for sharing of
information, experience and innovation

initiatives.

Host forums, conferences, workshops
and training courses to improve
knowledge and skills development of
councillors and council officers.

Encourage use of common data
standards and business processes.

MEASURE

Number of
interactions ond
participation in
State Govermment
working groups.
Percentage of
councils that have
attained STEP
“core” status.

Number of
interactions with
State Government.

Participation in
the LEAP
program and
tracking of
council and
regional
benefits.

Achieved? (Y/N)
Achieved? (Y/N)
Achieved? (Y/N)

Stakeholders
participating in
MAYV events and
programs.
Survey
outcomes.

Use of common
standards and
practices.
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OBJECTIVE 3: INCREASE PRODUCTIVITY AND EFFICIENCY (CONTINUED)

P9>

3h>

3i>

P9>

3j>

22

ACTIVITY

TARGET

EVENTS & TRAINING

Address local Councils leverage
government capacity, information,
capability and credibility experiences,
challenges. business processes
and innovation
initiatives of other
councils, advisory
groups, all levels of
government, the
education sector
and the private
sector.

Provide training and events ~ Councils are informed

for councillors and council  of and inspired to act

officers thot address upon productivity ond

capability, capocity and efficiency challenges

credibility challenges in and solutions.

local government.
INSURANCE
Provide seamless and Member efficiency and
comprehensive insurance productivity gains are
services for local realised.
government.
COMMUNICATIONS & MEDIA
Address local Councils leverage
government capacity, information,
capability and credibility experiences,
challenges. business processes
and innovation
initiatives of other
councils, advisory
groups, dll levels of
government, the
education sector
and the private
sector.

Support and share resources  Councils leverage

with councils, offer information,

communications training experiences, business

opportunities, and positively ~ processes and

profile MAY and council case innovation initiatives of

studies. other stakeholders.

Progressive improvements to

be made to MAV

communications channels,

informed by results of

member surveys and user

analytics.

MAY STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19

METHOD

Host forums, conferences, workshops
and training courses to improve
knowledge and skills development of
councillors and council officers.

Provide training and events to increase the
copability and copacity of new and returning
councillors.

Provide fraining and events to increase the
copability and capacity of new and returning
maoyors.

Provide liability cover, claims and risk
management and legal advice.

Develop digital solutions for sharing of
information, experience and innovation
initiatives.

Trial of MAV member services six-monthly
tailored reports.

Implementation of Patchwork
communications plan.

Bulletin analytics and communications
survey results. to inform formet end design
improvements to MAYV communicofions
channels.

New MAV website design.

MEASURE

Stakeholders
participating in
MAYV events and
programs.
Survey
outcomes.

Number of mayors
and councillors
participating in MAY
troining ond events
Member and
delegote survey
outcomes.

Efficiency and
productivity benefits
os determined by
member survey.

Stakeholders
participating in
MAV events and
programs.
Survey
outcomes.

Members’ use of
resources.
Member feedback
through survey
outcomes.
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Priorities are highlighted in bold

OBIJECTIVE 4:

INCREASE INNOVATION AND
COLLABORATION

ACTIVITY TARGET METHOD MEASURE
COMMUNITY SERVICES
4a> Support councils to Levels of State and Support the implementation of 10 year Increase in local
maintain a leadership Commonweclth Early Years Compact with DHHS & DET and ~ government
role. consultation with local MAV on behalf of councils. representation and
govemment.are Support and promote council leadership in influence in
maintoined or increosed. diversity and social cohesion initiatives and targeted areos.
Councils community programs. Councils share their
leadership role Promote councils innovation in preventing innovation and
strengthened. violence against women activities and progress through
increasing gender equality. MAV survey.
Strengthen councils’ copacity to implement, MAV /VACCHO
integrate and leverage sustainable arts and profocol signed off
culture programs. on behalf of
. ) councils and
Increase collaboration between councils ACCOs.
and Aboriginal Community Controlled
Organisations (ACCOs).
Advocate for State support to councils for
'Potchwork” and ‘Casserole’ programs.
Build on Age Friendly Partnership with the
State and development of local government
positive ageing initiatives.
Support councils in developing their
four-year Municipal Public Health &
Wellbeing Plans and influence into the State
Plen priorities.
Support gender equity / Preventing Violence
Against Women initiatives.
ENVIRONMENT
4b> Encourage ond promote  Councils are working Hold events and host networks to encourage  Participation in
council initiotives to together to address collaboration on environmental issues. collaborative
address climate change.  climate change impocts. Support collaboration to improve the networks and
environmental impacts of councils. events.
Support collaboration in addressing climate
change.
EVENTS & TRAINING
4¢> Work with councils to Innovation and Deliver events ond training opportunities that  Participation in

colleboration is
encouraged.

identify and implement
preferred future directions
for the sector.

encourage whole-of-government
colloboration and builds parinerships with
other local govemment associations and
stakeholders.

Deliver events and training opportunities that
encourage and promote better engagement
with the privote sector.

Deliver events and training opportunities
address local government capacity,
capability and credibility challenges.

Deliver events and training opportunities thot

chollenge entrenched business proctices and
cultures in local government.

MAV events and
training.
Portnerships,
collaborations ond
projects supported
by MAY events.
Event and training
effectiveness via
participant surveys.
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OBJECTIVE 4: INCREASE COLLABORATION AND INNOVATION (CONTINUED)
ACTIVITY TARGET METHOD MEASURE
GOVERNANCE, ECONOMIC & FINANCE
P10> Drive business Data quality, * Encourage and support initiatives that  Number of
transformation. standards, help councils make better use of data  collaborative

P12> Enable innovation
partnerships.

4d> Develop ond implement
annual colleboration
plans with LGV.

INSURANCE

4e> Develop and support
insurance shared services
opportunities.

management and
analysis capability is
increased.

Local government
knowledge, capability
and capacity is
increased through
effective partnerships
with government,
business, education
and civic stakeholders.

Colloborate with LGV to
improve support to the
sector.

Increase in best practice.

PLANNING & BUILDING

P10> Drive business
transformation.

4f>  Build capacity through
sharing innovation and

best practice.

Data quality,
standards,
management and
analysis capability is
increased.

Increase participation and
engogement in events.

PUBLIC HEALTH & SAFETY

4g> Facilitote and support
innovation that improves
collaboration.

Increased porticipation in
Strectrader progrom.

Strategic stokeholder
partnerships established
or strengthened.

COMMUNICATIONS & MEDIA

4h> |Improve accountability
and transparency to our

members.

Improve digital presence
of MAV to showcase
positive sector stories.

24
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Member satisfaction levels
hove increosed.

PLAN 2017-19

to inform business decisions and
influence funding submissions.

* Address legislative and regulatory
barriers to innovation initiatives.

* |dentify sector priorities for inclusion in the
joint collaboration plan with LGV,

¢ Deliver innovative claims-reduction

progroms.

* Encourage and support initiatives that

help councils make better use of data
to inform business decisions and
influence funding submissions.

* Increase participation ond engagement in
events.

* Improve the Streatrader registration system.

* Strengthen partnerships between councils
and key stokeholders in health & safety.

¢ |mprove planning and reporting frameworks,
processes and documentation.

* Provide new opportunities and platforms to
showcase sector innovation.

* Redevelop MAV website to better profile and
showcose Victorion local government
innovation.

data initiatives.

Barriers
removed.

Development and
implementation of
an annual
collaboration plan.

Member
participation in best
practice programs.

Cloims-reduction.

Number of
collaborative
data initiatives.

Number of
delegates and
conference event
evaluction survey.

Number of
registrations.
Number ond
influence of
partnerships.

Survey outcomes.

Pilot of biannual
tailored member
services reports.

Member use of
resources.

Item 9.6- Attachment 1

Page 241



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

28 AUGUST 2018

OBJECTIVE 4: INCREASE COLLABORATION AND INNOVATION (CONTINUED)

ACTIVITY

TARGET

TECHNOLOGY & DIGITAL

P10> Drive business
transformation.

P11> Address digital access

and equity issues.

Facilitate opportunities
to improve business
processes by providing
data and training, and
by removing
roadblocks.

Councils are
establishing more
efficient and consistent
business process.

Data quality,
standards,
management and
analysis capability is
increased.

Councils have access

to affordable, reliable
ICT infrastructure.

Councils better
understand the
challenges and
opportunities of the
digital era.

TRANSPORT & INFRASTRUCTURE

4i> Build capacity through

innovation and best
practice.

PROCUREMENT

P10> Drive business
transformation.

P12> Enable innovation
partnerships.

4j> Support regional

procurement and shared
services opportunities.

Increase interactions with
other levels of
government.

All councils reach STEP
“core” status.

Facilitate opportunities
to improve business
processes by providing
data and training, and
by removing
roadblocks.

Local government
knowledge, capability
and capacity is
increased through
effective partnerships
with government,
business, education
and civic stakeholders.

Local government
knowledge, capability
and capacity is increased
through effective
partnerships with
government, business,
education and civic
stakeholders.

METHOD

* Best practice guidelines.
* Implement the recommendations of the

Local Government Digital
Transformation Task Force.

Encourage and support initiatives that
help councils make better use of data
to inform business decisions and
influence funding submissions.

Work with ALGA to influence ICT access
issues including high-quality, high-
speed broadband and mobile phone
coverage.

Deliver and support initiatives that
improve digital maturity of councils.

Hold forums, workshops and conferences.

Promote STEP progrem to remaining
councils.

LEAP Procurement program.
Best practice guidelines.
Implement the recommendations of the

Local Government Digital
Transformation Task Force.

Strengthen and encourage partnerships
between councils, and between
councils and other levels of
government.

Explore opportunities for PPPs.

Conduct sector-wide and regionol tenders,
such has the EAGA solar sovers project and
major roads street lighting.

|dentify opportunities for innovative
processes and projects in consultation with
councils and other MAV stakeholders.

MEASURE

Number of
improved
business
processes.

Achieved? (Y/N)

Number of
collaborative
data initiatives.

Councils with
affordable
access to critical
ICT
infrastructure.

Digital maturity
survey outcomes.

Number of
delegates and
survey outcomes.

Percentage of
councils that ottein
STEP “core” stotus.

Number of
improved
business
processes.

Barriers
removed.

Partnerships
established.

Barriers
removed.

Estoblishment of
collaborative
contracts including
identification and
delivery of regional
projects.
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MEMBERSHIP BENEFITS

The Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV) is the legislated
peak body for Victoria's 79 councils. Formed in 1879, we have
a long and proud history of supporting councils.

New
partnerships
and agreements

New
funding

Advocacy

MAV advocacy profects the
rights of councils, increases
funding for provision of
community services, influences
policies affecting councils

and provides a stronger voice
to negotiate on behalf of
communities.

MAV represeniation provides councils
with o stronger voice fo negotiate
on behalf of locol communities

Advococy by the MAV helps to increase
funding for councils 1o provide
community services

Services New

MAV services help to improve efficiencies
the efficiency and productivity
of councils by providing best
practice policy advice, training

for council staff and councillors l
and cost-saving collaborative

procurement and insurance

opportunities.

MAV-led colloboration and innovation
helps councils provide more efficent
community services

Promotion
The MAV promotes the value

The MAV is o membership association,
accountable to its constituent members

OUR ROLE

and strengths of the sector to

a wide range of stakeholders
and provides promotional
resources and networks to help
councils improve community

sentiment.

The Parlioment of Victoria possed the
Municipal Association Act in 1907,
officially recognising the MAV as the voice
of local government in the state. Our role
was to promote the efficient carrying out of
municipal government throughout the stote
of Victoria and to watch over ond protect
the interests, rights and privileges of
municipal corporations.

The MAV is on influentiol force, supporting
o strong and strategically positioned local
government sector. Today, our role is to
represent ond advocate the interests of
local government, lobby for o “fairer deal’
for councils, raise the sector’s profile,
ensure its long-term security and provide
policy advice, strotegic advice, capacity
building programs and insurance services
to local government.

26 MAV STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19

through State Council and an elected
Board. Membership of the MAV is
discretionary (78 Victorian councils are
current financial members), and
participotion in our insurance schemes,
procurement program, events and other
activities is voluntary.

CAPABILITY & RESOURCES

The MAV team is comprised of fewer than
40 staff and consultants. They understand
the chollenges of local government and
implement the strotegic direction set by our
members through activities including
advocacy and policy development, and
performance and productivity services.

Our members play a significant role in how
we operate. In consultation with them, we
work to set both a specific and broad
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ogenda in ferms of local government's
needs and pricrities. MAV work areos are
olso guided by input from eight MAYV
Board Advisory Committees, fourteen other
MAV Committees and a long list of
external committees. MAV stoff coordinate
and disseminate the work of these
committees.

In addition to all the planned activities,
MAV stoff must be able to move swiftly on
urgent arising issues. With such a small
team of core staff members, the balancing
of planned and arising activities is a
constant challenge.

AREAS OF OPERATION

MAV advococy and copacity building
services for councils include:

* Community services (incorporating
maternal ond child health, eorly years,
vulnerable children, disability, active
lifestyle, positive ageing, multicultural,
Aberiginal, gambling, and arts and
culture)

* Emergency management

* Environment

* Governance ond mediation

* Planning ond building

* Public health and safety

* Technology

* Transport and infrastructure;

Member services including:

* Procurement

* Debt funding

* Events ond troining; ond

Insurance services including:

* Liobility mutual

* Commercial Crime and

* LGE Health schemes, and

* MAV Workcover, worker's
compensation self-insurance scheme
for members (in progress).

The MAV has a strong reputation in both
the state and federal arenas as a credible
lobbyist with o significant track record in
representing the interests of local
government. Building and maintaining this
reputation requires diplomacy and respect,
even while compaigning possionately for
our members’ priority issues.

It's important to note that a significant
omount of MAV staff time is spent
responding to unplanned council,
councillor and council officer requests for
odvice ond support. This key function of
the MAV is yet to be adequately

represented in our formal reporting
framework.

CIVIC LEADERSHIP

The MAV supports councils to address
current and emerging civic leadership
issues such os social cohesion in
diversifying communities, reconciliation
with Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders,
odvancing gender equity, preventing
violence against women, and plonning
for the anticipated impacts of digital
transformation and climate change.

Activities to directly address these areas are
dependent upon available resources. The
MAV continually explores opportunities for
new partnerships and funding to encble
the delivery of programs to assist councils
in their civic leadership role.

STATE COUNCIL

State Council is our governing body. It is
made up of representatives from each
member council. Members appoint a
representative o attend Stote Council
meetings, exercise their council’s vote and
provide regulor reports to their council on
our activities.

The State Council's powers include:
= considering the Rules of the Association
* determining our strategic direction
* appointing the auditor.

State Council meets twice a year, or more
if needed. Members can submit business to
be considered by the State Council in
accordance with the MAV Rules.

State Council is our members” opportunity
to roise new issues as motions of business.
Endorsed resolutions ore addressed as
directed by our Board and in accordance
with their alignment to the strategic
obijectives, level of member support,
immediacy of the issue and available
resources.

Over the term of this plan, the MAV Rules
will be comprehensively reviewed. The
review will include examination of the role,
purpose and alignment of our strategic
plonning process, State Council, Board
Committees and other MAV advisory
committees. The aim of the review is to
maoximise the effectiveness ond influence of
the MAV in supporting member councils.
The review will occur during 2017.
Outcomes may affect the structure and
implementation of this plan.

OUTCOMES

As presented in our most recent Annual
Report (2015-16), Victoria’s 79 councils
contributed a total of $2.7 million in
membership subscriptions to the MAV.

Qver this period, the MAY helped to
unlock in excess of $300 million in
member service benefits including new
funding for maternal and child health
services, kindergarten infrostructure and
operations, strategic land use planning,
preventing violence against women,
emergency resources, oge-friendly projects
and coostal climate change impacts.

We also negotiated new partnerships and
agreements for planning fees, home and
community care, sociol procurement and
energy efficient street lighting. We
facilitated improved efficiency and
productivity through colloborative
procurement, the roll out of the Child
Development Information System (CDIS),
improving asset management and
procurement capability, open dota
publishing, professional development
initictives ond the second issuance of the
Local Government Funding Vehicle.

The aim of our strategic planning process

is to improve on the value of these
outcomes for members every yeor.

The MAV consistently delivers a
return on investment well in excess of
subscription fees for its members.

MAV STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 2017-19
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ion of the representatives
|9 MAV Strategic Planning

BENALLA

Moira Shire

Alpine Shire

Towong Shire
Mansfield Shire
Mitchell Shire

Indigo Shire

Benalla Rural City
Strathbogie Shire
Murrindindi Shire
Wangaratta Rural City
Greater Shepparton City

GEELONG

Golden Plains Shire
Colac Otway Shire
Pyrenees Shire

Greater Geelong City
Surf Coast Shire
Borough of Queenscliffe
Moorabool Shire
Hepburn Shire
Whittlesea City

Port Phillip City
Maribyrnong City
WARRNAMBOOL
Warrnambool City
Corangamite Shire
Southern Grampians Shire
Colac Otway Shire
Ararat Shire
Maribyrnong City
Pyrenees Shire

Moyne Shire

MELBOURNE (EVENING)

Maroondah City
Banyule City
Whitehorse City
Whittlesea City
Port Phillip City
Moonee Valley City
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MAV COUNCIL
REPRESENTATIVES

MAV Council Representatives
at 31 March 2017 are:
Alpine Shire Council

Cr Ron Jonas

Ararat Rural City Council
Cr Poul Hooper

Ballarat City Council
Cr Amy Johnson

Banyule City Council
Cr Tom Melican

Bass Coast Shire Council
Cr Les Larke

Baw Baw Shire Council
Cr Jessica O'Donnell

Boyside City Council
Cr Alex del Porto

Benalla Rural City Council
Cr Don Firth

Boroondara City Council
No representative appointed
Brimbank City Council

Cr Lucinda Congreve

Buloke Shire Council
Cr Daovid Pollard

Campaspe Shire Council
Cr Adrion Weston

Cardinia Shire Council
Cr Brett Owen

Casey City Council

Cr Amanda Stopledon

Central Goldfields Shire Council
Cr Geoff Lovett

City of Greater Bendigo Council
Cr Rod Fyffe

Colac Otway Shire Council
Cr Terry Woodcroft

Corangomite Shire Council
Cr Ruth Gstrein

Darebin City Council
Cr Suson Rennie

East Gippsland Shire Council
Cr Richard Ellis

Gannowarra Shire Council
Cr Jodie Basile

Glen Eira City Council
Cr Margoret Esakoff

Glenelg Shire Council
Cr Anita Rank

Golden Plains Shire Council
Cr Nathan Hansford

Greater Dandenong City Council
Cr Sean O'Reilly

Greater Geelong City Council
Mr Peter Dorling

Greater Shepparton City Council
Cr Dinny Adem

Hepburn Shire Council
Cr John Cottrell

Hindmarsh Shire Council
Cr Debra Nelson

Hobsons Boy City Council
Cr Angela Altair

Hersham Rural City Council
Cr Pam Clarke

Hume City Council

Cr Joseph Haweil

Indigo Shire Council

Cr Jenny O'Connor
Kingston City Council

Cr David Eden

Knox City Council
Cr Peter Lockwood

Lotrobe City Council
Cr Dale Harrimon
Loddon Shire Council
Cr Gavan Holt

Maceden Ranges Shire Council
Cr Jennifer Anderson

Manningham City Council
Cr Paul Mcleish

Mansfield Shire Council
Cr Paul Volkering
Maribyrnong City Council
Cr Catherine Cumming
Maroondah City Council
Cr Mike Symon
Melbourne City Council
Cr Rohan Leppert

Melton City Council

Cr Kathy Maijdlik

Mildura Rural City Council
Cr Glenn Milne

Mitchell Shire Council
Cr Rhonda Sonderson

Maoira Shire Council

Cr Gary Cleveland

Monash City Council
Cr Geoff Lake

Moonee Valley City Council
Cr John Sipek

Moorabool Shire Council
Cr Tom Sullivan

Moreland City Council

Cr Mark Riley

Mornington Peninsula Shire Council
Cr Hugh Fraser

Mount Alexander Shire Council
Cr Christine Henderson

Moyne Shire Council
Cr Jim Doukas

Murrindindi Shire Council
Cr Chorlofte Bisset

Nillumbik Shire Council
Cr Peter Perkins

Northern Grampians Shire Council
Cr Murray Emerson

Port Phillip City Council

Cr Dick Gross

Pyrenees Shire
Cr David Clark

Queenscliffe Borough Council

Cr Tony Francis

South Gippsland Shire Council

Cr Roy Argento

Southern Grampions Shire Council
Cr Mary-Ann Brown

Stonnington City Council

Cr Jami Klisoris

Strathbogie Shire Council

Cr Amanda McClaren

Surt Coast Shire Council

Cr Libby Coker

Swan Hill Rural City Council
Cr Gary Norton

Towong Shire Council
Cr Acron Scales

Wangarotte Rural City Council
Cr Ken Clorke

Warrnombool City Council
Cr Kylie Goston
Wellington Shire Council
Cr Malcolm Hole

West Wimmera Shire Council
Cr Bruce Meyer
Whitehorse City Council
Cr Denise Massoud
Whittlesea City Council

Cr Moary Lalios

Wodongae City Council

Cr Anna Speedie
Wyndham City Council

Cr Josh Gilligan

Yarra City Council

Cr James Searle

Yarra Ranges Shire Council
Cr Noel Cliff

Yarriambiack Shire Council
Cr Graeme Massey
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Implementing the
STRATEGIC WORK PLAN
2017-19

Municipal Association of Victoria

Level 12, 60 Collins Street, Melbourne
GPO Box 4326, Melbourne 3001
Phone: 03 9667 5555

Fax: 03 9667 5550

Email: inquiries@mav.asn.au

mav.asn.au
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MA#&V FORM

MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION OF VICTORIA

MAYV State Council Meeting — 19 October 2018

To submit a motion for consideration by State Council on Friday, 19 October 2018, please complete this
form and email to the State Council email address S2@mav.asn.au, no later than 21 September. Please
note, motions received by 13 September (early motions) will be distributed to all MAV representatives on
14 September. Submitters may amend their own motions up to 5pm on 28 September.

Motion
[Insert name of motion]

Submitted by: [Insert name of council]*

MOTION:
The motion and rationale should be no longer than one page.
[Insert motion]

MAYV Strategic Work Plan (SWP):

Indicate whether or not the subject matter of your motion is included in the MAV SWP 2017-19.
Is the subject matter of this motion included in the SWP? | Yes/No

If yes, identify the following:
Obijective No.

Priority No.

Iltem No.

RATIONALE:
[Insert rationale]

*Note: Motions must be submitted by one council but may be supported by other councils. The council submitting
the motion will need to supply written confirmation from any council(s) listed as supporting the motion. All relevant
background information in support of the motion should be included in the space provided for the rationale and not in
attachments. The motion and rationale should be no longer than one page.
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10 INFORMATION REPORTS

10.1 LOCAL LAWS AND PLANNING COMPLIANCE ACTIVITY REPORT

File Number: 04/02/012

Author: David Price, Local Laws \ Planning Compliance Officer
Authoriser: Glenn Harvey, Manager Development and Compliance
Attachments: Nil

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive and note the local laws and planning compliance activity report.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There is no conflict of interest for any council staff writing the report, or involved in the subject
matter of the report.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION

This is the fourth and final report for the 2017 — 2018 financial year, summarising the local law and
planning compliance and enforcement actions taken within the Development and Compliance
Department. It provides Council with a high level summary for the purpose of monitoring
performance within this area.

BACKGROUND

Council is responsible for a range of advisory, compliance and enforcement services to the
community and maintains powers under various legislation and Council local laws to enable
effective animal management, planning enforcement, local law compliance and fire prevention for
community and township amenity.

A number of policies and procedures have been developed, outlining the methodology and
circumstances under which Council officers will undertake compliance action. Key areas of focus
in respect to compliance action include:

management of local laws, particularly with respect to unsightly properties
effective animal management

assessment of properties for potential fire risk/fire prevention measures
control of roadside activities, occupation and utilisation

investigate planning scheme breaches and enforce planning permit conditions
intervention in public nuisance issues.

ISSUES/DISCUSSION

Administrative and fire prevention

Table 1 provides a summary of administrative and fire prevention actions undertaken.

Table 1: Administrative and fire prevention activities

Quarter 4 (1 April 2018 — 30 June 2018)

After hours Littering or illegal Fire permits Local law
Activity call outs (*) rubbish dumping to burn (*) permits issued
No. actions 12 4 0 0
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(™) The declared fire danger period ended at 1:00am on 3 April 2018.

(*) Council provides a 24 hour emergency call out service in respect to animal management or
local law compliance and enforcement.

Unsightly properties

A summary of activity statistics and locations that are the subject of compliance with local laws
relating to unsightly properties is provided in Table 2. ldentified unsightly properties are assessed
and prioritised for compliance action. A detailed presentation of the Development & Compliance
Departments approach and progress on unsightly properties was presented at the April Council
Forum.

Table 2: Summary of unsightly properties activities

Quarter 4 (1 April 2018 — 30 June 2018)

e c (<)) =
() © (D) — — = (D)
RN T | 3 ‘>° o) I oo |E
W 2B (2132 |= |2 c|lS |z |E|g |E T
Town/Locality | (@ |5 | |3 | |© |[2|2 |2 |Z |8 |2 & = Total
slclz e 2 12|2 |5 |0 | ElE |S |a|&
S |Xlg g (2|2 5 5 (@ s |2 o
L Z |F|= o |2 | a 2
No. identified
from previous | 4 |0 4 |2 | 5|2 |12 |2|2|1|2]|0|0]0]|1 37

report period

No. resolved
during quarter

New action
commenced

No. currently

. 2/0,4}1|4|2 |12 }|2|2|12|2]|0]|]0]|]0|1] 31
pursuing

Progress Activities

Site meeting /
discussion 3|/|ol2|1]|2]1| 4 |1|2|1(1]]0|]0]|]O0]|]O0]| 18
held

Letter to
comply issued

Occupier has
commenced |2 |01 |1|2}|1| 3 |1|2|1|1|]0|0|0]|1]| 16
clean-up work

Notice to
comply issued

Contractor
engaged for (0|0 O|O0O|O0O|O| O |O|O|O]|]O|]O|O|O]O]| O
clean-up work

The local laws staff are continuing to work with community members in resolving unsightly property
issues. Achieving resolution of unsightly property issues can be difficult, with many property
owners committing to attend to the issue and in some cases starting the process of cleaning up
only to relapse. This requires an approach of escalation of interventions until compliance is
reached. Many of these issues involve longstanding patterns of behaviour that will require
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continual intervention and time to establish significant change in individual’s behaviour in order for
lasting compliance to be reached.

Animal management

Table 3 provides a high level summary of animal management activities.

Table 3: Summary of animal management activities

Quarter 4 (1 April 2018 — 30 June 2018)
. Wandering | Trespassing | Dog Do.mestlc Distribution Gener.al
Activity : . animal at complaints
livestock livestock attack of cat traps
large / other
No. of
. 4 2 5 30 11 26
actions

Table 4 summarises animal management activities that resulted in impoundments, encompassing
both domestic animals and livestock.

Table 4: Impoundment activities

Quarter 4 (1 April 2018 — 30 June 2018)
il e | TpenmdmeiE Returned to Animals Animals
owners rehoused disposed
Livestock 2 1 1 0
Dogs 5 4 1 0
Cats 25 0 2 23 (feral)
Total 32 5 4 23

Planning Compliance and Enforcement

Table 5 provides a summary of planning compliance and enforcement activities undertaken.

Table 5: Planning compliance and enforcement activities

Quarter 4 (1 April 2018 — 30 June 2018)
. - No. No.
A |dent|_f|ed New action PIN’s resolved currently
Type from previous : ; . .
. commenced | issued | during this pursuing
report period .
guarter resolution
Land use in
contravention of
planning scheme S) 1 0 2 4
without a permit
Native vegetation
removal without a 2 2 0 1 3
permit
Breach of
planning permit 1 1 0 0 2
Dog breeding /
animal keeping 2 0 0 2 0
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Land used as a
store without 5 0 0 0 5
planning permit

Occupation of a

shed without a 2 0 0 0 2
planning permit
Total 17 4 0 5 16

Throughout all of the above compliance activities tabled, the Development and Compliance
Department aims to work proactively with property and animal owners to achieve a positive
outcome within the legislative framework set by the State Government and Council Local Laws.

COST/BENEFITS

The expenditure for the fourth quarter of 2017 — 2018 financial year for the local laws and
compliance activities contained within this report is $74,037. As the identified properties are
escalated through the compliance process, costs associated with legal proceedings may also be
incurred by Council.

The resulting cost to Council can be significant in terms of officer(s) time; particularly undertaking
various site inspections across Loddon Shire. Direct monetary costs can be significant should a
matter progress to the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal (VCAT) or the Magistrates Court.
Therefore, it is of benefit to Council and the community that the Development and Compliance
Department work through these matters in a timely and respectful manner to reach an appropriate
outcome wherever possible.

Benefits derived from investing in local law and planning compliance activities include:

improving and maintaining township amenity

ensuring that appropriate development occurs

maintaining and improving public safety

encouraging good domestic animal and livestock management
reduced bushfire risks.

RISK ANALYSIS

Failure of Council to adequately manage the provisions associated with the Loddon Planning
Scheme, Planning and Environment Act 1987 or other applicable legislation including the Domestic
Animals Act 1994, Impounding of Livestock Act 1994, Country Fire Authority Act 1958 or Council
Local Laws is considered to pose the following risks:

barrier to development and associated economic growth within Loddon Shire
inappropriate development

Council’s reputation as a regulatory authority

public safety that endangers life and property

adverse amenity of our townships

increased bushfire hazards.

CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

Land and animal owners subject to compliance and enforcement actions under the
abovementioned legislation and local laws are consulted with at each stage of the process.
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10.2 PUBLIC HEALTH ACTIVITY REPORT

File Number: 12/02/001

Author: Teresa Arnup, Senior Public Health Officer
Authoriser: Glenn Harvey, Manager Development and Compliance
Attachments: Nil

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive and note the Public Health activity report

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There is no conflict of interest for any council staff member involved in writing this report, or
involved in the subject matter of the report.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION

This is the fourth report for the 2017 — 2018 financial year, summarising public health activities
within the Development and Compliance Department.

BACKGROUND

Loddon Shire Council is responsible for the administration and enforcement of a number of Acts
including the:
e Food Act 1984
Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008
Residential Tenancies Act 1997
Environment Protection Act 1970
Tobacco Act 1987.

Council’s Public Health officer has regular contact with business operators, community groups,
home owners and developers whilst administering the above Acts. Activities undertaken by the
staff include inspection of registered premises, the taking of food and water samples, the issuing of
septic tank permits and complaint investigations.

ISSUES/DISCUSSION

Registered Premises

Council undertakes annual inspections of premises that are registered under the Food Act, Public
Health and Wellbeing Act and Residential Tenancies Act. Inspections are also undertaken of public
swimming pools and of properties that are required to meet the requirements of the Tobacco Act.
Table 1 provides a summary of the inspections undertaken during the reporting period.

Table 1: Reqistered premises inspections

1 April 2018 to 30 June 2018

Governing Legislation Inspection Outcome Number of inspections
Food Premises Co'f“p"a”t* - S0
Major Non Compliance 2
Health Premises Compliant* 4
Caravan Parks Compliant* 3
Total number of inspections for reporting period 59
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*compliant includes sites that were fully compliant and some sites that required minor actions to
become compliant

All unsatisfactory inspections are followed up with the businesses to ensure remedial actions are
taken. All major non-compliance matters identified in this report have now been resolved.

Septic Systems

Table 2 summarises septic system permit applications processed during the reporting period.

Table 2: Septic system permits

1 April 2018 to 30 June 2018
Permit Type Number
Installation or alteration 9
Certificate to use 6
Time Extensions or Change to Existing Permit 2
Total Number of Permits 17

The average processing time for permits to install or alter is eight days.

Table 3 summarises the activities associated with management of septic tank applications and
installed systems.

Table 3: Septic system activity

1 April 2018 to 30 June 2018

Activity / Inspection Type Number
Application Inspection 5
Installation Inspection 4
Final Inspection 4
Requested Inspection 0
AWTS Project Site Visits 0
Total Number of Inspections 13

Infectious Disease Referrals

Council is responsible for undertaking the investigation into infectious diseases when they are
referred to the Public Health Officer by the Department of Health and Human Services. Infectious
disease referrals may be for a single incident referral or that of an outbreak, time taken to
undertake these investigations will vary considerably depending on the type of referral.

Table 4 summarises the activities associated with infectious disease referrals

Table 4: Infectious Disease Referrals

1 April 2018 to 30 June 2018

Referral Type Number

Single Incident Referral 0
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Outbreak Referral

Total number of Referrals 1

Tobacco Act

Council is funded to undertake a set number of Tobacco inspections throughout the year. Most of
the inspections are carried out in conjunction with Food Act inspections, however a number of
them are non-smoking public outdoor venues such as at kindergartens, schools, play grounds and
hospitals. Table 5 summarises the Tabaco Act activities undertaken during the reporting period.

Table 5: Tobacco inspections

1 April 2018 to 30 June 2018

Inspection Type

Number

Licensed Premises

0

Retailer

Eating Establishment

Vending Machine

Public Outdoor Venues

Outdoor Dining

Total number of Inspections

AlO|h~|O|O|O

Public Health Complaints

Council is responsible for the investigation of nuisance complaints under the Public Health and
Wellbeing Act. Complaints of nuisance can be complex and time consuming. Table 6 summaries
the complaints during the reporting period

Table 6: Public health complaints

1 April 2018 to 30 June 2018
Number carried Number
: over from Number Number currently
Nature of complaint . : .
previous received resolved pursuing
reporting period resolution
Food Premises 0 0 0 0
Odour 0 0 0 0
Noise 0 1 0 1
Mosquitoes 0 0 0 0
Burning Off / Smoke 0 0 0 0
Wastewater 0 1 0 1
Tobacco 0 0 0 0
Other 1 0 0 1
Total 1 2 0 3
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COST/BENEFITS

The actual expenditure for the third quarter of 2017 — 2018 financial year of the public health unit
activities contained within this report is $28,871

Administration of the Acts that the Public Health officer has responsibility for includes significant
field work, with staff regularly in the field engaging with business operators, developers, residents
and ratepayers.

This investment increases significantly when compliance issues are identified within registered
premises and when complaints are received.

The benefits that stem from this investment include:

e improved public health and safety within registered premises

e improved local amenity

o full implementation by Council of our responsibilities under the various Acts and
regulations.

RISK ANALYSIS

Failure of Council to adequately administer and enforce the provisions of the applicable legislation
would pose the following possible risks:

the spread of infectious diseases through the community including food poisoning
a barrier to the new developments and economic growth within Council

Council’s reputation as a regulatory authority

contamination of the local environment

failure to meet obligations set within the relevant legislation.

CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

The Public Health Officer regularly engages with business operators, developers, residents and
ratepayers during the administration of the various Acts which can range from annual
assessments/inspections to the provision of advice for the processing of septic tank permits. Any
business operator, developer, residents or ratepayer that is subject to enforcement action is
regularly consulted with during the enforcement process.
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10.3 ROAD MANAGEMENT PLAN DEFECT RECTIFICATION COMPLIANCE REPORT

File Number: 14/01/022

Author: Daniel LIoyd, Manager Works
Authoriser: Steven Phillips, Director Operations
Attachments: Nil

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive and note the road management plan defect rectification compliance report.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There is no conflict of interest for any council staff member involved in writing this report, or
involved in the subject matter of the report.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION

This is the fourth report for the 2017 - 2018 financial year, summarising road network defect
rectification compliance against requirements specified within the Loddon Shire Road Management
Plan (RMP).

BACKGROUND

This report is produced quarterly and provides statistical data with respect to the Organisation’s
performance in managing the road network. Performance is measured through a comparison of
actual defect rectification timeframes against requirements specified in the RMP.
ISSUES/DISCUSSION

Table 1 below provides a summary of the compliance against the schedule of road and street
inspection regimes as set in the RMP.

Table 1: Inspection summary report

Quarter 4 (01/04/2018 — 30/06/2018)
Number of Number Number Number not
District scheduled completed completed completed Compliance
inspections | by due date | after due date P
Loddon Plains 116 116 0 0 100%
Loddon Goldfields 132 132 0 0 100%
Total 248 248 0 0 100%

During the fourth quarter of 2017 — 2018 financial year, 100% of the programmed inspections were
completed according to the schedule. Table 2 below provides a summary of compliance of actual
response times for rectification works of defects as detailed in the defect intervention levels and
response timetables of the RMP.
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Table 2: Defect rectification summary report

Quarter 4 (01/04/2018 — 30/06/2018)

Number of Defects

Compliant with RMP

Defects Not
District Ad hoc Requests from Total Yes No %

. . complete

inspections
Loddon Goldfields 40 6 390 436 436 0 100%
Loddon Plains 25 7 391 423 422 0 99.8%
Shire Wide 48 3 565 616 616 0 100%
Townscape 16 2 39 57 54 0 94.7%
Services
Total 129 18 1385 1532 1528 0 98.6%

Table 2 comprises a summary of defects that have been identified through programed inspections,
customer requests and works crews identifying and rectifying defects as they find them, known as
ad hoc work actions. During the third quarter of 2017 — 2018 financial year, 98.6% of all date

imposed defects were completed before their due date. This is 1.4% below the target of 100% set

in the RMP.

Table 3 provides a summary of performance against the unsealed road maintenance grading
program, defects as identified through programed inspections, customer requests and works crews
identifying and rectifying defects as they find them, known as ad hoc work actions. The
maintenance grading program identifies each road segment by its road hierarchy and grading
frequency as detailed in the RMP.

Table 3: Maintenance grading program

Quarter 4 (01/04/2018 — 30/06/2018)

Number of Grading Work Actions

Compliant with scheduled timeframes

Programmed Ad Not
District Maintenance | Requests Total Yes No %
. hoc completed
Grading
Loddon Goldfields 336 5 16 357 332 0 25 91.0%
Loddon Plains 269 3 21 293 277 3 13 99.4%
Total 605 8 37 650 609 3 38 95.2%

The data in table 3 indicates that 612 grading work actions were completed for the third quarter of
the 2017 — 2018 financial year. There is no set level of compliance for the maintenance grading
program in the RMP.

A graph has been provided in Chart 1 indicating a breakdown of the grading work actions, by road
hierarchy and kilometres. The sealed roads section relates to shoulder grading work actions on the
Sealed Road network. The gravel road section includes all grading work actions on Gravel
Collector and Gravel Access roads. The Gravel Minor and the Formed Road sections relate
directly to Council’s road hierarchy and show all grading work action on roads within that hierarchy.

Item 10.3

Page 258




ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 28 AUGUST 2018

Chart 1: Maintenance Grading Program

GRADING PROGRAM (QUARTER 4 TOTAL KM)

Adhoc Grading

COST/BENEFITS

The year to date actual expenditure to the end of fourth quarter of 2017 — 2018 financial year of the
Local Road Maintenance Program is $5,713,769. The expenditure for the fourth quarter was
$1,308,742.

The benefits to the community in complying with the RMP are that it ensures a safe road network.

RISK ANALYSIS

Repairing 100% of all date imposed defects before their due date limits Council’s liability for any
claims for damage made against Council.

CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

No internal or external consultation is required in the formation of this report.
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10.4 PLANNING PERMIT ACTIVITY REPORT

File Number: 13/01/002

Author: Alexandra Jefferies, Planning Officer

Authoriser: Glenn Harvey, Manager Development and Compliance
Attachments: 1. Planning permit activity report
RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive and note the planning application and permit activity report.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There is no conflict of interest for any council staff member involved in writing this report, or
involved in the subject matter of the report.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION

This is the fourth report for the 2017 — 2018 financial year summarising planning application
activities undertaken within the Development and Compliance Department.

BACKGROUND

This report covers the planning permit activity for each quarter and provides Council with a high
level summary for the purpose of monitoring performance within this area.

Council maintains powers under the Planning & Environment Act 1987 which are delegated to
Planning Officers. Applications made under these powers may include (but are not limited to) the
following:

e consideration of a planning application for a new use/development
e consideration of an amendment to an existing planning permit
e secondary consent applications (minor changes)

e extensions of time to existing planning permits.

ISSUES/DISCUSSION

Planning permit activities

A detailed summary of the status of planning permits can be found in attachment 1: Planning
permits status report 1 April 2017 — 30 June 2017.

Timeframes

The Planning & Environment Act 1987 requires a 60 day timeframe for the processing of planning
applications by Councils. The Act details how the 60 days are to be measured following the
acceptance of a planning permit application.

Table 1 provides a summary of the average timeframes in which the Development and Compliance
Department assessed and issued Planning Permits during the fourth quarter of the 2017 — 2018
financial year and compares these to the Victorian rural average.
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Table 1: Average timeframes for decisions

Quarter 3 of the 2017/2018 financial year

I Rural average
Average gross days Completed within 60 s
Month to determine days complet;d within 60

ays

April 51 days 100% 73%
May 38 days 67% 73%
June 78 days 75% 73%
Total Quarterly 80% 73%

average

During the fourth quarter of the 2017 — 2018 financial year 80% of all Planning Permit applications
were assessed and issued within the timeframes as set in the Planning & Environment Act.

COST/BENEFITS

The expenditure for the fourth quarter of 2017 — 2018 financial year of the statutory planning
activities contained within this report is $28,367

Benefits derived from investing in the planning process managed by the Development and
Compliance Department include:

¢ well managed and appropriate development

e well informed community members who understand the value of planning within local
government

e applications processed in a timely manner

e implementation of correct regulations and standards.

RISK ANALYSIS

Failure of Council to adequately implement the planning scheme poses the following risks:
¢ inappropriate development which could endanger life and property
e Council’s reputation as a responsible Authority
e Dbreaches of the Planning & Environment Act 1987 requiring compliance action.

Insufficient investment in resources in the Development and Compliance Department may result in
extended timeframes for the processing of applications.

CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT
The Planning Staff consults with a number of stakeholders on a regular basis including:
e applicants
e surrounding land owners
e regulatory authorities
e other Loddon Shire Council departments

e other municipalities.
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File No. 13/02/004

Planning Applications Being Processed Between 01-04-2018 and 30-06-2018

Application Datle Property Applicant Address of Land Proposal Status
Received No
5117 28/08/2015 31109500 Adrian Cummins CA 3 Section 9 Parish of Bridgewater (14 3 lot Residential Referral
Park Street Bridgewater on Loddon) Subdivision
5118 28/08/2015 52807700 PM Lewis Plan No PP5391 CA 9 & 10 Section 4A Residential Subdivision Further Info
Parish of Inglewood (Nixon Street of 41 lots Requested
Inglewood)
5251 07/12/2016 Graeme Smith CA 16F Section G Parish of Boort (Crown Provision of new Referral
Land Boort Pyramid Rd BOORT) earthen levees &
upgrading existing
levees
5275.1 18/04/2018 46905400 Karl Lawson CA CA 1A & 1B Section Section 15 Parish Modify road access to Referral
of Tarnagulla (Boyds Road Newbridge) property via Yorkshire
Rd & Boyds Rd North
& amend locction of
retarding basin.
5298 13/07/2017 28406600 Jamie Horkings CA 12,20 Section E Parish of Yarrowalla Permit for removal of Further Info
(1611 Boort-Pyramid Road Durham Ox) native vegetation Requested
5303 25/07/2017 28405500 Jamie Horkings Lot 182 Plan No 388470 & 862510 Removal of Native Referral
Parish of Yarrowalla (99 Yarrawalla West Vegetation
Road DURHAM OX)
5326 09/11/2017 45606500 Jack Robinson CA 11 Section 6 Parish of Tamagulla Residential- single Further Info
(Raglan Street NEWBRIDGE) dwelling Requested
5328 15/11/2017 53600100 Orana Agriculture Pty CA 17 Section NO SEC Parish of Tree removal for Further Info
Ltd Kinypanial (167 Borung-Hurstwood Road proposed pivot and Requested
BORUNG) linear irrigation
development
5341 06/02/2018 17201000 James Golsworthy CA 3 Parish of Terrappee (127 Grandview Use & development of Referral
Road Booart) a residential hotel
(support accomodation
to olive grove) &
associated works
5344 16/02/2018 Indivar Dhakal Parish of ROAD RESERVE (Pyramid Removal of native Referral
Yarraberb Rd WOOLSHED CORNER) vegetation is required
for road safety.
Page 1 0of 3
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Application Datle o Applicant Address of Land Proposal Status
Received No
5352 22/03/2018 56000600 Adam Parry CA 11B Section NO SEC Parish of Construction of farm Referral
Powlett (Loddon West Road Powlett channel and removal
Plains) of 7 trees
5354 23/03/2018 45703900 Sandor Molnar CA 12 Section 11 Parish of Painswick Mushroom farm and Further Info
(Sporting Flat Road DUNOLLY) associated shed Requested
5355 29/03/2018 Tony Jakabovic CA CA 28 Section sec 9 Parish of Use and development Notice of
INGLEWOOD (Southey Street Inglewood) of the land for a fire Application
station
5356 29/03/2018 52817600 Tony Jakabovic 100 Southey Street Inglewood Fire Station New
5359 27/04/2018 32907980 Sandy Roberts Lot 2 Plan No 413180 Parish of Subdivide land to Further Info
Janiember East (5998 Loddon Valley create a lot for an Requested
Highway Bears Lagoon) existing dwelling
5361 07/05/2018 53601400 Orana Agriculture Pty CA 83B Parish of Kinypanial (Loddon Extension to existing Referral
Ltd West Road Kinypanial ) linear irrigator and
removal of native
vegetation
5367 30/05/2018 67736910 Peter Shaw Lot 3 Plan No 636975G Parish of Police Residence Referral
Wedderburne (32 Ridge Street
Wedderburn)
5368 08/06/2018 52847620 Rod Hinton CA 21 Section B Parish of Inglewood Development of Referral
(Weeah Street Inglewood) dwelling & installation
of required
infrastructure.
5369 08/06/2018 17201000 James Golsworthy CA 77 & 79 Section NO SEC Parish of Development of Referral
Terrappee (127 Grandview Road Boort) workers
accommodation and
associated works
5370 14/06/2018 47507800 Coliban Regional Water Lot 16 Plan No 141509 (Williamsons New chemical storage Referral
Corporaton Road Laanecoorie) tank & associated
pumps & pipe required.
5371 14/06/2018 10707940 Bruce Hilton Lot Lot 2 & 4 Plan No PS 615690S Use and development Notice of
Parish of Boort (McMillans Road Boort) of a retail premises for Application
sale of Agricultural
products
5372 21/06/2018 42001200 Nicholas Goodes CA 1 Section 5 Parish of Eddington (3 Construction of New
McCoy Street Eddington) dwelling and shed
Page 2 of 3
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Application Datle A Applicant Address of Land Proposal Status
Received No
5375 26/06/2018 47508200 Teena Wait Lot 20 Plan No 141509 Parish of Construction of new Further Info
Waanyarra (Tarnagulla-Laanecoorie two storey dwelling Requested
Road Laanecoorie) 96.8m2
PLANNING PERMITS ISSUED UNDER DELEGATION BETWEEN 01-04-2018 and 30-06-2018
APP. DATE APPLICANT ADDRESS OF LAND PROPOSAL DATE
No RECEIVED ISSUED
5314 12/09/2017 Corie Birthisel CA CA 8A Section 2 Parish of Inglewood Use and development of the land as timber store 13/04/2018
(Calder Highway Bridgewater) and alteration of access to Road Zone 1
5337 09/01/2018 Matthew Chalmers CA 24 Section NO SEC Parish of Wychitella Native vegetation removal to enable installation 13/04/2018
(Old Charlton-Boort Road Mysia) of 2 centre pivot irrigators.
5343 12/02/2018 Nick Filipovski CA 62A Section 10 Parish of Moliagul (O'Briens Use and development of a dwelling within the 05/04/2018
Drive Mcintyre) Farming Zone and Bushfire Management
Overlay and display of business identification
si_q.naqe
5345 20/02/2018 Gerard Brandrick & Parish of Wedderburne (90 High Street Use & development of land for Emergency 21/05/2018
Associates Pty Ltd Wedderbum) Services Building (Police station)
5350 06/03/2018 GL & WE Twigg CA 6 Section 1 Parish of Yarrayne (1789 Construction of three stand shearing shed. 17/04/2018
Bridgewater-Serpentine Road Serpentine)
5357 29/03/2018 T & JF Nelsson Lot Lot 2 Plan No PS 622481M CA 33 Parish of Use and development of the land for a dwelling 06/06/2018
Kurting (Wedderburn-Serpentine Road and meeting space
Glenalbyn)
5358 04/04/2018 Neville Perry Old Lead Road Dunolly Alluvial mining 27/06/2018
5360 30/04/2018 | Anne Moodie CA 5A Section D Parish of Glenalbyn Construction of single bedroom dwelling 27/06/2018
(Inglewood-Arnold West Road Inglewood)
5362 10/05/2018 Ranjani Jha Appin South Native vegetation removal 06/06/2018
5363 14/05/2018 Bruce Rowley 28 Main Street Bridgewater on Loddon Construction of a shed within the Township Zone 07/06/2018
and Heritage Overlay
5373 21/06/2018 Brendan Reeves CA 54 Section 5 Parish of Wedderburne (423 Building a farm shed less than 100m from 27/06/2018
Calder Highway Wedderburn) highway
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10.5 UPDATE ON THE ANNUAL INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM 2017-2018, FLOOD
RESTORATION PROGRAM AND OTHER PROJECTS

File Number: 14/01/001

Author: Indivar Dhakal, Manager Technical Services

Authoriser: Steven Phillips, Director Operations

Attachments: 1. Annual Infrastructure Program 2017 - 2018 Summary

2. Flood Restoration Project Summary

3.  Other Projects Summary

RECOMMENDATION

That Council note the update on progress of the Annual Infrastructure Program 2017-2018, Flood
Restoration Program and other projects as at June 2018.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There is no conflict of interest for any Council staff member involved in the preparation of this
report, or involved in the subject matter of the report.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION

This is the fourth report for the 2017 — 2018 financial year, providing an update on the progress of
Annual Infrastructure Program, Flood Restoration Program. The progress of other projects that are
delivered by the Technical Services Department but are not part of the Annual Infrastructure
Program or the Flood Restoration Program are included for the first time in this report.

BACKGROUND

This report is produced quarterly and is provided to Council for the purpose of reporting progress of
the Annual Infrastructure Program, Flood Restoration Program and other projects that the
Technical Services Department is responsible for delivering. The information in this report covers
progress up until the end of June 2018.

ISSUES/DISCUSSION

Annual Infrastructure Program

Attachment 1 provides a progress summary for the end of 2017 - 2018 financial year of the Annual
Infrastructure Program. There are 125 individual projects, including carryovers from previous
financial years that form the Annual Infrastructure Program 2017 - 2018. 111 of these projects
were completed by the end of financial year. A further 11 projects are either currently being
progressed or awaiting construction after tenders being awarded. There are three projects have
not been started, details of which are in the comments column of the attachment.

Flood Restoration Project

Attachment 2 provides a progress summary for the end of 2017 - 2018 financial year of the Flood
Restoration Project. The recorded damages are continuously monitored and reassessed which has
resulted in consolidation of multiple damages and as such the total number of recorded damages
has decreased from the previous report. The flood restoration team is currently working towards
awarding all the restoration projects to suitably qualified contractors included on Councils Panel of
Contractors by October 2018.
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Other Projects

In addition to the Annual Infrastructure Program and Flood Restoration Program, the Technical
Services Department is responsible to oversee the delivery of a number of different projects.
Attachment 3 provides a summary of the other projects for the end of 2017 - 2018 financial year.

COST/BENEFITS

The total expenditure at the end of 2017 - 2018 financial year for the Annual Infrastructure Program
is $4,510,033. The expenditure on the fourth quarter of 2017 - 2018 year is $767,716.

The total expenditure for the Flood Restoration Program at the end of 2017 - 2018 financial year is
$4,278,652. Expenditure in the fourth quarter of the 2017 - 2018 financial year is $2,033,473.

The major flood restoration project at Tandarra Serpentine Road and Rothackers Road is currently
in progress. The tendered amount of the combined works on these roads is in excess of $3.5
million. There are a number of other damages for which packages of work have been awarded
under the Panel of Contractors for Flood Restoration Contract. The total value of such projects is
approximately $1 million.

The Technical Services Department is currently managing other significant projects covered in
attachment 3 which are in different stages progress. The combined value of such projects is in
excess of $5 million, the expenditure to date is more than $3.4 million.

RISK ANALYSIS

There are a number of risks associated with the delivery of the Annual Infrastructure Program, the
Flood Restoration Program and other significant projects. The following is a list of some but not all
of the associated risks.

o delivering within timeframe and budget

e meeting community expectations

e delivering projects in accordance with engineering standards
e compliance with procurement legislation

Council officers are committed to monitoring and managing the risks associated with the Annual
Infrastructure Program, the Flood Restoration Program and other significant projects to ensure that
any issues are minimised.

CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

The information provided in this report is presented after consultation between Manager Technical
Services, Flood Restoration team and the Works Department.
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Status Report - Annual Infrastructure Program 2017-2018

As at 30 June 2018
Category Project No Project Name Project Details Expenditure % Activity Comments
LRS1084 (Gredgwin East Rd Resheet 1.850km x 4.6m x 100mm $58,122 100
LRS1085 Barraport East Rd Resheet 1.200km x 6m x 100mm $49,805 100
% LRS1135 Keoghs Lane Resheet 1.2km x 4.7m x 100mm $14.212 100
E Polycom treatment/pyrmid salt it
5 LRS1148 Sylvaterre Rd 6. 03kmxGmx100mm 534,473 100
E LRS1150 Pyramid Hill - Cohuna Rd Resheet 2. 3kmx6mx100mm $63.077 100
™
Q2
3 LRS1151 Wchitella Bus Route Rd Resheet 1.1kmx4.Tmx100mm $15.269 100
LRS1153 Sylvaterre Timms Lake Rd  |Resheet 2.5kmxB6mx100mm $59.116 100
LRSS0300 Wedderburmn Wychitela Ry~ [5/00/06r reshest 1.8km x 1.8 x100mm 2 $38.923 100
LRSS0301 Wedderbum Dunolly R~ [Shouider resheet 1.1km x 1.8 x100mm 2 $24,408 100
§
& |rssoanz Wedderbum Dunolly Ry~ [Shouider resheet 0.6km x 1.8 x100mm 2 $4,832 100 [invoice Pending
-
g
F]
]
s LRSS0305 Inglewwood Dunolly Rd :Q‘:”"’ raahaat 1.3km i 1.5 x100mm 32 $25,090 100
:
£ |irssoaa Rheola Lianelly Rd Shoucer reshest 1 3km X 1.8 x100mm x2 $36.744 100
o
3
LRSS0348 Wedderbum Serpentine Rg [S101ICer resheet 1.8km x 1.8m x 100mm x2 | g4q 575 100
LRSS0349 Wedderbum Serpentine Rd EQ‘:”"’ raahaat 1.7km i 1.5m x100mm x 2 19,240 100
LRS50431 |Echuca Serpentine Rd Shoulder resheet 2.8km, 1.8m x 2 sides $34.233 100
Rehabilitate existing failing pavement and seal
with 6.2 m seal . Incopprate and stabilitse
existing pavement material overlay with
LRCO469 Borung Hurstwood Rd 100mm base course and seal. Realign the $163.479 100
road to straighten the kink east of Loddon
West Rd intersection. Install a floodway if
- required.
a8
o
g
£
£ .
8 Construction of 6.2 m sealed surface over
LRC0470 Yarrawalla West Rd xisting gravel pavemen. Incorporate and $702,047 100
stabilize existing pavement material overlay
- with 150mm base course and seal
Q2
3 (Construct nt ti odate
- struct a new pavement to accommada ; "
. . i 7. 1
LRC Billings Road 8.2m wide seal and appropriate table drain $397.406 00 Invoice Pending
Rehabilitate existing failing pavement and seal Carrled forward from
LRC0413 Cemetery Road | i B 2m sonl $169,517 100 |a01g2017
Carrled forward from
2016/2017, project needs
LRCO0439/0440 Sebastian Road Rehabilitate existing failing pavement and seal 50 v] rescoping to include traffic
movement near
Bridk Silo
E 1 Realign and reconstruct intersection to change . "
Fi L " 1,87 1
3 SAFD024 Pyramid Yarraberb Rd intersection type from 8 Y lo @ T, $261.870 00 Invoice Pending
Sealing of local township road shoulder
= between exsting seal and kerb & channel on
£ AMNO30 Godirey St, Wedderburn both sides of Godfrey St bet Ridge St and $11,057 100
E (Wilson St. Only prep and seal required.
<
AMND29 Kelly St, Pyramid Hill Bus stop, kerb and channel and pavement $119.021 100

rehab
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Installation of new footpath to service
properties on west side and from existing ramp Tender awarded, in
TSI0425 Market St Footpath to the new public toilet at the Inglewood Town %0 0 progress
Hall
Replace existing foolpath and continue with Tender awarded, in
TSI0426 (Coutts St Footpath new footpath to the intersection so 0 progress
TSI0424/0428 .Cl'ﬂpd St streat Consr:rum Kerb & Channel, pedesirian ) $83.470 100
e improvement crossing, footpath and street reconstruction
- Replace footpath (stage 1) to connect .
E 1510430 High St, Wedderburn streetscape project with Racecourse Rd 50 0 Tender awarded, in
& footpath progress
-3 Pa
; + (Construct new footpath as a strategic footpath Tender awarded, in
= 1510429 Hospital St (east sida) to connect P-12 College up to Calder Hwy s 0 progress
Tsio382 Railway Ave Insltall new fclvotpalh from Victoria St to PH s0 0 Tender awarded, in
Railway Station progress
TS Kerr St, Wedderburn Kerb and Channel replacement $4.210 100
TS1040: Kelly St, Pyramid Hill Footpath replacement $166.063 100
TSI040! Victoria St, Pyramid Hill Footpath replacement $329.826 100
TSI041 |Barber St, Pyramid HIl Kerb and Channel replacement $15,700 100
TSI042: Serpentine Car Park Upgrade and seal car park $75.824 100 Pending invoices
(Carry cut significant repairs to structure as
Janevale Bridge (structure  [detailed in level 2 bridge report. This bridge is
No 141) (Carry forward from |on the heritage register. As part of the works
LBCCO358 2015-16 - new funding an assesment on maintaining a 15t load limit s 0 In progress
required) land associated works will be undertaken and
P completed if budget allows
2
£ i : Replace existing culvert with 375mm dia RCP
" r 1
3 LBCCO365 Main St, Laanecoorie with endwalls on both sides $5.460 0o
=
£
s LBCCO367 Boort Kurting Road Installation of 1200 x 450 box culvert 50 100 Invoice Pending
&
2
m Kingower-Brenanah Rd (SN |Replace 7-10 bearers infested with white ants
§ LBCCO364 230) land perform white ant reatment %0 0 In progress
-
Install 900x300 box culvert with wingwalls at
LBCCO366 Waterford Rd the approximate chainage specified, Take $13,517 100
levels to d ine best location
Replace broken cast iron pipe with 375mm
LBCCO215 Junor Rd x12.20m RCP including suitable endwalls $5.112 100
. Upgraded drainage desing and scope to
TSDO140/0136 (Chapel 5t, Serpentine TSD135 and 136 and TSI0424 $312.334 100
@ Design and construction repair of seepage
g TSDO138 (Old Inglewood Reservoir points on embankment for further rehabilitation $27.556 50 In progress
,—; project TSD0099
o " - o—y . . Mo
Inglewood Drainage D 1 devices n akong
€ g
B 800139 Mitigation calch drain and at reservoir §19,880 100
= -
. . ; . Tender awarded, in
TSDO137 Wilson Kerr St Irstall new drainage pits and pipes 30 o oaress
TSDO133 Sugar gum drive Irstall new drainage pits and pipes 37.074 o Landholder engagement
completa
]
[}
-] 61 Projects Multiple Spray seal contract $1,083,455 100
[
PGCO09 Senior Citizens Centre, Boort g‘r::" automatic sprinklers into the front lawn $9.079 100
5 A Install irrigation control box to run the existing
PGCO12 Lakeview St irrigation system sprinklers utomatically §7.028 100
New plants at the front, upgrade irrigation
PGCO13 ‘Wedderburn Office system, garden beds on the side, Kikuya turf $21,279 100
on skdes and nature strip
s PGCO14 Gladfield Rd/Durham Ox Rd ??g::ﬁﬁ:gﬁ:ﬁ:';":;ﬁi:::m wPes | gg258 100
g
H
= Plant hardy native plants and 2 different types
s PGCO15 St Araud Rd/Calder Hwy  |of rock with red and whicte mulch area beside $11,467 100
£ police station
Replace/install bin surround, construct
N concrete base - Nolan's Park x6, Historical
PGCO16 ?n‘:ogzg"m“”"d Park x2, Rotary Park x1, Fishing club x2, $31,774 100
P Myrnong beach x1, Lake view st BBQ areax1,
southside of lake on walking track x1
PGCO10 Ingl i Botanical Garden [New irrigation system and power $8.614 100
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BLOODT 789 Dlngele Roag -P-12 Demolish the existing caretaker's residence to $19,025 100
Caretaker's Residence round
Murphy's Creek Rec Demolish the existing corrugated iron sheet .
|BLDD[32 Reserve building 50 0 Awaiting potential land sale
BLOO03 We«_ﬂderburn Mechanics Whlne ant treatment on flooring and $106.021 a0 Additional works identified
it as requried
. . Remove existing failing timber deck and
BLDOD4 Shire Office replace with merbau or composite decking $18.900 100
g
= Public Toilet cosmetic (Cosmetic treatment of the asthetics of public
E BLDOOS upgrade ioltles $17.435 100
BLDOOG N idge Public Hall Gutter repl $8,066 100
Inglewood Senior
BLDOOT Citizens/Pre-School and (Gutter and roof leak maintenance 59,794 100
MCH
BLDOOB Shire Office Mave the irrigation pump from records room $2.763 100
BLDODS Shire Office Paint works on the hallway to improve amenity $4.000 100
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Status Report - Flood Damage Restoration Works

As at 30 June 2018
Number of |Number of Number of damage
S. No. |Rectification work category |damages damages rectification currently in  [% Complete
recorded rectified progress or quote sought

1 Sealed Roads Damage 81 54 24 67

2  |Grading required 289 289 0 100

3 |Shoulder Failure 112 82 11 73

4 Grading with Material 783 220 0 o8
required

5 |Gravel Resheet required 441 145 22 33

& |Bridge Repair 3 1 2 33

7 |Major tree Removal 12 12 0 100

& |[Minor Tree Removal 40 40 0 100

9 Floo:_jways reinstatement and 177 85 40 48
repair

10 Malor. Culvert Damage and 26 15 6 58
cleaning works

11 Mmr::-r_CuIven Damage and 112 87 0 78
Cleaning works

12 |Waterway Clearing works 50 50 0 100
Guardrail Damage/ Sign

13 Damage or Lost 7 0 0 0

14 |Others 88 0 0 0
Total 2221 1080 105 49
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Status Report - Other Projects

As at 30 June 2018
5.No Project Description Estimated/Budgeted Cost  [Expenditure Responsible Officer  |Activity % Comments
Project is divided in two
phases. The first phase to
construct a siphon structure
1|Boort Levee 5 500,000.00 | 5 15,000.00 | PMC, PE/O 10 is ready to be advertised for
quotation. The next phase
of levee bank construction
isin planning permit phase
o |Wedderbur Pedestrian | ¢ 22,00000 | PMC, PE/O 20
Crossing study
Pyramid Hill Drainage
3|strategy and drainage data | $ 500,000.00 | $ 15,199.00 | PMC, PE/O 15
capture
Contract Management | ¢ 15,000.00 | $ 10,875.00 | PMC 80
Manual
5 Electronic Procurement s 10,000.00 | 5 PMC 60 Supplier evaluation
System complete
Contract Management $70,000| $ BMC o 'Waiting for cnrpolrate
Systemn system to be finalised
Community handbook is
I f
6|Roadside Management Plan| $ 45,000.00 | § 36,128.00 | MTS %0 currently being drafted,
expected by December
2018
Township, Locality and | ¢ 20,00000 | § 20,000.00 | PMC, PE/O 100
Boundary sign audits
8 |Wedderburn Streetscape s 3,462,610.00 | 5 3,391,302.00 | MTS, PMC 100
Asbestos Audit and s 66,00000 | § 29,960.00 | BMO 2 annual cost for
Remaoval 3 years contract
10 Newbridge Septic System N 100,000.00 | & 2,180.00 | PMC, PE/O 15 Tender documents are
replacement currently being prepared
1 Pub!lt_fﬁtl'llles and office s 160,000.00 | § BMO N/A 3 years_cuntract. ONROINgE
cleaining (contract) expenditure
1|t (ke Boortretaining | ¢ 40,000.00 | $ PMC NA  [2018-2019
o
13 Wedderbulm township 5 40,000.00 | 5 MTS 5 Designs are being finalised
entrance sign
Responsible Officer
PMC  |Project ment Coordinator
PE/O Project Engineer/Officer
MTS h Technical Services
BMO  |Building Maintenance Officer
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10.6 BUILDING SERVICES ACTIVITY

File Number: 13/06/001, 13/08/001 & 13/08/003

Author: Greg Johnston, Municipal Building Surveyor
Authoriser: Glenn Harvey, Manager Development and Compliance
Attachments: Nil

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive and note the Building Services Activity report.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There is no conflict of interest for any council staff member involved in writing this report, or
involved in the subject matter of the report.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION

Three prior reports for the 2017 — 2018 financial year summarising building services activities
relating to permits, certificates and statutory enforcement activity undertaken within the
Development & Compliance Department have been provided to Council. This is the fourth & final
quarterly report for the 2017 - 2018 financial year.

BACKGROUND

Council provides a range of building services through the Municipal Building Surveyor including the
following:

e issuing relevant permits and certificates

e issuing report & consent determinations on matters not complying with the Building
regulations

¢ building advisory and information services including legal point of discharge requests
e consultancy and building control functions

e administrative functions prescribed by the Building Act & Regulations including keeping
records relating to the activity of private building surveyors issuing permits within Loddon
Shire

e regulatory enforcement of relevant Acts.

The number of building and occupancy permits and final inspections is a basic indicator of building
development and investment within Loddon Shire.

Whilst new issues requiring enforcement are brought to Council’s attention regularly it is also noted
there are some longstanding enforcement activities that require follow up. The time spent on some
individual items including one action that has proceeded to Court action has meant other items that
are outstanding have not been followed up as would be desirable. These will be followed up by the
Municipal Building Surveyor on a risk management basis as part of ongoing work planning.

During this quarter new Building Regulations, the Building Regulations 2018 have commenced.
Staff have attended information and training sessions and amended administration forms and
procedures to satisfy the provisions of the new Regulations.

ISSUES/DISCUSSION

Building permits

ltem 10.6 Page 274




ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

28 AUGUST 2018

Table 1 provides the number and total value of building permits issued for the fourth quarter of the
2017 — 2018 financial year. There is variation in the number and value of permits across the
various quarters throughout any given financial year. The variation in value is largely attributable to
the scale and cost of individual projects with some individual projects with large values having
been approved and commenced.

Table 1: Summary of new building permits issued

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
(01/072017 - (01/10/2017 - (01/01/2018 - (01/04/2018 -
30/09/2017) 31/12/2017) 31/03/2018) 30/06/2018)
N @ DS 40 52 34 52
Permits
Value of Works $3,565,904 $2,664,223 $3,306,295 $4,289,104.07

Table 2 provides a summary of the number of final inspections and certificates of occupancy
issued for building permits during the first, second and third quarter of the 2017 — 2018 financial

year.

Table 2: Summary of final inspections and certificates of occupancy

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
(01/072017 - (01/10/2017 - (01/01/2018 - (01/04/2018 -
30/09/2017) 31/12/2017) 31/03/2018) 30/06/2018)
Certificates of
final inspection 21 33 35 39
Certificates of
occupancy 18 24 8 8
Permits

It is noted that there is a significant backlog of incomplete building permits that the Development
and Compliance Department are following up with owners as part of a proactive program to try and
finalise these building permits.

Statutory enforcement

Table 3 provides a high level summary of statutory enforcement activities undertaken by the
Municipal Building Surveyor.
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Table 3: Summary of statutory enforcement activities

Actions
incomplete
from
previous
report
period

No. Legal
New Building Building | resolved action Legal
action notice order during started action
started issued issued this this ongoing
quarter quarter

Type

Building

damaged by 1 0 0 1 0 1 1
fire

Works
required to
make
building 4 0 0 0 3 0 0
safe
(including
pools)

Carrying out
building
works 4 2 1 1 2 0 0
without a
permit

lllegal
occupation
of non- 2 0 0 2 0 0 0
habitable
building

Building
with non-
complying
essential
safety
measures

COST/BENEFITS

The expenditure for the fourth quarter of the 2017 — 2018 financial year for building services
activities contained within this report is $32,821.

The provision of building activity statistics informs Council of the level of building activity and
statutory enforcement activity in the municipality.

The cost to Council of enforcement activity can be quite significant, particularly in terms of Council
officer’s time. This in turn impacts on other activities such as the timeframe for building permits.
Direct monetary costs significantly escalate if matters progress to a Magistrate’s hearing or the
Municipal Building Surveyor needs to arrange for the work associated with any order to be
completed by Council. As such, the Development & Compliance Department staff endeavour to
work through enforcement matters in a manner that engages with property owners / occupiers to
have required works completed.
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RISK ANALYSIS

There are risks associated with building and development works. As such, it is imperative that
Building legislation, standards and controls are administered effectively. Failure of Council to
adequately enforce the provisions of applicable legislation poses the following possible risks:

o unsafe development and building works which may affect the safety of property owners,
occupiers and the general public within Loddon Shire
e Council’s reputation as a regulatory authority
e Council being held liable for failure to act in a matter which results in damage to other
property, or injury or death to a person
o failure to meet statutory obligations set within relevant legislation.
1.
As part of the risk management process when undertaking enforcement work the Municipal
Building Surveyor makes reference to the building enforcement intervention filter criteria,
developed by the Victorian Municipal Building Surveyors Group and which forms part of the
procedures covered in Loddon Shire Council’s Building Control Policy.

CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

The Municipal Building Surveyor regularly engages with business operators, developers, residents
and ratepayers during the administration of the various Acts which can range from annual
assessments/inspection to the provision of advice for the processing of building permits. Any
business operator, developer, residents or ratepayer that is subject to enforcement action is
regularly consulted with during the enforcement process to give them the opportunity to avoid the
next step up in enforcement action.
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10.7 STRATEGIC PLANNING ACTIVITY REPORT

File Number: 13/01/002

Author: Carolyn Stephenson, Statutory / Strategic Planner
Authoriser: Glenn Harvey, Manager Development and Compliance
Attachments: Nil

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive and note the Strategic Planning Activity report.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There is no conflict of interest for any council staff member involved in writing this report, or
involved in the subject matter of the report.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION

This is the second report for the 2017 — 2018 financial year summarising the strategic planning
activities undertaken within the Development and Compliance Department.

BACKGROUND

Council undertakes strategic land use planning projects to ensure that its planning scheme is
robust and relevant, and is consistent with and supports the Council Plan.

This report provides an overview of the current activities of the Strategic Planner. The Strategic
Planner’s time is divided between statutory planning (10 hours per week) and strategic planning (8
hours per week) activities. It is the strategic planning activities that are the subject of this report.

ISSUES/DISCUSSION
Current Strategic Planning Projects

Table 1 provides a summary of current strategic planning projects and the activities undertaken as
part of these projects during the final quarter of the 2017 — 2018 financial year.

Table 1: Current Strategic Planning Projects

Quarter 4 (1 April 2018 — 30 June 2018)

. Estimated
: Tasks undertaken during .
Project Future tasks project
the quarter :
completion
Settlement Strategy e Community e Thereportisto | The report will be
consultation be reviewed presented to
workshops were through the Council by end of
conducted in seven strategic 2018
locations during April. document
e 34 people attended. approval_
e Four written process in
submissions were preparation for
received and presentation to

ltem 10.7 Page 278




ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

28 AUGUST 2018

exhibition documents
for DELWP approval.

reviewed. Council.

A draft strategy report

has been prepared

and circulated

internally for comment.
Serpentine Industrial Finalisation of Exhibition October 2018
Estate — INZ3 Planning amendment (July/August) subject to no
Scheme Amendment documents. Finalisation of | adverse

Preparation and amendment. submissions

lodgement of This stage being received.

could include
panel hearing if
there are
submissions
against the
amendment.

The Settlement Strategy project has been well received by the community. The key messages
from the community consultation were:

e growth is supported

e township character must be preserved
¢ need to enhance amenity and services
¢ housing suited to older residents is required

e new industry and employment, including growth and diversification of agriculture, is
required to attract population.

Introduction of a new online amendment tracking system by Department of Environment, Land,
Water and Planning delayed progression of the Serpentine Industrial Estate planning scheme
amendment by approximately one month.

Upcoming Strategic Planning Projects

Table 2 outlines futures strategic planning projects that have been identified to commence as soon

as practicably possible.

Table 2: Upcoming Strateqgic Planning Projects

Future Strategic Planning Projects

Development

Boort Park in Malone Street.

feasibility
assessment.

Seek quotations.

Estimated
Project Overview Key Tasks project
timeframes
Boort Park Provision of additional housing Develop project | Step 1, Feasibility
Housing lots on Council land adjoining scope, including | assessment

completed by
December 2018
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Planning Scheme
Review

Pursuant to Section 12B of the
Planning and Environment Act
(1987), Council is required to
undertake a review of its planning
scheme every four years. The
review will audit of the scheme
and its controls to assess
relevance and efficiency. The
review aims to ensure that the
planning scheme responds to
current issues, recent strategic
work is reflected in the planning
scheme and the most appropriate
and effective controls are being
used to implement State and local
strategy and policy.

Review of
application types
and outcomes.
Audit of the
planning scheme
to assess
accuracy and
relevance of
controls.

Review of state,
regional and
local strategic
work.

Discussion with
internal and
external
stakeholders
(including
community) to
identify gaps and
concerns.
Preparation of
report to
document
findings,
including
recommended
changes to the
planning scheme
and future
strategic work.
Presentation and
adoption of
report by
Council.
Submission of
report to Minister

Preparation of
Planning Scheme
Review Report
December 2018.
Implementation of
recommendations
are to be staged
over 2019 - 2022.

the municipality.

It is proposed that this money be
used to provide loans to owners
of buildings subject to heritage
protection under the planning
scheme or State legislation. The
loans will be provided to
successful to undertake works on
their property that would support
the protection of the heritage
buildings within Loddon Shire.

process for
approval and
implementation

for Planning.
Heritage Council has allocated $100,000 in Preparation of February 2019
Framework reserve to be used to support guidelines,
restoration of heritage buildings in criteria and

The Boort Park housing development project is proposed to be conducted in two stages. Stage 1
will be a feasibility assessment and will address matters such as infrastructure provision and cost,
interface management and estimated yield and return. Stage 2 will involve preparation of the
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planning scheme amendment material should Council determine the project to be viable. This
project will be completed by an appropriately experienced consultant.

COST/BENEFITS

The expenditure for the final quarter of 2017 — 2018 financial year of the strategic planning
activities contained within this report is $10,917.

Benefits derived from investing in strategic planning managed by the Development and
Compliance Department include:

o clearly defined directions for land use and development that are underpinned by research
and supported by the community

e arelevant and effective planning scheme that provides for economic development,
population growth, attractive townships and protection of heritage and the environment.

RISK ANALYSIS
Failure of Council to undertake strategic planning includes:

e outdated planning controls that do not respond to current issues and opportunities

e inappropriate development that compromises the amenity of towns and undermines
economic development opportunities

o loss of opportunities for population and residential growth.

CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

The strategic planning staff member consults with a number of stakeholders on a regular basis
including:

e community members and organisations

¢ government agencies including Department of Environment Land Water & Planning,
Department of Economic Development Jobs Transport & Resources, North Central
Catchment Management Authority

e other Loddon Shire Council departments

e other municipalities.
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10.8 INWARDS CORRESPONDENCE

File Number:

Author: Lynne Habner, Manager Executive and Commercial Services

Authoriser: Phil Pinyon, Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: 1. Letter from Minister for Police re Inglewood Police Presence
2. Letter to Minister for Police from Council

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receives and notes the inwards correspondence.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There is no conflict of interest for any Council staff member involved in the preparation of this
report, or involved in the subject matter of the report.

Date From Subject
1/8/18 Hon Lisa Neville MP, Minister for Police resources in Inglewood
Police (response to letter from Council, also
attached)
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Minister for Police

8 Nicholson Street

East Melbourne Victoria 3002
Telephone: (03) 9637 9654
DX: 210098

— e ] Our ref: CD/18/474545

0T AUG 2018
Phil Pinyon ——
Chief Executive Officer ———— o
Loddon Shire ———— o I
PO Box 21 '
WEDDERBURN VIC 3518 4

Dear Mr Pinyon
POLICE RESOURCES IN INGLEWOOD
Thank you for your correspondence of 4 July 2018 regarding police resources in Inglewood.

| can understand the community’s preference for a police officer to reside in Inglewood. However, |
am assured by Victoria Police that the residents of Inglewood receive a 24 hour response
regardless of where the local officers live.

The current gazetted staffing level of the Inglewood Police Station is one Sergeant and two
officers of other ranks.

The Inglewood Police Station is staffed on a rostered basis as part of the Loddon cluster, which
consists of nine local stations. Staffing is rostered on a rotating basis to all of these stations
dependent upon demand, in order for Victoria Police to provide the best service delivery to all
areas, as required.

When one member is on leave, the remaining two members cover 10 of the 14 shifts per week.
This is without factoring in the occasional training or court requirements. The shift shortfall is then
covered by the neighbouring station of Wedderburn and vice versa.

Out of hours each of the one member stations are paid a disturbance allowance for responding to
calls of assistance in their response zone. For stations such as Inglewood, one member is
available to respond to any calls of assistance and support is provided from nearby work units if
required.

When a police member at Inglewood is on duty and at the Police Station, the station is open so
the public can attend if they require. The police vehicle is also parked in the driveway of the
premises indicating a police member is there (unless tied up with an interview or similar). This
same person is also responsible for attending to jobs within the community should it require.

When the officer is attending to jobs within the community, the Inglewood station will be secured. If

a member of the public attends when the station is secured, the following options are available:
+ Asign on the door that indicates the station is unattended and to call triple zero if

immediate police assistance is required.
ORIA
mﬂﬂﬂ
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o The sign also details where the nearest 24 hour station is (address and phone number)
and, if you press the intercom, which station you will be diverted to.

« Each station has an intercom at the front of the station which is an auto dialler that
transfers the call to Maryborough Police Station which is attended 24 hours a day. Advice
or police attendance can then be arranged if required.

Inglewood Police Station also has an answering service that provides the caller prompts
depending on the level of policing service they require.

| urge Inglewood residents to report incidents to Victoria Police.
The Eyewatch - Goldfields Police Service Area Facebook page connects the Shires of Central

Goldfields and Loddon residents with local police directly to prevent crime, keep the
neighbourhood safe and solve crimes. It can be found at www.facebook.com/eyewatchgoldfields/.

Alternatively, they can contact Crime Stoppers by calling 1800 333 000 or visiting
www.crimestoppersvic.com.au. Information provided to Crime Stoppers is valuable to police, as
the intelligence gathered helps police to identify offence hotspots and inform decisions about
where to deploy their resources.

Thank you for your advocacy on behalf of the Inglewood community. | hope this information is of
assistance.

Yours sincerely

v g LY
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‘ Municipal Offices:
. 41 High Street, Wedderburn, Victoria
e PO Box 21, Wedderburn VIC 3518
- Telephone: 03 5494 1200
LO D DO N Facsimile: 03 5494 3003
Email: loddon@loddon.vic.gov.au
SHIRE ABN: 90 925 450 534

PP:lh
Doc 1D:295136

Hon Lisa Neville MP
Minister for Police

Level 17, 8 Nicholson Street
East Melbourne VIC 3002

Dear Minister
Re: Police presence in Inglewood

Council, at its meeting of 26 June 2018, resolved to write to you regarding the presence of
police in the township of Inglewood in Loddon Shire.

The Inglewood community has a strong preference for a police officer to reside in
Inglewood, and has raised the matter recently in response to a number of thefts and
incidents of property destruction that could potentially have been deterred if there was a
police officer in residence overnight.

There are police officers stationed at Inglewood, however none of them reside in the
township. It has been suggested that the standard of accommodation of the current police
house may be a deterrent.

Council seeks your consideration for providing updated residential accommodation in
Inglewood for police.

Yours sincerely

Phil Pinyon
Chief Executive Officer

4 July 2018
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11 COMPLIANCE REPORTS
Nil

12 GENERAL BUSINESS
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13 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS

RECOMMENDATION

That Council considers the confidential report(s) listed below in a meeting closed to the public in
accordance with Section 89(2) of the Local Government Act 1989:

13.1 Review of confidential actions

This matter is considered to be confidential under Section 89(2) - (h) of the Local Government Act,
and the Council is satisfied that discussion of this matter in an open meeting would, on balance, be
contrary to the public interest as it deals with Any other matter which the Council or special
committee considers would prejudice the Council or any person.

13.2 Provision of Regional Asbestos and Hazardous Materials Removal Services

This matter is considered to be confidential under Section 89(2) - (d) of the Local Government Act,
and the Council is satisfied that discussion of this matter in an open meeting would, on balance, be
contrary to the public interest as it deals with contractual matters.

13.3 Sale of Arnold Church

This matter is considered to be confidential under Section 89(2) - (d) of the Local Government Act,
and the Council is satisfied that discussion of this matter in an open meeting would, on balance, be
contrary to the public interest as it deals with contractual matters.

Closing of Meeting to the Public

RECOMMENDATION

That the meeting be closed to the public.
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NEXT MEETING

The next Ordinary Meeting of Council will be held on 25 September 2018 at Serpentine
commencing at at 3pm.

There being no further business the meeting was closed at enter time.
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